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DEAR FELLOW SHAREHOLDERS

The past year was a challenging one, as semiconductor device
manufacturers over-estimated demand, particularly for
memory chips. Nonetheless, I was pleased with Rudolph’s
accomplishments in the face of sharply-deteriorating

markets for our process characterization solutions. We
responded to this drop in demand by quickly taking steps

in the second half of 2007 to bring predictability and
consistency to our performance. We ended the year with
carnings of §.40 per share and free cash low exceeding $25
million, as your company remained financially sound.

To adjust to changing marker conditions, we refocused
on our mission and vision for the business. We made
significant progress on execution of our business model,
which calls for progress on three major fronts: (1) organic
growth; (2) inotganic growth via merger and acquisition
(M&A); and {3) industry collaborations and partnerships.

Organically, we have expanded our addressable opportunities
in our three business units, Inspection, Metrology and

Dara Analysis & Review, with the introducrion of five

new products aimed at continuing ro provide best-of-breed
technical sclutions to meet our customers’ most demanding
requirernents. These are expected to atlow us to capture
increasing market share in our chosen niches as the industry
continues to track with Moore’s Law and devices shrink to
critical line-width dimensions of 45 nanometers and smaller.
We are already seeing contributions from these new products
as our customers shift from capacity buys to technology buys.

In December 2007 and January 2008. we announced

the closings of two M&A transacrions, each designed to
give us leadership positions in arrractive growth markets.
The first was our purchase of the semiconductor assets of
Applied Precision, LLC, which gives us the #1 market share
position in the probe card test and analysis business, and
directly abues our final manufacturing {(back-end) macro
defect inspection market. The second was our purchase of
the Wafer Scanner assets of RVS! Inspection, LLC, which
gave us whar our due diligence showed 1o be the best three-
dimensional inspection technology 10 complement our #1
position in two-dimensional inspection. Both of these are
forecast to be aceretive to earnings in 2008. These acquisitions
added four products 1o our growing portfolio. As a eesul,
we believe we now hold close to 50 percent marker share in
overall back-end metrology and inspection markets, with
more than double the next competitor’s share. We intend ro
apply our most advanced technology 1o ensure this market
leadership in the back-end is further strengthened, thus
providing the company with added growth predictabilicy
within the realm of industry cyclicality. We fully expect to
bring value-added technical solutions to the fase-growing

test and packaging markets at attracrive gross margins.

In the past several quarters, we announced three major
cellaboration and partnership arrangements: {1) an OEM
licensing of our integrated inspection software to Tokyo
Electron Limired for inclusion in their current track

systetns, and a program to develop inspection on their
next-generation systems; (2) a program at ASML in The
Netherlands to develop macro defecr inspection rechnology
using our leading-edge AXi all-surface tool o address the
defect issues now on the critical path for our industry’s
next-generation immersion lithography solution; and (3)
Rudolph Technologies has become the first semiconductor
equipment supplier to become an associate member of
SEMATECH's Internarional Process Characterization
Program at the College of Nanoscale Science and Engineering
at Albany, New York. This is a world-class program that is
expected to provide long-term research and development
collaborations with SEMATECH member companies.

Our shareholders can expect 10 hear of mote progress in
each of these three growth avenues in the coming quarrers.

Nonetheless, we ended 2007 with the macro economic
situation deteriorating here in the United States, and many
analysts now forecasting a 20 to 25 percent decline in
capital spending for 2008. Memoty overcapacity continues
to make us very cautious. Order visibility is not clear in

the shore term; however, your company has adjusted to .
tiiese realities quickly and we believe we are well positioned
to exir the current cycle as a stronger company.

The company’s cash and markerable securities balance remains
extremely strong, with over $73 million ar che end of 2007, and
we are actively pursuing consolidation opportunities designed
to enhance our position in the marketplace as well as our value
1o our investors. We have the scope and scale to play the role of
a consolidator, and we will continue to exhibit discipline in our
MB& A activities. The intent is to capitalize on our strong brand
reputation and global infrastructure, while leveraging our
business model to the benefit of all our multiple constituencies.
The best days for Rudolph Technologies are still ahead of us.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank
you—our stockholders—for your support and confidence.
Qur employees, along with customers and suppliers, drive
our growrh. Each of your contributions has been vital to
our achievements to date and is sincerely appreciated.

Sincerely yours,

Paul F. McLaughlin
Chairman and Chief Execurive Officer
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking statements, including those
concerning our expectations of future revenues, gross profits, research and development and engineering
expenses, selling, general and administrative expenses, product introductions, technology development,
manufacturing practices and cash requirements. The statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K
that are not purely historical are forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities
Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we may, from time to time make oral forward-looking
statements. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the words such as, but not limited to, “anticipate”,
“believe”, “expect”, “intend”, “plan”, “should”, “may”, “could”, "“will” and words or phrases of similar
meaning, as they relate to our management or us.

The forward-looking statements contained herein reflect our current expectations with respect to future
events and are subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions. The forward-looking statements reflect
our position as of the date of this report and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking
statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. Actual results may differ
materially from those projected in such forward-fooking statements for a number of reasons including, but not
limited to, the following: variations in the level of orders which can be affected by general economic conditions
and growth rates in the semiconductor manufacturing industry and in the markets served by our customers, the
international economic and political climates, difficulties or delays in product functionality or performance, the
delivery performance of sole source vendors, the timing of future product releases, failure to respond adequately
tor either changes in technology or customer preferences, changes in pricing by us or our competitors, ability to
manage growth, risk of nonpayment of accounts receivable, changes in budgeted costs and the “Risk Factors™
set forth in ftem IA. Our stockholders should carefully review the cautionary statements contained in this Form
10-K below. You should also review any additional disclosures and cautionary statements we make from time to
time in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and other filings.

PARTI

Item 1. Business.
General

Rudolph Technologies, Inc. is a worldwide leader in the design, development, manufacture and support of
high-performance process control metrology, defect inspection, and dala analysis systems used by semiconductor
device manufacturers. We provide yield management solutions used in both wafer processing and final
manufacturing through a family of standalone systems and integrated modules for both transparent and opaque
thin Iilm measurements and macro-defect inspection. All of these systems feature production-worthy automation
and are backed by worldwide customer support.

Our acquisition of the net assets of Applied Precision’s semiconductor division to be known as the Rudolph
Technologies Probe Card Test and Analysis division (“PCTA") was completed on December 18, 2007. As a
result, we expanded our offerings of inspection systems to include probe card test and analysis products. For our
customers in semiconductor packaging and test, these products enable process validation, process verification
and process improvement within probe and wafer test segments,

Metrology Systems. The industry’s first production-oriented microprocessor-controlled ellipsometer for thin
transparent film measurements was introduced by Rudolph in 1977. Since that time, we have consistently
provided innovative product developments designed to meet manufacturers’ most advanced measurement
requirements, Qur patented transparent film technology uses up to four lasers operating simultaneously at
multiple angles and multiple wavelengths, providing powerful analysis and measurement capabilities to handle
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the most challenging requirements of today’s advanced processes and tomorrow’s new materials. Unlike the
white-light sources used in spectroscopic ellipsometers, laser light sources make our metrology tools inherently
stable, increase measurement speed and accuracy, and reduce maintenance costs by minimizing the time required
to re-qualify a light source when it is replaced. Our systems also employ a proprietary reflectometer technology
that allows the characterization of films and film stacks that cannot be performed using conventional
reflectometry or ellipsometry alone.

In November 2007 Rudolph announced it had granted Entrepix, Inc., an exclusive license to manufacture,
sell, service and support the Rudolph AutoEL® series of thin-film ellipsometers. Thousands of AutoEL tools
have been placed in universities, semiconductor research labs and semiconductor production facilities since it
was commercialized in 1977, with many of those tools still in use today.

For opaque film characterization, we brought patented optical acoustic metal film metrology technology to
the semiconductor manufacturing floor that allows customers to simultaneously measure the thickness and other
properties of up to six metal or other opaque film layers in a non-contact manner on product wafers. PULSE
Technology™ uses an ultra-fast laser to generate sound waves that pass down through a stack of opaque films
such as those used in copper or aluminum interconnect processes, sending back to the surface an echo that
indicates film thickness, density, and other process critical parameters. We believe we are a leader in providing
systems that can non-destructively measure opaque thin-film stacks with the speed and accuracy semiconductor
device manufacturers demand in order to achieve high yields with the latest fabrication processes. The
technology is ideal for characterizing copper interconnect structures and the majority of all systems sold have
been for copper applications.

Inspection Systems. Chip manufacturers deploy advanced macro-defect inspection (defects greater in size
than 0.5 micron) throughout the fab to monitor key process steps, gather process-enhancing information and
ultimately, lower manufacturing costs. Field-established tools such as the NSX®, AXi™, and WaferView® are
found in wafer processing (front-end) and final manufacturing (back-end) facilities around the world. These
high-speed tools incorporate features such as waferless recipe creation, tool-to-tool correlation, multiple
inspection resolutions and proprietary review and classification software that are required in today’s high-volume
integrated circuit (IC) manufacturing environments. In addition to wafer frontside inspection, Rudelph’s
innovative Explorer™ Cluster incorporates wafer edge and backside inspection in one integrated platform to
enhance productivily and continuously improve fab yield.

Data Analysis & Review Systems. Rudolph has a comprehensive offering of software solutions for process
management and data review. Using wafer maps, charts and graphs, the vast amount of data gathered through
automated inspeciion can be analyzed to determine trends that ultimately affect yield. Our goal is to provide our
customers with timely and accurate information so that corrective actions can be taken. Software solutions
available to our customers include products that identify, classify and analyze defect data as well as fabwide
systemns that are designed to determine the root cause of yield excursions as early as possible in the production
flow.

Technology

We believe that our expertise in engineering and our continued investment in research and development
enable us to rapidly develop new technologies and products in response to emerging industry trends. The breadth
of our technology enables us to offer our customers a diverse combination of measurement technologies that
provide process control for the majority of thin films used in semiconductor manufacturing. Additionally, our
defect detection and classification technologies allow us to provide yield enhancement for cntical front-end
processes such as photolithography, diffusion, etch, CMP, and outgoing quality control. Information learned
through post-fab inspection is critical. Advanced macro-defect inspection within the final manufacturing (back-
end) process provides our customers with critical quality assurance and process information. Defects may be
created during probing, bumping, dicing or general handling, and can have a major impact on device and process
quality.




Optical Acoustics. Optical acoustic metrology involves the use of ultra-fast laser induced sonar for metal
and opaque thin film measurement. This technology sends ultrasonic waves into multi-layer opaque films and
then analyzes the resulting echoes to simultaneously determine the thickness of each individual layer in complex
multi-layer metal film stacks. The echo’s amplitude and phase can be used to detect film properties, missing
layers, and interlayer problems. Since different phenomena affect amplitude and phase uniquely, a variety of
process critical interlayer problems can be detected in a single measurement.

The use of optical acoustics to measure multi-layer metal and opaque films was pioneered by scientists at
Brown University in collaboration with engineers at Rudolph. The proprietary optical acoustic technology in our
PULSE Technology systems measures the thickness of single or multi-layer opaque films ranging from less than
40 Angstroms to greater than five microns, It provides these measurements at a rate of up to 70 wafers per hour
within one to two percent accuracy and typically less than 1% repeatability. This range of thicknesses covers the
majority of thick and thin metal films projected by the Intemnational Roadmap for Semiconductors 1o be used
through the end of this decade. Our non-contact, non-destructive optical acoustic technology and small spot size
enable our PULSE Technology systems to measure film properties directly on product wafers.

Eliipsometry. Ellipsometry is a non-contact, non-destructive optical technique for transparent thin film
measurement. We have been an industry leader in ellipsometry technology for the last three decades. We hold
patents on several ellipsometry technologies, including our proprietary technique that uses four lasers for multiple-
angle of incidence, multiple wavelength ellipsometry. Laser ellipsometry technology enables our transparem film
systerns to continue to provide the increasingty higher level of accuracy needed as thinner films and newer materials
are introduced for future generations of semiconductor devices. We extended this same optical technology to
characterize the scatterometry signal from patterned surfaces, allowing measurement of critical dimensions,

Reflectometry. For applications requiring broader spectral coverage, some of our ellipsometry tools are also
equipped with a reflectometer. Reflectometry uses a white or ultraviolet light source to determine the properties
of transparznt thin films by analyzing the wavelength and intensity of light reflected from the surface of a wafer,
This optical information is processed with software algorithms to determine film thickness and other material
properties. By combining data from both the laser ellipsometer and broad spectrum reflectometer, it is possible to
characterize films and film stacks that cannot be adequately analyzed by either method individually.

Automated Defect Detection and Classification. Automating the defect detection and classification process
is best done by a system that can mimic, or even extend, the response of the human eye, but at a much higher
speed, with high resolution and more consistently. To do this, our systems capture fult-color whole wafer images
using simultaneous dark and bright field illumination. The resulting bright and dark field images are compared to
those frorn an “ideal” wafer having no defects. When a difference is detected, its image is brokea down into
mathematical vectors that allow rapid and accurate companson with a library of known classified defects stored
in the wool’s database. Patented and proprietary enhancements of this approach enable very fast and highly
repeatable image classification. The system is pre-programmed with an extensive library of default local, global,
and color defects and can also absorb a virtually unlimited amount of new defect classes. This allows customers
to define defects based on their existing defect classification system, provides more reliable automated rework
decisions, and enables more accurate statistical process contrel data,

All-surface Inspection. Rudolph has made all-surface, 100% advanced macro-defect inspection and
metrology a reality. There are four types of all-surface inspection: wafer frontside, edge, and backside; and
post-fab die and wafer. The edge inspection process focuses on the area near the wafer edge, an area that poses
difficulty for traditional wafer fromside inspection technology due to its varied topography and process variation.
Edge bevel inspection looks for defects on the side edge of a wafer. The edge bead removal and edge exclusion
metrology involve a topside surface measurement required exclusively in the photolithography process, primarily
to determine if wafers have been properly aligned for the edge exclusion region. The primary reason for wafer
backsidc inspection is to determine if contamination has been created that may spread throughout the fab. For
instance, it is critical that the wafer backside be free of defects prior to the photolithography process to prevent
focus and exposure problems on the wafer front-side.




Probe Card Test and Analysis. The combination of fast 3D-OCM (opticali comparative metrology)
Technology with improved testing accuracy and repeatability is designed to reduce total test time for even the
most advanced large arca probe cards. 3-D capabilities enable users to analyze probe marks and probe tips in a
rapid and information-rich format.

Classification. Classifying defects off-line enables automated inspection systems to maintain their high
throughput. Using defect image files captured by automated inspection systems, operators are able to view high-
resolution defect images to determine killer defects. Classifying defects enables faster analysis by grouping
defects found together as one larger defect, a scratch for example, and defects of similar types across a wafer lot
to be grouped based on size, repeating defects and other user-defined specifications. Automatically classifying
defects provides far greater yield learning than human classification.

Yield Analysis. Using wafer maps, charts and graphs, the vast amounts of data gathered through automated
inspection can be analyzed to determine trends across bumps, die, wafers and lots, This analysis may determine
where in the process an inconsistency is being introduced, allowing for enhancements to be made and yields
improved. Defect data analysis is performed to identify, analyze and locate the source of defects and other
manufacturing process excursions. Using either a single wafer map or a composite map created from multiple
wafer maps, this analysis enables identification of defect patterns and distribution. When combined with
inspection data from strategically-placed inspection points, this analysis may pinpoint the source of the defects so
corrective action can be taken.

Products

We market and sell products to all major logic, memory, and application specific integrated circuit (ASIC)
device manufacturers. Our customers rety on Rudolph for versatile full-fab metrology and inspection systems as
well as yield management software solutions. These systems are designed for high-volume production facilities
and offer automated wafer handling for 200 and 300 mm configurations. Qur systems operate at high throughput
with ultraclean operation and high reliability.

Type of Fab
Wafer Final
Product Introduced Functionality Processing | Manufacturing
Metrology Systems
MetaPULSE® 1997 - Non-contact system for thin opaque
. films
MetaPULSE-IT 2001 - Patented Picosecond Ultrasenic Laser
Sonar Technology (PULSE®) X
MetaPULSE-II 2005 - Designed for advanced copper and
non-copper applications
MetaPULSE-1I1a 2007 - Improved throughput and repeatability
S3000A™ 2007 - Superior accuracy for transparent film X
measurements

- Incorporates ellipsometry technology
for transparent film application

- Optimized price/performance for

$3000™/52000™ 2006 fabwide applications X

- Available with pattern recognition
software

- Enhanced data review mode




Type of Fab

Wafer Final
Preduct Introduced Functionality Processing | Manufacturing

Inspection & Probe Card Test Systems

- Advanced detection of defects >0.5
micron

AXi™ Series 2003 - Inspection of patterned and unpatterned %
wafers

- In line, high-speed, 100% inspection

- Full color review

- 2D defect detection of the wafer’s edge
E25™ System 2003 - Metrology of edge feature X X
- Incorporated into the Explorer Cluster

- 2D defect detection of the wafer's
backside

B20™ System 2003 - Darkfield, brightfield and color X X
imaging

- Incorporated into the Explorer Cluster

- Fulty automated defect detection >0.5

NSX® Series 1997 micron o X
- 2D wafer, die & bump inspection

- In line, high-speed, 100% inspection

' ] - 2D & 3D wafer bump inspection &
3Di™ Series 2001 metrology system X

- In line, high-speed, 100% inspection

- Automated macro-defect inspection for
WaferView® 320 2004 lithography app]ic:utions %
- Advanced color vision system

- Patented knowledge-based algorithms

- Probe card production metrology
Probe WoRx® 2003 - 3D Optical Comparative Metrology X
- High-specd test times

- Automated, one-touch measurements

- Probing process analysis
WaferWoRx® 2006 -~ 3D probe tip analysis X

- Proprietary, advanced software

.. . - Probe card analyzer
PrecisionPoint 2002 - Tests devices simultaneously X
- Upgradable




Type of Fab
Wafer Final

Product Introduced Functionality Processing | Manufacturing

- Fabwide software for archival and

Discover™ 2007 retn.e.va] of process related d.ala . X

- Facilitates root cause analysis, yield
enhancement and yield learning

- In line, all surface defect analysis and
data management

- Trend analysis and visualization tools

2005 - Wafer maps visualize all-surface X X
defects

- Identifies root cause of defects and
process excursions

Discover
Enterprise™

- Off line defect review and
classification

Harmony ASR™ 2005 - Defects diS[.)lﬂyEfj in real time X X

- Rapid classification of unknown
defects; review of previously-classified
defects

- Automatic defect classification

- High accuracy, consistency and

TrueADC™ 2005 scalability _ X X

- Patented feature-based defect matching
technology

- Utilizes dynamic defect library method

- Fabwide spatial process control system

- Traces patterns back to yield-killing
process issues

Process Sentinel™ 2006 - Combined defect and $ort solution X

- Quickly isolates systemic faults

- Advanced segmentation and wafer
stacking capability

- Serving the entire fab

- Defect classification with a high level
TrueADC™ of accuracy

. 2007 o X X
Enterprise - Ensures database lookup, classification
and timely response to the tool
- Minimum impact to throughput
- Builds predictive models
Yield 2006 - Optimizes yield and reduces excursions X X

Optimizer™ - Identifies the most critical metrology
measurements for controlling yield




Customers

Over 90 semiconductor device manufacturers have purchased Rudolph products for installation at multiple
sites. We support a diverse customer base in terms of both geographic location and type of semiconductor device
manufactured. Our customers are located in 20 countries.

We depend on a relatively small number of customers and end users for a large percentage of our revenues.
In the years 2005, 2006 and 2007, sales to end user customers that individually represented at least five percent
of our revenues accounted for 62.6%, 40.9% and 37.1% of our revenues, respectively, In 2005, 2006 and 2007,
sales to Intel Corporation accounted for 20.3%, 14.0 % and 11.5% of our revenues, respectively. No other
individual end user customer accounted for more than 10% of our 2007 revenues. We do not have purchase
contracts with any of our customers that obligate them to continue to purchase our products.

Research and Development

The thin film transparent, opaque process control and macro-defect inspection metrology market is
characterized by continuous technological development and product innovations. We believe that the rapid and
ongoing development of new products and enhancements to existing products is critical to our success.
Accordingly, we devote a significant portion of our technical, management and financial resources to research
and development programs.

The core competencies of our research and development team include metrology systems for high volume
manufacturing, ellipsometry, ultra-fast optics, picosecond acoustic and optical design, advanced metrology
application development and algorithm development. To leverage our internal research and development
capabilities, we maintain close relationships with leading research institutions in the metrology field, including
Brown University. Our relationship with Brown University has resulted in the development of the optical
acoustic technology underlying our MetaPULSE product line. We have been granted exclusive licenses from
Brown University Research Foundation, subject to rights retained by Brown and the United States government
for their own non-commercial uses for several patents relating to this technology.

Qur research and development expenditures in 20035, 2006 and 2007 were $11.9 million, $29.9 million and
$30.0 million, respectively. We plan to continue our strong commitment to new product development in the
future, and we expect that our level of research and development expenses will increase in absolute dollar terms
in future periods.

Sales, Customer Service and Application Support

We maintain an extensive network of direct sales, customer service and application support offices in
several locations throughout the world. We maintain sales, service or applications offices in locations including
but not limited to, New Jersey, Minnesota, Massachusetts, Texas, Washington, Germany, Scotland, Ireland,
Israel, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan, China and Japan.

We provide our customers with comprehensive support before, during and after the delivery of our products,
For example, in order to facilitate the smooth integration of our tools into our customers’ operations, we often
assign dedicated, site-specific field service and applications engineers to provide long-term support at selected
customer sites. We also provide comprehensive service and applications training for customers at our training
facility in Mt. Olive, New Jersey and at customer locations. In addition, we maintain a group of highly skilled
applications scientists at strategically located facilities throughout the world and at selected customer locations.

Manufacturing

Our principal manufacturing activities include assembly, final test and calibration. These activities are
conducted in our manufacturing facilities in New Jersey, Minnesota and Washington. Our core manufacturing
compelencies include electrical, optical and mechanical assembly and testing as well as the management of new
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product transitions. While we use standard components and subassemblies wherever possible, most mechanical
parts, metal fabrications and critical components used in our products are engineered and manufactured to our
specifications. We expect to rely increasingly on subcontractors and turnkey suppliers to fabricate components,
build assemblies and perform other non-core activities in & cost-effective manner.

We rely on a number of limited source suppliers for certain parts and subassemblies. This reliance creates a
potential inability to obtain an adequate supply of required components, and reduced control over pricing and
time of delivery of components. An inability to obtain adequate supplies would require us to seek alternative
sources of supply or might require us to redesign our systems to accommodate different components or
subassemblies. However, if we were forced to seek alternative sources of supply, manufacture such compenents
or subassemblies internally, or redesign our products, this could prevent us from shipping our products to our
customers on a timely basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our operations.

Intellectual Property

We have a policy of seeking patents on inventions governing new products or technologies as part of our
ongoing research, development, and manufacturing activities. As of December 31, 2007, we have been granted,
or hold exclusive licenses to, 121 1i.S. and foreign patents. The patents we own, jointly own or exclusively
license have expiration dates ranging from 2008 to 2025. We also have 107 pending regular and provisional
applications in the U.S. and other countries. Qur patents and applications principally cover various aspects of
transparent thin film measurement. altered material characterization and macro-defect detection and
classification. :

We have been granted exclusive licenses from Brown Universily Research Foundation, subject to rights
retained by Brown and the United States government for their own non-commercial uses, for several patents
relating to the opiical acoustic technology underlying our MetaPULSE product family. The terms of these
exclusive licenses are equal to the lives of the patents. We pay royalties 1o Brown based upon a percentage of our
revenues from the sale of systems that incorporate technology covered by the Brown patents. We also have the
right to support patent activity with respect to new ultra-fast acoustic technology developed by Brown scientists,
and to acquire exclusive licenses to this technology. Brown may terminate the licenses if we fail to pay royalties
to Brown or if we materially breach our license agreement with Brown.

QOur pending patents may never be issued, and even if they are, these patents, our existing patents and the
patents we license may not provide sufficiently broad protection to protect our proprietary rights, or they may
prove to be unenforceable, To protect our proprietary rights, we also rely on a combination of copyrights,
trademarks, trade secret laws, contractual provisions and licenses. There can be no assurance that any patenis
issued or licensed by us will not be challenged, invalidated or circumvented or that the rights granted thereunder
will provide us with a competitive advantage.

The laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to as great an extent as do the laws
of the United States, and many U.S, companies have encountered substantial infringement problems in prolecting
their proprietary rights against infringement in such countries, some of which are countries in which we have
sold and continue to sell products. There is a risk that our means of protecting our proprietary rights may not be
adequate. For example, our competitors may independently develop similar technology or duplicate our products.
If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property, it would be easier for our competitors to sell competing
products.

Competition

The market for semiconductor capital equipment is highly competitive. We face substantial competition
from established companies in each of the markets that we serve. We principally compete with KLA-Tencor and
Camtek. We compete 1o a lesser extent with companies such as Nanometrics, Vistec, and Nikon. Each of our
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products also competes with products that use different metrology techniques. Some of our competitors have
greater financial, engineering, manufacturing and marketing resources, broader product offerings and service
capabilities and larger installed customer bases than we do.

Significant competitive factors in the market for metrology systems include system performance, ease of
use, reliability, cost of ownership, technical support and customer relationships. We believe that, while price and
delivery are important compeltitive factors, the customers’ overriding requirement is for a product that meets their
technical capabilities. To remain competitive, we believe we will need to maintain a high level of investment in
research and development and process applications. No assurances can be given that we will continue to be
competitive in the future.

Backlog

We schedule production of our systems based upon order backlog and informal customer forecasts. We
include in backlog only those orders to which the customer has assigned a purchase order number and for which
delivery has been specified within 12 months. Because shipment dates may be changed and customers may
cancel or delay orders with little or no penalty, our backlog as of any particular date may not be a reliable
indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period. At December 31, 2007, we had a backlog of approximately
$26.7 million compared with a backlog of approximately $26.1 million at December 31, 2006.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 648 employees. Qur employees are not represented by any collective
bargaining agreements, and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We believe our employee relations are
good.

Available Information

We were incorporated in New Jersey in 1958 and reincorporated in Detaware in 1999. The Internet website
address of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. is http://www.rudolphtech.com. The information on our website is not
incorporated into this Annual Report. The Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form
10-Q and Current Reports on Form 8-K (and any amendments to those reports) are made available free of charge,
on or through ocur Internet website, as soon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed
with or furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC. All reports we file with the SEC are also
available free of charge via EDGAR through the SEC’s website at htip:/fwww sec.gov.

We also make available, free of charge, through the investors page on our corporate website Rudolph
Technologies’ corporate summary, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Financial Code of Ethics, charters
of the committees of our board of directors, as well as other information and materials, including information
about how to contact our board of directors, its committees and their members. To find this information and
obtain copies, visit our website at http://www.rudolphtech.com.

[tem 1A. Risk Factors.
Risks Related to Rudolph

Our operating results have varied and will likely continue to vary significantly from quarter to quarter in
the future, causing volatility in our stock price

Our quarterly operating results have varied in the past and will likely continue to vary sigaificantly from
quarter to quarter in the future, cansing volatility in our stock price. Some of the factors that may influence our
operating results and subject our stock to extreme price and volume fluctuations include:

* changes in customer demand for our systems, which is influenced by economic conditions in the
semiconductor device industry, demand for products that use semiconductors, market acceptance of cur
systems and products of our customers and changes in our product offerings;
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+ seasonal variations in customer demand, including the tendency of European sales to slow significantly
in the third quarter of each year;

« the timing, cancellation or delay of customer orders, shipments and acceptance;

« product development costs, including increased research, development, engineering and marketing
expenses associated with our introduction of new products and product enhancements; and

» the levels of our fixed expenses, including research and development costs associated with product
development, relative to our revenue levels,

In light of these factors and the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, we expect 10 continue to
cxperience significant fluctuations in quarterly and annual operating results. Moreover, many of our expenses are
fixed in the short-term which, together with the need for continued investment in research and development,
marketing and customer support, limits our ability to reduce expenses quickly. As a result, declines in net sales
could harm our business and the price of our comimon stock could substantially decline,

Our largest customers account for a significant portion of our revenues, and our revenues and cash flows
would significantly decline if one or more of these customers were to purchase significantly fewer of our
systems or they delayed or cancelled a large erder

Sales to end user customers that individually represent at least five percent of our revenues typically account
for, in the aggregate, a considerable amount of our revenues. We operate in the highly concentrated, capital-
intensive semiconductor device manufacturing industry. Historically, a significant portion of our revenues in
each quarter and year has been derived from sales to relatively few customers, and this trend is expected to
continue. If any of our key customers were to purchase significantly fewer of our systems in the future, or if a
large order were delayed or cancelled, our revenues and cash flows would significantly decline. We expect that
we will continue to depend on a small number of large customers for a significant portion of our revenues for at
least the next several years. In addition, as large semiconductor device manufacturers seek to establish closer
relationships with their suppliers, we expect that our customer base wiil become even more concentrated.

Our revenue may vary significantly each quarter due to relatively small fluctuations in our unit sales

During any quarter, a significant portion of our revenue may be derived from the sale of a relatively small
number of systems. Qur transparent film measurement systems range in selling price from approximately
$250,000 to $1.0 million per system, our opaque film measurement sysiems range in selling price from
approximately $900,000 to $2.0 million per system and our macro-defect inspection and probe card and test
analysis systems range in sefling price from approximately $250,000 to $1.4 million per system. Accordingly, a
small change in the number of systems we sell may also cause significant changes in our operating results. This,
in turn, could cause fluctuations in the market price of our common stock.

Variations in the amount of time it takes for us to sell our systems may cause fluctuations in our operating
results, which could cause our stock price to decline

Variations in the length of our sales cycles could cause our revenues and cash flows, and consequently, our
business, financial condition, operating results and cash flows, to [luctuate widely from period to period. This
variation could cause our stock price to decline. Our customers generally take a long time to evalvate our
inspection and/or film metrology systems and many people are involved in the evaluation process. We expend
significant resources educating and providing information to our prospective customers regarding the uses and
benefits of our systems in the semiconductor fabrication process. The length of time it takes for us 1o make a sale
depends upon many factors including, but not limited to:

«  the efforts of our sales force;
« the complexity of the customer’s fabrication processes;

» the internal technical capabilities and sophistication of the customer;
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*  the customer’s budgetary constraints; and

» the quality and sophistication of the customer’s current metrology and/or inspection equipment.

Because of the number of factors influencing the sales process, the period between our initial contact with a
customer and the time when we recognize revenue from that customer, if ever, and receive payment varies
widely in length. Our sales cycles, including the time it takes for us to build a product to customer specifications
after receiving an order to the time we recognize revenue, typically range from six to 15 months. Sometimes our
sales cycles can be much longer, particularly with customers in Japan. During these cycles, we commit
substantial resources to our sales efforts in advance of receiving any revenue, and we may never receive any
revenue from a customer despite our sales efforts, If we do make a sale, our customers often purchase only one of
our systems, and then evaluate its performance for a lengthy period before purchasing any more of our systems.
The number of additional products a customer purchases, if any, depends on many factors, including a
customer’s capacity requirements. The period between a customer’s initial purchase and any subsequent
purchases can vary from six months to a year or longer, and variations in the length of this period could cause
further fluctuations in our operating results and possibly in our stock price.

Most of our revenues have been derived from customers outside of the United States subjecting us to
operational, financial and political risks, such as unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, tariffs,
political and economic instability, outbreaks of hostilities, and difficulties in managing foreign sales
representatives and foreign branch operations

Due to the significant level of our international sales, we are subject to a number of material risks,
including:

Unexpected changes in regulatory requirements including rariffs and other market barriers. The
semiconcluctor device industry is a high-visibility industry in many of the European and Asian countries in which
we sell our products. Because the governments of these countries have provided extensive financial support to
our semiconductor device manufacturing customers in these countries, we believe that our customers could be
disproportionately affected by any trade embargoes, excise taxes or other restrictions imposed by their
governments on trade with United States companies such as ourselves. Any restrictions of these types could
result in a reduction in our sales to customers in these countries.

Political and economic instability. We are subject to various global risks related to political and economic
instabilities in countries in which we derive sales. If terrorist activities, armed conflict, civil or military unrest or
political instability occurs outside of the U.S., these events may result in reduced demand for cur products. There is
considerable political instability in Taiwan related to its disputes with China and in South Korea related to its disputes
with North Korea. In addition, several Asian countries, particularly Japan, have experienced significant economic
instability. An outbreak of hostilities or other political upheaval in China, Taiwan or South Korea, or an economic
downturn in Japan or other countries, would likely harm the operations of our customers in these countries. The effect
of these types of events on our revenues and cash flows could be material because we derive substantial revenues from
sales to semiconductor device foundries in Taiwan such as Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Lid. and
United Microelectronics Corporation, from memory chip manufacturers in South Korea such as Hynix and Samsung,
and from semiconductor device manufacturers in Japan such as NEC and Toshiba.

Difficulties in staffing and managing foreign branch operations. During periods of tension between the
governments of the United States and certain other countries, it is often difficult for United States companies
such as ourselves to staff and manage operations in such countries.

Currency fluctuations as compared to the U.S. Dollar. A substantial portion of our international sales are
denominated in U.S. dollars. As a result, if the dollar rises in value in relation to foreign currencies, our systems
will become more expensive to customers outside the United States and less competitive with systems produced
by competitors ocutside the United States. These conditions could negatively impact our international sales,
Foreign sales also expose us to collection risk in the event it becomes more expensive for our foreign customers
to convert their local currencies into U.S. dollars,
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If we deliver systems with defects, our credibility will be harmed and the sales and market acceptance of
our systems will decrease

Our systems are complex and have occasionally contained errors, defects and bugs when introduced. When
this occurs, our credibility and the market acceptance and sales of our systems could be harmed. Further, if our
systems contain errors, defects or bugs, we may be required to expend significant capital and resources to
alleviate these problems. Defects could also lead to product liability as a result of product liability lawsuits
against us or against our customers. We have agreed to indemnify our customers under certain circumstances
against liability arising from defects in our systems. Our product liability policy currently provides $2.0 million
of coverage per claim, with an overall umbrella limit of $5.0 million. In the event of a successful product liability
claim, we could be obligated to pay damages significantly in excess of our product liability insurance limits.

If we are not successful in developing new and enhanced products for the semiconductor device
manufacturing industry we will lose market share to our competitors

We operate in an industry that is highly competitive and subject to evolving industry standards, rapid
technological changes, rapid changes in consumer demands and the rapid introduction of new, higher
performance systems with shorter product life cycles. To be competitive in our demanding market, we must
continually design, develop and introduce in a timely manner new inspection and film metrology systems that
meel the performance and price demands of semiconductor device manufacturers. We must also continue to
refine our current systems so that they remain competitive. We expect to continue to make significant
investments in our research and development activities. We may experience difficulties or delays in our
development efforts with respect o new systems, and we may not ultimately be successful in our product
enhancement efforts to improve and advance products or in responding effectively to technological change, as
not all rescarch and development activities result in viable commercial products. In addition, we cannot provide
assurance that we will be able 10 develop new products for the most opportunistic new markets and applications.
Any significant delay in releasing new systems could cause our products to become obsolete, adversely affect our
reputation, give a competitor a first-to-market advantage or cause a competitor to achieve greater market share.
In addition, new product offerings that are highly complex in terms of software or hardware may require
application or service work such as bug fixing prior to acceptance, thereby delaying revenue recognition.

If new products developed by us do not gain general market acceptance, we will be unable to generate
revenues and recover our research and development costs

Metrology and inspection product development is inherently risky because it is difficult to foresee
developments in semiconductor device manufacturing technology, coordinate technical personnel, and identify
and eliminate system design flaws. Further, our products are complex and often the applications 10 our
customers’ businesses are unique. Any new systems we introduce may not achieve or sustain a significant degrec
of market acceptance and sales.

We expect to spend a significant amount of time and resources developing new systems and refining our
existing systems. In light of the long product development cycles inherent in our industry, these expenditures will
be made well in advance of the prospect of deriving revenue from the sale of those systems. Qur ability to
commercially introduce and successfully market new systems are subject to a wide variety of challenges during
the development cycle, including start-up bugs, design defects, and other matters that could delay introduction of
these systems. In addition, since our customers are not obligated by long-term contracts to purchase our systems,
our anticipated product orders may not materiatize, or orders that are placed may be cancelled. As a result, if we
do not achieve market acceptance of new products, we may be unable to generate sufficient revenues and cash
flows to recover our research and development costs and our market share, revenue, operating results or stock
price would be negatively impacted.
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Even if we are able to develop new products that gain market acceptance, sales of these new products
could impair our ability to sell existing products

Competition from our new systems could have a negative effect on sales of our existing systems and the
prices that we could charge for these systems. We may also divert sales and marketing resources from our current
systems in order to successfully launch and promote our new or next generation systems. This diversion of
resources could have a further negative effect on sales of our current systems and the value of inventory.

If our relationships with our large customers deteriorate, our product development activities could be
adversely affected

The success of our product development efforts depends on our ability to anticipate market trends and the
price, performance and functionality requirements of semiconductor device manufacturers. In order to anticipate
these trends and ensure that critical development projects proceed in a coordinated manner, we musl continue to
collaborate closely with our largest customers. Our relationships with these and other customers provide us with
aceess 10 valuable information regarding trends in the semiconductor device industry, which enables us to better
plan our product development activities, If our current relationships with our large customers are impaired, or if
we are unable to develop similar collaborative relationships with important customers in the future, our product
development activities could be adversely affected.

Our ability to reduce costs is limited by our ongoing need to invest in research and development and to
provide customer support activities

Our industry is characterized by the need for continual investment in research and development as well as
customer service and support. As a result, our operating results could be materially affected if operating costs
associated with our research and development as well as customer support activities increase in the future or we
are unable (o reduce those activities.

We may fail to adequately protect our intellectual property and, therefore, lose our competitive advantage

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to obtain and maintain
proprietary technology for our principal product families, and we rely, in part, on patent and trade secret law and
confidentiality agreements to protect that technology. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property, it
will give our competitors a significant advantage. We own or have licensed a number of patents relating to our
transparent and opaque thin film metrology and macro-defect inspection systems, and have filed applications for
additional patents. Any of our pending patent applications may be rejected, and we may be unable to develop
additional proprietary technology that is patentable in the future,

In addition, the patents that we do own or that have been issued or licensed 1o us may not provide us with
competitive advantages and may be challenged by third parties. Further, third parties may also design around
these patents, In addition to patent protection, we rely upon trade secret protection for our confidential and
proprietary information and technology. We routinely enter into confidentiality agreements with our employees
and other third partics. However, in the event that a confidentiality agreement is breached, we may not have
adequate remedies. Our confidential and proprietary information and technology might also be independently
developed by, or become otherwise known to. third parties.

Protection of our intellectual property rights, or the efforts of third parties to enforce their own
intellectual property rights against us, may result in costly and time-consuming litigation, substantial
damages, lost product sales and/or the loss of important intellectual property rights

We may be required to initiate litigation in order to enforce any patents issued (o or licensed by us, or o
determine the scope or validity of a third party’s patent or other proprietary rights. Any litigation, regardless of
outcome, could be expensive and time consuming, and could subject us to significant liabilities or require us to
re-engineer our products or obtain expensive licenses from third parties.
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In addition, our commercial success depends in part on our ability to avoid infringing or misappropriating
patents or other proprietary rights owned by third parties. From time to time we may receive communications
from third parties asserting that our products or systems infringe, or may infringe, the proprietary rights of these
third parties. These claims of infringement may lead to protracted and costly litigation, which could require us to
pay substantial damages or have the sale of our products or systems stopped by an injunction. Infringement
claims could also cause product or system delays or require us to redesign our products or systems, and these
delays could result in the loss of substantial revenues. We may also be required to obtain a license from the third
party or cease activities utilizing the third party’s proprietary rights. We may not be able to enter into such a
license or such a license may not be available on commercially reasonable terms. Accordingly, the loss of
important intellectual property rights could hinder our ability to sell our systems, or make the sale of these
syslems more expensive.

Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may be less effective in certain foreign countries, where
intellectual property rights are not as well protected as in the United States

The laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to as great an extent as do the laws
of the United States, and many U.S. companies have encountered substantial problems in protecting their
proprietary rights against infringement abroad. For example, Taiwan is not a signatory of the Patent Cooperation
Treaty, which is designed to specify rules and methods for defending intellectual property internationally. The
publication of a patent in Taiwan prior to the filing of a patent in Taiwan would invalidate the ability of a
company to obtain a patent in Taiwan. Similarly, in contrast to the United States where the contents of patents
remain confidential during the patent application process, in Taiwan the contents of a patent are published upon
filing which provides competitors an advance view of the contents of a patent application prior to the
establishment of patent rights. Consequently, there is a risk that we may be unable to adequately protect its
proprietary rights in certain foreign countries. If this occurs, it would be easier for our competitors to develop and
sell competing products in these countries,

Some of our current and potential competitors have significantly greater resources than we do, and
increased competition could impair sales of our products or cause us to reduce our prices

The market for semiconductor capital equipment is highly competitive. We face substantial competition
from established companies in each of the markets we serve. We principally compete with KLLA-Tencor and
Camtek. We compete to a lesser extent with companies such as Nanometrics, Vistec and Nikon. Each of our
products also competes with products that use different metrology or inspection techniques. Some of our
competitors have greater financial, engineering, manufacturing and marketing resources, broader product
offerings and service capabilities and larger installed customer bases than we do. As a result, these competitors
may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or market developments by devoting
greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products, which, in turn, could impair sales of our
products. Further, there may be significant merger and acquisition activity among our competitors and potential
competitors, which, in turn, may provide them with a competitive advantage over us by enabling them to rapidly
expand their product offerings and service capabilities to meet a broader range of cusiomer needs.

Many of our customers and potential customers in the semiconductor device manufacturing industry are
large companies that require global support and service for their semiconductor capital equipment. We believe
that our global support and service infrastructure is sufficient to meet the needs of our customers and potential
customers. However, some of our competitors have more extensive infrastructures than we do, which could place
us at a disadvantage when competing for the business of global semiconductor device manufacturers. Many of
our compelitors are investing heavily in the development of new systems that will compete directly with our
systems. We have from time to time selectively reduced prices on our systems in order to protect our market
share, and compelitive pressures may necessitate further price reductions. We expect our competitors in each
product area to continue to improve the design and performance of their products and to introduce new products
with competitive prices and performance characteristics. These product introductions would likely require us to
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decrease the prices of our systems and increase the level of discounts that we grant our customers. Price
reductions or lost sales as a resull of these competitive pressures would reduce our total revenues and could
adversely impact our financial results.

Because of the high cost of switching equipment vendors in our markets, it is sometimes difficult for us to
win customers from our competitors even if our systems are superior to theirs

We believe that once a semiconductor device manufacturer has selected one vendor’s capital equipment for
a production-line application, the manufacturer generally relies upon that capital equipment and. to the extent
possible, subsequent generations of the same vendor’s equipment, for the life of the application. Once a vendor’s
equipment has been installed in a production line application, a semiconductor device manufacturer must often
make substantial technical modifications and may experience production-line downtime in order to switch to
another vendor's equipment. Accordingly, unless our sysiems offer performance or cost advantages that
outweigh a customer’s expense of switching to our systems, it will be difficult for us to achieve significant sales
to that customer once it has selected another vendor’s capital equipment for an application.

We must attract and retain key personnel with knowledge of semiconductor device manufacturing and
inspection and/or metrology equipment to help support our future growth, and competition for such
personnel in our industry is high

Our success depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions of our key management,
engineering, sales and marketing, customer support, finance and manufacturing personnel. The loss of any of
these key personnel, each of whom would be extremely difficult to replace, could harm our business and
operating results. Although we have employment and noncompetition agreements with key members of our
senior management team, including Messrs. McLaughlin and Roth, these individuals or other key employees may
still leave us, We do not have key person life insurance on any of our executives. In addition. to support our
future growth, we will need to attract and retain additional qualified employees. Competition for such personnel
in our industry is intense, and we may not be successful in attracting and retaining qualified employees.

We obtain some of the components and subassemblies included in our systems from a limited group of
suppliers, and the partial or complete loss of one of these suppliers could cause production delays and a
substantial loss of revenues

We obtain some of the components and subassemblies included in our systems from a limited group of
suppliers and do not have long-term contracts with many of our suppliers. Our dependence on limited source
suppliers of components and our fack of long-term contracts with many of our suppliers exposes us to several
risks, including a potential inability to obtain an adequate supply of components, price increases, late deliveries
and poor component quality, Disruption or termination of the supply of these components could defay shipments
of our systems, damage our customer relationships and reduce our sales. From time to time in the past, we have
experienced temporary difficulties in receiving shipments from our suppliers. The lead-time required for
shipmenis of some of our components can be as long as four months. In addition, the lead time required to
qualify new suppliers for lasers could be as long as a year, and the lead time required to qualify new suppliers of
other components could be as long as nine months. If we are unable to accurately predict our component needs,
or if our component supply is disrupted, we may miss market opportunities by not being able to meet the demand
for our systems. Further, a significant increase in the price of one or more of these components or subassemblies
could seriously harm our results of operations and cash flows.

Any prolonged disruption in the operations of our manufacturing facilities could have a material adverse
effect on our revenues

Cur manufacturing processes are highly complex and require sophisticated and costly equipment and a
specially designed facility. As a result, any prolonged disruption in the operations of our manufacturing facilities,
whether due to technical or labor difficulties, or destruction of or damage as a result of a fire or any other reason,
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could seriously harm our ability to satisfy our customer order deadlines. If we cannot timely deliver our systems,
our results from operations and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Failure to adjust our orders for parts and subcomponents in an accurate and timely manner in response to
changing market conditions or customer acceptance of our products could adversely affect our financial
position and results of operations

Qur earnings could be negatively affected and our inventory levels could materially increase if we are
unable to predict our inventory needs in an accurate and timely manner and adjust our orders for parts and
subcomponents should our needs increase or decrease materially due 10 unexpected increases or decreases in
demand for our products. Any material increase in our inventories could result in an adverse effect on our
financial position, while any material decrease in our ability to procure needed inventories could result in an
inability to supply customer demand for our products thus adversely affecting our revenues.

We may choose to acquire new and complementary businesses, products or technologies instead of
developing them ourselves, and may be unable to complete these acquisitions or may not be able to
successfully integrate an acquired business in a cost-effective and non-disruptive manner

Our success depends on our ability to continually enhance and broaden our product offerings in response to
changing technologies, customer demands and competitive pressures. To this end, we have, from time to time,
engaged in the process of identifying, analyzing and negotiating possible acquisition transactions and we expect
to continue to do so in the future. We may choose to acquire new and complementary businesses, products,
technologies and/or services instead of developing them ourselves. We may, however, face competition for
acquisition targets from larger and more established companies with greater financial resources, making it more
difficult for us to complete acquisitions. We cannot provide any assurance that we will be successful in
consummating future acquisitions on favorable terms or that we will realize the benefits that we anticipate from
one or more acquisitions that we consummate. Integrating any business, product technology or service we
acquire could be expensive and time-consuming and/or disrupt our ongoing business. Further, there are numerous
risks associated therewith, including but not limited to:

« diversion of management’s attention from day-to-day operationa! matters and current products and
customers;

« lack of synergy, or the inability to realize expected synergies;

+ failure to commercialize the new technology or business;

» failure to meet the expected performance of the new technology or business;

» failure to retain key employees and customer or supplier relationships;

* lower-than-expected market opportunities or market acceptance of any new products; and

» unexpected reduction of sales of existing products by new products.

Qur inability to consummate one or more acquisitions on such favorable terms or our failure to realize the
intended benefits from one or more acquisitions, could have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity,
financial position and/or results of operations, including as a result of our incurrence of indebtedness and related
interest expense and our assumption of unforeseen contingent liabilities. In order to finance any acquisitions, we
might need to raise additional funds through public or private equity or debt firancings. In that event, we could
be forced to obtain financing on terms that are not favorable to us and, in the case of equity financing, that result
in dilution to our stockholders. In addition, any impairment of goodwill or other intangible assets, amortization of

intangible assets, write-down of other assets or charges resulting from the costs of acquisitions and purchase
accounting could harm our business and operating resuits.
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We may not realize the benefits of the Probe Card Test and Analysis division acquisition and the RVSI
Inspection intellectual property and selected assets acquisition.

On December 18, 2007, we completed the acquisition of the semiconductor division of Applied Precision
LLC to be known as our Probe Card Test and Analysis division. On January 22, 2008, we announced that we had
acquired all intellectual property and selected assets from privately-held RVSI Inspection, headquartered in
Hauppauge, New Yaork, Our failure to meet the challenges involved in realizing any of the anticipated benefits of
the acquisitions, could seriously harm our financial position, results of operations and cash flows. Realizing the
benefits of the acquisitions will depend in part on the continued successful integration of technology, operations
and personnel. The anticipated benefits of the acquisitions are based on projections and assumptions, not actual
experience. The failure to realize any of the anticipated benefits of the acquisitions could seriously hinder our
plans for product development as well as business and market expansion following the acquisitions.

If we cannot effectively manage cur growth, our business may suffer.

We intend to continue to grow by increasing our sales efforts and completing strategic acquisitions. To
effectively manage our growth, we must, among other things:

* engage, train and manage a larger sales force and additional service personnel,;
= expand the geographic coverage of our sales force;

+ expand our information systems;

» identify and successtully integrate acquired businesses into our operations; and

» administer appropriate financial and administrative control procedures.

Our anticipated growth will likely place a significant strain on our management, financial, operational,
technical, sales and administrative resources. Any failure to effectively manage our growth may cause our
business to suffer and our stock price to decline.

Changes in tax rates or tax liabilities could affect results.

As a global company, we are subject to taxation in the United States and various other countries. Significant
judgment is required to determine and estimate worldwide tax liabilities. Our future annual and quarterly tax
rates could be affected by numerous factors, including changes in the (1) applicable tax laws; (2) composition of
earnings in countries with differing tax rates; or (3) valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities. In
addition, we are subject to regular examination of our income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and
other tax authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of favorable or unfavorable cutcomes resulting from
these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes. Although we believe our tax
estimates are reasonable, there can be no assurance that any final determination will not be materially different
from the treatment reflected in our historical income tax provisions and accruals, which could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations.

We are subject to internal control evaluations and attestation requirements of Section 444 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we must include in our Annual Report on
Form 10-K a report of management on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and
report by our independent registered public accounting firm regarding the effectiveness of our internal control.
Ongoing compliance with these requirements is complex, costly and time-consuming. If (1) we fail to maintain
effective internal control over financial reporting; (2) our management does not timely assess the adequacy of
such internal control; or (3) our independent registered public accounting firm does not timely attest to the
effectiveness of our internal control, we could be subject to regulatory sanctions and the public’s perception of us
may decline.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007 and concluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as a
result of the identification of a material weakness. The material weakness that we identified relates to the process
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and procedures surrounding the preparation and review of the income tax provision as of December 31, 2007,
Specifically, we did not ensure that effective oversight of the work performed by our outside tax advisors was
exercised. The errors resulting from the material weakness, which were primarily attributable to acquisition
related tax matters, did not have a material effect on our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2007,
However, combinations of such errors could have resulted in our annual or interim financial statements being
materially misstated, For more information related to this material weakness and our remediation plans, see
Part I, Item 9A. “Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”.

Risks Related to the Semiconductor Device Industry
Cyclicality in the semicenductor device industry has led to substantial decreases in demand for our
systems and may from time to time continue to do so

Our operating results are subject to significant variation due to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor
device industry. Our business depends upon the capital expenditures of semiconductor device manufacturers,
which, in turn, depend upon the current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and products using
semiconductors. The timing, length and severity of the up-and-down cycles in the semiconductor equipment
industry are difficult to predict. This cyclical nature of the industry in which we operate affects our ability (o
accurately predict future revenue and, thus, future expense levels. When cyclical fluctuations result in lower than
expected revenue levels, operating results may be adversely affected and cost reduction measures may be
necessary in order for us to remain competitive and financially sound. During a down cycle, we must be in a
position to adjust our cost and expense structure to prevailing market conditions and to continue to motivate and
retain our key employees. In addition, during periods of rapid growth, we must be able to increase manufacturing
capacity and personnel to meet customer demand. We can provide no assurance that these objectives can be met
in a timely manner in response to industry cycles. If we fail to respond to industry cycles, our business could be
seriously harmed.

Our finture rate of growth is highly dependent on the development and growth of the market for
microelectronic device inspection and metrology equipment.

We target our products to address the needs of microelectronic device manufacturers for defect inspection
and metrology. If for any reason the market for microelectronic device inspection or metrology equipment fails
to grow in the long term, we may be unable to maintain current revenue levels in the short term and maintain our
historical growth in the long term. Growth in the inspection market is dependent to a large extent upon
microelectronic manufacturers replacing manual inspection with automated inspection technology. Growth in the
metrology market is dependent to a large extent upon new chip designs and capacity expansion of
microelectronic manufacturers. There s no assurance that manufacturers will undertake these actions at the rate
we expect.

Risks Related to our Stock

Provisions of our charter documents and Delaware law, as well as our stockhelder rights plan, could
discourage potential acquisition proposals and/or delay, deter or prevent a change in control of our
company

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as our recently adopted stockholders rights
plan, may inhibit changes in control of our company not approved by our board of directors. These provisions
also limit the circumstances in which a premium can be paid for the common stock, and in which a proxy contest
for control of our board may be initiated. These provisions provide for:

« a prohibition on stockholder actions through written consent;

* a requirement that special meetings of stockholders be called only by our chief executive officer or

board of directors;

* advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and director nominations by stockholders;

» limitations on the ability of stockholders to amend, alter or repeal our by-laws;

* the authority of our board to issue, without stockholder approval, preferred stock with such terms as the

board may determine; and

+ the authority of our board, without stockholder approval, to adopt a Stockholders Rights Plan. Such a

Shareholders Rights Plan was adopted by the board of directors on June 27, 2005.
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We are also entitled to avail ourselves of the protections of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation
Law, which could inhibit changes in control of us.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2.  Properties.

Our execulive office building is located at One Rudolph Road in Flanders, New Jersey. We own and lease
facilities for engineering, sales and service related purposes in the United States and six other countries—China,
Japan, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and Scotland. The following table indicates the general location, the general
purpose and the square footage of our principal facilities. The expiration years of the leases covering the leased
facilities are also indicated.

Lease

Approximate | Expiration

Square . Year, Unless
Location ‘ Facility Purpose Footage Owned
Flanders, New Jersey Executive Office 20,000 Owned
Mt. Olive, New Jersey Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 83,500 2016
Bloomington, Minnesota Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 78,500 2012
Lowell, Massachusetts Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 10,000 2008
Richardson, Texas Yield Metrology Group 21,000 Owned
Issaquah, Washington Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 28,600 2008
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Sales and Service . 10,500 2008
Takatsu, Japan Sales and Service 5,000 2008
Sungnam-si, Korea Sales and Service 9,500 2009
Shanghai, China Sales and Service 3,500 2009
Singapore Sales and Service 2,000 2009
Scotland, United Kingdom Sales and Service 1,000 2009

We also lease office space for other smaller sales and service offices in several locations throughout the
world.

We believe that our existing facilities and capital equipment are adequate to meet our current requiremnents,
and that suitable additional or substitute space is available on commercially reasonable terms if needed.

[tem 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time we are subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. We are
not aware of any legal proceedings or claims that management believes would have a material adverse effect on
our consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered
by this report.




Item 6.  Selected Financial Data,

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K, and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006
and 2007 and the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 set forth
below were derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2003, and the statement of operations data for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 were derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not
included herein.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 (1) 2007 (2)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues ........... ... $ 58500 % 84248 § 82,918 3201,168 S$160,129
Costofrevenues .........ov i 33,214 44 595 44390 103,726 78,889
Grossprofil .. .. ..o 25,286 39,653 38.528 97.442 81,240
Operating expenses:

Research and development .................. 13,390 15,847 11,901 29,856 29,993

In-process research and development ......... — — — 9,900 1,000

Selling, general and administrative . .......... 10,561 15,222 20,373 32,393 33,204

Amortization , . .................. T, 877 876 876 4,048 4,487
Total operaling eXpenses . ..........ccoeeerveenn. 24,828 31,945 33,150 76,197 68,684
Operatingincome ............. . iiirinaan.n, 458 7,708 5,378 21,245 12,556
Interest income and other,net ................... 1,610 1,899 1,388 3,191 4,149
Income before provision for income taxes . ......... 2,068 9,607 6,766 24,436 16,705
Provision forincometaxes .............covvun.n. 298 2,855 1,789 11,730 4,846
NetINCOME ...ttt et et e e eneieens $ 1,770 $ 6,752 & 4977 $ 12,7706 $ 11,859
Earnings per share:

BasiC . ... e $ 011 $ 040 $ 029 § 047 $ 041

Diluted ... .. ... e $ 011 $ 040 $ 029 § 046 $ 040
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic ....... e 16,409 16,746 16,899 27276 29,168

Diluted .......... . . . 16,723 16,914 16,942 27,574 29,312

December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents ...................... $ 28,220 $ 12,627 % 37986 § 72479 § 57,420
Marketable securities .......... ... it 52,342 64,120 42,821 33714 16,505
Working capital ........... ... ... oL 111,450 120403 125,678 200942 176,298
Total assels . . ... ... i e 160,371 171,280 180,001 440,486 460,216
Retained earnings ........... ... .. ... ... ..., 8,462 15,214 20,191 32,897 44 776
Total stockholders’ equity ...................... 148,537 156,775 164,534 392,876 424,478

(1) Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment.”
Consequently, we began recognizing compensation cost measured at fair value over the service period for
stock awards expected to vest. In addition, Statement of Operations data for 2006 reflects the results of
operations of August Technology since February 15, 2006.

(2) Statement of Operations data for 2007 reflects the results of operations of PCTA since December 18, 2007.
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We are also entitled to avail ourselves of the protections of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation
Law, which could inhibit changes in control of us.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.

None.

Item 2.  Properties.

Our executive office building is located at One Rudolph Road in Flanders, New Jersey. We own and lease
facilities for engineering, sales and service related purposes in the United States and six other countries—China,
Japan, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan and Scotland. The following table indicates the general location, the general
purpose and the square footage of our principal facilities. The expiration years of the leases covering the leased
facilities are also indicated.

Lease

Approximate Expiration

Square Year, Unless
Location Facility Purpose Footage Owned
Flanders, New Jersey Executive Office 20,000 Owned
Mt. Olive, New Jersey Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 83,500 2016
Blcomington, Minnesota Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 78,500 2012
Lowell, Massachusetts Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 10,000 2008
Richardson, Texas Yield Metrology Group 21,000 Owned
Issaquah, Washington Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 28,000 2008
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Sales and Service 10,500 2008
Takatsu, Japan Sales and Service 5,000 2008
Surignam-si, Korea Sales and Service 9,500 2009
Shanghai, China Sales and Service 3,500 2009
Singapore Sales and Service 2,000 2009
Scotland, United Kingdom Sales and Service 1,000 2009

We also lease office space for other smaller sales and service offices in several locations throughout the
world.

We believe that our existing facilities and capital equipment are adequate to meet our current requirements,
and that suitable additional or substitute space is available on commercially reasonable terms if needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time we are subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. We are
not aware of any legal proceedings or claims that management believes would have a material adverse effect on
our consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Item 4, Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered
by this report.
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PART i

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of
Equity Securities.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “RTEC.” Set forth below is a
line graph comparing the annual percentage change in the cumulative return to the stockholders of the
Company’s Common Stock with the cumulative return of the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Research Data
Group (RDG) Semiconductor Composite Index for the period commencing on December 31, 2002, and ending
on December 31, 2007. The information contained in the performance graph shall not be deemed to be “soliciting
material” or to be “filed” with the SEC, nor shall such information be incorporated by reference into any future
filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, except to the extent that the
Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing.

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2002 in the Company’s Common Stock and in
each index, and that all dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends have been declared or paid on the
Company’s Common Stock. Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of
future stockholder returns. The Company operates on a 52-week calendar year. Under the assumptions stated
above, over the period from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2007 the total annual compound return on an
investment in the Company would have been (9.99)%, as compared to 15.46% for the Nasdag Composite Index
and 12.60% for the RDG Semiconductor Composite Index.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Rudolph Technologies, Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index
And The RDG Semiconductor Composite Index

§260 1 —8— Rudolph Technologies, Inc.
— A— NASDAQ Composite

s200] - 0 - - RDG Semiconductor Composite Y
L0 A -
B =77 @
. A T T T TR T Q""" |
$150 . S '8- o
$100
$50
$o L 1 1 1 ]
12/02 12/03 12/04 12/05 12/06 12/07
* $100 invested on 12/31/02 in stock or index-inctuding reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.
12/02 12/03 12/04 12105 12/06 12/07
Rudolph Technologies, Inc. ......... 100.00  128.08 89.61 67.22 83.09 59.08
NASDAQ Composite .............. 100.00  149.75 164.64 168.60 187.83 20522
RDG Semiconductor Composite .. .. .. 100.00  193.54 15451 17158 16134 181.00
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices per share of our
common stock as reported on the NASDAQ National Market.

Price Range of
Common Stock

High Low

Year Ended December 31, 2006

First QUarter . ... ...ttt e e $18.09 $12.75

Second Quarter .. ... ... .. ... $20.00 $13.70

Third Quarter . . ... ...t i $19.25  $12.80

FourthQuarter . ......... ... e, $20.15  $13.10
Year Ended December 31, 2007

First Quarter .......... i i $18.10 $14.83

Second Quarter . ........ ...t $18.21 $14.95

ThirdQuarter . .......... . i $18.29  $11.50

FourthQuarter ......... ... ... ... .. $15.09 $10.03

As of February 11, 2008, there were 96 stockholders of record of our common stock and approximately
5,753 beneficial stockholders. The closing market value of our common stock on February 11, 2008 was $9.02.

We have never declared or paid a cash dividend on our common stock and do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends in the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain our earnings, if any, for the development of our
business. The declaration of any future dividends by us is within the discretion of our Board of Directors and will
be dependent on our earnings, financial condition and capital requirements as well as any other factors deemed
relevant by our Board of Directors.

Certain Equity Compensation Plan Information included in ltem 12 of Part I, hereof, is hereby

incorporated into this Item 5 of Part II and will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Meeting
of Stockholders.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial
Statements and the related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K, and “Management’s Discussion
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.” The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006
and 2007 and the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 set forth
below were derived from our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.
The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005, and the statement of operations data for the
years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 were derived from our audited consolidated financial statements not
included herein.

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 (1) 2007 (2)
{In thousands, except per share data}

Statement of Operations Data:

REVENUES oottt ittt e e e ettt eannan $ 58,500 $ 84,248 $ 82,918 $201,168 $160,129
Costof TEVEIILES . . ..ottt et i an e 33,214 44,595 44390 103,726 78,889
Gross profit .. ..o e 25,286 39,653 38,528 97,442 81,240
Operating expenses:

Research and development . ................. 13,390 15,847 11,901 29,856 29,993

In-process rescarch and development ......... — — — 9,900 1,000

Selling, general and administrative ........... 10,561 15,222 20,373 32,393 33,204

AMOMIZAON © . v vt vt et e e eneenns 877 876 876 4,048 4,487
Total operating eXpenses . ................ooovus 24,828 31,945 33,150 76,197 68,684
Operatingincome . ........... .o, 458 7,708 5,378 21,245 12,556
Interest income and other, net ................... 1,610 1,899 1,388 3,191 4,149
Income before provision for income taxes . ......... 2,068 9,607 6,766 24,436 16,705
Provision for income taxes . .......ovviiirrnneet, 298 2,855 1,789 11,730 4,846
NELIMCOMB © ottt e ettt rearanaaenn $ 1,770 $ 6,752 $ 4977 $ 12,706 $ 11,859
Earnings per share:

Basic . .o e $ 011 $ 040 % 029 § 047 3 041

Diluted . ... . . e $ 011 § 040 $ 029 § 046 $ 040
Weighted average shares outstanding:

Basic ... o 16,409 16,746 16,899 27,276 29,168

Diluted .......0 i e 16,723 16,914 16,042 27,574 29.312

December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents . .......... ... ........ $ 28220 $ 12,627 $ 37986 §$ 72479 $ 57420
Marketable securities ..., v 52,342 64,120 42,821 33,714 16,505
Working capital ....... .. . o e 111,450 120,403 125,678 200,942 176,298
Total @sSE18 . . ottt e 160,371 171,280 180,001 440,486 460,216
Retained earnings . ......... ... .. it 8,462 15,214 20,191 32,897 44,776
Total stockholders’ equity ... ... .. ... .. ........ 148,537 156,775 164,534 392876 424,478

(1) Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards
Board in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004}, “Share-Based Payment.”
Consequently, we began recognizing compensation cost measured at fair value over the service period for
stock awards expected (o vest. In addition, Statement of Operations data for 2006 reflects the results of
operations of August Technology since February 135, 2006.

(2y Statement of Operations data for 2007 reflects the resuits of operations of PCTA since December 18, 2007.
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Item 7. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

We are a worldwide leader in the design, development, manufacture and support of high-performance
process control metrology, defect inspection, and data analysis systems used by semiconductor device
manufacturers. We provide yield management solutions used in both wafer processing and final manufacturing
through a family of standalone systems and integrated modules for both transparent and opaque thin film
measurements and macro-defect inspection. All of these systems feature production-worthy automation and are
backed by worldwide customer support.

On December 18, 2007, Rudolph, along with our wholly-owned subsidiary, Mariner Acquisition Company
LLC, entered into, and consummated the transactions contemplated by, an agreement with Applied Precision
Holdings, LLC and Applied Precision, LLC (collectively, “Apphied”), pursuant o which we purchased
substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of the semiconductor division of Applied to be
known as the Probe Card Test and Analysis division (“PCTA”). The PCTA is engaged in the business of
designing, developing, manufacturing, marketing, selling and supporting advanced probe card metrology and
wafer probe process monitoring equipment and is complementary Lo our existing business.

The closing occurred on December 18, 2007 and we paid $57.9 million in cash and issued 1.3 million shares
of common stock for a total purchase price of $71.9 million. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we
agreed to assume the following liabilities of Applied relating to the PCTA: accounts payable, assigned contracts,
licenses and leases, warranty claims and employee liabilities. In addition, we agreed to assume the defense of and
all obligations relating to certain litigation. The cash portion of the purchase price is subject to further post-
closing adjustment based on the final closing net asset balance. The purchase price has been preliminarily
altocated based on estimates of the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The final valuation of
net assels is expected to be completed during 2008, but no later than one year from the acquisition date. The
results of operations of the PCTA have been included in our consolidated financials statements since the date of
the acquisition. Due to the size of the PCTA, we do not expect a material effect, other than the in-process
research and development (“IPRD™) charge, on comparability to prior periods of our financial position, results of
operations and cash flows,

On February 15, 2006, the merger with August Technology was completed. Under the terms of the
agreement, we paid an aggregate of $37.2 million in cash and issued an aggregate of 11.3 million shares of our
common stock to former August Technology shareholders, The results of operations of August Technology have
been included in our consolidated financial statements since the date of the merger. Due to the size of August
Technology and the effects of purchase accounting, our financial position, results of operations and cash flows
may nol be comparable to prior periods. With the exception of future tax adjustments related to the merger, the
effects of purchase accounting were completed in 2006,

Rudolph’s business is affected by the annual spending patterns of our customers on semiconductor capital
equipment. The amount that our customers devole to capital equipment spending depends on a number of factors,
including general worldwide economic conditions as well as other economic drivers such as personal computer,
cell phone and personal electronic device sales. Current forecasts by industry analysts for the semiconductor
device manufacturing industry project a year-over-year decreasc in capital spending of 15-20% for 2008. We
monitor capital equipment spending through announced capital spending plans by our customers and monthly-
published industry data such as the book-to-bill ratic. The book-to-bill ratio is a 3-month running statistic that
compares bookings or orders placed with capital equipment suppliers to billings or shipments. A book-to-bill
above one shows that semiconductor device equipment manufacturers are ordering equipment at a pace that
exceeds the equipment suppliers’ shipments for the period, The three month rolling average North American
semiconductor equipment book-1o-bill ratio was 0.9 for the month of December 2007, increasing from the
September 2007 book-to-bill ratio of 0.8,

Historically, a significant portion of our revenues in each quarter and year has been derived from sales to
relatively few customers, and we expect this trend to continue. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007, sales to customers that individually represented at least five percent of our revenues accounted for 62.6%,
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40.9%, and 37.1% of our revenues, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, sales to
Intel accounted for 20.3%, 14.0% and 11.5% of our revenues, respectively.

We do not have purchase contracts with any of our customers that obligate them to continue to purchase our
products, and they could cease purchasing products from us at any time. A delay in purchase or cancellation by
any of our large customers could cause quarterly revenues to vary significantly. In addition, during a given
quarter, a significant portion of our revenues may be derived from the sale of a relatively small number of
systems. Our transparent film measurement systems range in average selling price from approximately $250,000
1o $1.0 million per system, our opaque film measurement systems range in average seclling price from
approximately $900,000 to $2.0 million per system and our macro-defect inspection and probe card and test
analysis systems range in average selling price from approximately $250,000 to $1.4 million per system.
Accordingly, a small change in the number of systems we sell may also cause significant changes in our
operating results. Because fluctuations in the timing of orders from our major customers or in the number of our
individual systems we sell could cause our revenues to fluctuate significantly in any given quarter or year, we do
not believe that period-to-period comparisons of our financial results are necessarily meaningful, and they should
not be relied upon exclusively as an indication of our future performance.

A significant portion of our revenues has been derived from customers outside of the United States. In 2003,
approximately 77.5% of our revenues were derived from customers outside of the United States, of which 56.3%
were derived from customers in Asia and 21.29% were derived from customers in Europe. In 2006, approximately
70.6% of our revenues were derived from customers outside of the United States, of which 59.9% were derived
from customers in Asia and 10.7% were derived from customers in Europe. In 2007, approximately 77.1% of our
revenues were derived from customers outside of the United States, of which 58.5% were derived from
customers in Asia and 18.6% were derived from customers in Europe. We expect that revenues generated from
customers outside of the United States will continue to account for a significant percentage of our revenues.

The sales cycle for our systems typically ranges from six to 15 months, and can be longer when our
customers are evalvating new technology. Due to the length of these cycles, we invest significantly in research
and development and sales and marketing in advance of generating revenues related to these investments.
Additionally, the rate and timing of customer orders may vary significantly from month to month. Accordingly,
if sales of our products do not occur when we expect, our expenses and inventory levels may increase relative to
revenues and Lotal assets.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our statements of operations data as percentages of
our revenues. Our results of operations are reported as one business segment.

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007
REeVEMUES ... e e 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
CoSt Of FEVENUEBS . . .ottt e e 535 51.6 49.3
Gross profit . ... o e 46.5 43.4 50.7
Operating expenses:
Researchand development . ....... ... .. oo, 14.4 14.9 18.7
In-process research and development . ......................... — 4.9 0.6
Selling, general and administrative ........... ... .. .. .. 24.6 16.1 20.7
AmMOrtzZalion . . .. ... .. 1.0 20 28
Total operating eXpenses .. ... ......oeuiietiiiaennnneaneann. 40.0 379 42.9
OPerating INCOIME . . . oo v vttt e e e e et e ae e e e e 6.5 10.5 7.8
Interest income and other,net ... ... ... i e 1.7 1.6 2.6
Income before provision forincometaxes . ........ ... .. .. .. 8.2 12.1 104
Provision for inCome taxes .. .. ... ... it i 2.2 5.8 3.0
Netincome . ... ... . oo i 60% 63% 14%




Results of Operations 2005, 2006 and 2007

Revenues. Our revenues are derived from the sale of our systems, services, spare parts and software
ticensing. Our revenues were $82.9 million, $201.2 million and $160.1 million in the years 2003, 2006 and 2007.
These changes represent an increase of 142.6% from 2005 to 2006 and a decrease of 20.4% from 2006 to 2007.
The increase in revenue from 2005 to 2006 was primarily related to the August Technology merger, The decrease
in revenue from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to the current weakness in the overall semiconductor equipment
manufacturing sector. :

The following table lists, for the periods indicated, the different sources of our revenues in dollars and as
percentages of our total revenues:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007
Systems: ]
Metrology .............. $52,596 63% $ 68,035 34% % 34,738 2%
Inspection .............. 11,644 14 100,666 50 85,012 53
Parts . ....... ... .. .. ... .... 9,188 11 14,217 7 13,678 9
Services ... ... 8,205 10 11,457 6 14,121 8
Software licensing ........... 1,285 __2 6,793 _3_ 12,580 _8
Total revenue . ...... $82.918 100% $201,168 100% $160,129 100%

Systems revenue increased from 2005 to 2006 reflecting additional revenues of $88.2 million related to the
August Technology merger and an increase in metrology systems revenues of $15.4 million. Systems revenue
decreased from 2006 to 2007 due to the current weakness in the overall serniconductor equipment manufacturing
sector and reflects a decrease in metrology systems revenue of $33.3 million and a decrease in inspection systems
of $15.7 million. Systems revenue generated by our latest product releases and major enhancements in each of
our product families amounted to 32% of total revenue for 2005 compared to 31% of total revenue for 2006 and
29% of total revenue for 2007. The year-over-year increase in parts and service revenues in absolute dollars from
2005 to 2006 reflects additional parts and service revenues of $3.5 million related to the August Technology
merger as well as customers continuing to spend more on repair and maintenance of their existing equipment.
The year-over-year increase in parts and service revenues in absolute dollars from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due
to customers continuing to spend more on repair and maintenance of their existing equipment. Parts and services
revenues are generated from part sales, maintenance service contracts, system upgrades, as well as time and
material billable service calls. Software licensing revenues increased from 2005 to 2006 due to the August
Technology merger. The year-over-year increase in software licensing revenues in absolute dollars from 2006 to
2007 reflects the sale of certain technology rights to Tokyo Electron.

Deferred revenues of $6.0 million are recorded in other current liabilities at December 31, 2007 and
primarily consist of $5.3 million for deferred maintenance agreements and $0.7 million for systems awaiting
acceptance and outstanding deliverables.

Graoss Profit. Our gross profit has been and will continue to be affected by a variety of factors, including
inventory step-up from purchase accounting, manufacturing efficiencies, excess and obsolete inventory write-offs,
pricing by competitors or suppliers, new product introductions, product sales mix, production volume, customization
and reconfiguration of systems, international and domestic sales mix, and parts and service margins. Our gross profit
was $38.5 million, $97.4 million and $81.2 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The increase in gross profit
as a percentage of revenue from 2005 to 2006 is primarily due to higher sales volume, partially offset by charges to
cost of goods sold including a $3.7 million charge for the sale of inventory written-up to fair value upon the August
Technology merger and $2.6 million in charges related to duplicative inventory. The increase in gross profit as a
percentage of revenue from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to the sales and transfer of certain technology rights to
Tekyo Electron and higher charges to cost of goods sold in 2006.

25




Research and Development. The thin film transparent, opaque process control and macro-defect inspection
and probe card test analysis market is characterized by continuous technological development and product
innovations. We believe that the rapid and ongoing development of new products and enhancements to existing
products, including the transition to copper and low-k dielectrics, the progression to 300 mm wafers, the
continuous shrinkage in critical dimensions, and the evolution of ultra-thin gate process control, is critical to our
success. Accordingly, we devote a significant portion of our technical, management and financial resources to
research and development programs. Research and development expenditures consist primarily of salaries and
related expenses of employees engaged in research, design and development activities. They also include
consulting fees and the cost of related supplies. Our research and development expense was $11.9 million, $29.9
million and $30.0 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The year-over-year dollar increase from 2005 to
2006 primartly reflects additional rescarch and development cost of $13.0 million related to the merged activities
of August Technology and increased compensation costs including share-based compensation costs. The year-
over-year dollar increase from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to the engineering team from the August
Technology merger being included for the full year ended December 31, 2007, and the write-off of $0.5 million
for certain software project costs, partially offset by cost containment initiatives. We continue to maintain our
commitment to investing in new product development and enhancement to existing products as we position
ourselves for future growth.

In-Process Research and Development. In 2006, the merger with August Technology resulted in our
recording of $9.9 million for the write-off of IPRD. At the time of the merger, we determined that the [PRD had
not reached technological feasibility and that it did not have an alternative future use. The purchased in-process
technology projects, which were comprised of macro-defect inspection and software projects, had a value
assigned to them of $6.9 million and $3.0 million, respectively. The defect inspection projects, relate to the next
generation of our AXi defect detection systems with enhanced defect capture capabilities, and were
approximately 90% complete as of the date of merger, The estimated costs to complete these projects consisted
primarily of internal engineering labor costs and were completed by the third quarter of 2006, The software
projects, relate to new enhancement features to our next generation inspection products, and were approximately
50% complete as of the date of merger, with the remaining cost to complete consisting primarily of internal
software development labor cost. The software projects were completed in 2007. We generated revenue from the
inspection project in the third quarter of 2006 and the software project in 2007.

In 2007, the acquisition of the PCTA resulted in our recording of $1.0 million for the write-off of IPRD. At
the time of the acquisition, we determined that the IPRD had not reached technological feasibility and that it did
not have an alternative future use. The purchased in-process technology project was a probe card test project
related to the next generation of our ProbeWoRx systems with enhanced capabilities, and was approximately
20% complete as of the date of acquisition. The estimated costs to complete this project of $2.1 million, consist
primarily of internal engineering labor costs which will be completed in 2008. If we are not successful in
completing the inspection project on a timely basis, the future sales of our inspection products may be adversely
affected resulting in erosion of our market share.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense is primarily comprised of
salaries and related coslis for sales, marketing, and general administrative personnel, as well as commissions and
other non-personnel related expenses. Qur selling, general and administrative expense was $20.4 million, $32.4
million and $33.2 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The year-over-year dollar increase from 2005 to
2006 in selling, general and administrative expense was primarily due to $10.6 million related to merged
activities of August Technology and increased compensation costs. The year-over-year dollar increase from 2006
to 2007 in selling, general and administrative expense was primarily due to administrative costs associated with
the merged activities of August Technology being included for the full year of 2007 and increased compensation
COSts.

Interest Income and Other, Net. Interest income and other, net was $1.4 million, $3.2 million and $4.1
million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Interest income and other, net consisted primarily of interest
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income and realized gains and losses on sales of marketable securities. The year-over year increases in interest
income and other, net of $1.8 million from 2005 to 2006 and $1.0 million from 2006 to 20(07 are primarily due to
higher invested cash balances and higher average interest rates,

Income Tuxes. Income tax expense was $1.8 million, $11.7 million and $4.8 millien in 2005, 2006 and
2007, respectively. Our effective tax rate was 26%, 48% and 29% in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Our
effective tax rate differs from the statutory rate of 33% primarily as a function of state income taxes offset by
benefits from research and development tax credits, the domestic manufacturing production deduction and tax
exempt interest. In addition, in 2006 and 2007, our effective tax rate was impacted by the non-deductibility of the
IPRD charges for tax purposes of $9.9 million and $1.0 million, respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2005, we had $80.8 million of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities and $125.7
million in working capital. At December 31, 2006, our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities totaled
$106.2 million, while working capital amounted to $200.9 million. At December 31, 2007, we had $73.9 million
of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities and $176.3 million in working capital.

Typically during periods of revenue growth, changes in accounts receivable and inventories represent a use
of cash as we incur costs and expend cash in advance of receiving cash from our customers. Similarly, during
periods of declining revenue, changes in accounts receivable and inventories representi a source of cash as
inventory purchases decline and revenue from prior periods is coliected. However, in 2005, as our revenues
declined from $84.2 million to $82.9 million, our change in accounts receivables represented a use of cash. This
was primarily due to longer collection times from our Japanese customers. Also in 2007, as our revenues
declined our change in invenlories represented a use of cash. This was primarily due 1o increasing inventory
related to new products and the slow down in the back-end of the inspection business. Because of the lack of
visibility in projected sales for 2008, we are uncertain as to the level of expected cash to be provided from
operating activities in 2008.

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2005, 2006 and 2007 totaled $8.1 million, $20.6 million and
$23.6 million, respectively. During 2005, cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to net income,
adjusted to exclude the effect of non-cash charges, of $10.4 million, a decrease in inventories of $3.7 million, an
increase in other nen-current liabilities of $0.8 million and a decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets of
$0.6 million, partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $5.7 million, a decrease in accrued
liabilities of $1.2 million and a decrease in income taxes payable of $0.3 million. The increase in receivables is
primarily due to the timing of shipments towards the end of the year and longer collection times in Japan. During
2006, cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to net income, adjusted to exclude the effect of
non-cash charges, of $42.6 million, an increase in deferred revenue of $7.9 million, an increase in other current
liabilities of $1.0 million, an increase in accrued liabilities of $0.8 million and an increase in Income taxes
payable of $0.6 million, partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $25.1 million and an increase in
inventories of $7.1 million. During 2007, cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to net income,
adjusted to exclude the effect of non-cash charges, of $23.4 million and a decrease in accounts receivable of
$21.4, partially offset by a decrease in deferred revenue of $6.1 million, an increase in inventories of $5.4
million, a decrease in accrued liabilities of $4.0 million, a decrease in accounis payable of $3.3 million and an
increase in prepaid expenses and other assets of $2.3 miilion.

Net cash provided by investing activities in 2005 and 2006 totaled $16.0 million and $3.6 million,
respectively. Net cash used in 2007 was $40.5 million, In 2005, net cash provided by investing activities included
proceeds from sales of marketable securities of $70.4 million, partially offset by purchases of marketable
securities of $50.0 million, capital expenditures of $2.7 million, costs incurred for capitalized software of $0.9
million and acquisition costs for business combinations of $0.9 million. Capital expenditures in 2005 were
primarily related to our new facility in Mt. Olive, New Jersey. In 2006, net cash provided by investing activities
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included proceeds from sales of marketable securities of $93.4 million, partially offset by purchases of
marketable securities of $70.8 million, capital expenditures of $4.7 million, costs incurred for capitalized
software of $2.2 million and acquisition costs for the August Technology merger of $12.1 million net of cash
acquired of $29.9 million. In 2007, net cash used by investing activities included purchases of marketable
securities of $77.7 million, acquisition costs for business combinations of $56.2 million, capital expenditures of
$1.0 million, costs incurred for capitalized software of $0.7 million, partially offset by proceeds from sales of
marketable securities of $95.1 million. Capital expenditures over the next twelve months are expected 10 be
approximately within the range of $3.0 million to $6.0 miilion.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1.5 million, $10.1 million and $1.5 million in 2005, 2006
and 2007, respectively. In 2005, net cash provided by financing activities was a result of proceeds received from
sales of shares through share-based compensation plans. In 2006, net cash provided by financing activities was a
result of proceeds received from sales of shares through share-based compensation plans of $9.0 million and tax
benefit from share-based compensation plans of $1.2 million. In 2007, net cash provided by financing activities
was a result of proceeds received from sales of shares through share-based compensation plans of $1.3 million
and tax benefit from share-based compensation plans of $0.1 million.

From time to time we evaluate whether to acquire new or complementary businesses, products andfor
technologies. We may fund all or a portion of the purchase price of these acquisitions in cash. On February 15,
2006, we announced that our merger with August Technology Corporation had been completed. Under the terms
of the agreement, we paid an aggregate of $37.2 million in cash and issued an aggregate of 11.3 million shares of
our commont stock to former August Technology shareholders. On December 18, 2007, we announced that our
acquisition of the semiconductor division of Applied Precision Holdings, LL.C had been completed. Under the
terms of the agreement, we paid an aggregate of $57.9 million in cash and issued an aggregate of 1.3 million
shares of our common stock to Applied Precision Holdings, LLC. On January 22, 2008, we announced that we
had acquired all intellectual property and selected assets from privately-held RVSI Inspection, LLC,
headquartered in Hauppauge, New York. We paid cash for this acquisition and will account for it as a business
combination.

Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the timing and amount of our
revenues and our investment decisions, which will affect our ability to generate additional cash. We believe that
our existing cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash
requirements for working capital and capital expenditures for the foreseeable future. Thereafter, if cash generated
from operations and financing activities is insufficient to satisfy our working capital requirements, we may seek
additional funding through bank borrowings, sales of securities or other means. There can be no assurance that
we will be able to raise any such capital on terms acceptable 10 us or at atl.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations at December 31, 2007, and the effect
such obligations are expected to have on our liquidity and cash flows in future periods. This table excludes the
liability for unrecognized tax benefits that totaled approximately $5.9 million at December 31, 2007. We are
currently unable to provide a reasonably reliable estimate of the amount or periods when cash settlement of this
liability may occur.

Payments due by period
Less than 1 1-3 35 More than
Total year years years 5 years
Operating lease obligations .......................... $10,726  § 2,527 $3,388 $2,633 $2,178
Open and committed purchase orders .................. 21,506 21,506 — — —

Total ... $32,232  $24,033 $3388 §$2,633 $2,178

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a
material effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity and capital resources,
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Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon
our consolidated financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. We review the accounting policies we use in reporting our
financial results on a regular basis. The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates
and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to
revenue recognition, accounts receivable, inventories, business acquisitions, intangible assets, share-based
payments, income taxes and warranty obligations. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis
for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Results may differ from these estimates due to actual outcomes being different from those on which we
based our assumptions, These estimates and judgments are reviewed by management on an ongoing basis, and by
the Audit Commitiee at the end of each quarter prior to the public release of our financial results. We believe the
following critical accounting policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation
of our consolidated financial statements.

Revenue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery
has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably
assured. Certain sales of our products are sold and accounted for as multiple element arrangements, consisting
primarily of the sale of the product, software, installation and training services. We generally recognize product
revenue upon shipment. When customer acceptance is subjective and not obtained prior to shipment, we defer
product revenue until such time as positive affirmation of acceptance has been obtained from the customer.
Customer acceptance is generally based on our products meeting published performance specifications. The
amount of revenue allocated to the shipment of products is done on a residual method basis. Under this method,
the total arrangement value is allocated first to undelivered contract elements, based on their fair values, with the
remainder being allocated to product revenue. The fair value of installation and training services is based upon
billabie hourly rates and the estimated time to complete the service. Revenue related to undelivered installation
services is deferred until such time as installation is completed at the customer’s site. Revenue related to training
services is recognized ratably over the training period. Revenue from software license fees is recognized upon
shipment if collection of the resulting receivable is probable, the fee is fixed or determinable, and vendor-specific
objective evidence exists to allocate a portion of the total fee to any undelivered elements of the arrangement.
Such undelivered elements in these arrangements typically consist of follow-on support. If vendor-specific
objective evidence does not exist for the undelivered elements of the arrangement, all revenue is deferred and
recognized ratably over the support period.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated losses
resulting from the inability of our customers to make required payments. We specifically analyze accounts
receivable and analyze historical bad debts, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current
economic trends and changes in our customer payment terms when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for
doubtful accounts. If the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments or our assumptions are otherwise incorrect, additional allowances may be
required.

Excess and Obsolete Inventory. We write down our excess and obsolele inventory equal to the difference
between the cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future product life-
cycles, product demand and market conditions. If actual product life-cycles, product demand and market
conditions are less favorable than those projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be
required.
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Business Acquisitions. We account for acquired or merged businesses using the purchase method of
accounting which requires that the assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recorded at the date of acquisition
or merger at their respective fair values, The judgments made in determining the estimated fair value assigned to
each class of assets acquired and liabilities assumed, as well as asset lives, can materially impact our
consolidated financial position and results of operations. Accordingly, for significant items, we typically obtain
assistance from independent valuation specialists.

There are several methods that can be used to determine the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. For intangible assets, we normally utilize the “income method,” This method starts with a forecast of
all of the expected future net cash flows. These cash flows are then adjusted to present value by applying an
appropriate discount rate that reflects the risk factors associated with the cash flow streams. Some of the more
significant estimates and assumptions inherent in the income method or other methods include the projected
future cash flows (including timing) and the discount rate reflecting the risks inherent in the future cash flows.
Determining the useful life of an intangible asset also requires judgment. For example, different types of
intangible assets will have different useful lives and certain assets may even be considered to have indefinite
useful lives. All of these judgments and estimates can significantly impact our consolidated financial position and
results of operations.

The purchase price is preliminarily allocated based on estimates of the fair values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. The final valuation of net assets is expected to be completed within one year from the
acquisition or merger date. At the acquisition or merger date, we begin to formulate a plan to exit or restructure
certain activities, if applicable. As we finalize our plans to exit or restructure activities, we may record additional
liabilities for, among other things, severance and severance related costs, which would also increase the goodwill
recorded.

Goodwill. Our formal annual impairment testing date for goodwill is October 31st or prior to the next annual
testing date if an event occurs or circumstances change that would make it more likely than not that the fair value
of a reporting unit is below its carrying amount. In fiscal 2007, we changed our annual impairment testing date
from December 31 1o October 31. This change was made to allow us additional time to complete the impairment
test by the end of the financial statement reporting deadline. The goodwill impairment test is a two-step process
which requires us to make judgmental assumptions regarding fair value. The initial first step consists of
estimating the fair value of our aggregated reporting unit using the market value of our common stock at
October 31, multiplied by the number of outstanding common shares (market capitalization} and an implied
control premium as if it were to be acquired by a single stockholder. We obtain information on completed sales
of similar companies in a comparable industry (o estimate an implied control premium for us. We compare the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit to its carrying value which includes goodwill. If the results of the initial
market capitalization test produce results which are below the reporting unit carrying value, we will also consider
if, the market capitalization is temporarily low and, if so, we may also perform a discounted cash flow test. If the
estimated fair value is less than the carrying value, the second step is completed to compute the impairment
amount by determining the “implied fair value” of goodwill. This determination requires the allocation of the
estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and liabilities of the reporting unit, Any remaining
unallocated fair value represents the “implied fair value” of goodwill which is compared to the corresponding
carrying value to compute the goodwill impairment amount. We believe our estimates of the underlying
components of fair value are reasonable. As of December 31, 2007, a one dollar per share increase or decrease in
our common stock would have a $30.5 million effect on our market capitalization before adding a control
premium. Testing is required between annual tests if events occur or circumstances change that would, more
likely than not, reduce the fair value of the reporting unit below its carrying value. Such an event may occur if,
for an extended period of time, the market value of our common stock plus the implied control premium were
less than the carrying value. Should actual results not meet our expectations or assumptions change in future
years, our impairment assessment could result in a lower fair value estimate which could result in an impairment
charge that may materially affect the carrying value of our assets and results from operations.

Long-Lived Assets and Acquired Intangible Assets. We periodically review long-lived assets, other than
goodwill, for impairment whenever changes in events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
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asset may not be recoverable. Assumptions and estimates used in the determination of impairment losses, such as
future cash flows and disposition costs, may affect the carrying value of long-lived assets and the impairment of
such long-lived assets, if any, could have a matenial effect on our consolidated financial statements.

Share-Based Compensation. Prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for share-based compensation plans under
the recognition and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25. Effective
January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 123
(revised 2004) “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R") using the modified-prospective-transition method. SFAS
123R requires companies to recognize the fair-value of share-based compensation transactions in the statement of
operations. The fair value of our stock options is estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model. The Black-Scholes valuation calculation requires us to estimate key assumptions such as future
stock price volatility, expected terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expected stock price volatility is based
on historical volatility of our stock. We use historical data to estimate option exercises and employee
terminations within the valuation model. The expected term of options granted is derived from an analysis of
historical exercises and remaining contractual life of stock options, and represents the period of time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at
the time of grant. We have never paid cash dividends, and do not currently intend to pay cash dividends, and thus
have assumed a 0% dividend yield. If our actual experience differs significantly from the assumptions used to
compute our share-based compensation cost, or if different assumptions had been used, we may have recorded
too much or too little share-based compensation cost. In addition, we are required to estimate the expected
forfeiture rate of our share grants and only recognize the expense for those shares expected to vest. If the actual
forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, our share-based compensation expense could be
materially different.

Warranties. We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized.
While we engage in product quality programs and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product
failure rates, material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual
product failure rates, material usage or service delivery costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated
warranty liability would be required.

Accounting for Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we
are required to estimate our actual current tax exposure together with our temporary differences resulting from
differing treatment of items for tax and accounting purposes. These temporary differences result in deferred tax
assets and liabilities, which are included within our consolidated balance shect. We must then assess the
likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income and to the extent we believe
that recovery is not likely, we must establish a valuation allowance. Significant management judgment is
required in determining our provision for income taxes and any valuation allowance recorded against our
deferred tax assets. The need for a valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income by
jurisdiction in which we operate and the period over which our deferred taxes will be recoverable. In the event
that actual results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods. we may need to
adjust the valuation allowance, which could materially impact our financial position and results of operations. At
December 31, 2007, we had a valuation allowance of $1.3 miltion for a portion of deferred tax assets attributable
to state R&D tax credits and capital losses.

We adopted FASB Financial Interpretation No. (“FIN™) 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” at
the beginning of fiscal 2007. As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, we recognize liabilities for uncertain tax
positions based on the two-step process prescribed by the interpretation. The first step requires us to determine if the
weight of available evidence indicates that the tax position has met the threshold for recognition; therefore, we must
evaluate whether it is more likely than not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of any
related appeals or litigation processes. The second step requires us 10 measure the tax benefit of the tax position
taken, or expected to be taken. in an income tax return as the largest amount that is more than 50% likely of being
realized when effectively settled. This measurement step is inherently difficult and requires subjective estimations
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of such amounts to determine the probability of various possible outcomes. We reevaluate the uncertain tax
positions each quarter based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in facts or circumstances, changes in
tax law, effectively settled issues, and new audit activity. Such a change in recognition or measurement could result
in the recognition of a tax benefit or an additional charge to the tax provision in the period.

Although we believe the measurement of our liabilities for uncertain tax positions is reasonable, no
assurance can be given that the final outcome of these matters will not be different than what is reflected in the
historical income tax provisions and accruals. If additional taxes are assessed as a result of an audit or litigation,
it could have a material effect on our income tax provision and net income in the period or periods for which that
determination is made.

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business
Combinations” (“SFAS 141R”), which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes
and measures in its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any
noncontrolling interest in an acquiree, and the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in a business
combination or a gain from a bargain purchase. SFAS 141R applies prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008.

In November 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF Issue No. 07-1 (“EITF 07-17),
“Accounting for Collaborative Arrangements,” which defines collaborative arrangements and establishes
reporting and disclosure requirements for such arrangements. EITF 07-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008. We are continuing to evaluate the impact of adopting the provisions EITF 07-1;
however, we do not anticipate that adoption will have a material effect on our financial position or results of
operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 (“SFAS 159™), “The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities- Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS 159 permirs
entities 1o choose 10 measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to
improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reporting earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions. SFAS 139 is effective for fiscal years that begin after November 15, 2007. Our adoption of SFAS 159
is not expected to impact our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (“SFAS 1577), “Fair Value Measurements,” SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, on
February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2 which defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year
for nonfinancial assets and non-financial liabilities that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis. Based on our current operations, we do not expect that the adoption of
the non-deferred portion of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on our financial position or resulis of
operations. We have not yet evaluated the impact of the adoption of the deferred portion of SFAS 157,

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.
Interest Rate and Credit Market Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates and market liquidity primarily from our investments in certain
available-for-sale securities. Our available-for-sale seccurities consist of fixed and variable rate income
investments (U.S. Treasury and Agency securities, asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities, auction
rate securities and corporate bonds). We continually monitor our exposure to changes in interest rates, market
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liquidity and credit ratings of issuers from our available-for-sale securities. It is possible that we are at risk if
interest rates, market liquidity or credit ratings of issuers change in an unfavorable direction. The magnitude of
any gain or loss will be a function of the difference between the fixed rate of the financial instrument and the
market rate and our financial condition and results of operations could be materially affected. Based on
sensitivity analysis performed on our financial investments held as of December 31, 2007, an immediate adverse
change of 10% in interest rates (e.g. 3.00% to 3.30%) would result in a $0.1 million decrease in the fair value of
our available-for-sale securities.

Foreign Currency Risk

We have branch operations in Taiwan, Singapore, China and Korea and wholly-owned subsidiaries in
Europe and Japan. QOur international subsidiaries and branches operate primarily using local functional
currencies. These foreign branches and subsidiaries are limited in their operations and level of investinent so that
the risk of currency fluctuations is not material. A substantial portion of our international systems sales are
denominated in U.S. dollars with the exception of Japan and, as a result, we have relatively litle exposure to
foreign currency exchange risk with respect to these sales. Substantially all our sales in Japan are denominated in
Japanese yen. From time to time, we may enter into forward exchange contracts to economically hedge a pertion
of, but not all, existing and anticipated foreign currency denominated transactions expected to occur within 12
months. The change in fair value of the forward contracts is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations each reporting period. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, we had fifieen and seventeen forward
contracts outstanding, respectively. The total notional contract value of these outstanding forward contracts at
December 31, 2006 and 2007 was $6.4 miltion and $5.7 million, respectively. We do not use derivative financial
instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial statements required by this item are set forth on the pages indicated at Item 15(a)
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 9.  Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information we are required
to disclose in reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and
reporied within the time period specified in SEC rules and forms. These contrels and procedures are also
designed to ensure that such information is accumulated and communicated to our management, including our
principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required
disclosure. In designing and evaluating disclosure controls and procedures, we have recognized that any controls
and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving
the desired control objectives. Management is required to apply judgment in evaluating its controls and
procedures.

We performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including
our principal executive and principal financial officers, to assess the effectiveness of the design and operation of
our disclosure controls and procedures under the Exchange Act as of December 31, 2007. Based on that
evaluation, our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, concluded that
our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as of December 31, 2007 because of a material
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting.
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b) Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial
reporting, as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Internal control over financial
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. Under the supervision and with the participation of our management,
including our principal executive officer and principal financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
(COSO). Based on that criteria, the material weakness described below has caused our management to conclude
we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

A material weakness is defined in Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing Standard No. 5 as
a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a
reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will
not be prevented or detected on a timely basis.

Our management determined that the process and procedures surrounding the preparation and review of the
income tax provision did not include adequate management oversight and review controls as of December 31,
2007. Specifically, we did not ensure that effective oversight of the work performed by our outside tax advisor,
Deloitte Tax LLP was exercised. The resulting erors from the material weakness, which were primarily
attributable to acquisition related tax matters, did not have a material effect on the Company’s financial results
for the year ended December 31, 2007. However, combinations of such errors could have resulted in our annual
or interim financial statements being materially misstated.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2007, excluded PCTA because it was acquired by the Company in December 2007. The total
assets and total revenue of PCTA represent 17.0% or $78.3 million of consolidated total assets (including
goodwill and other intangible assets of $43.2 million and $16.2 million) and 0.2% or $0.4 million of consolidated
total revenue, of the Company as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Registrants are permitted to
exclude acquisitions from their assessment of internal control over financial reporting during the first year if,
among other circumstances and factors, there is not adequate time between the consummation date of the
acquisition and the assessment date for assessing internal controls.

Our consolidated financiai statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 have been audited by
KPMG LLP, our independent registered public accounting firm, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). KPMG LL.P has also audited our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, as stated in its attestation report included elsewhere in this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

¢) Changes in Internal Controt Over Financial Reporting

Except for outsourcing the preparation of our year-end income tax provision, there have been no changes
during the Company’s quarter ended December 31, 2007 in our internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to
matenally affect, our internal control over financial reporting,
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d) Remediation Steps Subsequent to December 31, 2007

Management is taking the following measures to address the material weakness identified above and to
enhance our internal control over financial reporting procedures:

« Re-evaluate the design of income tax accounting processes and controls and implement new and
improved processes and controls, if warranted; and

» Increase the level of review and discussion of significant tax matters and supporting documentation with

our outside advisor and senicr finance management.

We anticipate that these remediation actions will represent ongoing improvement measures. While we are
taking steps to remediate the material weakness, additional measures may be required. During 2008, we will
assess the effectiveness of our remediation efforts in connection with our management’s tests of internal control
over financial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART HI

Centain information required by Part IIT is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K because we will
file a definitive proxy statement within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the fiscal year pursuant to
Regulation 14A (the “Proxy Statement”) for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders currently scheduled for
May 20, 2008, and the information included in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance,

The information required by this Item with respect to directors and executive officers is incorporated by
reference to the Proxy Statement. Information regarding compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, is incorporated by reference to the information under the heading “Section 16(a)
Beneficial Ownership Reponing Compliance” in the Proxy Statement.

Code of Ethics. We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal
financial officer and controller. This code of ethics is posted on our internet website address at hutp:/
www.rudolphtech.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this [tem is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement,
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accounting Fees and Services,

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement,
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule.

(a) The following documents are filed as part of this Annnal Report on Form 10-K:

|. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement information required
by this Item are included on pages F-1 through F-8 of this report. The Reports of Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm appear on pages F-2 through F-3 of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedule

See Index to financial statements on page F-1 of this report.

3. Exhibits

The following is a list of exhibits. Where so indicated, exhibits, which were previously filed, are
incorporated by reference.

Exhibit
No.

21

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2005, by and among the Registrani, NS Merger
Sub, Inc. and August Technology Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company’s Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on July 7, 2005).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 8, 2005, by and among the Registrant, NS Merger Sub, Inc.
and August Technology Corporation, to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27,
2005, by and among the Registrant, NS Merger Sub, Inc. and August Technology Corporation
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to the Regisirant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on December 9, 2005).

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of December 18, 2007, by and among the Registrant, Mariner
Acquisition Company LLC, Applied Precision Holding, LLC and Applied Precision, LLC
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 1o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with
the SEC on December 21, 2007).

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3.1(b})
to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form 8-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871 filed on

September 9, 1999,

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3.2(b)) to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on
September 9, 1999).

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 15, 2006, No. 000-27965).

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August 1, 2007, No. 000-27965).

Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form 8-A, filed with the Commission on June 28, 2005, No 000-27965).
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Exhibit
No.

4.2

10.1+

10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

14.1

Description

August Technology Corporation 1997 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the
Appendix to August Technology Corporation’s Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Shareholders
Meeting, filed with the Commission on March 11, 2004, No. 000-30637).

License Agreement, dated June 28, 1995, between the Registrant and Brown University Research
Foundation {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.1} to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999).

Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.3) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on
September 9, 1999).

Amended 1996 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13
to Registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 14, 2001).

Form of 1999 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.4) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9,
1999),

Form of 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.5) to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on
September 9, 1999),

Management Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2000, by and between Rudelph Technologies, Inc. and
Paul F. McLaughlin (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s quarterly report
on Form 10-Q, filed on November 3, 2000).

Management Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2000 by and between Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and
Steven R. Roth (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10,14 to Registrant’s quarterly report on
Form 10-Q, filed on November 3, 2000).

Registration Agreement, dated June 14, 1996 by and among the Registrant, 11, L.L.C., Riverside
Rudolph, L.L.C., Dr. Richard F. Spanier, Paul F. McLaughlin (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit (10.9) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, as amended (SEC File No.
333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999),

Stockholders Agreement, dated June 14, 1996 by and among the Registrant, Administration of
Florida, Liberty Partners Holdings |1, L.L.C., Riverside Rudolph, L.L.C., Dr. Richard F. Spanier,
Paul McLaughlin, Dale Moorman, Thomas Cooper and (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
(10.10) to the Registrant’s Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9,
1999).

Form of option agreement under 1999 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12
to Registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 5, 2004).

Form of Restricted Stock Award pursuant to the Rudolph Technologies, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (filed
with Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 21, 2005 and
incorporated herein by reference).

Form of Company Shareholder Voting Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the
Company’s Schedule 13D filed with the SEC on July 7, 2005).

Rudolph Technologies Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 14.1 to Registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K, filed en March 16, 2006).
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Exhibit
No.

14.2

18.1
21.1
23.1
311

312

KYA|

322

Description
Rudolph Technologies Financial Code of Ethics (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to
Registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K, filed on March 16, 2006).
Preferability letter of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, filed herewith.

Subsidiaries.
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Certification of Paul F. McLaughlin, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Securities Exchange Act
Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification of Steven R. Roth, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule
13a-14(a).

Certification pursuant to 18 U.5.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursvant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, signed by Paul F. McLaughlin, Chief Executive Officer of Rudolph Technologies,
Inc.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, signed by Steven R. Roth, Chief Financial Officer of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

+ Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to portions of this exhibit.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rudolph Technologies. Inc. and subsidiaries as
listed in the accompanying index. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also
have audited the consolidated financial statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These
consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements and the
financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the
results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31,
2007, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth therein,

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial
Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainties in Income Taxes”. effective
January 1, 2007.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, effective January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 3, 2008, expressed an adverse
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/s KPMG LLP

Short Hills, New Jersey
March 3, 2008
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Rudolph Technelogies, Inc.:

We have audited Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
based on criteria established in /nternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSQ). Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s management is responsible
for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of
internal control over financial reporting. included in Item 9A.(b) of the accompanying annual report on Form
10-K. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit
included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
enly in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or deiect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Rudolph Technologies, Inc. acquired the probe card test and analysis business (PCTA) of Applied Precision
Holdings, LLC and Applied Precision, LLC during 2007, and management excluded from its assessment of the
effectiveness of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007,
PCTA’s internal control over financial reporting associated with total assets of $78 million, including $43 million
of goodwill and $16 million of other intangible assets, and total revenues of $0.4 million included in the
consolidated financial statements of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of and for the year ended
December 31, 2007. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. also
excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of PCTA.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim
financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has
been identified and included in management’s assessment: the Company did not have adequate oversight and
review controls regarding the preparation and review of the accounting for income taxes as of December 31,
2007. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States), the consolidated financial statements of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries listed
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in the accompanying index. This maierial weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent
of audit tests applied in our audit of the 2007 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our
report dated March 3, 2008, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the aforementioned material weakness on the achievement of the
objectives of the control criteria, Rudolph Technologies, Inc. has not maintained effective internal control over

financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

fs/ KPMG LLP

Short Hills, New Jersey
March 3, 2008

F-4




RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except per share data)

December 31,
2006 2007
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cashand cashequivalents .. ... .. . . . . . . i $ 72479 §% 57420
Marketable securities ... ... ... .. i i 33714 16,505
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $299 in 2006 and $214 in 2007 ........... 65,373 50,015
B8 (N3 1 L ¥ PP 55,433 70,987
Income taxes receivable ... .. ... ... — 404
Deferred INCOME LAXES . . . o\t ettt e et e et e e e e e e e e e e 7,950 4,665
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . ............oooeiiiiii o, 1,795 3,631
Total CUTTENL @SSEL5 . . o ..ottt e e et e e e e e e e e e e e 236,744 203,627
Property, plant and equipment, Net .. .. ... . e 16,882 16,062
GoodWill ... e 145,176 188,832
Identifiable intangible assets, net . .......... .. . i e 37,401 48,125
Capitalized software . ... . . 3,607 3,097
BN A88BS . . o ot e e 676 473
Total ASSEls ... ..o $440,486 3460216
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable . ... e $ 8054 § 7975
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and related expenses ... .. ... ... L 6,408 3910
Rovalties .. ... i e 1,831 780
Y Ty ...ttt 2,171 2,365
Income taxes payable ... ... 2,113 —
Deferved revenue . ... ... e 11,928 5,956
Other current liabilities . ... ... ... . o e e 3,297 6,343
Total current liabilities . ......... ... .. ... . . 35,802 27,329
Deferred iNCOMe taXES . .. ... . i it e e e 10,647 3,556
Other non-current liabilities ... ... ... .. . ... .. . . . e 1,161 4.853
Total liabilities ... ... ... i e 47,610 35,738
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and
outstanding at December 31,2006 and 2007 .. ...... ... ... .. .. o — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 50,000 shares authorized, 28,977 and 30,480
issued and owstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively ... ........ 29 30
Additional paid-in capital .. ... .. e 361,128 379,886
Accumulated other comprehensive loss ........ ... . . i {1,178) 214)
Retained eamnings . ... ... ... . e e 32,897 44,776
Total stockholders’ equity ....... ... ... o e 392,876 424478
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity ........... ... ..., $440,486 $460,216

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
{In thousands, except per share data)

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007

REVEIIUES - o oottt et e et e e et e $82.918 $201,168 $160,129
05t OF TEVEIIUES « o oottt ettt e et e et e am e 44390 103,726 78,889

Gross profil . .. ..o e 38,528 97,442 81,240
Operating expenses:

Research and development . . ........ .. oo 11,901 29,856 29,993

In-process research and development .............. . oo — 9,900 1,000

Selling, general and administrative .............. .. ..o 20,373 32,393 33,204

ANOTHZAION « ottt et e e e e e ettt e 876 4,048 4 487

Total Operating eXPenses ... ... ..cuvvveceennmnnrennroonnns 33,150 76,197 68,684

Operating iNCOME ... ...t 5,378 21,245 12,556
Interest income and other, NEL ... ... oottt i tria e cna e 1,388 3,191 4,149

Income before provision forincome taxes ............ ... ... 6,766 24,436 16,705
Provision fOr iMCOMIE LaXES . . .ottt it s ar e et e iaa e 1,789 11,730 4,846
Nl IMCOIMIE & v ot e et et et e e e e et ta i tae it an e $4977 $ 12,706 $ 11,859
Earnings per share:

BaSiC ..ottt e e e $ 029 § 047 § 041

DIl . ot ottt e e $ 029 § 046 $§ 040
Weighted average number of shares outstanding

BaSIC © ottt e e e e e 16,899 27,276 29,168

|01 17 =7 O 16,942 27,574 29,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC, AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007
(In thousands)

Accumulated
Additional Other
M Paid-in  Comprehensive  Unearned  Retained Comprehensive
Shares Amount Capital Loss Compensation Earnings Total Income
Balance at December 31,2004 .. ... 16817 § 17  §$142986 $(1.442) 3 — $15214 $156,775
Proceeds from sales of shares
through share-based
compensation plans . ....... 124 — 1,503 — — — 1.503
Netincome ................ — — —_ — — 4977 4,977 $ 4,977
Share-based compensation .... — — 75 — 556 — 631
Uneamed compensation ... ... — — 2,580 — (2,580) —_— —
Tax benefit for sale of shares
through share-based
compensationplans .. ...... _ — 134 —_ — — 134
Currency translation ......... —_ — — 518 — — 518 518
Unrealized loss on investments — — — Y] — — (4) (4}
Comprehensive income .. .... $ 5491
Balance at December 31,2005 ... .. 16,941 17 147,278 (928) (2,024) 20,191 164,534
Proceeds from sales of shares
through share-based
compensationplans .. ..., .. 738 1 8,957 —-— —_ — 8,958
Netincome ................ — —_ - —_ — 12,706 12,706 12,706
Share-based compensation .,.. — — 1,936 — — — 1,936
Adoption of SFAS I123R ..., .., - — {2,024) -_ 2,024 — —
Excess tax benefit for sale of
shares through share-based
compensation plans . . ... ... — — 1.167 — — —-— 1,167
Common stock issued in
L1571 -0 N 11,298 il 197,822 —_ — — 197,833
Assumed August Technology
options .. ................ — — 6,040 — - - 6,040
Tax benefit on tax deductible
transaction costs ......,... — — (48) — — (48)
Currency translation ......, ., — — —_ {401 — — 400 (401)
Unrealized gain on investments — — — 151 — 151 151
Comprehensive income ...... $12,456
Balance at December 31,2006 . . . .. 28,977 29 361,128 (1,178) — 32,897 392,876
Proceeds from sales of shares
through share-based
compensationplans . ....... 196 — 1,344 —_ — — 1,344
Netincome . ............... —_ — — — — 11,859 11,859 $11,859
Adoptionof FIN48 ......... - — — — — 20 20
Share-based compensation .. .. —_ — 3,119 _ — — 3,119
Excess tax benefit for sale of
shares through share-based .
compensationplans . ... .... — — 148 — — — 148
Common stock issued in
acquisition . . ... e 1,307 | 14,147 — — — 14,148
Currency translation ......... _— — — 812 — — 812 812
Unrealized gain on investments —_ — — 152 — — 152 152
Comptehensive income ... .. $12,823
Balance at December 31, 2007 .. ... 30,480 379,886 214) — 44,776 424,478

I

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Cash flows from operating activities:
NELIICOME + v v et e ettt et e e et e e et e m e e a i n b r et en s $ 4977 $ 12,706 § 11,859
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash equivalents provided by
operating activities:
ATNOTHZALION & . vt vt ettt et et e e et et ettt n e et e 876 4,372 5,700
DEPIECIation ... ... un ettt e e 1,773 4,300 4,500
In-process research and development ... ... — 9,900 1,000
Foreign currency exchange loss ... ... oo i 885 55 45
Net loss on sale of marketable securities . ... ... i 856 162 —
Tax benefit for sale of shares through share-based compensation plans ................ 134 — —
Share-based cOMPENSAtON ... ... .ottt e 631 1,936 3,119
Provision for doubtful accounts and inventory valuation ., ... ... ocoai i 394 3,497 496
Deferred INCOME tXES & ot ot vt e et e e et et s sttt et e s a et abraans (109) 5,718 (3.314)
Decrease (increase) in assets excluding effects of business combinations:
ACCOUNIS TeCEivablE . . .o i e e e (5,669 (25.096) 21401
fncome taxes receivable ... ... e e e — — (1,089
TOVENIOTIEE + vt v e et v et e e et e e et et it it e e 3,702 (7,079) (5.,395)
Prepaid expenses and otherassets ....... ... ..ot e 626 323 (2,339)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities exeluding effects of business combinations:
Accounts payable .. .. 207) (438) (3,326)
Accrued labilities . .. .o v o (1,244) 790 (3,958)
Income taxes payable . ... ... (312} 610 (537)
Deferred FEVENMUE . .. oottt sttt e sa e i e 4 7.873 {6,131)
Other current [abilities .. .o ittt it it e e i {70) 1.017 617
Non-current Babilities . . . ..ottt e e et ittt e 830 (n 2.168
Net cash and cash equivulents provided by operating activities .............. 8,077 20,645 23,582
Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable SECUILES . . .. . .ttt te et ir e ncnan e aeians (49,965) (70,803) (77,748)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities .. ... . ... ... . 70,404 93410 95,147
Purchases of property, plant and equipment .. ........... ... oo 2.677) (4.664)  (1,007)
Capitalized sOftWare . ... .. ... oot (882) (2,230} (712)
Purchase of business, net of cashacquired .. ... ... . oo (863) (12,109) (56,166)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in) investing activities ....... 16,017 3.604  (40,486)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sales of shares through share-based compensationplans .......... .. 1,503 8,957 1,344
Tax benefit for sale of shares through share-based compensation plans ............ — 1.167 148
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activities .............. 1,503 10.124 1,492
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents ....................c0. (238) 120 353
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cashequivalents ... ... ... oot 25,359 34493 (15,059
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ....... ... ... i it 12,627 37.986 72,479
Cash and cash equivalents atendof year . ... ... ... . i $3798 §$ 72479 § 57420
Supplementa! disclosure of cash flow information:
Net cash paid during the period for:
TONCOMIE LAXES .« v v vv v e oee e e s n e nn e e e i $ 1959 % 4097 $ 8170
Non-cash investing activities:
Acquisition costs for business combinations ..............o o $ 2,138 § 6039 § 1,315
Stock issued for business combinations ..., i $ — $197.833 § 14022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(In thousands, except per share data)

1. Organization and Nature of Operations:

Rudolph Technologies, Inc. (the “Company”) designs, develops, manufactures and supports high-
performance process contro! equipment used in semiconductor device manufacturing. The Company has branch
sales and service offices in China, Korea, Taiwan and Singapore and wholly-owned sales and service subsidiaries
in Europe, Japan, Washington and Minnesota. The Company operates in a single segment and supports a wide
variety of applications in the areas of diffusion, etch, lithography, CVD, PVD, CMP and macro-defect detection
and classification. )

On Febrvary 15, 2006, the Company completed its merger with August Technology Corporation. August
Technology was a world-class provider of automated defect detection and product characterization systems for
microelectronic device manufacturers. Their systems provided manufacturers with information that enables
process-enhancing decisions, ultimately lowering manufacturing costs and decreasing time-to-market. They had
traditionally provided systems to address the automated inspection needs of the early stages of the final
manufacturing or back-end of the microelectronic device manufacturing process. In addition, they had introduced
new products for edge and backside inspection systems for advanced macro-defect detection primarily in the
front-end of the wafer manufacturing process. When used in conjunction with one another these systems allow a
manufacturer to inspect the top, edge and back of a wafer’s surface.

On December 18, 2007, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Mariner Acquisition Company LLC,
entered into, and consummated the transactions contemplated by, an agreement with Applied Precision Holdings,
LI.C and Applied Preciston, LLC (collectively, “Applied”), pursuant to which it purchased substantially all of the
assets and assumed certain liabilities of the semiconductor division of Applied to be known as the Rudelph
Technologies Probe Card Test and Analysis division (“PCTA"). The PCTA is engaged in the business of
designing, developing, manufacturing, marketing, selling and supporting advanced probe card metrology and
wafer probe process monitoring equipment and is complementary to the Company’s existing business.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
A. Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements reflect the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

B. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized upon shipment provided that there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery
has occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably
assured, Certain sales of the Company’s products are sold and accounted for as multiple element arrangements,
consisting primarily of the sale of the product, software, installation and training services. The Company
generally recognizes product revenue upon shipment. When customer acceptance is subjective and not obtained
prior to shipment, the Company defers product revenue until such time as positive affirmation of acceptance has
been obtained from the customer. Customer acceptance is generally based on the Company’s products meeting
published performance specifications. The amount of revenue allocated to the shipment of products is done on a
residual method basis. Under this method, the total arrangement value is allocated first to undelivered contract
elements, based on their fair values, with the remainder being allocated to product revenue. The fair value of
installation, training and other services is based upon billable hourly rates and the estimated time to complete the
service. Revenue related to undelivered installation services is deferred until such time as installation is
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
{(In thousands, except per share data)

completed at the customer’s site. Revenue related to training services is recognized ratably over the training
period. Revenue from software license fees is recognized upon shipment if collection of the resulting receivable
is probable, the fee is fixed or determinable, and vendor-specific objective evidence exists to allocate a portion of
the total fee to any undelivered elements of the arrangement. If vendor specific objective evidence does not exist
for the undelivered elements of an arrangement that includes software, all revenue is deferred and recognized
ratably over the period required to deliver the remaining elements.

Revenues from parts sales are recognized at the time of shipment. Revenue from service contracts is
recognized ratably over the period of the contract. A provision for the estimated cost of fulfilling warranty
obligations is recorded at the time the related revenue is recognized.

License support and maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the contract period.

C. Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant eslimates
made by management include allowance for doubtful accounts, inventory obsolescence, purchase accounting
allocations, recoverability and useful lives of property, ptant and equipment and identifiable intangible assets,
recoverability of goodwill, recoverability of deferred tax assets, liabilities for product warranty, accruals for
contingencies and share-based payments, including forfeitures and liabilities for tax uncertainties. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

D. Cush and Cash Equivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three
months or less when purchased.

E. Marketable Securities:

The Company determined that all of its investment securities are to be classified as available-for-sale.
Available-for-sale securities are carried at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses reported in
stockholders’ equity under the caption “Accumulated other comprehensive loss.” Realized gains and losses,
interest and dividends on available-for-sale securities are included in interest income and other, net.
Available-for-sale securities are classified as current assets regardless of their maturity date if they are available
for use in current operations. The Company reviews its investment portfolio to identify and evaluate investments
that have indications of possible impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is other-than-
temporary include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than the cost basis, credit
quality and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for
any anticipated recovery in market value. When a decline in fair value is determined 1o be other-than-temporary,
unrealized losses on available-for-sale securities are charged against earnings. The specific identification method
is used to determine the gains and losses on marketable securities.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—{Continued)
{In thousands, except per share data)

F. Allowance for Doubtful Accounts:

The Company evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In the
cases where the Company is aware of circumstances that may impair a specific customert’s ability to meet its
financial obligation, the Company records a specific allowance against amounts due, and thereby reduces the net
recognized receivable to the amount management reasonably believes will be collected. For all other customers,
the Company recognizes allowances for doubtful accounts based on the length of time the receivables are
outstanding, industry and geographic concentrations, the current business environment and historical experience.

G. Invenrories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Cost includes matenial, labor and
overhead costs. Demonstration units, which are available for sale, are stated at their manufacturing costs and
reserves are recorded to adjust the demonstration units 1o their net realizable value.

H. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed
using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which are thirty years for buildings,
four to seven years for machinery and equipment, seven years for furniture and fixtures, and three years for
computer equipment. Leasehold improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the lesser of the
lease term or the estimated useful life of the related asset. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as
incurred and major renewals and betterments are capitalized.

1. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and identifiable acquired intangible assets with
definite useful lives, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thai the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be
generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment
charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset,
which is generally based on discounted cash flows.

J. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with definitive useful lives are amortized using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives. Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are 1ested
for impairment at least annually and when there are indications of impairment in accordance with the provisions
of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS™) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Tntangible Assets.”
Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill impairment is deemed to exist if the net book value of a reporting unit exceeds
its estimated fair value. The Company estimates the fair value of its aggregated reporting unit using the market
vatue of its common stock at October 31 multiplied by the number of outstanding common shares (market
capitalization) and an implied control premium as if it were 10 be acquired by a single stockholder. The Company
obtains information on completed sales of similar companies in a comparable industry to estimate the implied
control premium for the Company. If the results of the initial market capitalization test produce results which are
below the reporting unit carrying value, the Company may also perform a discounted cash flow test. The
Company tested for goodwill impairment on QOctober 31, 2007. In 2007, the Company changed its annual
impairment testing date from December 31 to October 31. The Company believes October 31 is preferable as it
provides additional time prior to the Company’s year-end of December 31 1o complete the impairment testing
and report the results of those tests in its annual filing on Form 10-K,
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
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K. Concentration of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist
primarily of accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities. The Company performs
ongoing credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral for sales on credit. The
Company maintains allowances for potential credit losses. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents
and marketable sccurities with higher credit quality issuers and monitors the amount of credit exposure to any
ong issuer.

L. Warranties:

The Company generally provides a warranty on its products for a period of twelve to fifteen months against
defects in material and workmanship. The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the
time revenue is recognized.

M. Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability approach for deferred taxes which
requires the recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events
that have been recognized in the Company’s consolidated financial statements or tax returns. A valuation
allowance is recorded to reducc a deferred tax asset to that portion which more likely than not will be realized.
Additionally, taxes are separated into current and non-current amounts based on the classification of the related
amounts for financial reporting purposes. The Company does not provide for federal income taxes on the
undistributed earnings of its foreign operations as it is the Company’s intention to permanently re-invest
undistributed earnings.

On July 13, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109”7 (“FIN 48”).
Under FIN 48, the impact of an uncertain income tax position is recognized at the largest amount that is more-
likely-than-not to be sustained upon audit by the relevant taxing authority and includes consideration of interest
and penalties. An uncertain income tax position will not be recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of
being sustained. Under FIN 48, the liability for unrecognized tax benefits is classified as non-current unless the
liability is expected to be settled in cash within 12 months of the reporting date.

N. Translation of Foreign Currencies.

The Company’s international subsidiaries and branch offices operate primarily using local functional
currencics. Assets and liabilities are trunslated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and income
and expense accounts and cash flow items are translated at average monthly exchange rates during the period.
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Net exchange gains or losses resulting from the trunslation of foreign financial statements and the effect of
exchange rates on intercompany transactions of a long-term investment nature are recorded directly as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity under the caption, “Accumulated other comprehensive loss”. Any foreign
currency gains or losses related to transactions are included in operating results, Net foreign exchange rate gains
and losses included in operating results are not material for all periods presented. The Company had accumulated
exchange losses resulting from the translation of foreign operation financial statements of $1,010 and $198 as of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

O. Share-based Compensation:

Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company’s share-based compensation plans were accounted for in accordance
with Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related
interpretations, Under this method, no compensation expense for stock options was recognized as long as the
exercise price equaled or exceeded the market price of the underlying stock on the date of the
grant. Compensation cost for restricted stock units issued to employees and directors was based upon the market
value on the date grant. Such compensation costs were charged to unearned compensation in stockholders’ equity
and amortized to expense over the requisite service peried. The Company elected the disclosure-only alternative
permitted under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation™ (“SFAS 1237), as amended by
SFAS No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure™ (“SFAS 148™), for
fixed stock-based awards to employees.

On January 1, 2006. the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” ("SFAS
123R”) using the modified prospective method, which requires measurement of compensation cost for all stock
awards at fair value on date of grant and recoguition of compensation cost over the service period for awards
expected to vest. The fair value of stock options is determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model, which is
consistent with the Company’s valuation model previously utilized for options in footnote disclosures required
under SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148. The Black-Scholes valuation calculation requires the Company to
estimate key assumptions such as future stock price volatility, expected terms, risk-free interest rates and
dividend yield. Expected stock price volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company’s stock. The
Company uses historical data to estimate option exercises and employee terminations within the valuation model.
The expected term of options granted is derived from an analysis of historical exercises and remaining
contractual life of stock options, and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be
outstanding. The risk-free interest rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The
Company has never paid cash dividends, and does not currently intend to pay cash dividends, and thus has
assumed a 0% dividend yield. Such value is recognized as expense over the service period, net of estimated
forfeiures. The estimation of stock awards that will ultimately vest requires significant judgment. The Company
considers many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including types of awards, employee class, and
historical experience. Actual results, and future changes in estimates, may differ substantially from the
Company’s current estimates. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company recorded forfeitures as incurred,
Upon adoption of SFAS 123R, compensation expense for all share-based payments includes an estimate for
forfeitures and is recognized over the expected term of the share-based awards using the straight-line method.
The impact of this change on prior period compensation cost was immaterial, Additionally, the unearned
compensation of $2,024 at the SFAS 123R adoption date relating to previous restricted stock unit grants was
offset against additional paid-in capital.

Results for prior periods have not been restated to reflect the effects of implementing SFAS 123R. The
following table illustrates the effect on net income and earnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value

recognition provisions of SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148, to stock options granted under the Company’s
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stock-based employee compensation plans for year ended December 31, 2005. For purposes of this pro forma
disclosure, the value of the stock options was estimated using a Black-Scholes option-pricing formula and
amortized to expense over the options’ vesting periods, with option forfeitures accounted for as they occurred:

Year Ended
December 31,
w05
NEt INCOME, AS TEPOTLEA .« . . v vt e e e ittt ittt s e tacn s a et 54977
Add: Share-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of related
INCOME 1X DEMETILS © o . o o e e ettt e e e e ettt e e et e e ae e e 396
Deduct: Share-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based method,
net of related income tax beneflts . . .. .. vt e e (8,902)
Pro FOTTA NEE LOSS - o o o ettt e e e et e e e ettt e et et e et e $(3.529)
Net income (loss) per share:
Basic-as TEPOTLEd . .\ oot v et eae e v e e s e e e $ 029
BaSiC-PrO fOTMIA . ..\ttt et e it e et e e et $ 0.21)
Diluted-as reported . ............. e $ 0.29
DAIULEA-PIO £OMINA © ..\ o\ et et et et e e e e e $ (021

Effective April 14, 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of all unvested stock options awarded to
employees, officers and other eligible participants under the Company’s 1999 Stock Plan. A total of 959 options
to purchase shares of Rudolph stock became immediately exercisable as a result of the vesting acceleration,
however only 87 of the stock options, or 9% of the total accelerated shares, were “in the money”. These options
were typically scheduled to incrementally vest beginning on the first anniversary of their respective grant date.
The Company recognized a de minimus charge in the second quarter of 2005 as a result of the acceleration. The
Company took this action because it produces a more favorable impact on the Company’s results of operations
following the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, effective January 1, 2006. By accelerating the vesting of these
options, the Company believes it will save approximately $7.0 million in future compensation expense that
would have been required to be expensed, beginning January 1, 2006, over the remaining service period. In
addition, effective May 1, 2005, the Company amended its ESPP. The amendment removed the “look back”
provision, that was previously a part of the ESPP and reduced the discount for purchasing shares of ‘the
Company’s stock to five percent. These modifications to the ESPP were also made as a result of the Company’s
anticipated adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

For additional information on the Company’s share-based compensation plans, see Note 10 of Notes to the
Consolidated Financial Statements,

P. Research and Development and Software Development Costs:

Expenditures for research and development are expensed as incurred. The Company accounts for software
development costs in accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for Costs of Computer Sofiware to Be Sold,
Leased or Marketed.” SFAS No. 86 requires that certain software product development costs incurred after
technological feasibility has been established, be capitalized and amortized, commencing upon the general
release of the software product to the Company’s customers, over the economic life of the software product.
Annual amortization of capitalized costs is computed using the greater of: (i) the ratio of current gross revenues
for the software product over the total of current and anticipated future gross revenues for the sofiware product or
(ii) the straight-line basis, typically over seven years. Software product development costs incurred prior to the
product reaching technological feasibility are expensed as incurred and included in research and development
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costs. At December 31, 2006 and 2007, capitalized software development costs were $3,607 and $3,097,
respectively. There was no amortization of software development cost during the year ended December 31, 2005.
During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, $345 and $704 of software development costs were
amortized, respectively. During 2007, the Company recorded a write down of capitalized software of $507 in
cost of revenues in the Consclidated Statement of Operations.

Q. Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities, approximate fair value due to their short maturities.

R. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities:

The Company reports derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for
Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This statement requires that all derivative instruments be
recorded on the balance sheet at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each peried in
current earnings or accumulated other comprehensive loss, depending on whether the derivative is designated as
part of & hedge transaction, and if it is, depending on the type of hedge transaction.

The Company, when it considers it to be appropriate, enters into forward contracts to hedge the economic
exposures arising from foreign currency denominated transactions. At December 31, 2006 and 2007, these
contracis included the sale of Japanese Yen to purchase U.S. dollars. The foreign currency forward contracts
were entered into by our Japanese subsidiary to hedge a portion of certain intercompany obligations. The forward
contracts are not designated as hedges for accounting purposes and therefore, the change in fair value is recorded
in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

The dollar equivalent of the US dollar forward contracts and related fair values as of December 31, 2006
and 2007 were as follows:

December 31,
2006 2007
Notional amount ... ... . ... e $6,439 85,706
Fair value of asset (lability) ...... ... ... ... . oo, $ 144 3 (127

The Company recognized a gain of $172, $106 and $278 with respect to forward contracts which matured
during 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The aggregate notional amount of these contracts was $1,736, $6,277
and $§.802, respectively.

S. Reclassifications:

Certain prior year ameunts have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 financial statement presentation.

T. Recent Accounting Pronouncements:

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business
Combinations” ("SFAS 141R"), which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes
and measures in its financial staiements the identifiable assets acquired. the labilities assumed, any
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noncontrolling interest in an acquiree, and the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in a business
combination or a gain from a bargain purchase. SFAS 141R applies prospectively 1o business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after
December 15, 2008.

In November 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF lIssue No. 07-1 (“EITF 07-17),
“Accounting for Collaborative Arrangements,” which defines collaborative arrangements and establishes
reporting and disclosure requirements for such arrangements. EITF 07-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2008. The Company is continuing to evaluate the impact of adopting the previsions EITF
07-1; however, it does not anticipate that adoption will have a material effect on its financial position or results of
operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 (“SFAS 1597), “The Fair Value Option for Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities- Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS 159 permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective 1s to
improve financial reporting by providing entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reporting earnings
caused by measuring related assets and liabilities differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting
provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years that begin after November 15, 2007. The Company’s adoption
of SFAS 159 is not expected to impact its financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (“SFAS 1577), “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 is effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, on
February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-2 which defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year
for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are not recognized or disclosed at fair value in the
financial statements on a recurring basis. Based on the Company’s current operations, it does not expect that the
adoption of the non-deferred portion of SFAS 157 will have a matetial impact on its financial position or results
of operations. We have not yet evaluated the impact of the adoption of the deferred portion of SFAS 157.

3. Business Combinations:
August Technology

On February 15, 2006, the merger with August Technology was approved by iis shareholders, and the
issuance of shares of Rudolph common stock was approved by Rudolph’s stockholders, at their respective special
meetings. The combined company is known as Rudolph Technologies, Inc. The aggregate purchase price was
$246,739, consisted of $37,200 in cash, 11,298 shares of common stock valued at $197,833, the fair value of
assumed August Technology options of $6,040 and transaction costs of $5,666.
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The Iransaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations and,
accorclingly, the results of operations of August Technology have been included in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements since the date of merger. The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the
assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of merger:

11 $ 29,893
Marketable SeCUNTIES . ... . . it i i i i e e e 13,418
ACCOUNES TECEIVADIE L. . e e 14,283
RS 403 1= 23,582
Property, plant and equipment . ...... ... ... . e 6,075
Goodwill ..o e e e 132,809
Identifiable intangible assets . ........... . .. i 42 700
L T T ¢t 1,585
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities ...... ... .. ... .. L o oL L (11,733)
Deferred taxes ... .. .. ... (4,279
Other labiliGes . ... .. . e e (1,594)

$246.739

The above purchase price has been allocated based on estimates of the fair values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. With the exception of future tax adjustments related to the merger, the effects of purchase
accounting were completed during 2006. The fair value of inventories included a step-up of $3,842, of which
$3,699 and $143 were recognized in cost of revenues for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. At the merger date, the Company formulated a plan to exit or restructure certain activities. The
Company recorded $173 for these activities, which have occurred during the year ended December 31, 2006,

Faciors that contributed to a purchase price that resulted in recognition of goodwill include:

+ the combination of August Technology’s defect inspection technology with Rudolph’s MetaPULSE
metrology products is expected to improve copper metrology process controls and should allow the
combined company to offer a more comprehensive and better integrated set of tools to its customers and
enhance its ability to compete more effectively;

* the combination of August Technology’s defect inspection experience and technology with Rudolph’s
complementary defect inspection experience and technology should allow the combined company 1o
offer its customers a more comprehensive suite of tools more quickly, thus enhancing the company’s
ability to compete more effectively;

« consolidation of territorial sales activities and common marketing programs;
* redeployment or elimination of duplicative functional and facilities costs;

+ reduction of customer service costs as a result of the consolidation of the companies’ global customer
service and regional support networks;

= creation of a larger sales and service organization worldwide, the expansion of the companies’ dedicated
sales teams and a higher profile with customers, which is expected to present greater opportunities for
potential revenve enhancements by marketing and cross-selling the products of the combined company;

« avoidance of incurring certain costs that the companies would expect to incur on a stand-alene basis in
furtherance of their growth strategies;
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e the combined company is expected to have greater prominence within the financial community,
providing improved access to capital;

» the direct sales and service presence of the combined company in the important Japanese semiconductor
manufacturing market (where Rudolph has three offices with over 20 employees) may increase
opportunities for product orders;

« the combined experience, financial resources, development expertise, size and breadth of product
offerings of the combined company may allow it to respond more quickly and effectively to
technological change, increased consolidation and industry demands; and

= the ability of the assembled workforce to continue to deliver value-added solutions and develop new
products and industry leading production technologies that solve customer problems.

Approximately $9.9 million of the acquired identifiable intangible assets represented the estimated fair
value of in-process research and development (“tPRD™) projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility
and had no altermative future use, Accordingly, this amount was immediately expensed in the Consolidated
Statement of Operations at the merger date. The purchased in-process technology projects was comprised of next
generation automated macro-defect inspection systems with enhanced defect capture capabilities and sofiware
projects which improve the tools” capabilities. The defect inspection and software projects had a value assigned
10 them of $6.9 million and $3.0 million, respectively. The defect inspection projects related 10 the next
generation of the Company’s AXi defect detection systems with enhanced defect capture capabilities and were
completed by the third quarter of 2006. The software projects related to new enhancement features 1o the
Company’s next generation inspection products and were completed in 2007,

PCTA

On December 18, 2007, Rudolph and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into. and
consummated the transactions contemplated by, an Asset Purchase Agreement with Applied Precision Holdings,
LLC and Applied Precision, LLC (collectively, “Applied™}, pursuant to which the Company purchased
substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of the semiconductor division of Applied 1o be
known as the Rudolph Technologies Probe Card Test and Analysis division (“PCTA™). The PCTA is engaged in
the business of designing, developing, manufacturing. marketing, selling and supporting advanced probe card
metrology and wafer probe process monitoring equipment and is complementary to the Company’s existing
business.

The closing under the Asset Purchase Agreement occurred on December 18, 2007 and the Company paid
$57,897 in cash and acquisition costs and issued 1,307 shares of common stock for a total purchase price of
$71,919. The purchase price has been preliminarily allocated based on estimates of the fair values of assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. With the exception of future tax adjustments related to the acquisition, the final
valuation of net assets is expected to be completed during 2008, but no later than one year from the acquisition
date. The results of operations of the PCTA have been included in our consolidated financials statements since
the date of the acquisition.

The Company has agreed to assume the following liabilities of the PCTA: accounts payable. assigned
contracts, licenses and leases, warranty claims and employee liabilities, all as more fully described in the Asset
Purchase Agreement. In addition, the Company has agreed to assume the defense of and all obligations relating
to certain litigation currently pending against Applied.
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The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations and,
accordingly, the results of operations of the PCTA have been included in the Company’s consolidated financial
statements since the date of acquisition. The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition:

Accountsreceivable .. ... ... 5,660
INVERIOMIES . oo\t e e 12,001
Prepaid expenses and other current assets ........... ...t i 157
Property, plant and €qUIPMENT . ... ..o vttt it e te e 1,123
GoodWill . . e e s 43,194
Identifiable intangible assets . ....... ... ... .. . . . il 16,200
Accounts payable and accrued labilities .. ...... . ... ... . o o (3,776)
Deferred revenue . ... ... . ... e (159)
Other Habilities . ..ot i et e e (2,481)
371,919

The fair value of inventories included a step-up of $2,418, of which none was recognized in cost of revenues
for the year ended December 31, 2007. At the acquisition date, the Company formulated a plan to exit or
restructure certain activities. The Company recorded $254 for these activities during the year ended
December 31, 2007.

Factors that contributed to a purchase price that resulted in recognition of goodwill include:

the combination of PCTA and Rudolph products should allow the combined company to offer its
customers a more comprehensive suite of tools and a better integrated set of tools, thus enhancing the’
Company’s ability to compete more effectively;

the ability of the assembled workforce to continue to deliver value-added solutions and develop new
products and industry leading production technologies that solve customer problems;

consolidation of territorial sales activities and common marketing programs;
redeployment or elimination of duplicative functional and facilities costs;

reduction of customer service costs as a result of the consolidation of the companies’ global customer
service and regional support networks; and

the combined experience, financial resources, developmeni expertise, size and breadth of product
offerings of the combined company may allow it to respond more gquickly and effectively to
technological change, increased consolidation and industry demands

Of the $16,200 of acquired identifiable assets, the following table reflects the allocation of the acquired
identifiable assents and related preliminary estimates of useful lives:

Developedtechnology . ........... ... ... .... $ 11,600 8 years estimated useful life

Customer and distributor relationships ... ... .. .. 2,900 7.2 years weighted average estimated useful life
Tradenames ......... ... ... ... cioii., 700 3 years estimated useful life

In-process research and development ........... 1,000

$ 16,200
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Approximately $1.0 million of the acquired identifiable intangible assets represents the estimated fair value
of in-process research and development (“TPRD™) projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and
had no alternative future use. Accordingly, this amount was immediately expensed in the Consolidated Statement
of Operations at the merger date. The purchased in-process technology project was a probe card test project,
related (o the next generation of the Company’s ProbeWoRx systems with enhanced capabilities, and was
approximately 20% complete as of the date of acquisition. The estimated costs 1o complete this project of $2,100,
consist primarily of internal engineering labor costs which will be completed in 2008. If we are not successful in
completing the inspection project on a timety basis, the future sales of the Company’s inspection products may
be adversely affected resulting in erosion of the Company's market share,

Pro Forma Combined Results of Operations

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information presents the combined results of
operations of the Company, August Technology and PCTA as if the respective merger and acquisition occurred
at the beginning of the period presented, after giving effect to certain adjustments, including interest income and
amortization expense. Due 1o the non-recurring nature of the IPRD and inventory step-up charges, these amounts
have not been included in the unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information. The unaudited pro forma
consolidated financial information does not necessarily reflect the results of operations that would have occurred
had the merger and acquisition been completed as of the date indicated or of the results that may be obtained in
the future.

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007
(Unaudited)

Revenues ........ ... ... .. ... . i $202,825  $249,731  $194,262
NElINCOME .. ... e $ 8,728 § 25,526 § 13,213
Earnings per share:
Basic ... ... $ 030 $ 08 3% 043
Diluted ....... ... $ 030 3% 084 3% 043
RVS!I Inspection

On January 22, 2008, the Company announced that it had acquired all intellectual property and selected
assets from privately-held RVSI Inspection, LLC, headquartered in Hauppauge, New York. The Company paid
cash for this acquisition and will account for it as a business combination.

4, Marketable Securities:

At December 31, 2006, marketable securities are categorized as follows:

Amortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Value
Treasury notes and obligations of U.S.

Government agencies .............. $ 8,058 $ 2 $(154) $ 7.906
Tax-free auction rate securities ........ 19,675 —_ — 19,675
Asset-backed securities . ............. 1,654 — (28) 1,626
Corporatebonds .................... 3,689 — (73) 3,616
Mortgage-backed securities ........... 913 1 (23) 891

Total marketable securities .. ...... $33,989 $ 3 $(278) $33.714
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At December 31, 2007, marketable securities are categorized as follows:

Treasury notes and obligations of U.S.
Government agencies ..............
Tax-free auction rate securities ........
Asset-backed securities ..............
Corporatebonds ....................
Mortgage-backed securities ..........,

Total marketable securities ... ... ..

|

Amaortized Gross Unrealized Gross Unrealized Fair

Cost Holding Gains Holding Losses Value
$ 2,938 $ 25 5 (5 $ 2,958
9.227 — — 9,227
1,132 — €)] 1,125
2,605 2 (125) 2,482
726 2 (15) 713
$16,628 $ 29 $(152) $16,505

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities classified by the maturity date listed on
the security, regardless of the Consolidated Balance Sheet classification, is as follows at December 31, 2006 and

2007:

Due withinoneyear ..................
Due after one through five vears ... ... ..
Due after five through ten years . .. .. .. ..
Due aftertenyears ...................

Total marketable securities .........

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2007

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Cost Value Cost Value
$22,358 $22,339 $ 9,857 $ 9,848
9,966 9,749 4,240 4,142
457 447 222 219
1,208 1,179 2,309 2,296
$33,989  $33,714  $16,628 $16,505

Net realized losses of $856, $162 and 30 were included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for

2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively,

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value and gross unrealized holding losses of marketable
secunities, aggregated by investment instrument and period of time in an unrealized loss position at December 31,

2006:

In Unrealized Loss Position In Unrealized Loss Position Total in Unrealized
for less than 12 Months for 12 Months or Greater Loss Position
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Treasury notes and obligations of
U.S. Government agencies . .... $— $5— $ 7,625 $(154) $ 7,626 $(154)
Tax-free auction rate securities ... — —_ — — — —
Asset-backed securities ......... 31 N 1,506 (27) 1,537 (28)
Corporatebonds ............... — —_ 3,689 (73 3,689 (73
Mortgage-backed securities ... ... 22 — 818 23 840 (23)
Total marketable securities . . . $ 53 $ ) 513,638 S22 $13,692 $0278)
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The following table summarizes the estimated fair value and gross unrealized holding losses of marketable
securities, aggregated by investment instrument and period of time in an unrealized loss position at December 31,
2007:

In Unrealized Loss Position In Unrealized Loss Position Total in Unrealized
for less than 12 Months for 12 Months or Greater Loss Position
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
Treasury notes and obligations of
U.S. Government agencies . . . .. $— 5— $ 996 3 3 $ 996 $ (5
Tax-free auction rate securities . . . — — — — — —_
Asset-backed securities ......... 16 —_ 1,006 (7 1,022 N
Corporatebonds ............... 45 (1) 2,203 (124) 2,248 (125}
Mortgage-backed securities ... ... — — 505 (15) 505 (15)
Total marketable securities . . . 3 6l s $4,710 S(15D) $4,774 $(152)

(I

The gross unrealized losses related to marketable securities are primarily due to a decrease in the fair value
of debt securities as a result of current market conditions in mortgage-backed securities and an increase in
interest rates since the securities were purchased. The Company has determined that the gross unrealized losses
on its marketable securities at December 31, 2006 and 2007 are temporary in nature. The Company reviews its
investment portfolio to identify and evaluate investments that have indications of possible impairment. Factors
considered in determining whether a loss is other-than-temporary include the length of time and extent to which
fair value has been less than the cost basis, credit quality and the Company’s ability and intent to hold the
investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in market value.

5. Inventories:

Inventories are comprised of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007
Materials . ... .ottt e e i $33,347 334,556
WOTK-IN-PIOCESS .« v it sttt e e ee e e e e e e e iiaaaa e 12,687 20,820
Finished goods ... ... o e e 9,399 15,611
Total iNVENtOries ...t i $55,433  $70,987

The Company has established reserves of $2,805 and $3,394 at December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively,
for slow moving and obsolete inventory. During 2006, the Company recorded a charge of $3,585 for excess
parts, for older product lines and for parts that design and engineering advancements rendered obsolete, of which
$2,567 was written off. During 2007, the Company recorded a charge of $661 for the write-down of inventory for
excess parts, for older product lines and for parts that design and engineering advancements rendered obsolete. In
2007, the Company wrote off $72 of the inventory reserve.
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6. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment, net is comprised of the following:

December 31,
2006 2007

Landandbuilding . . ...... ... ... .. il $ 5180 % 5,185
Machinery and equipment ........... ... oo L .. 9,471 11,829
Furniture and fiXIUres . .. .. .. it 2,425 2,668
Computer equipment . ......... ...t iiiiiiinaeeaaanns 5,207 6,407
Leasehold improvements ............... ... ... . ... ..., 5,945 5,791

' 28228 31,880
Accumulated depreciation . .......... .. ... i (11,346) (15,818)
Property, plant and equipment, net . . ....... ... ... ... ... . ... $ 16,882 316,062

Depreciation expense amounted to $1,773, $4,300 and $4,500 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006,
and 2007, respectively.

7. Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill:
Identifiable intangible assets as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net
Developed technology ............. . ... ... ..., $37.991 $7.669 $30,322
Customer relationships .......... ... ............... 4,400 429 3,971
Trade names ... ... ottt 3,400 292 3,108
Total identifiable intangible assets . ................... $45,791 $8,390 $37,401

Identifiable intangible assets as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:

Gross Carrying Accumulated

Amount Amaortization Net
Developed technology ......... ... ... ... $49,591 $11,324 $38,267
Customer and distributor relationships ... .............. 71,300 217 6,383
Trade names .. ... ot 4,100 625 3475
Total identifiable intangible assets ... ................. $60,991 $12,866 $48,125

Inmangible asset amortization expense amounted to $876, $4,027 and $4.476 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. Assuming no change in the gross carrying value of identifiable
intangible assets and estimated lives, estimated amortization expense amounts to $6,638 for 2008, $6,297 for

2009, $6,081 for 2010, $5,848 for 2011 and $5,848 for 2012.
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:

Balance as of December 31,2005 ... ... i $ 13,245

August Technology Merger .. ... . i, 131,931

Balance as of December 31,2006 . ... .. e 145,176

, PCTA acquisition ... i 43,194
Tax adjustments related to prior acquisition ........... ... .c.c.aeu... 462

Balance as of December 31,2007 ... . ... .. $188,832

8. Commitments and Contingencies:

Intellectual Property Indemnification Obligations

The Company has entered into agreements with customers that include limited intellectual property
indemnification obligations that are customary in the industry. These guarantees generally require the Company
to compensate the other party for certain damages and costs incurred as a result of third party intellectual
property claims arising from these transactions. The nature of the intellectual property indemnification
obligations prevents the Company from making a reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount it could
be required 10 pay to its customers. Historically, the Company has not made any indemnification payments under
such agreements and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying consolidated financial statements with

respect to these indemnification guarantees.

Warranty Reserves

The Company generally provides a warranty on its products for a period of twelve to fifteen months against
defects in material and workmanship. The Company estimates the costs that may be incurred during the warranty
period and records a liability in the amount of such costs at the time revenue is recognized. The Company’s
estimate is based primarily on historical experience. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its
recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as necessary. Settlements of warranty reserves are generally
associated with sales that occurred during the 12 to 15 months prior to the year-end and warranty accruals are

related to sales during the year.

Changes in the Company’s warranty reserves are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Balance, beginningof the year . .. ........... ...l $1209 $1234 §2171
Accruals ... e 1,945 2,298 2,669
Warranty liability assumed inmerger .. ................... — 1,244
SeltlemEntS ..ot e e e (1,9200  (2,605) (3,007)
Balance,endof theyear . ... ... ... ..ot $1,234 $2,171  § 2,365
Legal Matters

From time to time the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of
business. The Company is not aware of any legal proceedings or claims that management believes would have a

material adverse effect on the Company’s consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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Leuse Agreements

The Company rents space for its manufacturing and service operations and sales offices, which expire
through 2016. Total rent expense for these facilities amounted to $1,550, $2,162 and $2,264 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The Company also leases certain equipment pursuant to operating leases, which expire through 2010. Rent
expense related to these leases amounted to $42, $165 and $171 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006
and 2007, respectively,

Total future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating teases as of December 31, 2007
amounted to $2,527 for 2008, $1,842 for 2009, $1,546 for 2010, $1,533 for 2011, $1,100 for 2012 and $2,177 for
all periods thereafter,

Royalty Agreements

Under various licensing agreements, the Company is obligated to pay rovalties based on net sales of
products sold. There are no minimum annual royalty payments. Royalty expense amounted to $2,071, $2, 990 and
$1.,339 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Open and Committed Purchase Orders

The: Company has open and committed purchase orders of $21.5 million as of December 31, 2007.

9. Preferred Share Purchase Rights:

On June 27, 2005, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan (the “Rights
Plan) and declared a dividend distribution of one Preferred Share Purchase Right (a “Right™) on each
outstanding share of Company common stock. Each right entitles stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of a
share of newly created Series A Junior Participating Preferred Stock of Rudolph at an exercise price of $120. The
Company’s Board is entitled to redeem the Rights at $0.001 per Right at any time before a person has acquired
15% or more of the outstanding Rudelph common stock.

Subject to limited exceptions, the Rights will be exercisable if a person or group acquires 15% or more of
Rudolph common stock or announces a tender offer for 15% or more of the common stock. Each Right other
than Rights held by the Acquiring Person which will become void entitles its holder to purchase a number of
common shares of Rudolph having a market value at that time of twice the Right’s exercise price.

The Rights Plan will expire in 2015. The adoption of the Rights Plan had no impact on the financial position
or results of operations of the Company.

10. Share-Based Compensation and Employee Benefit Plans:
Share-Based Compensation Plans

The Company’s share-based compensation plans are intended to attract and retain employees and to provide
an incentive for them to assist the Company to achieve long-range performance goals and to enable them to
participate in long-term growth of the Company. The Company setiles stock option exercises and restricted stock
awards with newly issued common shares.
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In 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “Option Plan”). Under the Option Plan, the
Company was authorized to grant options to purchase up to 1,070 shares of common stock. All of the outstanding
options became 100% vested upon the initial public offering of the Company on November 12, 1999. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, there were no shares of common stock reserved for future grants under the Option
Plan,

The Company established the 1999 Stock Plan (the “1999 Plan”) effective August 31, 1999. The 1999 Plan
provides for the grant of 2,000 stock options and stock purchase rights, subject to annual increases, to employees,
directors and consultants at an exercise price equal to or greater than the fair market value of the common stock
on the date of grant. Options granted under the 1999 Plan typically grade vest over a five-year period and expire
ten years from the date of grant. Restricted stock units granted under the 1999 Plan typically vest over a five-year
period for employees and one year for directors. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, there were 892 and 1,029
shares of common stock reserved for future grants under the 1999 Plan, respectively.

The Company assumed the August Technology Corporation 1997 Stock Plan (the “1997 Plan™) at the
merger date. Stock options granted under the 1997 Plan vest over periods that range from immediate to five-years
and expire in either seven or ten years from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2006, there were 666 shares of
common stock reserved for future grants under the 1997 Plan. In the third quarter of 2007, the 1997 Plan expired
and as of December 31, 2007, there were no shares of common stock reserved for future grants under the 1997
Plan.

The following table reflects share-based compensation expense by type of award in accordance with SFAS
123R:

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2007

Share-based compensation expense:

SIOCK OPHONS .« ..\ v\t $ 750 § 721

Restricted stock units . ...... ... .o 1,186 2,398
Total share-based compensation . .................. .. ... 1,936 3119
Tax effect on share-based compensation .................. ... 757 1,279
Neteffectonnetincome ... ... it iieaanennneen. $1,179 $1,840
Tax effect on:

Cash flows from financing activities .. ................... 31,167 $ 148
Effect on earnings per share—basic ... ... ... $(0.04) $(0.06)
Effect on earnings per share—diluted . .. .......... ... .cn, $¢0.04) $(0.06)
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Valuation Assumptions for Stock Options

For the year ended December 31, 2005, there were 2 stock options granted. For the year ended
December 31, 2006, there were 5 stock options granted and 369 unvested options and 1,049 vested options
assumed from the August Technology merger. The fair value of the vested options assumed from the August
Technology merger was $6,040, the fair value at the merger date. For the year ended, December 31, 2007, there
were no stock options granted. The fair value of each option was estimated on the date of grant for the granted
options and the merger date for the unvested options assumed from the August Technology merger, using the
Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006
Expected life (years) ......... i 5.0 34
Expected volatility . . .. .. ... ... ... . e, 50.9% 55.1%
Expected dividend yield ........... ... ... .. ... .. . ..., 0.0% 0.0%
Risk-free interestrate ... ... .. .. ... .. . . . . .eeiia.. 3.9% 4.6%
Weighted average fair value peroption ...................... $7.55 $8.99
Stock Option Activity
The following table summarizes stock option activity:
Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining  Aggregate

Exercise Price  Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Per Share Term (years) Value

Qutstanding at December 31,2004 ... ... ... ... ............ 2,738 $22.55

Oranted ... e 2 15.30

Exercised .. ... s (1)) 13.13

Expired .. . i e e e, (106} 25.85

Forfeited . ... .. . e e (59) 21.12

Outstanding at December 31,2005 ..., ... ... ............. 2,514 22.67

Granted . ... ... . e 5 16.72

Assumed from August Technology ........................ 1,418 14.02

Exercised ... .. ... . .. e (674) 12.84

Expired ... ... e (113) 22.27

Forfeited .. .. ... . . . .. i 42) 13.56

Qutstanding at December 31,2006 . ....................... 3,108 $20.98

Granted .. ... . — —_

Exercised ... ... . e (96) 11.54

Expired . ..., .. . . . e (241) 14.39

Forfeited ........ . oo e (16) 21.93

Ouistanding at December 31,2007 ... ... ... ... .......... 2,755 $21.27 3.9 $577
Vested or expecied to vest at December 31,2007 ............. 2,737 $21.31 38 $290
Exercisable at December 31,2007 ... ... .. .. .. . . ... 2,614 $21.66 3.7 $546

|
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The total intrinsic value of the stock options exercised during 2005, 2006 and 2007 was $233, $3,472 and
$506, respectively. In connection with these exercises, the tax benefits realized by the Company for 2003, 2006
and 2007 were $134, $1,167 and $191, respectively.

The options outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 were in the following exercise price ranges:

Options Qutstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted

Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of Contractual Average Average

Exercise Prices Shares Life (years} Exercise Price Shares Exercise Price

$ 056-3%5 14.8! 628 5.1 $12.26 518 $12.02
$ 14.82-5 1641 871 3.2 $16.12 849 $16.13
$ 1649-% 2420 553 4.3 $21.74 544 $21.82
$24.25-% 40.13 671 33 $34.66 671 $34.66
$ 41.75-% 5030 32 32 $48.68 32 $48.68
$ 056-3% 5030 2,755 39 $21.27 2,614 $21.66

As of December 31, 2007, there was 31,151 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock
options granted under the plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average remaining period
of 2.0 years,

The Company recognized a tax benefit of $569 for stock options exercised during the year ended
December 31, 2006. which was assumed in the purchase price of the August Technology merger. This benefit
reduced goodwill.

Restricted Stock Unit Activity

The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity:

A summary of the Company’s restricted stock unit activity with respect to the years ended December 31,
20035, 2006 and 2007 follows:

Weighted Average
Number of Grant Date Fair

Shares Yalue
Nonvested at December 31,2004 ... ... ... ... ... .... — § —
GraNEG & o o e e 161 $16.60
VESIEA © st e e e e e e e s — $ —
Forfeited ... e e e e e —_ $ —_—
Nonvested at December 31,2005 .. ......... ... .. .. 0. 161 $16.60
Granted ... .. e 228 $16.61
R AT ¢ N (48) $16.23
Forfeited . ... ..o i i e s (5 $14.97
Nonvested at December 31,2006 . ........ .. ... ... ... 336 $16.68
Gramed ..ot e e 463 $15.69
VeSIEd . .o e (86) $16.24
Forfeited ..o e e 33 $16.24

Nonvested at December 31,2007 . ... ... .. ... il 680 $16.08
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As of December 31, 2007, there was $7,852 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted
stock units granted under the plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.7
years.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”) effective August 31, 1999 and
amended on May 1, 2005. Under the terms of the ESPP, eligible employees may have up to 15% of eligible
compensation deducied from their pay and applied to the purchase of shares of Rudolph common stock. The
price the employece must pay for each share of stock will be 95% of the fair market value of the Rudolph common
stock at the end of the applicable six-month purchase period. The ESPP is intended to qualify under Section 423
of the Internal Revenue Code and ts a non-compensatory plan as defined by SFAS 123R, No stock-based
compensation expense for the ESPP was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2006 and 2007. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, there were 1,727 and 2,010 shares available for issuance under the ESPP,
respectively.

401(k) Savings Plan

The Company has a 401¢k} savings plan to provide retirement and incidental benefits for its employees, As
allowed under Section 401k} of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides tax-deferred salary deductions for
eligible employees. Employees may contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a
maximum aznnual amount as set periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. The Plan provides a 50% match of
all employee contributions up to 6 percent of the employee’s salary. Company matching contributions to the Plan
totaled $393, $693 and $746 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Profir Sharing Program

The Company has a profit sharing program, wherein a percentage of pre-tax profits, ar the discretion of the
Board of Directors, is provided to all employees who have completed a stipulated employment period. The
Company did not make contributions to this program for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

11. Interest Income and Other, Net:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
INETESUINCOMIE © L ot vt et e et e e e e e e e e $2,234  $3,345 $4,143
Realized losses on sale of marketable securities ................... (856) (162) —
Rental income . . . ... 10 8 6
Total interest income and other,net . ... ..o ... $1,388  $3.191  $4.149
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12. Income Taxes:

The components of income tax expense are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Current:
Federal . .ot e e e e e $ (89 § 2,253 $ 3,827
Y7 (=2 PP 387 1,840 939
FOreign ....oormrn i s 1,536 1,920 3,395
1,834 6,013 8.161
Deferred:;
Federal ..o e e (349) 5,456 (2,507
SHAE .+« o e e e e e e e e (53) 173 (674)
FOreign ... e 357 88 (134)
(45) 5717 (3315
Total iNCOME taX EXPENSE . ..o vttt niaae e ar s $1,789  $11,730 § 4,846

Income before income tax of $1,988 and $4,778 was generated by domestic and foreign operations,
respectively, in 2005. Income before income tax of $13,532 and $10,904 was generated by domestic and foreign
operations, respectively, in 2006. Income before income tax of $2,856 and $13,849 was generated by domestic
and foreign operations, respectively, in 2007,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

December 31,

2006 2007

Research and development credit carryforward ... ........ ... .. $ 3387 % 3709
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible . ................ 1,489 1,199
Deferred revenie ..., ..ttt i e 1,004 2,190
Domestic net operating loss carryforwards . .............. . ... 49 280
Foreign net operating loss and credit carryforwards ............. —_ 2,288
Amortization of intangibles ........... ... ... ... oo oL 2,956 2,293
Tax deductible transaction costs .. ....... ..ot 780 704
Share-based cOmMPensation . ...........eevuurirrrerannnnne 573 196
Inventory obsolescence reserve . ....... .o 2,455 1,370
1177 A PO 667 823

Gross deferred tax assets .........coiiiiininnnrirenann 13,360 15,052
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets . ............. ... ... (964) (1,295)

Deferred lax assets after valuation allowance .............. 12,396 13,757
Amortization of intangibles ......... .. ... ... .. oo (14,592)  (12,436)
01 7= o e (501) (212)
Total deferred tax liabilities ............ ... i, (15,093)  (12,648)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ........... ... ... ... ..... $(2697) § 1,109
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the
applicable U.S. federal income tax rate of 34% for the year ended December 31, 2005 and 35% for the years
' ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 to income before provision for income taxes as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Federal income tax provision at statutory rate ........... $2310 $ 8.553 § 5,847
State taxes, net of federaleffect ...................... 351 1,290 306
In-process research and development write-oft ... .. ... — 3,465 350
Researchtax credit . .......... ... ... ... .. ... ... (566) (763)  (1,262)
Extraterritonal income exclusion ..................... (174) (296) —
Domestic manufacturing benefit .. ........... ... ... .. — (185) 279
Change in valuation allowance for deferred 1ax assets . . . .. (106) (524) 331
Other .. (26) 192 (447)
Provision for income taxes ............ ... ... ..., $1.789  $11,730  $ 4846
Effectivetaxrate ... ... ... ... .. i 26% 4895 29%

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets. management considers whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax
asscis is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected
future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical
taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes unless otherwise noted by a valuation allowance that it is more likely than not
that the Company will realize the benefits of its deferred tax assets at December 31, 2007. At December 31,
2007, the Company had state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $431 and $133,
respectively. The net operating loss carryforwards expire on various dates through December 31, 2014. At
December 31, 2007, the Company had federal and state research & development credits and foreign tax credit
carryforwards of $1,711, $3,102 and $2,154. respectively. The federal research & development credits are set to
expire at various dates through December 31, 2027, The state research & development credits are set to expire at
various dates through December 21, 2022. The foreign tax credit is set to expire at various dates through
December 31, 2017.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48, as amended by FSP 48-1, efiective January [, 2007. As a
result of the implementation of FIN 48, as amended, the Company recognized increases in the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits of $2,173, non-current deferred tax assets of $1,948 and goodwill of $245. The
adoption of FIN 48, as amended, resulted in a cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings of $20 as of
January 1, 2007,

The following table is a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of unrecognized tax benefits;

Unrecognized tax benefits, opening balance . ......... ... ... ........... $4,552
Gross increases—tax positions inpriorperiod . ........ ... ... ... 0. 635
Gross increases—current-period tax positions . ... ... ... . .. i .. 1,301
Lapse of statute of Mmitations .. ... oo e {613)
Unrecognized tax benefits, ending balance . .................. o vl $5.875

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the date of adoption was $4.552. Included in the balance
of unrecognized tax benefits at January 1. 2007, are $2,359 of tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the
effective tax rate. Also included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007, are $245 of tax
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benefits that, if recognized, would result in a decrease to goodwill recorded in business combinations, and $1.948
of tax benefits that, if recognized, would result in adjustments to other tax accounts, primarily deferred taxes and
non-current receivables. As of December 31, 2007, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits is $5,875, of
which $3,610 would impact the effective tax rate if recognized. Additional adjustments to goodwill arising from
the August merger and the PCTA acquisition may be recorded as accounting for pre-acquisition tax positions is
finalized. There are no known 1ax positions which are reasonably possible to change over the next twelve months
necessitating a significant change in the Company’s unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax
expense. Upon adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, the Company increased its accrual for interest and
penalties to $96. During the year ended December 31, 2007, the Company recognized approximately $33 in
interest and penalties expense associated with uncertain tax positions. As of December 31, 2007, the Company
had accrued interest and penalties expense related to unrecognized tax benefits of $129.

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax in multiple state and foreign
jurisdictions. Presently, the Company has not been contacted by the Internal Revenue Service for examination of
income tax returns for open periods, December 31, 2003 through December 31, 2006. The Company has also not
been contacted by any U.S. state, local or foreign tax authority for all open tax periods beginning after
December 31, 2002.

13. Segment Reporting and Geographic Information:

Operating segments are business units that have separate financial information and are separately reviewed
by the Company’s chief decision maker. The Company's chief decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer.
The Company and its subsidiaries currently operate in a single reportable segment: the design, development,
manufacture, sale and service of process control metrology systems used in semiconductor device manufacturing.
The chief operating decision maker allocates resources and assesses performance of the business and other
activities at the operating segment level.

The following table lists the different sources of revenue:
Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007

Systems:

Metrology . ...oovvvvii ... $52,396 63% $ 68,035 34% % 34,738 22%

Inspection ................ ... ... 11,644 14 100,666 50 85,012 53
Parts ... . e 9,188 11 14,217 7 13,678 9
Services ...... .. 8,205 10 11,457 6 14,121 8
Software licensing ................... 1,285 __2 6,793 _E 12,580 _8

Total revenue ................... $82.918 100% $201.168  100% $160,129  100%

For geographical reporting. revenues are attributed to the geographic location in which the customer is
located. Revenue by geographic region is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Revenues from third parties:
United STa1eS .. ... e e 318,675 § 59,097 § 36,710
ASIa . e e 46.666 120,472 93,631
Europe ... .ooii 17,577 21,599 29,788
Total e $82,918  $201,168  $160,129
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Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
Customers comprising 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue for
the period indicated:
A e e 203%  140% 11.5%
B o 10.1% 29% 7.0%
Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007
. Accounts receivable of customers comprising 10% or more of the
Company’s total revenue for the period indicated:
A e $2,151  $7.094 $1.680
B....... e e $5,600 $4454  $5,621

The majority of the Company’s assets are within the United States of America.

14. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings gives effect 1o all potential dilutive common shares
outstanding during the period. The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion,
exercise or contingent exercise of securities that would have an anti-dilutive effect.

The computations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007 are as follows:

Income Shares Per-Share
{Numerator} (Denominator) Amount

For the vear ended December 31, 2005

Basic earnings per share: :
IR B 11«1 1= $ 4,977 16,899 $0.29
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units . ......... — 43 —

Diluted earnings per share:
Netincome . .. ..o i e 5 4,977 16,942 $0.29

For the year ended December 31, 2006

Basic sarnings per share;
NELICOME . o oottt e e e e e $12,706 27,276 $047
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units . ......... — 298 {0.01)

Diluted earnings per share:
Nl iNCOME . ottt e e e e e $12,706 27,574 $ 046

For the year ended December 31, 2007

Basic earnings per share:
NetINCOME .« .ottt et e e e e e e e i $11,859 29,168 $ 041
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units . . ..... ... — 144 (0.0

Diluted earnings per share:
NELINCOMIE | . . e e e e e e e e $11,859 29312 $ 040
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For the year ended December 31, 2005, the weighted average number of stock options and restricled stock
units excluded from the computation of diluted eamings per share were 2,092 and 126, respectively. For the year
ended December 31, 2006, the weighted average number of stock options and restricted stock units excluded
from the computation of diluted earnings per share were 2,008 and 12, respectively. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, the weighted average number of stock options and restricted stock units excluded from the
computation of diluted earnings per share were 2,185 and 129, respectively.

15. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data (unaudited):

The following tables present certain unaudited consolidated quarterly financial information for each of the
eight quarters ended December 31, 2007. In the opinion of the Company’s management, this quarterly
information has been prepared on the same basis as the consolidated financial statements and includes’ all
adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring adjustments) necessary to present fairly the information for the
periods presented. The results of operations for any quarter are not necessarily indicative of results for the full
year or for any future pericd.

Year-over-year quarterly comparisons of the Company’s results of operations may not be as meaningful as
the sequential quarterly comparisons set forth below tend to reflect the cyclical activity of the semiconductor
industry as a whole. for the 2006 quarters reflect the August Technology merger effective February 15, 2006, and
for the 2007 fourth quarter reflects the PCTA acquisition effective December 18, 2007. Quarterly fluctuations in
expenses are related directly to sales activity and volume and may also reflect the timing of operating expenses
incurred throughout the year and the purchase accounting effects of business combinations.

Quarters Ended
March 3, June 30, September 30, December 31,

2006 2006 2006 2006 Total

REVEIUES & v v o ve e e e e e e e e e e $ 31,848 $56,692 $58,166 $54462  $201,168
Grossprofit .. ....vooo i 9,249 20,691 30,567 27,935 97,442
Income {loss) before income taxes ............. (12,907) 12,996 13,352 10,995 24,436
Netincome (loss) ............ i, (11,746) 7,991 8,071 8.390 12,706
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic ... oo e $ (052) § 028 $ 028 $ 029 § 047

Diluted ...... ..o $ (052) § 0.28 5 028 $ 029 § 046
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic . ... 22,545 28,638 28,849 28,954 27,276

Diluted ........ ... ... . i 22,545 28943 29,119 29,342 27,574

Quarters Ended
March 31, June 38, September 30, December 31,
2007 2007 2007 2007 Total

REVENUES .. ot o ettt e e $ 48,356 $47,730 $31.461 $32,582  5160,129
Gross profil . ... 26,250 24,850 15,540 14,600 81,240
Income (loss) before income taxes . ............ 8,703 7,749 1,203 (952) 16,705
Netincome (loss) .. ... i, 5,564 5451 1,388 (544) 11,859
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic ... e $ 019 % 019 $ 005 $ 002y $ 041

Diluted ....... ...t $ 019 % 019 $ 005 $ (0O2) $ 040
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

BasiC o . e 29,031 29,108 29,152 29,371 29,168

Diluted .......... 0o 29224 29312 29,250 29,371 29,312
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SCHEDULE OF VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Column A Column B Column C Column D Column E
Balance at
Beginning of Charged to (Recovery Charged to Other Balance at End

Descriptiﬂ Period of) Costs and Expenses  Accounts (net)  Deductions of Period
Year 2005:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... $ 323 $ (68) $ — $ 25 $ 230
Inventory valvation ............. 1,307 480 _ —_ 1,787
Warranty . ........ ..., 1,200 1,945 — 1,920 1,234
Deferred tax valuation allowance . . . 629 258 —_ 363 524
Year 2006:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... § 230 $ 69 $ — $ — $ 299
Inventory valuation ,............ 1,787 3,585 — 2,567 2,805
Warranty ...................... 1,234 2,298 1,244 2,605 2,171
Deferred tax valuation allowance . . . 524 964 —_ 524 964
Year 2007:

Allowance for doubtful accounts ... $ 299 $ (85 5 — § — $ 214
Inventory valuation ............. 2,805 661 — 72 3,394
Warranty . ..................... 2,171 2,669 532 3,007 2,365
Deferred tax valuation allowance . .. 964 331 —_ _ 1,205
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Paul F. McLaughlin, certify that:

1. [ have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rudelph Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; :

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e}) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15¢f)) for the registrant and
have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 1o materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not maternial, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal contro] over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2008

By: /si  PauL F. MCLAUGHLIN

Paul F. McLaughlin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Steven R. Roth, certify that: -

1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a malerial fact necessary to make the stalements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant
as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e} and 15d-15(e)) and internal
control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and
have;

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including
its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the
period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of
the peried covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of
an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record,
process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2008

By: /s STEVEN R. ROTH

Steven R. Roth
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




Exhibhit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Paul F, McLaughlin, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. on Form 10-K for the
vear ended December 31. 2007 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15{(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annuai Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in afl
material respects the financial condition and results of operations of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

Date: March 3, 2008

By: /s/  PauL F. MCLAUGHLIN
Paul F. MclLaughlin
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven R. Roth, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2007 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all
material respects the financial condition and results of operations of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

Date: March 3, 2008

By: fs{ STEVEN R. ROTH

Steven R. Roth
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 '
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Commission File No. 000-27965

RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 22-3531208

(State or other jurisdiction of (LR.S. Employer Sen

incorporntion or organization) . Identification Number) Man "~ 'JF‘Q'HH
One Rudolph Road, P.O. Box 1000, Flanders, NJ 07836 Ctclion
{Address of principa) executive offices) (Zip Code)
Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (973) 691-1300 abb o i
SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OF THE ACT:

_ None Washnington, DG

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(g) OF THE ACT: 169

Common Stock, $0.001 Par Value
(Title of Class)

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act. Yes O No ®

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d} of the
Act. Yes 1 No E

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to
file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes 1 No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein,
and will not be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by
reference in Part ITI of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K. O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer or a

_smaller reporting company. See definitions of “large accelerated filer”, “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company™ in

Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer 1  Accelerated filer 81  Non-accelerated filer 0 Smaller reporting company [

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the
Act). Yes O No X

The aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant based on the closing price of the
registrant’s stock price on June 30, 2007 of $16.61 was approximately $418,039,201.
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The registrant had 30,495,282 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of February 6, 2008.
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following document is incorporated by reference in Part 111 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K: Items 10, 11, 12, 13

and 14 of Part III incorporate by reference information from the definitive proxy statement for the registrant’s annual meeting
of stockholders to be held on May 20, 2008. -
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FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K are forward-looking statements, including those concerning our
expectations of future revenues, gross profits, research and development and engineering expenses, selling, general and
administrative expenses, product introductions, technology development, manufacturing practices and cash requirements, The
statements contained in this Annual Report on Form 10-K that are ndt purely historical are forward-looking statements within
- the meaning of Section 274 of the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and within

the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we may, from time 1o time make oral
Sorward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the words such as, but not limited to,
“anticipate”, “believe”, “expect”, “intend”, “plan”, “should”, “may”, “could”, "will” and words or phrases of simitlar
meaning, as they relate to our management or us.

The forward-looking statements contained herein reflect our current expectations with respect to fitture events and are
subject to certain risks, uncertainties and assumptions, The forward-looking statements reflect our position as of the date of
this report and we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information,
future events or otherwise. Actual results may differ materially from those projected in such forward-looking statements for a
number of reasons including, but not limited to, the following. variations in the level of orders which can be affected by
general economic conditions and growth rates in the semiconductor mamifacturing industry and in the markets served by our
customers, the international economic and political climates, difficuities or delays in product functionality or performance, the
delivery performance of sole source vendors, the timing of future product releases, failure to respond adequately to either
changes in technology or customer preferences, changes in pricing by us or our competitors, ability to manage growth, risk of
nonpayment of accounts receivable, changes in budgeted costs and the "Risk Factors” set forth in Item 1A. Our stockholders
should carefully review the cautionary statements contained in this Form 10-K below. You should also review any additional
disclosures and cautionary statements we make from time to time in our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on
Form 8-K and other filings.

PART 1

Item 1 Business.
General

Rudolph Technologies, Inc. is a worldwide leader in the design, development, manufacture and support of high-
performance process control metrology, defect inspection, and data analysis systems used by semiconductor device
manufacturers. We provide yield management solutions used in both wafer processing and final manufacturing through a
family of standalone systems and integrated modules for both transparent and opaque thin film measurements and macro-
defect inspection. All of these systems feature production-worthy automation and are backed by worldwide customer support.

QOur acquisition of the net assets of Applied Precision’s semiconductor division to be known as the Rudolph Technologies
Probe Card Test and Analysis division (“PCTA”} was completed on December 18, 2007. As a result, we expanded our
offerings of inspection systems to include probe card test and analysis products. For our customers in semiconductor
packaging and test, these products enable process validation, process verification and process improvement within probe and
wafer test segments.

Metrology Systems. The industry’s first production-oriented microprocessor-controlled ellipsometer for thin transparent
film measurements was introduced by Rudolph in 1977, Since that time, we have consistently provided innovative product
developments designed to meet manufacturers’ most advanced measurement requirements. Our patented transparent film
technology uses up to four lasers operating simultaneously at multiple angles and multiple wavelengths, providing powerful
analysis and measurement capabilities to handle
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the most challenging requirements of today’s advanced pracesses and tomorrow’s new materials. Unlike the white-light
sources used in spectroscopic ellipsometers, laser light sources make our metrology tools inherently stable, increase
measurement speed and accuracy, and reduce maintenance costs by minimizing the time required to re-qualify a light source
when it is replaced. Qur systems also employ a proprietary reflectometer technology that ailows the characterization of films
and film stacks that cannot be performed using conventional reflectometry or ellipsometry alone.

In November 2007 Rudolph announced it had granted Entrepix, Inc., an exclusive license to manufacture, sell, service
and support the Rudolph AutoEL® series of thin-film ellipsometers. Thousands of AutoEL tools have been placed in
universities, semiconductor research labs and semiconductor production facilities since it was commercialized in 1977, with
many of those Lools still in use today.

For opaque film characterization, we brought patented optical acoustic metal film metrology technology to the
semiconductor manufacturing floor that allows customers to simultaneously measure the thickness and other properties of up
to six metal or other opaque film layers in a non-contact manner on product wafers, PULSE Technology™ uses an ultra-fast
laser to generate sound waves that pass down through a stack of opaque films such as those used in copper or aluminum
interconnect processes, sending back to the surface an echo that indicates film thickness, density, and other process critical
parameters. We believe we are a leader in providing systems that can non-destructively measure opaque thin-film stacks with
the speed and accuracy semiconductor device manufacturers demand in order to achicve high yields with the latest fabrication
processes. The technology is ideal for characterizing copper interconnect structures and the majority of all systems sold have
been for copper applications.

Inspection Systems. Chip manufacturers deploy advanced macro-defect inspection (defects greater in size than 0.5
micron) throughout the fab to monitor key process steps, gather process-enhancing information and ultimately, lower
manufacturing costs. Field-established tools such as the NSX®, AXi™, and WaferView® are found in wafer processing (front-
end) and final manufacturing (back-end) facilities around the world. These high-speed tools incorporate features such as
waferless recipe creation, tool-to-tool correlation, multiple inspection resolutions and proprietary review and classification
software that are required in today’s high-volume integrated circuit (IC) manufacturing environments. In addition to wafer
frontside inspection, Rudolph’s innovative Explorer™ Cluster incorporates wafer edge and backside inspection in one
integrated platform to enhance productivity and continuously improve fab yield. -

Data Analysis & Review Systems. Rudolph has a comprehensive offering of software solutions for process management
and data review. Using wafer maps, charts and graphs, the vast amount of data gathered through automated inspection can be
analyzed to determine trends that ultimately affect yield. Our goal is to provide our customers with timely and accurate
information so that corrective actions can be taken. Software solutions available to our customers include products that
identify, classify and analyze defect data as well as fabwide systems that are designed to determine the root cause of yieid
excutsions as early as possible in the production flow.

Technology

’ We believe that our expertise in engineering and our continued investment in research and development enable us to
rapidly develop new technologies and products in response to emerging industry trends. The breadth of our technology enables
us to offer our customers a diverse combination of measurement technologies that provide process control for the majority of
thin films used in semiconductor manufacturing. Additionally, our defect detection and classification technologies allow us to
provide yield enhancement for critical front-end processes such as photolithography, diffusion, etch, CMP, and outgoing
quality control. Information learned through post-fab inspection is critical. Advanced macro-defect inspection within the final
manufacturing (back-end) process provides our customers with critical quality assurance and process information. Defects may
be created during probing, bumping, dicing or general handling, and can have a major impact on device and process quality.

2
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Optical Acoustics. Optical acoustic metrology involves the use of ultra-fast laser induced sonar for metal and opaque thin
film measurement. This technology sends ultrasonic waves into multi-layer opaque films and then analyzes the resulting
echoes to simultaneously determine the thickness of each individual layer in complex multi-layer metal film stacks. The echo’s
amplitude and phase can be used to detect film properties, missing layers, and interlayer problems. Since different phenomena
affect amplitude and phase uniquely, a variety of process critical interlayer problems can be detected in a single measurement.

The use of optical acoustics to measure multi-layer metal and opaque films was pioneered by scientists at Brown
University in collaboration with engineers at Rudolph. The proprietary optical acoustic technology in our PULSE Technology
systems measures the thickness of single or multi-layer opaque films ranging from less than 40 Angstroms to greater than five
microns. It provides these measurements at a rate of up to 70 wafers per hour within one to two percent accuracy and typically
less than 1% repeatability. This range of thicknesses covers the majority of thick and thin metal films projected by the
International Roadmap for Semiconductors to be used through the end of this decade. Qur non-contact, non-destructive optical
acoustic technology and small spot size enable our PULSE Technology systems to measure film properties directly on product
walers,

Ellipsometry. Ellipsometry is a non-contact, non-destructive optical technique for transparent thin film measurement. We
have been an industry leader in ellipsometry technology for the last three decades. We hold patents on several ellipsometry
technologies, including our proprietary technique that uses four lasers for multiple-angle of incidence, multiple wavelength
ellipsometry. Laser ellipsometry technology enables our transparent film systems 10 continue to provide the increasingly
higher level of accuracy needed as thinner films and newer materials are introduced for future generations of semiconductor
devices. We extended this same optical technology to characterize the scatterometry signal from patterned surfaces, allowing
measurement of critical dimensions. '

Reflectometry. For applications requiring broader spectial coverage, some of our ellipsometry tools are also equipped
with a reflectometer. Reflectometry uses a white or ultraviolet light source to determine the properties of transparent thin films
by analyzing the wavelength and intensity of light reflected from the surface of a wafer. This optical information is processed
with software algorithms to determine film thickness and other material properties. By combining data from both the laser
ellipsometer and broad spectrum reflectometer, it is possible to characterize films and film stacks that cannot be adequately
analyzed by either method individually.

Automated Defect Detection and Classification. Automating the defect detection and classification process is best done
by a system that can mimic, or even extend, the response of the human eye, but at a much higher speed, with high resolution
and more consistently. To do this, our systems capture full-color whole wafer images using simultaneous dark and bright field
illumination. The resulting bright and dark field images are compared to those from an “ideal” wafer having no defects. When
a difference is detected, its image is broken down into mathematical vectors that allow rapid and accurate comparison with a
library of known classified defects stored in the tool’s database. Patented and proprietary enhancements of this approach
enable very fast and highly repeatable image classification. The system is pre-programmed with an extensive library of default
local, global, and color defects and can also absorb a virtually unlimited amount of new defect classes. This allows customers
to define defects based on their existing defect classification system, provides more reliable automated rework decisions, and
enables more accurate statistical process control data.

All-surface Inspection. Rudolph has made all-surface, 100% advanced macro-defect inspection and metrology a reality.
There are four types of all-surface inspection: wafer frontside, edge, and backside; and post-fab die and wafer. The edge
inspection process focuses on the area near the wafer edge, an area that poses difficulty for traditional wafer frontside
inspection technology due to its varted topography and process variation. Edge bevel inspection looks for defects on the side
edge of a wafer. The edge bead removal and edge exclusion metrology involve a topside surface measurement required
exclusively in the photolithography process, primarily to determine if wafers have been properly aligned for the edge
exclusion region. The primary reason for wafer backside inspection is to determine if contamination has been created that may
spread throughout the fab. For instance, it is critical that the wafer backside be free of defects prior to the photolithography
process to prevent focus and exposure problems on the wafer front-side.

3
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Probe Card Test and Analysis. The combination of fast 3D-OCM (optical comparative metrology) Technotogy with
improved testing accuracy and repeatability is designed to reduce total test time for even the most advanced large area probe
cards. 3-D capabilities enable users to analyze probe marks and probe tips in a rapid and information-rich format.

Classification. Classifying defects off-line enables automated inspection systems to maintain their high throughput. Using
defect image files captured by automated inspection systems, operators are able to view high-resolution defect images to
determine killer defects. Classifying defects enables faster analysis by grouping defects found together as one larger defect, a
scratch for example, and defects of similar types across a wafer lot to be grouped based on size, repeating defects and other
user-defined specifications. Automatically classifving defects provides far greater vield learning than human classification.

Yield Analysis. Using wafer maps, charts and graphs, the vast amounts of data gathered through automated inspection can
be analyzed to determine trends across bumps, die, wafers and lots. This analysis may determine where in the process an
inconsistency is being introduced, allowing for enhancements to be made and yields improved. Defect data analysis is
performed to identify, analyze and locate the source of defects and other manufacturing process excursions. Using either a
single wafer map or a composite map created from multiple wafer maps, this analysis enables identification of defect patterns
and distribution. When combined with inspection data from strategically-placed inspection points, this analysis may pinpoint
the source of the defects so corrective action can be taken.

Products

We market and sell products to all major logic, memory, and application specific integrated circuit (ASIC) device
manufacturers. Our customers rely on Rudolph for versatile full-fab metrology and inspection systems as well as yield
management software solutions. These systems are designed for high-volume production facilities and offer automated wafer
handling for 200 and 300 mm configurations. Our systems operate at high throughput with ultraclean operation and high
reliability.

Type of Fab
Wafer Final
Product Introduced Functionality Processing Manufacturing
Metrology Systems :
MetaPULSE® 1997 - Non-contact system for thin
opaque films
MetaPULSE-II 2001 - Patented Picosecond Ultrasonic

. Laser Sonar Technology
MetaPULSE-III 2005 (PULSE®) X

MetaPULSE-111al 2007 - Designed for advanced copper
and non-copper applications

- Improved throughput and
repeatability

- Superior accuracy for

X

transparent film measurements

- Incorporates eilipsometry
technology for transparent film
application

- Optimized price/performance X
for fabwide applications

- Available with pattern
recognition software

- Enhanced data review mode

§30004™ 2007

S3000™/52000™ 2006

4
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Type of Fab

Product

AXi™ Series

Introduced

2003

Inspection & Probe Card Test Systems

Functionality

Advanced detection of defects
>0.5 micron

Inspection of patterned and
unpatterned wafers

In line, high-speed, 100%
inspection

Full color review

Wafer
Processing

Final
Manufacturing

E25™ System

2003

2D defect detection of the
wafer’'s edge

Metrology of edge feature
Incorporated into the Explorer
Cluster

B20™ System

2003

2D defect detection of the
wafer’s backside

Darkfield, brightfield and color
imagtng

Incorporated into the Explorer
Cluster

NSX® Series

1997

Fuily automated defect detection
>(.5 micron

2D wafer, die & bump
inspection

In line, high-speed, 100%
inspection

3Di™ Series

2001

2D & 3D wafer bump
inspection & metrology system
In line, high-speed, 100%
inspection

WaferView® 320

12004

Automated macro-defect
inspection for lithography
applications

Advanced color vision system
Patented knowledge-based
algorithms

Probe WoRx®

2003

Probe card production
metrology

3D Optical Comparative
Metrology

High-speed test times
Automated, one-touch
measurements

WaferWoRx®

2006

Probing process analysis
3D probe tip analysis
Proprietary, advanced software

PrecisionPoint

2002

Probe card analyzer
Tests devices simultaneously
Upgradable
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Type of Fab

Product

Discover™

Introduced

2007

Functionality

Software Solutions
Fabwide software for archival
and retrieval of process related
data )
Facilitates root cause analysis,
yield enhancement and yield
learning

Wafer
Processing

Final
Manufacturing

Discover
Enterprise™

2005

In hine, all surface defect
analysis and data management
Trend analysis and visualization
tools

Wafer maps visualize all-
surface defects

Identifies root cause of defects
and process excursions

Harmony ASR™

2005

Off line defect review and
classification

Defects displayed in real time
Rapid classification of unknown
defects; review of previously-
classified defects

TrueADC™

2005

Automatic defect classification
High accuracy, consistency and
scalability

Patented feature-based defect
matching technology

Utilizes dynamic defect library
method

Process
Sentinel™

2006

Fabwide spatial process control
system

"Traces patterns back to yield-

killing process issues
Combined defect and sort
solution

Quickly isclates systemic faults
Advanced segmentation and
wafer stacking capability

TrueADC™
Enterprise

2007

Serving the entire fab

Defect classification with a high
level of accuracy

Ensures database lockup,
classification and timely
response to the tool

Minimum impact to throughput

Yield Optimizer™

2006

Builds predictive models
Optimizes yield and reduces
excursions

Identifies the most critical
metrology measurements for
controlling yield

6
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Customers

Over 90 semiconductor device manufacturers have purchased Rudolph products for installation at multiple sites. We
support a diverse customer base in terms of both geographic location and type of semiconductor device manufactured. Our
customers are located in 20 countries.

We depend on a relatively small number of custormers and end users for a large percentage of our revenues. In the years
2005, 2006 and 2007, sales to end user customers that individually represented at least five percent of our revenues accounted
for 62.6%, 40.9% and 37.1% of our revenues, respectively. In 2005, 2006 and 2007, sales to Intel Corporation accounted for
20.3%, 14.0 % and 11.5% of our revenues, respectively. No other individual end user customer accounted for more than 10%
of our 2007 revenues. We do not have purchase contracts with any of our customers that obligate them to continue to purchase
our products.

Research and Development

The thin film transparent, opaque process contrel and macro-defect inspection metrology market is characterized by
continuous technological development and product innovations. We believe that the rapid and ongoing development of new
products and enhancements to existing products is critical to our success. Accordingly, we devote a significant portion of our
technical, management and financial resources to research and development programs.

The core competencies of our research and development team include metrology systems for high velume manufacturing,
ellipsometry, ultra-fast optics, picosecond acoustic and optical design, advanced metrology application development and
algorithm development. To leverage our internal research and development capabilities, we maintain close relationships with
leading research institutions in the metrology field, including Brown University. Our relationship with Brown University has
resulted in the development of the optical acoustic technology underlying our MetaPULSE product line, We have been granted
exclusive licenses from Brown University Research Foundation, subject to rights retained by Brown and the United States
government for their own non-commercial uses for several patents relating to this technology.

Qur research and development expenditures in 2005, 2006 and 2007 were $11.9 million, $29.9 million and $30.0 million,
respectively. We plan to continue our strong commitment to new product development in the future, and we expect that our
level of research and development expenses will increase in absolute dollar terms in future periods.

Sales, Customer Service and Application Support

We maintain an extensive network of direct sales, customer service and application support offices in several locations
throughout the world. We maintain sales, service or applications offices in locations including but not limited to, New Jersey,
Minnesota, Massachusetts, Texas, Washington, Germany, Scotland, Ireland, Israel, Korea, Singapore, Taiwan, China and
Japan.

We provide our customers with comprehensive support before, during and after the delivery of our products. For
example, in order to facilitate the smooth integration of our tools into our customers’ operations, we often assign dedicated,
site-specific field service and applications engineers to provide long-term support at selected customer sites. We also provide
comprehensive service and applications training for customers at our training facility in Mt. Olive, New Jersey and at customer
locations. In addition, we maintain a group of highly skilled applications scientists at strategically located facilities throughout
the world and at selected customer locations. :

.

—_—

Manufacturing

_ Our principal manufacturing activities include assembly, final test and calibration. These activities are conducted in our
manufacturing facilities in New Jersey, Minnesota and Washington. Our core manufacturing competencies include electrical,
optical and mechanical assembly and testing as well as the management of new ’

7
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product transitions. While we use standard components and subassemblies wherever possible, most mechanical parts, metal
fabrications and critical components used in our products are engineered and manufactured to our specifications. We expect to
rely increasingly on subcontractors and turnkey suppliers to fabricate components, build assemblies and perform other non-
core activities in a cost-effective manner,

We rely on a number of limited source suppliers for certain parts and subassemblies. This reliance creates a potential
inability 10 obtain an adequate supply of required components, and reduced control over pricing and time of delivery of
components. An inability to obtain adequate supplies would require us to seek alternative sources of supply or might require us
to redesien our systems to accommodate differerit components or subassemblies. However, if we were forced to seek
alternative sources of supply, manufacture such compenents or subassemblies internally, or redesign our products, this could
prevent us from shipping our products to our customers on a timely basis, which could have a material adverse effect on our

operations.

Intellectual Property

We have a policy of secking patents on inventions governing new products or technologies as part of our ongoing
research, development, and manufacturing activities. As of December 31, 2007, we have been granted, or hold exclusive
licensesto, 121 U.S. and foreign patents. The patents we own, jointly own or exclusively license have expiration dates ranging
from 2008 to 2025. We also have 107 pending regular and provisional applications in the U.S. and other countries. Our patents
and applications principally cover various aspects of transparent thin film measurement, altered material characterization and
macro-defect detection and classification.

We have been granted exclusive licenses from Brown University Research Foundation, subject to rights retained by
Brown and the United States government for their own non-commercial uses, for severat patents relating to the optical acoustic
technology underlying our MetaPULSE product family. The terms of these exclusive licenses are equal to the lives of the
patents, We pay royalties to Brown based upon a percentage of our revenues from the sale of systems that incorporate
technology covered by the Brown patents. We also have the right to support patent activity with respect to new ultra-fast
acoustic technology developed by Brown scientists, and to acquire exclusive licenses to this technology. Brown may terminate
the licenses if we fail to pay royalties to Brown or if we materially breach our license agreement with Brown.

Our pending patents may never be issued, and even if they are, these patents, our existing patents and the patents we
license may not provide sufficiently broad protection to protect our proprietary rights, or they may prove to be unenforceable.
To protect our proprietary rights, we also rely on a combination of copyrights, trademarks, trade secret laws, contractual
provisions and licenses. There can be no assurance that any patents issued or licensed by us will not be challenged, invalidated
or circumvented or that the rights granted thereunder will provide us with a competitive advantage.

The laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to as great an extent as do the laws of the United
States, and many U.S. companies have encountered substantial infringement problems in protecting their proprietary rights
against infringement in such countries, some of which are countries in which we have sold and centinue to sell products. There
is a risk that our means of protecting our proprietary rights may not be adequate. For example, our competitors may
independently develop similar technology or duplicate our products. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property, it
would be easier for our competitors to sell competing products.

Competition

The market for semiconductor capital equipment is highly competitive, We face substantial competition from established
companies in each of the markets that we serve. We principally compete with KLA-Tencor and Camtek. We compete to a
lesser extent with companies such as Nanometrics, Vistec, and Nikon. Each of our
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products also competes with products that use different metrology techniques. Some of our competitors have greater financial,
engineering, manufacturing and marketing resources, broader product offerings and service capabilities and larger installed
customer bases than we do.

Significant competitive factors in the market for metrelogy systems include system performance, ease of use, reliability,
cost of ownership, technical support and customer relationships. We believe that, while price and delivery are important
competitive factors, the customers’ overriding requirement is for a product that meets their technical capabilities. To remain
competitive, we believe we will need to maintain a high level of investment in research and development and process
applications. No assurances can be given that we will continue to be competitive in the future.

Backlog .

We schedule production of our systems based upon order backlog and informal customer forecasts. We include in
backlog only those orders to which the customer has assigned a purchase order number and for which delivery has been
specified within 12 months. Because shipment dates may be changed and customers may cancel or delay orders with little or
no penalty, our backlog as of any particular date may not be a reliable indicator of actual sales for any succeeding period. At
December 31, 2007, we had a backlog of approximately $26.7 million compared with a backlog of approximately $26.1
million at December 31, 2006.

Employees

As of December 31, 2007, we had 648 employees. OQur employees are not represented by any collective bargaining
agreements, and we have never experienced a work stoppage. We betieve our employee relations are good.

Available Information

We were incorporated in New Jersey in 1958 and reincorporated in Delaware in 1999, The Internet website address of
Rudolph Technologies, Inc. is http://www.rudolphtech.com. The information on our website is not incorporated into this
Annual Report. The Company’s Annual Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q and Current Reports on
Form 8-K (and any amendments to those reports) are made available free of charge, on or through our Internet website, as
scon as reasonably practicable after such material is electronically filed with or fumished to the Securities and Exchange
Commission, or SEC. All reports we file with the SEC are also available free of charge via EDGAR through the SEC's
website at http://www.sec.gov.

We also make available, free of charge, through the investors page on our corporate website Rudolph Technologies’
corporate summary, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and Financial Code of Ethics, charters of the committees of our
board of directors, as well as other information and materials, including information about how to contact our board of
directors, its committees and their members. To find this information and obtain copies, visit our website at
http://www.rudolphtech.com. :

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

Risks Related to Rudolph

Our operating results have varied and will likely continue to vary significantly from quarter to quarter in the future,
causing volatility in our stock price

Our quarterly operating results have varied in the past and will likely continue to vary significantly from quarter to
quarter in the future, causing volatility in our stock price. Some of the factors that may influence our operating results and
subject our stock to extreme price and volume fluctuations include:

+ changes in customer demand for our systems, which is influenced by economic conditions in the semiconductor
device industry, demand for products that use semiconductors, market acceptance of our systems and products of our
customers and changes in our product offerings;
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« seasonal variations in customer demand, including the tendency of European sales to slow significantly in the third
quarter of each year;

« the timing, cancellation or delay of customer orders, shipments and acceptance;

« product development costs, including increased research, development, engineering and marketing expenses
associated with our introduction of new products and product enhancements; and

+ the levels of our fixed expenses, including research and development costs associated with product development,
redative to our revenue levels.

In light of these factors and the cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry, we expect to continue to experience
significant fluctuations in quarterly and annual operating results. Moreover, many of our expenses are fixed in the short-term
which, together with the need for continued investment in research and development, marketing and customer support, limits
our ability to reduce expenses quickly. As a result, declines in net sales could harm our business and the price of our comman

stock could substantially decline.

Our largest customers account for a significant portion of our revenues, and our revenues and cash flows would
significantly decline if one or more of these customers were to purchase significantly fewer of our systems or they
delayed or cancelled a large order :

Sales to end user customers that individually represent at least five percent of our revenues typically account for, in the
aggregate, a considerable amount of our revenues. We operate in the highly concentrated, capital-intensive semiconductor
device manufacturing industry. Historically, a significant portion of our revenues in each quarter and year has been derived
from sales to relatively few customers, and this trend is expected to continue. If any of our key customers were to purchase
significantly fewer of our systems in the future, or if a large order were delayed or cancelled, our revenues and cash flows
would significantly decline. We expect that we will continue to depend on a small number of large customers for a significant
portion of our revenues for at least the next several years. In addition, as large semiconductor device manufacturers seek 1o
establish closer relationships with their suppliers, we expect that our customer base will become even more concentrated.

Our revenue'_may vary significantly each quarter due to relatively small fluctuations in our unit sales

During any quarter, a significant portion of our revenue may be derived from the sale of a relatively small number.of
systems. Our transparent film measurement systems range in selling price from approximately $250,000 to $1.0 million per
system, our opaque film measurement systems range in selling price from approximately $900,000 to $2.0 million per system
and our macro-defect inspection and probe card and test analysis systems range in selling price from approximately $250,000
to $1.4 million per system. Accordingly, a small change in the number of systems we sell may also cause significant changes
in our operating results. This, in turn, could cause fluctuations in the market price of our common stock.

Variations in the amount of time it takes for us to sell our systems may cause fluctuations in our operating results,
which could cause our stock price to decline

Variations in the length of our sales cycles could cause our revenues and cash flows, and consequently, our business,
financial condition, operating results and cash flows, to fluctuate widely from period to period. This variation could cause our
stock price to decline. Our customers generally take a long time to evaluate our inspection and/or film metrology systems and
many people are involved in the evaluation process. We expend significant resources educating and providing information to o

our prospective customers regarding the uses and benefits of our systems in the semiconductor fabrication procEss. The length
of time it takes for us to make a sale depends upon many factors including, but not limited to:

» the efforts of our sales force;
= the complexity of the customer’s fabrication processes;

» the internal technical capabilities and sophistication of the customer;
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+ the customer’s budgetary constraints; and

» the quality and sophistication of the customer’s current metrology and/or inspection equipment.

Because of the number of factors influencing the sales process, the period between our initial contact with a customer and
the time when we recognize revenue from that customer, if ever, and receive payment varies widely in length. Our sales
cycles, including the time it takes for us to build a product to customer specifications after receiving an order to the time we
recognize revenue, typically range from six to 15 months. Sometimes our sales cycles can be much longer, particularly with
customers in Japan. During these cycles, we commit substantial resources to our sales efforts in advance of receiving any
revenue, and we may never receive any revenue from a customer despite our sales efforts. 1f we do muke a sale, our customers
often purchase only one of our systems, and then evaluate its performance for a lengthy period before purchasing any more of
our systems, The number of additional products a customer purchases, if any, depends on many factors, including a customer’s
capacity requirements. The period between a customer’s initial purchase and any subsequent purchases can vary from six
months to a vear or longer, and variations in the length of this period could cause further fluctuations in our operating resuits
and possibly in our stock price.

Most of our revenues have been derived from customers outside of the United States subjecting us to operational,
financial and political risks, such as unexpected changes in regulatory requirements, tariffs, political and economic
instability, outbreaks of hostilities, and difficulties in managing foreign sales representatives and foreign branch
operations

Due 1o the significant level of our international sales, we are subject to a number of material risks, including:

Unexpected changes in regulatory reguirements including tariffs and other market barriers. The semiconductor device
industry is a high-visibility industry in many of the European and Asian countries in which we sell our products. Because the
governments of these countries have provided extensive financial support to our semiconductor device manufacturing
customers in these countries, we believe that our customers could be disproportionately affected by any trade embargoes,
excise taxes or other restrictions impaosed by their governments on trade with United States companies such as ourselves. Any
restrictions of these types could result in a reduction in our sales to customers in these countries.

Political and economic instability. We are subject to various global risks related to political and economic instabilities in
countries in which we derive sales. If terrorist activities, armed conflict, civil or military unrest or political instability occurs
outside of the U.S., these events may result in reduced demand for our products. There is considerable political instability in
Taiwan related to its disputes with China and in South Korea retated to its disputes with North Korea. In addition, several
Asian countries, particularly Japan, have experienced significant economic instability. An outbreak of hostilities or other
political upheaval in China, Taiwan or South Korea, or an economic downturn in Japan or other countries, would likely harm
the operations of cur customers in these countries. The effect of these types of events on our revenues and cash flows could be
material because we derive substantial revenues from sales to semiconductor device foundries in Taiwan such as Taiwan
Semiconductor Manufacturing Company Ltd. and United Microelectronics Corporation, from memory chip manufacturers in
South Korea such as Hynix and Samsung, and from semiconductor device manufacturers in Japan such as NEC and Toshiba.

Difficulties in staffing and managing foreign branch operations. During periods of tension between the governments of
the United States and certain other countries, it is often difficuit for United States companies such as curselves to staff and
manage operations in such countries. -

Currency fluctuations as compared to the U.S. Dollar. A substantial portion of our international sales are denominated in
U.S. dollars. As a result, if the dollar rises in value in relation to foreign currencies, our systems will become more expensive
to customers outside the United States and less competitive with systems produced by competitors outside the United States.
These conditions could negatively impact our international sales. Foreign sales also expose us to collection risk in the event it
becomes more expensive for our foreign customers to convert their local currencies into U.S. dollars.
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If we deliver systems with defects, our credibility will be harmed and the sales and market acceptance of our systems
will decrease

Our systems are complex and have occasionally contained errors, defects and bugs when introduced. When this occurs,
our credibility and the market acceptance and sales of our systems could be harmed. Further, if our systems contain errors,
defects or bugs, we may be required to expend significant capital and resources to alleviate these problems. Defects could also
lead to product liability as a result of product liability lawsuits against us or against our customers. We have agreed to
indemnify our customers under certain circumstances against liability arising from defects in our systems. Qur product liability
policy currently provides $2.0 million of coverage per claim, with an overall umbrella limit of $5.0 million. In the event of a
successful product liability claim, we could be obligated to pay damages significantly in excess of our product liability
insurance limits.

If we are not successful in developing new and enhanced products for the semiconductor device manufacturing
industry we will lose market share to cur competifors

We operate in an industry that is highly competitive and subject to evolving industry standards, rapid technological
changes, rapid changes in consumer demands and the rapid introduction of new, higher performance systems with shorter
product life cycles. To be competitive in our demanding market, we must continually design, develop and introduce in a timely
manner new inspection and film metrology systems that meet the performance and price demands of semiconductor device
manufacturers, We must also continue to refine our current systems so that they remain competitive. We expect to continue to
make significant investments in our research and development activities. We may experience difficulties or delays in our
development efforis with respect to new systems, and we may not ultimately be successful in our product enhancement efforts
1o improve and advance products or in responding effectively to technological change, as not all research and development
activities result in viable commercial products, In addition, we cannot provide assurance that we will be able to develop new
products for the most opportunistic new markets and applications. Any significant delay in releasing new systems could cause
our products to become obsolete, adversely affect our reputation, give a competitor a first-to-market advantage or cause a
competitor to achieve greater market share. In addition, new product offerings that are highly complex in terms of software or
hardware may require application or service work such as bug fixing prior to acceptance, thereby delaying revenue
recognition. :

If new products developed by us do not gain general market acceptance, we will be unable to generate revenues and
recover our research and development costs

Metrology and inspection product development is inherently risky because it is difficult to foresee developments in
semiconductor device manufacturing technelogy, coordinate technical persennel, and identify and eliminate system design
flaws. Further, our products are complex and often the applications to our customers’ businesses are unique. Any new systems
we introduce may not achieve or sustain a significant degree of market acceptance and sales.

We expect to spend a significant amount of time and resources developing new systems and refining our existing
systems. In light of the long product development cycles inherent in our industry, these expenditures will be made well in
advance of the prospect of deriving revenue from the sale of those systems. Our ability to commercially introduce and
successfully market new systems are subject to a wide variety of challenges during the development cycle, including start-up
bugs, design defects, and other matters that could delay introduction of these systems. In addition, since our customers are not
obligated by long-term contracts to purchase our systems, our anticipated product orders may not materialize, or orders that are
placed may be cancelled. As a result, if we do not achieve market acceptance of new products, we may be unable to generate
sufficient revenues and cash flows to recover our research and development costs and our market share, revenue, operating
results or stock price would be negatively impacted. '
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Even if we are able to develop new products that gain market acceptance, sales of these new products could impair our
ability to sell existing products

Competition from our new systems could have a negative effect on sales of our existing systems and the prices that we
could charge for these systems. We may also divert sales and marketing resources from our current systems in order to
successfully launch and promote our new or next generation systems. This diversion of resources could have a further negative
effect on sales of our current systems and the value of inventory.

If our relationships with our large customers deteriorate, our product development activities could be adversely
alfected

The success of our product development efforts depends on our ability to anticipate market trends and the price,
performance and functionality requirements of semiconductor device manufacturers. In order to anticipate these trends and
ensure that critical development projects proceed in a coordinated manner, we must continue to collaborate closely with our
largest customers. Our relationships with these and other customers provide us with access to valuable information regarding
trends in the semiconductor device industry, which enables us to better plan our product development activities. 1f our current
relationships with our large customers are impaired, or if we are unable to develop similar collaborative relationships with
important customers in the future, our product development activilies could be adversely affected.

Our ability to reduce costs is limited by our ongoing need to invest in research and development and to provide
customer support activities

Qur industry is characterized by the need for continual investment in research and development as well as customer
service and support. As a result, our operating results could be malerially affected if operating costs associated with our
research and development as well as customer support activities increase in the future or we are unable to reduce those
activities.

We:may fail to adequately protect our intellectual property and, thercfore, lose our competitive advantage

Our future success and competitive position depend in part upon our ability to obtain and maintain proprietary technology
for our principal product families, and we rely, in part, on patent and trade secret law and confidentiality agreements to protect
that technology. If we fail to adequately protect our intellectual property, it will give our competitors a significant advantage.
We own or have licensed a number of patents relating to our transparent and opaque thin film metrology and macro-defect
inspection systems, and have filed applications for additional patents. Any of our pending patent applications may be rejected,
and we may be unable to develop additional proprietary technology that is patentable in the future.

In addition, the patents that we do own or that have been issued or licensed to us may not provide us with competitive
advantages and may be chatlenged by third parties. Further, third parties may also design around these patents. In addition to
patent protection, we rely upon trade secret protection for our confidential and proprietary information and technology. We
routinely enter into confi dentiality agreements with our employees and other third parties. However, in the event that a
confidentiality agreement is breached, we may not have adequate remedies. Our confidential and proprietary mformatmn and
technology might also be independently developed by, or become otherwise known to, third parties.

Protection of our intellectual property rights, or the efforts of third parties to enforce their own intellectual property
rights against us, may result in costly and time-consuming litigation, substantial damages, tost product sales and/or the
loss of important intellectual property rights

We may be required to.initiate litigation in order to enforce any patents issued to or licensed by us, or to determine the
scope or validity of a third party’s patent or other proprietary rights. Any litigation, regardless of outcome, could be expensive
and time consuming, and could subject us to significant liabilities or require us to re-engineer our products or obtain expensive
licenses from third parties.
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In addition, our commercial success depends in part on our ability to aveid infringing or misappropriating patents or other
proprietary rights owned by third parties. From time to time we may receive communications from third parties asserting that
our products or systems infringe, or may infringe, the proprietary rights of these third parties. These claims of infringement
may lead to protracted and costly litigation, which could require us to pay substantial damages or have the sale of our products
or systems stopped by an injunction. Infringement claims could also cause product or system delays or require us to redesign
our products or systems, and these delays could result in the loss of substantial revenues. We may also be required to obtain a
license from the third party or cease activities utilizing the third party’s proprietary rights. We may not be able to enter into
such a license or such a license may not be available on commercially reasonable terms. Accordingly, the loss of impertant
intellectual property rights could hinder our ability to setl our systems, or make the sale of these systems more expensive.

Our efforts to protect our intellectual property may be less effective in certain foreign countries, where intellectual
property rights are not as well protected as in the United States

~ The laws of some foreign countries do not protect our proprietary rights to as grent an extent as do the laws of the United
States, and many U.S. companies have encountered substantial problems in protecting their proprietary rights against
infringement abroad. For example, Taiwan is not a signatory of the Patent Cooperation Treaty, which is designed to specify
rules and methods for defending intellectual property internationally. The publication of a patent in Taiwan prior to the filing
of a patent in Taiwan would invalidate the ability of a company to obtain a patent in Taiwan. Similarly, in contrast to the
United States where the contents of patents remain confidential during the patent application process, in Taiwan the contents
of a patent are published upon filing which provides competitors an advance view of the contents of a patent application prior
to the establishment of patent rights. Consequently, there is a risk that we may be unable to adequately protect its proprietary
rights in certain foreign countries. If this occurs, it would be easier for our competitors to dcvelop and selt compelting products
in these countries.

Some of our curvent and potential competitors have significantly greater resources than we do, and increased
competition could impair sales of cur products or cause us to reduce our prices

The market for semiconductor capital equipment is highly competitive. We face substantial competition from established
companies in each of the markets we serve. We principally compete with KLA-Tencor and Camtek. We compete to a lesser
extent with companies such as Nanometrics, Vistec and Nikon. Each of our products also competes with products that use
different metrology or inspection techniques. Some of our competitors have greater financial, engineering, manufacturing and
marketing resources, broader product offerings and service capabilities and larger instatled customer bases than we do. As a
result, these competitors may be able to respond more quickly to new or emerging technologies or market developments:by
devoting greater resources to the development, promotion and sale of products, which, in turn, could impair sales of our
products. Further, there may be significant merger and acquisition activity among our competitors and potential competitors,
which, in turn, may provide them with a competitive advantage over us by enabling them to rapidly expand their product
offerings and service capabilities to meet a broader range of customer needs.

Many of our customers and potential customers in the semiconductor device manufacturing industry are large companies
that require global support and service for their semiconductor capital equipment. We believe that our global support and
service infrastructure is sufficient to meet the needs of our customers and potential customers. However, some of our
competitors have more extensive infrastructures than we do, which could place us at a disadvantage when competing for the
business of global semiconductor device manufacturers. Many of our competitors are investing heavily in the development of
new systems that will compete directly with our systems. We have from time to time selectively reduced prices on our systems
in order to protect our market share, and competitive pressures may necessitate further price reductions. We expect our
competitors in each product area to continue to improve the design and performance of their products and to introduce new
products with competitive prices and performance characteristics, These product introductions would likely require us to
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decrease the prices of our systems and increase the level of discounts that we grant our customers. Price reductions or lost
sales as a result of these competitive pressures would reduce our total revenues and could adversely impact our financial
results.

Because of the high cost of switching equipment vendors in our markets, it is sometimes difficult for us to win
customers from our competitors even if our systems are superior to theirs

We believe that ance a semiconductor device manufacturer has selected one vendor’s capital equipment for a production-
line application, the manufacturer generally relies upon that capital equipment and, to the extent possible, subsequent
generations of the same vendor’s equipment, for the life of the application. Once a vendor’s equipment has been installed in a
production line application, a semiconductor device manufacturer must often make substantial technical modifications and
may experience production-line downtime in order to switch to another vendor's equipment. Accordingly, unless our systems
offer performance or cost advantages that outweigh a customer’s expense of switching to our systems, it will be difficult for us
to achieve significant sales to that customer once it has selected another vendor’s capital equipment for an application.

We must attract and retain Key personnel with knowledge of semiconductor device manufacturing and inspection
and/or metrology equipment to help support our future growth, and competition for such personnel in onr industry is
high

Our success depends to a significant degree upon the continued contributions of our key management, engineering, sales
and marketing, customer support, finance and manufacturing personnel. The loss of any of these key personnel, each of whom
would be extremely difficult to replace, could harm our business and aperating results. Although we have employment and
noncompetition agreements with key members of our senior management teant, including Messrs. McLaughtin and Roth, these
individuals or other key employees may still leave us. We do not have key person life insurance on any of our executives. In
addition, to support our future growth, we will need to attract and retain additional qualified employees. Competition for such
personnel in our industry is intense, and we may not be successful in attracting and retaining qualified employees.

We.obtain some of the components and subassemblies included in our systems from a limited group of supplicrs, and
the partial or complete loss of one of these suppliers could cause production delays and a substantial loss of revenues

We obtain some of the components and subassemblies included in our systems from a limited group of suppliers and do
not have long-term contracts with many of our suppliers. Our dependence on limited source suppliers of components and our
lack of long-term contracts with many of our suppliers exposes us to several risks, including a potential inability to obtain an
adequate supply of components, price increases, late deliveries and poor component quality. Disruption or termination of the
supply of these components could delay shipments of our systems, damage our customer relationships and reduce our sales.
From time to time in the past, we have experienced temporary difficulties in receiving shipments from our suppliers. The jead-
time required for shipments of some of our components can be as long as four months. In addition, the lead time required to
qualify new suppliers for lasers could be as long as a year, and the lead time required to qualify new suppliers of other
components could be as long as nine months. If we are unable to accurately predict our compoenent needs, or if our component
supply is disrupted, we may miss market opportunities by not being able to meet the demand for our systems. Further, a
significant increase in the price of one or more of these components or subassemblies couid seriously harm our results of
operations and cash flows.

Any prelonged disruption in the operations of cur manufacturing facilities could have a material adverse effect on our
revenues —

Our manufacturing processes are highly complex and require sophisticated and costly equipment and a specially designed”
facility. As a result, any prolonged disruption in the operations of our manufacturing facilities, whether due to technical or
labor difficulties, or destruction of or damage as a result of a fire or any other reason,
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could seriously harm our ability to satisfy our customer order deadlines. If we cannot timely deliver our systems, our results
from operations and cash flows could be materially and adversely affected.

Failure to adjust our orders for parts and subcomponents in an accurate and timely manner in response to changing
market conditions or customer acceptance of cur products could adversely affect our financial position and results of
operations '

Our earnings could be negatively affected and our inventory levels could materially increase if we are unable to predict
our inventory needs in an accurate and timely manner and adjust our orders for parts and subcomponents should our needs
increase or decrease materially due to unexpected incrcases or decreases in demand for our products. Any material increase in
our inventories could result in an adverse effect on our financial position, while any material decrease in our ability to procure
needed inventories could result in an inability to supply customer demand for our products thus adversely affecting our
revenues.

We may choose to acquire new and complementary businesses, products or {echuologies instead of developing them
ourselves, and may be unable to complete these acquisitions or may not be able to successfully integrate an acquired
business in a cost-effective and non-disruptive manner

Our success depends on our ability to continually enhance and broaden our product offerings in response to changing
technologies, customer demands and competitive pressures. To this end, we have, from time to time, engaged in the process of
identifying, analyzing and negotiating possible acquisition transactions and we expect to continue to do so in the future. We
may choose to acquire new and complementary businesses, products, technologies and/or services instead of developing them
ourselves. We may, however, face competition for acquisition targets from larger and more established companies with greater
financial resources, making it more difficult for us to complete acquisitions. We cannot provide any assurance that we will be
successful in consummating future acquisitions on favorable terms or that we will realize the benefits that we anticipate from
one or more acquisitions that we consummate. Integrating any business, product technology or service we acquire could be
expensive and time-consuming and/or disrupt our ongoing business. Further, there are numerous risks associated therewith,
including but not limited to: '

« diversion of management’s attention from day-to-day operational matters and current products and customers;

= lack of synergy, or the inability to realize expected synergies;,

+ failure to commercialize the new technology or business;

« failure to meet the expected performance of the new technology or business,

+ failure to retain key empioyees and customer or supplier relationships;

* lower-than-expected market opportunities or market acceptance of any new products; and

» unexpected reduction of sales of existing products by new products.

Our inability to consummate one or more acquisitions on such favorable terms or our failure to realize the intended
benefits from one or more acquisitions, could have a material adverse effect on our business, liquidity, financial position
and/or results of operations, including as a result of our incurrence of indebtedness and related interest expense and our
assumption of unforeseen-contingent liabilities. In order to finance any acquisitions, we might need to raise additional funds  ___
through public or private equity or debt financings. In that event, we could be forced to obtain financing on terms that are not
favorable to us and, in the case of equity financing, that result in dilution to our stockholders. In addition, any impairment of

goodwill or other intangible assets, amortization of intangible assets, write-down of other assets or charges resulting from the
costs of acquisitions and purchase accounting could harm our business and operating results.
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We may not realize the benefits of the Probe Card Test and Analysis division acquisition and the RVSI Inspection
intellectual property and selected assets acquisition.

On December 18, 2007, we completed the acquisition of the semiconductor division of Applied Precision LLC to be
known as our Probe Card Test and Analysis division. On January 22, 2008, we announced that we had acquired all intetlectual
property and selected assets from privately-held RVSI Inspection, headquartered in Hauppauge, New York. Our failure to
meet the challenges involved in realizing any of the anticipated benefits of the acquisitions, could seriously harm our financial
position, resulfs of operations and cash flows. Realizing the benefits of the acquisitions will depend in part on the continued
successful integration of technology, operations and personnel. The anticipated benefits of the acquisitions are based on
projections and assumptions, not actual experience. The failure to realize any of the anticipated benefits of the acquisitions
could seriously hinder our plans for product development as well as business and market expansion following the acquisitions,

IT we cannot effectively manage our growth, our business may suffer.

We intend to continue to grow by increasing our sales efforts and completing strategic acquisitions. To effectively
manage our growth, we must, among other things:

*  engage, train and manage a larger sales force and additional service personnel;

+ expand the geographic coverage of our sales force;
« " expand our information systems;
+ identify and successfully integrate acquired businesses into our operations; and

+ administer appropriate financial and administrative control procedures.

Our anticipated growth will likely place a significant strain on our management, financial, operational, technical, sales
and administrative resources. Any failure to effectively manage our growth may cause our business to.suffer and our stock

price to decline.

Changes in tax rates or tax liabilities could affect results.

As a global company, we are subject to taxation in the United States and various other countries. Significant judgment is
required to determine and estimate worldwide tax liabilities. Qur future annual and quarterty tax rates could be affected by
numerous factors, including changes in the (1) applicable tax laws; (2) compaosition of earnings in countries with differing tax
rates; or (3) valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities. In addition, we are subject to regular examination of our income
tax returns by the Internal Revenue Service and other tax authorities. We regularly assess the likelihood of favorabie or
unfavorable outcomes resulting from these examinations to determine the adequacy of our provision for income taxes.
Although we believe our tax estimates are reasonable, there can be no assurance that any final determination will not be
materially different from the treatment reflected in our historical income tax provisions and accruals, which could materially
and adversely affect our results of operations. :

We are subject to internal control evaluations and attestation requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Pursuant to Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, we must include in our Annual Report on Form 10-K a report
of management on the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting and report by our independent registered
-~-.  public accounting firm regarding the effectiveness of our internal control. Ongoing compliance with these requirements is
complex, costly and time-consuming. If (1) we fail to maintain efféctive internal control over financial reporting; (2) our
management does not timely assess the adequacy of such internal control; or (3) our independent registered public accounting
firm does not timely attest to the effectiveness of our internal control, we could be subject to regulatory sanctions and the
public's perception of us may decline.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our intemal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 and
concluded that we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as a result of the identification of a
material weakness. The material weakness that we identified relates to the process '
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and procedures surrounding the preparation and review of the income tax provision as of December 31, 2007. Specifically, we
did not ensure that effective oversight of the work performed by our outside tax advisers was exercised. The errors resulting
from the material weakness, which were primarily attributable to acquisition related tax matters, did not have a material effect
on our financial results for the year ended December 31, 2007. However, combinations of such errors could have resulted in
our annual or interim financial statements being materially misstated. For more information related to this material weakness
and our remediation plans, see Part II, Item 9A. “"Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”.

Risks Related to the Semiconductor Device Industry

Cyclicality in the semiconductor device industry has led to substantinl decreases in demand for our systems and may
from time to time continue to do so

Qur cperating results are subject to significant vartation due to the cyclical nature of the semiconductor device industry.
Our business depends upon the capital expenditures of semiconductor device manufacturers, which, in turn, depend upon the
current and anticipated market demand for semiconductors and products using semiconductors. The timing, length and severity
of the up-and-down cycles in the semiconductor equipment industry are difficult to predict. This cyclical nature of the industry
in which we operate affects our ability to accurately predict future revenue and, thus, future expense levels. When cyclical
fluctuations result in lower than expected revenue levels, operating results may be adversely affected and cost reduction
measures may be necessary in order for us to remain competitive and financially sound. During a down cycle, we must be in a
position to adjust our cost and expense structure to prevailing market conditions and to continue to motivate and retain our key
employees. In addition, during periods of rapid growth, we must be able to increase manufacturing capacity and personnel to
meet customer demand. We can provide na assurance that these objectives can be met in a timely manner in response (o
industry cycles. If we fail to respond to industry cycles, our business could be seriously harmed.

Our future rate of growth is highly dependent on the development and growth of the market for microelectronic device
inspection and metrology equipment. ' :

We target our products to address the needs of microelectronic device manufacturers for defect inspection and metrology.
If for any reason the market for microelectronic device inspection or metrology equipment faiis to grow in the long term, we
may be unable to maintain current revenue levels in the short term and maintain our historical growth in the long term. Growth
in the inspection market is dependent to a large extent upon microelectronic manufacturers replacing manual inspection with
automated inspection technology. Growth in the metrology market is dependent to a Jarge extent upon new chip designs and
capacity expansion of microelectronic manufactirers, There is no assurance that manufacturers will undertake these actions at

the rate we expect.

Risks Related to our Stock

Provisions of our charter documents and Delaware law, as well as our stockholder rights plan, could discourage
potential acquisition proposals and/or delay, deter or prevent a change in control of our company

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws, as well as our recently adopted stockholders rights ptan, may
inhibit changes in control of our company not approved by our board of directors. These provisions also limit the
* circumstances in which a premium can be paid for the common stock, and in which a proxy contest for control of our board
may be initiated. These provisions provide for:

= a prohibition on stockholder actions through written consent; —

= arequirement that special meetings of stockholders be_(;;lled only by our chief executive officer or board of directors;
« advance notice requirements for stockholder proposals and director nominations by stockholders;

« limitations on the ability of stockholders to amend, alter or repeal our by-laws;

+  the authority of our board to issue, without stockholder approval, preferred stock with such terms as the board may
d=termine; and . .

+ the authority of our board, without stockholder approval, to adopt a Stockholders Rights Plan. Such a Shareholders
Rights Plan was adopted by the board of directors on June 27, 2005. .
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We are also entitled to avail ourselves of the protections of Section 203 of the Delaware General Corporation Law, which
could inhibit changes in contro! of us.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments.
None.

Item 2.  Properties.

Our executive office building is located at One Rudalph Road in Flanders, New Jersey. We own and lease facilities for
engincering, sales and service related purposes in the United States and six other countries—China, Japan, Korca, Singapore,
Taiwan and Scotland. The following table indicates the general location, the general purpose and the square footage of our
principal facilities. The expiration years of the leases covering the leased facilities are also indicated.

Lease
Approximate Expiration
Square Year, Unless

Location Facitity Purpose Footage Owned
_ Flanders, New Jersey ' Executive Office 20,000 Owned
Mt. Olive, New Jersey Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 83,500 2016
Bloomington, Minnesota Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 78,500 2012
Lowell, Massachusetts Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 10,000 2008
Richardson, Texas Yield Metrologv Group 21,000 Owned
Issaquah, Washington Engineering, Manufacturing and Service 28,000 2008
Hsin-Chu, Taiwan Sales and Service 10,500 2008
Takatsu, Japan Sales and Service : 5,000 2008
Sungnam-si, Korea Sales and Service 9,500 2009
Shanghai, China Sales and Service 3,500 2009
Singapore Sales and Service 2,000 2009
Scotland, United Kingdom Sales and Service 1,000 2009

We also lease office space for other smailer sales and service offices in several locations throughout the world.

We believe that our existing facilities and capital equipment are adequate to meet our current requirements, and that
suitable additional or substitute space is available on commercially reasonable terms if needed.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

From time to time we are subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. We are not aware of
any legal proceedings or claims that management believes would have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial
statements taken as a whole.

Item 4.  Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.
No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal year covered by this report.
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PART 1l

Item 5.  Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, Refated Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity
Securities.

Our common stock is traded on the Nasdaq National Market under the symbol “RTEC.” Set forth below is a line graph
comparing the annual percentage change in the cumulative return to the stockholders of the Company’s Common Stock with
the cumulative return of the Nasdaq Composite Index and the Research Data Group (RDG) Semiconductor Composite Index
for the period commencing on December 31, 2002, and ending on December 31, 2007. The information contained in the
performance graph shall not be decimied to be “soliciting material” or to be “filed”™ with the SEC, nor shall such information be
incorporated by reference into any future filing under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
except to the extent that the Company specifically incorporates it by reference into such filing,

The graph assumes that $100 was invested on December 31, 2002 in the Company’s Common Stock and in each index,
and that all dividends were reinvested. No cash dividends have been declared or paid on the Company’s Common Stock.
Stockholder returns over the indicated period should not be considered indicative of future stockholder returns. The Company
operates on a 52-week calendar year. Under the assumptions stated above, over the period from December 31, 2002 to
December 31, 2007 the total annual compound return on an investment in the Company would have been (9.99)%, as
compared to 15.46% for the Nasdaq Composite Index and 12.60% for the RDG Semiconductor Composite Index.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Ameng Fuedalph Techaglogies, g, The NASHAQ Coinposite Indax
And The RDG Semiconductor Composite Index

5250 1 —i3—— Rudolph Technologies, Inc.
- A~ NASDAG Composite

1 -+ ©--ROG Semiconductor Composits b
‘_ “».‘\’ .-__—-"‘&- _,.-'0
2 e B ....._.._:.._,_..u.@-rn """"" g--*"" )
$150 - . o

5100

§50 -

50 : . . : g
1202 1203 ... 1204 1205 12108 1207
"+ $100 investod op 12731102 in s10ck of inder-netizding ietavastment of dividends,
Fisca! yawr anding Oacember 31.
. 12/02 12/03 12/04 12/0% 12706 12007
Rudolph Technologies, Inc. 100.00 128.08 89.61 67.22 83.09 59.08
NASDAQ Composite - 100.00 14975 16464 16860 137.83 205.22
RDG Semiconductor Composite 100.00 193.54 15451 171.58 161.34 181.00
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, the high and low sale prices per share of our common stock as
reported on the NASDAQ National Market. .

Price Range of

Common Stock
. Higzh Low

Year Ended December 31, 2006

First Quarter $18.09 $£12.75

Second Quarter $20.00 $13.70

Thivd Quarter $19.25 $12.80

Fourth Quarter $20.15 $i3.10
Year Ended December 31, 2007

First Quarter §18.10 $14.83

Second Quarter $18.21 51495

Third Quarter $18.29 $11.50

Fourth Quarter £15.09 $10.03

As of February 11, 2008, there were 96 stockholders of record of our commeon stock and approximately 5,753 beneficial
stockholders. The closing market value of our common stock on February 11, 2008 was $9.02.

We have never declared or paid a cash dividend on cur common steck and do not anticipate paying any cash dividends in
the foreseeable future. We currently intend to retain our earnings, if any, for the development of our business. The declaration
of any future dividends by us is within the discretion of our Board of Directors and will be dependent on our earnings,
financia} condition and capital requirements as well as any other factors deemed relevant by our Board of Directors,

Certain Equity Compensation Plan Information included in Item 12 of Part II1, hereof, is hereby incorporated into this
ltem § of Part [l and will be included in our Proxy Statement for the 2008 Annual Mecting of Stockholders. .
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The following selected financial data should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the
related Notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 and the statement of
operaticns data for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 set forth below were derived from our audited
consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. The balance sheet data as of December 31, 2003,
2004 and 2005, and the statement of operations data for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2004 were derived from our
audited consolidated financial statements not included herein,

Year Ended December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 (1) 7007 2)
(In thousands, excepl per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues $ 58,500 § 84248 % 82918 $201,168 $160,129
Cost of revenues 33,214 44,595 44,390 103,726 78,889
Gross profit 25,286 39,653 38,528 07,442 31,240
Operating expenses: :

Research and development 13,390 15,847 11,901 29,856 29,993

In-process research and development — — _— 9,900 1,000

Salling, general and administrative 10,561 15,222 20,373 32,393 33,204

Amaortizalion . 877 876 876 4,048 4487
Total operating expenses ) 24,828 31,945 33,150 76,197 68,684
Operating income 458 7,708 5,378 - 21,245 12,556
Interest income and other, net 1,610 1,899 1,388 3,191 4,149
Income before provision for income taxes 2,068 9,607 . 6,766 24,436 16,705
Provision for income taxes 298 2,855 1,789 11,730 4.846
Net income $ 1,770 % 6,752 $ 4977 $ 12,706 $ 11859
Earnings per share: ) :

Basic $ o011 $ 040 $ 029 § 047 $ 041

- Dilutad $§ 011 § 040 $ 029 $ 046 $ 040

Weighted average shares outstanding: .

Basic 16,409 16,746 16,899 27,276 29,168

Diluted 16,723 16,914 16,942 27,574 29,312

December 31,
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007

Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,220 % 12,627 § 37986 § 72479 § 57420
Marketable securities 52,342 64,120 42,821 33,714 16,505
Working capital 111,450 120,403 125,678 200,942 176,298
Total assets - — 160,371 171,280 180,001 440,486 460,216
Retained earnings— 8,462 15,214 20,191 . 32,897 44,776
Total stockholders’ equity 148,537 156,775 164,534 392,876 424,478

{1) Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the provisions prescribed by the Financial Accounting Standards Board in
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment.” Consequently, we began
recognizing compensation cost measured at fair value over the service period for stock awards expected to vest. In
addition, Statement of Operations data for 2006 reflects the results of operations of August Technology since

February 15, 2006.
(2) Statement of Operations data for 2007 reflects the results of operations of PCTA since December 18, 2067,
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.
Overview

We are a worldwide leader in the design, development, manufacture and support of high-performance process control
metrology, defect inspection, and data analysis systems used by semiconductor device manufacturers. We provide yield
management solutions used i both wafer processing and final manufacturing through a family of standalone systems and

integrated modules for both transparent and opaque thin film measurements and macro-defect inspection, All of these systems
feature production-worthy automation and are backed by worldwide customer support.

On December 18§, 2007, Rudolph, along with our wholly-owned subsidiary, Mariner Acquisition Company LLC, entered
into, and consummated the transactions contemplated by, an agreement with Applied Precision Holdings, LLC and Applied
Precision, LLC {collectively, “Applied”), pursuant to which we purchased substantially all of the assets and assumed certain
liabilities of the semiconductor division of Applied to be known as the Probe Card Test and Analysis division {*PCTA”). The
PCTA is engaged in the business of designing, developing, manufacturing, marketing, selling and supporting advanced probe

. card metrology and wafer probe process monitoring equipment and is complementary to our existing business.

The closing occurred on December 18, 2007 and we paid $57.9 million in cash and issued 1.3 million shares of common
stock for a total purchase price of $71.9 million. Under the terms of the purchase agreement, we agreed to assume the
following liabilities of Applied relating to the PCTA: accounts payable, assigned contracts, licenses and leases, warranty
claims and employee liabilities. In addition, we agreed to assume the defense of and all obligations relating to certain
litigation. The cash portion of the purchase price is subject to further post-closing adjustment based on the final closing net
asset balance. The purchase price has been preliminarily allocated based on estimates of the fair values of assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. The final valuation of net assets is expected to be completed during 2008, but no later than one year from
the acquisition date. The results of operations of the PCTA have been included in our consolidated financials statements since
the date of the acquisition. Due to the size of the PCTA, we do not expect a material effect, other than the in-process research
and development {“IPRD") charge, on comparability to prior periods of our financial position, results of operations and cash

flows. .

On February 15, 2006, the merger with August Technology was completed. Under the terms of the agreement, we paid an
aggregate of $37.2 million in cash and issued an aggregate of 11.3 million shares of our common stock to former August
Technology shareholders. The results of operations of August Technology have been included in our consolidated financial

“statements since the date of the merger. Due to the size of August Technology and the effects of purchasé accounting, our
financial position, results of operations and cash flows may not be comparable to prior periods. With the exception of future
tax adjustments related to the merger, the effects of purchase accounting were completed in 2006,

Rudolph’s business is affected by the annual spending patterns of our customers on semiconductor capital equipment,
The amount that our customers devote to capital equipment spending depends on a number of factors, including general
worldwide economic conditions as well as other economic drivers such as personal computer, cell phone and personal
electronic device sales. Current forecasts by industry analysts for the semiconductor device manufacturing industry project a
year-over-year decrease in capital spending of 15-20% for 2008. We monitor capital equipment spending through announced
capital spending plans by our customers and monthly-published industry data such as the book-to-bill ratio. The book-to-bill
ratio is a 3-month running statistic that compares bookings or orders placed with capital equipment suppliers to billings or
--- shipments. A book-to-bill above one shows that semiconductor device equipment manufacturers are ordering equipment ata
- pace that exceeds the equipment suppliers’ shipments for the period. The three month rolling average North American
semiconductor equipment book-to-bil] ratio was 0.9 for the month of December 2007, increasing from the September 2007
book-to-bill ratio of 0.8.

Historically, a significant portion of our revenues in each quarter and year has been derived from sales to relatively few
customers, and we expect this trend to continue, For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, sales to customers
that individually represented at least five percent of our revenues accounted for 62.6%,
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40,9%, and 37.1% of our revenues, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, sales to Intel
accounted for 20.3%, 14.0% and 11.5% of our revenues, respectively.

We do not have purchase contracts with any of our customers that obligate them to continue to purchase our products,
and they could cease purchasing products from us at any time. A delay in purchase or cancellation by any of our large
customers could cause guarterly revenues 1o vary significantly. In addition, during a given quarter, a significant portion of our
revenues may be derived from the sale of a relatively small number of systems. Our transparent film measurement systems
range in average selling price from approximately $250,000 to $1.0 million per system, our opaque film measurement systems
range in average selling price from approximately $900,000 to $2.0 million per system and our macrg-defect inspection and
probe card and test analysis systems range in average selling price from approximately $250,000 to S1.4 miltion per systen,
Accordingly, a small change in the number of systems we sell may also cause significant changes in our operating resulis.
Because fluctuations in the timing of orders from our major customers or in the number of our individual systems we sell
could cause our revenues to fluctuate significantly in any given quarter or year, we do not believe that period-to-period
comparisons of our financial results are necessarily meaningful, and they should not be relied upon exclusively as an
indication of our future performance.

A significant portion of our revenues has been derived from customers outside of the United States, In 2003,
approximately 77.5% of our revenues were derived from customers outside of the United States, of which 56.3% were derived
from customers in Asia and 21.2% were derived from customers in Europe. In 20006, approximately 70.6% of our revenues
were derived from customers outside of the United States, of which 59.9% were derived from customers in Asia and 10.7%
were derived from customers in Europe. In 2007, approximately 77.1% of our revenues were derived from custoiners outside
of the United States, of which 58.5% were derived from customers in Asia and 18.6% were derived from customers in Europe.
We expect that revenues generated from customers outside of the United States will continue to account for a mgmﬁcant

percentage of our revenues.

-‘The sales cycle for our systems typically ranges from six to 15 months, and can be longer when our customers are
evaluating new technology. Due to the length of these cycles, we invest significantly in research and development and sales
and marketing in advance of generating revenues related to these investments. Additionally, the rate and timing of customer
orders may vary significantly from month to month. Accordingly, if sales of our products do not occur when we expect, our
expenses and inventory levels may increase relative to revenues and total assets. :

Results of Operations
The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, our statements of operations data as percentages of our revenues,
Our results of operations are reported as one business segment.

Year Ended December 31,

2005 2006 1007
Revenues 100.0% 100.0% 100.0%
Cost of revenues ’ 53.5 51.6 49.3
Gross profit 46.5 43.4 50.7
COperating expenses: ‘

' Research and development g - 14.4 14.9 18.7
In-process research and development - —_ . .49 0.6
Selling, general and administrative 24.6 16.1 20.7
Amortization 1.0 2.0 2.8

Total operating expenses | ' . 40.0 37.9 42.9

Operating income 6.5 105 7.8

Interest income and other, net . 1.7 1.6 2.6

Income before provision for income taxes } 82 12.1 10.4

Provision for income taxes ‘ 2.2 5.8 3.0

Net income _ . 6.0% 6.3% 7.4%
. L L} L]
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Results of Operations 2005, 2006 and 2007

Revenues. Qur revenues are derived from the sale of our systems, services, spare parts and software licensing. Qur
revenues were $32.9 million, $201.2 million and $160.1 million in the years 2005, 2006 and 2007. These changes represent an
increase of 142.6% from 2005 to 2006 and a decrease of 20.4% from 2006 to 2007. The increase in revenue from 2005 to 2006
was primarily related to the August Technology merger. The decrease in reventie from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to the
current weakness in the overall semiconductor equipment manuofacturing sector.

The following table lists, for the periods indicated, the different sources of our revenues in doflars and as percentages of
our total revenues:

Year Ended December 31,

2003 2006 2007
Systems: .
Metrology $52,596 63% § 68,035 34% § 34,738 22%
Inspection 11,644 14 100,666 50 85,012 53
Parts 9,188 11 14,217 7 13,678 9
Services . 8,205 10 11,457 6 14,121 3
Software licensing 1,285 2 6793 _3 12,580 _ 8
Total revenue $82,918 100% $201,168 100% S$160,129 100%

Systems revenue increased from 2005 to 2006 reflecting additional revenues of $88.2 mullion related 10 the August
Technology merger and an increase in metrology systems revenues of $15.4 million. Systems revenue decreased from 2006 to
2007 due to the current weakness in the overall semiconductor equipment manufacturing sector and reflects a decrease in
metrology systems revenue of $33.3 million and a decrease in inspection systems of $15.7 million. Systems revenue generated
by our latest product releases and major enhancements in each of our product families amounted to 32% of total revenue for
2003 compared to 31% of total revenue for 2006 and 29% of 1otal revenue for 2007. The year-over-vear increase in parts and
service revenues in absclute dollars from 2005 to 2006 reflects additional parts and service revenues of §3.5 miilion related to
the August Technology merger as well as customers continuing to spend more on repair and maintenance of their existing
equipment. The year-over-year increase in parts and service revenues in absclute dollars from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to
customers continuing to spend more on repair and maintenance of their existing equipment. Parts and services revenues are
generated from part sales, maintenance service contracts, system upgrades, as well as time and material billable service
calls. Software licensing revenues increased from 2005 to 2006 due to the August Technology merger. The year-over-year
increase in software licensing revenues in absclute dollars from 2006 to 2007 reflects the sale of certain technology rights to
Tokyo Electron.

Deferred revenues of $6.0 million are recorded in other current liabilities at December 31, 2007 and primarily consist of
$5.3 million for deferred maintenance agreements and $0.7 million for systems awaiting acceptance and outstanding
deliverables.

Gross Profit. Our gross profit has been and will continue to be affected by a variety of factors, including inventory step-

up from purchase accounting, manufacturing efficiencies, excess and obsolete inventory write-offs, pricing by competitors or

- suppliers, new product introductions, product sales mix, production volume, customization and reconfiguration of systems,
international and domestic sales mix, and parts and service margins. Our gross profit was $38.5 million, $97.4 million and
$81.2 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of revenue from 2005 to 2006
is primarily due to higher sales volume, partially offset by charges to cost of goods sold including a $3.7 miilien charge for the
sale of inventory written-up to fair value upon the August Technology merger and $2.6 million in charges related to
duplicative inventory. The increase in gross profit as a percentage of revenue from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to the sales
and transfer of certain technology rights to Tokyo Electron and higher charges to cost of goods sold in 2006.
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Research and Development. The thin film transparent, opaque process control and macro-defect inspection and probe
card test analysis market is characterized by continuous technological development and product innovations. We believe that
the rapid and angeing development of new products and enhancements to existing products, including the transition to copper

and low-k dielectrics, the progression to 300 mm wafers, the continuous shrinkage in critical dimensions, and the evolution of .

ultra-thin gate process control, is critical to our success. Accordingly, we devote a significant portion of our technical,
management and financial resources 10 research and development programs. Research and development expenditures consist
primarily of salaries and related expenses of employees engaged in research, design and development activities. They also
include consulting fees and the cost of related supplies. Qur research and development expense was $11.9 million, $29.9
million and $30.0 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively. The vear-over-year doliar increase front 2005 10 2000
primarily reflects additional research and development cost of $13.0 million related 1o the merged activities of August
Technology and increased compensation costs including share-based compensation costs. The year-over-year dollar increase
from 2006 to 2007 is primarily due to the engineering team from the August Technology merger being included for the fuil
year ended December 31, 2007, and the write-off of $0.5 million for certain software project costs, partially offset by cost
containment initiatives. We continue to maintain our commitment to investing in new product developiment and enhancement
to existing products as we position ourselves for future growth.

In-Process Research and Developmeni. In 2006, the merger with August Technology resulted in our recording of $9.9
million for the write-off of IPRD. At the time of the merger, we determined that the IPRD had not reached technological
feasibility and that it did not have an alternative future use. The purchased in-process technology projects, which were
comprised of macro-defect inspection and software projects, had a value assigned to them of $6.9 million and $3.0 million,
respectively. The defect inspection projects, refate to the next generation of our AN defect detection systems with enhanced
defect capture capabilities, and were approximately 90% complete as of the date of merger. The estimated costs to complete
these projects consisted primarily of internal engineering labor costs and were completed by the third quarter of 2006. The
software projects, relate to new enhancement features to our next generation inspection products, and were approximately 50%
complete a3 of the date of merger, with the remaining cost to complete consisting primarily of internal softwara-development.
labor cost. The software projects were completed in 2007. We generated revenue from the inspection project in.the third
quarter of 2006 and the software project in 2007. ’

In 2007, the acquisition of the PCTA resulted in our recording of $1.0 million for the write-off of [PRD. At the time of
the acquisition, we determined that the IPRD had not reached technological feasibility and that it did not have an alternative
future use. The purchased in-process technology project was a probe card test project related to the next generation of our
ProbeWoRx systems with enhanced capabilities, and was appreximately 20% complete as of the date of acquisition. The
estimated costs to complete this project of 32.1 million, consist primarily of internal engineering labor costs which will be
completed in 2008. If we are not successful in completing the inspection project on a timely basis, the future sales of our
inspection products may be adversely affected resulting in erosion of our market share.

Selling, General and Administrative. Selling, general and administrative expense is primarily comprised of salaries and
related costs for sales, marketing, and general administrative personnel, as well as commissions and other non-personnel
related expenses. Our selling, general and administrative expense was $20.4 million, $32.4 million and $33.2 million in 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively. The year-over-year dollar increase from 2005 to 2006 in selling, general and administrative
expense was primarily due to $10.6 million related to merged activities of August Technology and increased compensation

costs. The year-over-year dollar increase from 2006 to 2007 in selling, general and administrative expense was primarily due-
to administrative costs associated with the merged activities of August Technology being included for the fuli-year of 2007 and~

increased compensation costs.

Interest Income and Other, Net. Interest income and other, net was $1.4 million, $3.2 million and $4.1 million in 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively. Interest income and other, net consisted primarily of interest
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income and realized gains and losses on sales of marketable securities. The year-over year increases in interest income and
other, net of $1.3 million from 2005 to 2006 and $1.0 million from 2006 to 2007 are primarily due to higher invested cash
batancés and higher average interest rates.

Income Taxes. Income tax expense was $1.8 million, $11.7 million and $4.8 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. Our effeclive tax rate was 26%, 48% and 29% in 2003, 2006 and 2007, respuectively, Qur effective tax rate difTers
from the statutory rate of 35% primarily as a function of state income taxes offset by benefits from research and development
tax credits, the domestic manufacturing production deduction and tax exempt interest. In addition, in 2006 and 2007, our
effective tax rate was impacted by the non-deductibility of the IPRD charges for tax purposes of $9.9 million and $).0 million,
respectively.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

At December 31, 2005, we had $80.8 million of cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities and $125.7 million in
working capital. At December 31, 2006, our cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities totaled $106.2 million, while
working capital amounted to $200.9 million. At December 31, 2007, we had $73.9 million of cash, cash equivalents and
marketable securities and $176.3 million in working capital.

Typically during periods of revenue growth, changes in accounts receivable and inventories represent a use of cash as we
incur costs and expend cash in advance of receiving cash from our customers. Similarly, during periods of declining revenue,
changes in accounts receivable and inventories represent a source of cash as inventory purchases decline and revenue from
prior periods is collected. However, in 2003, as our reveoues declined from §8+.2 million to $82.9 miltion, our change in
accounts receivables represented a use of cash. This was primarily due to longer collection times from our Japanese customers,
Also in 2007, as our revenues declined our change in inventories represented a use of cash. This was primarily due to
increasing inventory related to new products and the slow down in the back-end of the inspection business. Because of the lack
of visibility in projected sales for 2008, we are uncertain as to the level of expected cash to be provided from operating
activities in 2008.

Net cash provided by operating activities in 2005, 2006 and 2007 totaled $8.1 million, $20.6 million and $23.6 million,
respectively. During 20085, cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to net income, adjusted to exclude the
effect of non-cash charges, of $10.4 million, a decrease in inventories of $3.7 miflion, an increase in other non-current
liabilities of $0.8 million and a decrease in prepaid expenses and other assets of $0.6 million, partialiy offset by an increase in
accounts receivable of $5.7 million, a decrease in accrued liabilities of $1.2 million and a decrease in income taxes payable of
$0.3 million. The increase in receivables is primarily due to the timing of shipments towards the end of the year and longer
collection times in Japan, During 2006, cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to net income, adjusted to
exclude the effect of non-cash charges, of $42.6 million, an increase in deferred revenue of $7.9 million, an increase in other
current liabilities of $1.0 million, an increase in accrued liabilities of $0.8 million and an increase in income taxes payable of
$0.6 million, partially offset by an increase in accounts receivable of $25.1 million and an increase in inventories of $7.1
miliion. During 2007, cash provided by operating activities was primarily due to net income, adjusted to exclude the effect of
non-cash charges, of $23.4 mitlion and a decrease in accounts receivable of $21.4, partially offset by a decrease in deferred
revenue of $6.1 million, an increase in inventories of $5.4 million, a decrease in accrued liabilities of $4.0 million, a decrease
in accounts payable of $3.3 million and an increase in prepaid expenses and other assets of $2.3 million.

Net cash provided by investing activities in 2005 and 2006 totaled $16.0 million and $3.6 million, respectively. Net cash
used in 2007 was $40.5 million. In 20085, net cash provided by investing activities included proceeds from sales of marketable
securities of $70.4 million, partially offset by purchases of marketable securities of $50.0 million, capital expenditures of $2.7
million, costs incurred for capitalized software of $0.9 million and acquisition costs for business combinations of $0.9 million.
Capital expenditures in 2005 were primarily related to our new facility in Mt. Olive, New Jersey. In 2006, net cash provided
by investing activities
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included proceeds from sales of marketable securities of $93.4 million, partially offset by purchases of marketable securities of
$70.8 million, capital expenditures of $4.7 miltion, costs incurred for capitalized software of $2.2 million and acquisition costs
for the August Technology merger of $12.1 million net of cash acquired of $29.9 miliion. In 2007, net cash used by investing
activities included purchases of marketable securities of $77.7 million, acquisition costs for business combinations of $56.2
million, capital expenditures of $1.0 million, costs incurred for capitalized software of $0.7 million, partially offset by
proceeds from sales of marketable securities of $93.1 million. Capital expenditures over the next twelve months are expecied
to be approximately within the range of $3.0 million to $6.0 million.

Net cash pravided by financing activities was $1.5 million, $10.1 million and $1.5 million in 2005, 2006 and 2007,
respectively. In 2005, net cash provided by financing activities was a result of proceeds received from sales of shares through
share-based compensation plans. In 2006, net cash provided by financing activities was a result of proceeds received from
sales of shares through share-based compensation plans of $9.0 million and tax benefit from share-based compensation plans
of $1.2 millien. In 2007, net cash provided by financing activities was a result of proceeds received from sales of shares
through share-based compensation ptans of $1.3 million and tax benefit from share-based compensation plans of $0.1 million.

From time to time we evaluate whether to acquire new or complementary businesses, products and/or technologies. We
may fund all or a portion of the purchase price of these acquisitions in cash. On February 15, 2006, we announced that our
merger with August Technology Corporation had been completed. Under the terms of the agreement, we paid an aggregate of
$£37.2 million in cash and issued an aggregate of 11.3 million shares of our common stock to former August Technology
shareholders. On December 18, 2007, we announced that our acquisition of the semiconductor division of Applied Precision
Heldings, LLC had been completed. Under the terms of the agreement, we patd an agaregate of $37.9 million in cash and
issued an aggregate of 1.3 million shares of our common stock to Applied Precision Holdings, LLC. On January 22, 2008, we
announced that we had acquired alt intellectual property and selected assets from privately-held RVSI Inspection, LLC,
headquartered in Hauppauge, New York. We paid cash for this acquisition and will account for it as a business combination,

Qur future capital requirements will depend on many factors, including the timing and amount of our revenues and our
investment decisions, which will affect our ability to generate additional cash. We believe that our existing cash, cash
equivalents and marketable securities will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements for working capital and
capital expenditures for the foreseeable future. Thereafter, if cash generated from operations and financing activities is
insufficient to satisfy our working capital requiremnents, we may seek additional funding through bank borrowings, sales of
securities or other means. There can be no assurance that we will be able to raise any such-capital on terms acceptable to us or
at all.

Contractual Obligations

The following table summarizes our significant contractual obligations at December 31, 2007, and the effect such
obligations are expected to have on our liguidity and cash flows in future periods. This table excludes the liability for
unrecognized tax benefits that totaled approximately $5.9 million at December 31, 2007. We are currently unable to provide a
reasonably reliable estimate of the amount or periods when cash settlement of this liability may occur,

Payments due by period

.. Less than 1 13 35 More thun
. Total year Years YEATS S years
Operating lease obligations £10,726 2,527 $3,388 $2,633 $ 2,178
Open and committed purchase orders - . 21,506 21,506 — — L —
Total ’ ) $32,232 $ 24,033 $3,388 52!633 b 2!178

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

The Company does not have any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have a material
effect on our financial condition, results of operations or liquidity and capital resources.
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Critical Accounting Policies

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon our
consolidated firancial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. We review the accounting policies we use in reporting our financial results on a regular basis.
The preparation of these financial statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. On an ongoing basis, we
evaluate our estimates, including those related to revenue recognition, accounts receivable, inventories, business acquisitions,
intangible assets, share-based payments, income taxes and warranty obligzations, We base our estimates on historical
experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the resulis of which
form the basis for making judgments about the carrying value of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Results may differ from these estimates due to actual outcomes being different from those on which we based our
assumptions. These estimates and judgments are reviewed by management on an ongoing basis, and by the Audit Committee
at the end of each quarter prior to the public release of our financial results. We believe the following critical accounting
policies affect our more significant judgments and estimates used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements.

Reverue Recognition. Revenue is recognized when there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has occurred,
the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. Certain sales of our
products are sold and accounted for as multiple element arrangements, consisting primarily of the sale of the product, software,
installation and training services. We generally recognize product revenue upon shipment. When customer acceptance is
subjective and not obtained prior to shipment, we defer praduct revenue until such time as positive affirmation of acceptance
has been obtained from the customer. Customer acceptance is generally based on our products meeting published performance
specifications. The amount of revenue allocated to the shipment of products is done on a residual method basis. Under this
method, the total arrangement value is allocated first to undelivered contract elements, based on their fair values, with the
remainder being allocated to product revenue. The fair value of installation and training services is based upon billable hourly
rates-and the estimated time to complete the service. Revenue refated to undelivered installation services is deferred until such
time.as installation is completed at the customer’s site. Revenue related to training services is recognized ratably over the
training period. Revenue from software license fees is recognized upon shipment if collection of the resuiting receivable is
probable, the fee is fixed or determinable, and vendor-specific objective evidence exists to allocate a portion of the total fee to
any undelivered elements of the arrangement. Such undelivered elements in these arrangements typically consist of follow-on
support. If vendor-specific objective evidence does not exist for the undelivered elements of thé arrangement, all revenue is
deferred and recognized ratably over the support period.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts. We maintain allowances for doubtful accounts for estimated [osses resulting from the
inability of our customers to make required payments. We specifically analyze accounts receivable and analyze historical bad
debts, customer concentrations, customer credit-worthiness, current economic trends and changes in our customer payment
terms when evaluating the adequacy of the allowance for doubtful accounts. If the financial condition of our customers were to
deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments or our assumptions are otherwise incorrect, additional

allowances may be required.

Excess and Obsolete Inventory. We write down our excess and obsolete inventory equal to the difference between the
cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon assumptions about future product life-cycles, product demand
and market conditions. If actual product life-cycles, product demand and market conditions are less favorable than those
projected by management, additional inventory write-downs may be required.
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Business Acquisitions. We account for acquired or merged businesses using the purchase method of accounting which
requires that the assets acquired and liabilities assumed be recorded at the date of acquisition or merger at their respective fair
values. The judgments made in determining the estimated fair value assigned to each class of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed, as well as asset Jives, can materially impact our consolidated financial position and results of operations,
Accordingly, for significant items, we typically obtain assistance from independent valuation specialists,

There are several methods that can be used to determine the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed. For
intangible assets, we normally utilize the “income method.” This method starts with a forecast of ail of the expected future net
cash flows. These cash flows are then adjusted to present value by applying an appropriate discount rate that reflects the risk
factors associated with the cash flow sireams. Some of the more significant estimates and assumptions inherent in the income
method or other methods include the projected future cash flows (including timing) and the discount rate reflecting the risks
inherent in the future cash flows. Determining the useful life of an intangible asset also requires judgment. For example,
different types of intangible assets will have different usefu] lives and certain assets may even be considered to have indefinite
useful lives. All of these judgments and estimates can significantly impact our consolidated financial position and resul(s of
operations.

The purchase price is preliminarily allocated based on estimates of the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. The final valuation of net assets is expected to be completed within one year from the acquisition or merger date, At
the acquisition or merger date, we begin to formulate a plan to exit or restructure certain activities, if applicable. As we finalize
our plans to exit or restructure activities, we may record additional liabilities for, among other things, severance and severance
related costs, which would also increase the goodwill recorded.

Goodwill. Qur formal annual impairment testing date for goodwill is October 31st or prior to the next annual testing date
if an event occurs or circumstances change that would make it more likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unitis
below its carrying amount. In fiscal 2007, we changed our annual impairment testing date from December 31 to October 31.
This change was made to allow us additional time to complete the impairment test by the end of the financial statement
reporting deadiine. The goodwill impairment test is a two-step process which requires us to make judgmental assumptions
regarding fair value, The initial first step consists of estimating the fair value of our aggregated reporting unit using the market
vatue of our common stock at October 31, multiplied by the number of outstanding commaon shares (market capitalization) and
an implied control premium as if it were to be acquired by a single stockholder. We obtain information on completed sales of
similar companies in a comparable industry to estimate an implied contro! premium for us. We compare the estimated fair
value of the reporting unit to its carrying value which includes goodwill. If the results of the initial market capitalization test
produce results which are below the reporting unit carrying value, we will also consider if, the market capitalization is
temporarily low and, if so, we may also perform a discounted cash flow test. If the estimated fair value is less than the carrying
value, the second step is completed to compute the impairment amount by determining the “implied fair value” of goodwill.
This deterrnination requires the allocation of the estimated fair value of the reporting unit to the assets and liabilities of the
reporting unit. Any remaining unallocated fair value represents the “implied fair value” of goodwill which is compared to the
corresponding carrying value to compute the goodwill impairment amount. We believe oir estimates of the underlying
components of fair value are reasonable. As of December 31, 2007, a one dollar per share increase or decrease in our commeon
stock would have a $30.5 million effect on our market capitalization before adding a control premium. Testing is required
between annual tests if events oceur or circumstances change that would, more likely than not, reduce the fair value of the

~reporting-unit below its carrying value. Such an event may occur if, for an extended period of time, the market value of our

common stock plus the implied control premium were less than the carrying value. Should actual results not meet our
expectations or assumptions change in future years, our impairment assessment could result in a lower fair value estimate
which could result in an impairment charge that may materially affect the carrying value of our assets and results from
operations. :

Long-Lived Assets and Acquired Intangible Assets. We periodically review long-lived assets, other than goodwill, for
impairment whenever changes in events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
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asset may not be recoverable, Assumptions and estimates used in the determination of impairment losses, such as future cash
flows and disposition costs, may affect the carrying value of long-lived assets and the impairment of such long-lived assets, if
any, could have a material effect on our cansolidated financial statements.

Share-Based Compensation. Prior to fiscal 2006, we accounted for share-based compensation plans under the recognition
and measurement provisions of Accounting Principles Board Opinion Nu. 23, Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted the
provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 123 (revised 2004) “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS
123R") using the modified-prospective-transition method. SFAS 123R requires companies to recognize the fair-value of share-
based compensation transactions in the statement of operations. The fair value of our stock options is estimated at the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The Black-Scholes valuation calculation requires us to estimate key
assumptions such as future stock price volatility, expected terms, risk-free rates and dividend yield. Expected stock price
volatility is based on historical volalility of our stock. We use historical data to estimate option exercises and employee
terminations within the valuation model. The expected term of options granted is derived from an analysis of historical
exercises and remaining contractual life of stock options, and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to
be outstanding. The risk-free rate is based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. We have never paid
cash dividends, and do not currently intend to pay cash dividends, and thus have assumed a 0% dividend yield. If our actual
experience differs significantly from the assumptions used to compute our share-based compensation cost, or if different
assumptions had been used, we may have recorded too much or too little share-based compensation cost. In addition, we are
required to estimate the expected forfeiture rate of our share arants and only recognize the expense for those shares expected to
vest. If the actual forfeiture rate is materially different from our estimate, our share-based compensation expense could be
materially different.

Warranties. We provide for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is recognized. While we engage
in product quality programs and processes, our warranty obligation is affected by product failure rates, material usage and
service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. Should actual product failure rates, material usage or service
" delivery costs differ from our estimates, revisions to the estimated warranty liability would be required.

Accounting for Income Taxes. As part of the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements, we are required
to estimate our actual current tax exposure together with our temporary differences resulting from differing treatment of items
for tax and accounting purposes. These temporary differences result in deferred tax assets and liabilities, which are included
within our consolidated balance sheet. We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from
future taxable income and to the extent we believe that recovery is not likely, we nust establish a valuation allowance.
Significant management judgment is required in determining our provision for income taxes and any valuation allowance
recorded against our deferred tax assets. The need for a valuation allowance is based on our estimates of taxable income by
Jjurisdiction in which we operate and the period over which our deferred taxes will be recoverable. In the event that actual
results differ from these estimates or we adjust these estimates in future periods, we may need to adjust the valuation
allowance, which could materially impact our financial position and results of operations. At December 31, 2007, we had a
valuation allowance of $1.3 million for a portion of deferred tax assets attributable to state R&D tax credits and capital losses.

We adopted FASB Financial Interpretation No. (“FIN") 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes,” at the
beginning of fiscal 2007. As a result of the adoption of FIN 48, we recognize liabilities for uncertain tax positions based on the
two-step process prescribed by the interpretation. The first step requires us to determine if the weight of available evidence
indicates that the tax position has met the threshold for recognition; therefore, we must evaluate whether it is more likely than
not that the position will be sustained on audit, including resolution of any related appeals or litigation processes. The second
step requires us to measure the tax benefit of the tax position taken, or expected to be taken, in an income tax retum as the
largest amount that is more than 50% likely of being realized when effectively settled. This measurement step is inherently
difficult and requires subjective estimations
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of such amounts to determine the probability of various possible outcomes. We reevaluate the uncertain tax positions each
quarter based on factors including, but not limited to, changes in facts or circumstances, changes in tax law, effectively settled
issues, and new audit activity. Such a change in recognition or measurement could result in the recognition of a tax benefit or
an additional charge to the tax provision in the period.

Although we believe the measurement of our labilities for uncertain tax positions is reasunable, no assurance can be
given that the final outcome of these matters will not be different than what is reflected in the historical income 1ax pravisions
and accruals. If additional taxes are assessed as a result of an audit or litigation, it could have a materiat effect on our income
tax provision and net income in the period or periods for which that determination is made.

Impact of Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued SFAS No. 141R, "Business
Combinations” (“SFAS 141R™), which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in
its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any noncontrolling interest in an acquiree, and
the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in a business combination or a gain from a bargain purchase. SFAS
141R applies prospectively to business combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annuaj reporting period beginning on or after December 15, 2008.

In November 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF") issued EITF Issue No. 07-1 (“EITF 07-17), “Accounting
for Collaborative Arrangements,” which defines collaborative arrangements and establishes reporting and disclosure
requirements for such arrangements. EITF 07-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. We are
continuing to evaluate the impact of adopting the provisions EITF 07-1; however, we do not anticipate that adoption will have
a material effect on our financial position or results of operations. .

Tn February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 (“SFAS 1597), “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities- Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115." SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure
many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reporting earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years that begin
after November 15, 2007. Our adoption of SFAS 159 is not expected to impact our financial position or results of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (“SFAS 157), “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, on February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-
2 which defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for nonfinancial assets and non-financial liabilities that are not
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. Based on our current operations, we do
not expect that the adoption of the non-deferred portion of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on our financial position or
results of operations. We have not yet evaluated the impact of the adoption of the deferred portion of SFAS 157.

Ttem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

Interest Rate and Credit Market Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates and market liquidity primarily from our investments in.certain available-for-
sale securities. Our available-for-sale securities consist of fixed and variable rate income investments (U.S. Treasury and
Agency securities, asset-backed securities, mortgage-backed securities, auction rate securities and corporate bonds). We
continually monitor our exposure to changes in interest rates, market '
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liquidity and credit ratings of issuers from our available-for-sale securities. It is possible that we are at risk if interest rates,
market liquidity or credit ratings of issuers change in an unfavorable direction. The magnitude of any gain or loss will be a
function of the difference between the fixed rate of the financial instrument and the market rate and our financial condition and
results of operations could be materially affected. Based on sensitivity analysis performed on our financial investments held as
of December 31, 2007, an immediate adverse change of 10% in interest rates (e.g. 3.00% to 3.30%) would result in a 30.1
million decrease in the fair value of our available-for-sale securitics.

F oreign Currency Risk

We have branch operations in Taiwan, Singapore, China and Korea and wholly-owned subsidiaries in Europe and Japan.
Qur international subsidiaries and branches operate primarily using local functional currencies. These foreign branches and
subsidiaries are limited in their operations and leve! of investment so that the risk of currency fluctuations is not material. A
substantial portion of our international systems sales are denominated in U.S. dollars with the exception of Japan and, as a
result, we have relatively little exposure to foreign currency exchange risk with respect to these sales. Substantially all our
sales in Japan are denominated in Japanese yen. Front time to time, we may enter into forward exchange contracts to
economically hedge a portion of, but not all, existing and anticipated foreign currency denominated transactions expected to
occur within 12 months. The change in fair value of the forward contracts is recognized in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations each reporting period. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, we had fifteen and seventeen forward contracts
outstanding, respectively. The total notional contract value of these outstanding forward contracts at December 31, 2006 and
2007 was $6.4 million and $5.7 million, respectively. We do not use derivative financial instruments for trading or speculative
purposes.

Item 8.  Financial Statements and Supplementary Data.

The consolidated financial statements required by this item are set forth on the pages indicated at [tem 15(a) of this
Annuat Report on Form 10-K. :

ltem ¥, Changes in and Disagreenients with Accountants on Accounting and Finauncial Disclosure,

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information we are required to disclose in
reports that we file or submit under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time period
specified in SEC rules and forms. These controls and procedures are also designed to ensure that such information is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our principal executive and principal financial officers, as
appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. In designing and evaluating disclosure controls and
procedures, we have recognized that any controls and procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only
reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives. Management is required to apply judgment in evaluating its
controls and procedures.

We performed an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of our management, inciuding our principal
executive and principal financial officers, to assess the effectiveness of the design and operation of our disclosure controls and
procedures under the Exchange Act asof December 31, 2007, Based on ‘that evaluation, our management, including our
principal executive and principat financial officers, concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective as
of December 31, 2007 because of a material weakness in our internal control over financial reporting.
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b) Management’s Report on Internal Contrel Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f). Internal control over financial reporting is a process
designed 10 provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Under the supervision and with the participation of our management, including our principal executive officer and principal
financial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the
framework in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Based on that criteria, the material weakness described below has caused our management 1o
conciude we did not maintain effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controf over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriarate.

A material weakness is defined in Public Company Accounting Oversight Board Auditing Standard No. 5 as a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected on a timely
basis.

Our management determined that the process and procedures surrounding the preparation and review of the income tax
provision did not include adequate management oversight and review controls as of December 31, 2007, Specifically, we did
not ensure that effective oversight of the work performed by our outside tax advisor, Deloitte Tax LLP was exercised. The
resulting errors from the material weakness, which were primarily attributable to acquisition related tax matters, did not have a
material effect on the Company’s financial results for the year ended December 31, 2007. However, combinations of such
errors could have resulted in our annual or interim financial statements being materiaily misstated.

Management’s assessment of the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, excluded PCTA because it was acquired by the Company in December 2007. The total assets and total
revenue of PCTA represent 17.0% or $78.3 million of consolidated total assets (including goodwill and other intangible assets
of $43.2 million and $16.2 million) and 0.2% or $0.4 million of consolidated total revenue, of the Company as of and for the
year ended December 31, 2007. Registrants are permitted to exclude acquisitions from their assessment of internal control over
financiat reporting during the first year if, among other circumstances and factors, there is not adequate time between the
consummation date of the acquisition and the assessment date for assessing internal controls.

Our consolidated financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007 have been audited by KPMG LLP,
our independent registered public accounting firm, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). KPMG LLP has also audited our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, as stated in its attestation report included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

¢) Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

__ Except for olitsourcing the preparation of our year-end income tax provision, there have been no changes during the
Company’s quarter ended December 31, 2007 in our internal control over financial reporting-(as defined in Rules 13a-15(f)
under the Exchange Act) that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting. ) -
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d} Remediation Steps Subsequent to December 31, 2007

Management is taking the {ollowing measures to address the material weakness identified above and 10 enhance our
internal controi over financial reporting procedures:

«  Re-evaluate the design of income tax accounting processes and controls and implement new and tmproved processes
and controls, iIf warranted; and

« Increase the level of review and discussion of significant tax matters and supporting documentation with our outside
advisor and senior finance management.

We anticipate that these remediation actions will represent ongoing improvement measures. While we are taking steps 10
remediate the material weakness, additional measures may be required. During 2008, we will assess the effectiveness of our
remediation efforts in connection with our management’s tests of internal control over {inancial reporting.

Item 9B. Other Information.

None.
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PART IT1

Certain information required by Part 11f is omitted from this Annual Report on Form 10-K because we will file a
definitive proxy statement within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of the fiscal year pursuant to Regulation 14A
(the “Proxy Statement”) for our Annual Meeting of Stockholders currently schedufed for May 20, 2008, and the information
included in the Proxy Statement is incorporated herein by reference.

Ttem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance,

The information required by this Item with respect to directors and executive officers is incorporated by reference to the
Proxy Statement. Information regarding compliance with Section 16 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, ts
incorporated by reference to the information under the heading “Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance”
in the Proxy Statement,

Code of Ethics. We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to our principal executive officer, principal financial
officer and controller. This code of ethics is posted on our internet website address at http://www.rudolphtech.com.

Item 11, Executive Compensation.
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder Matters.
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, and Director Independence.
The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 14.  Principal Accounting Fees and Services,

The information required by this Item is incorporated by reference to the Proxy Statement.
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PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedule.

{n) The following documents are filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

1. Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements and consolidated financial statement information required by this Item
are included on pages F-1 through F-7 of this report. The Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting
Firm appear on pages F-2 through F-3 of this report.

2. Financial Statement Schedule
See Index to financial statements on page F-1 of this report.

3. Exhibits

The following is a list of exhibits. Where so indicated, exhibits, which were previously filed, are incorporated by

reference.

Exhibit

No.

2.1

2.2

23

3.1

3.2

33

3.4

4.1

Description

Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2005, by and among the Registrant, NS Merger Sub, Tnc.
and August Technology Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s Schedule 13D
filed with.the SEC on July 7, 2005).

Amendment No. 1, dated as of December 8, 2005, by and among the Registrant, NS Merger Sub, Inc. and
August Technology Corporation, to the Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of June 27, 2005, by and among
the Registrant, NS Merger Sub, Tnc. and August Technology Corporation (incorporated by reference to Exhibit
2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 9, 2003).

Asset Purchase Agreement dated as of December 18, 2007, by and among the Registrant, Mariner Acquisition
Company LLC, Applied Precision Holding, LLC and Applied Precision, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 2.1 to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 21, 2007).

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Registrani {(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3.1(b)) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871 filed on September 9,

1999},

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (3.2(b)) to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9,
1999).

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on February 15, 2006, No. 000-27965).

Amendment to Restated Bylaws of Registrant (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to the.Registrant’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the Commission on August I, 2007, No: 000-27965).

Rights Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form
8-A, filed with the Commission on June 28, 2005, No 000-27965).
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Exhibit
No. Description
42 August Technology Corporation 1997 Stock Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to the Appendix to August
Technology Corporation’s Proxy Statement for its 2004 Annual Sharcholders Mecting, filed with the Commission
on March 11, 2004, No. 000-30637).

10.1+ License Agreement, dated June 28, 1995, between the Registrant and Brown University Research Foundation
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.1) to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form §-1, as
amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1599).

10.2 Form of Indemnification Agreement (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.3) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999).

10.3 Amended 1996 Non-Qualified Stock Option Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to Registrant’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 14, 2001).

10.4 Form of 1999 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.4) to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999).

10.5 Form of 1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.5) to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1999).

10.6 Management Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2000, by and between Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and Paul F.
McLaughlin {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed
on November 3, 2000). )

10.7 Management Agreement, dated as of July 24, 2000 by and between Rudolph Te‘chnologies,'lnc. and Steven R. Roth
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.14 to Registrant’s quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed on
November 3, 2000).

10.8 Registration Agreement, dated June 14, 1996 by and among the Registrant, 11, L.L..C., Riverside Rudolph, L.L.C,,
Dr. Richard F. Spanier, Paul F. McLaughlin (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit (10.9) to the Registrant’s .

_ Registration Statement on Form S-1, as amended (SEC File No. 333-8687 1), filed on September 9, 1999).

10.9 Stockholders Agreement, dated June 14, 1996 by and among the Registrant, Administration of Florida, Liberty
Partners Holdings 11, L.L.C., Riverside Rudolph, L.L.C., Dr. Richard F. Spanier, Paul McLaughlin, Dale
Moorman, Thomas Cooper and (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit {(10.10) to the Registrant’s Form 5-1,
as amended (SEC File No. 333-86871), filed on September 9, 1939).

10.10 Form of option agreement under 1999 Stock Plan (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to Registrant’s
quarterly report on Form 10-Q, filed on November 5, 2004). .

10.11 Form of Restricted Stock Award pursuant to the Rudolph Technologies, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (filed with Rudolph
Technologies, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K fited on June 21, 2005 and incorporated herein by reference).

10.12 Form of Company Shareholder Voting Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 99.2 to the Company’s
Schedule-13D filed with the SEC on July 7, 2005). ) -

14.1 Rudolph Technologies Code of Business Conduct and Ethics (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 14.1 to

Registrant’s annual report on Form 10-K, filed on March 16, 2006).
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Ezhibit

No.

14.2

18.1
21.1
23.1
311

3.2
32.1

322

Rudolph Technologies Financial Code ofEthic;s {incorporated herein by reference 1o Exhibit 14.1 to Registrant’s
annual report on Form 10-K, {iled on March 16, 2006).

Preferability letter of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, filed herewith,
Subsidiaries.
Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm,

Certification of Paul F. McLaughlin, Chief Executive Officer, pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14
(a). ‘
Certification of Steven R. Roth, Chief Financial Officer, pursuant to Securities Exchange Act Rule 13a-14(a).

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, signed by Paul F. McLaughlin, Chief Executive Officer of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
of 2002, signed by Steven R. Roth, Chief Financial Officer of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

+ Confidential treatment has been granted with respect to portions of this exhibit.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Stockholders and Board of Directors of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Rudolph Technologics, Tne. and subsiciarics as listed in the
accompanying index. In connection with our audits of the consolidated financial statements, we also have audited the
consolidated financiai statement schedule as listed in the accompanying index. These consolidated financial statements and the
financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion
on these consolidated financial statements and the financial statement schedule based on our audits.

We conductéd our audits in accordance with the standards of the Pubtic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States}. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial staterments. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our 'mdlts
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. Also in our opinion, the related financial statement scheduie, when considered in relation to
the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole, presents fairly, in all mater xal respects, the information set forth
therein.

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards
Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainties in Income Taxes”, effective January 1, 2007,

. As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, effective January 1, 2006.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on criteria
established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 3, 2008, expressed an adverse opinion on the effect:veness of the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting.

/sf KPMG LLP

Short Hills, New Jersey
March 3, 2008

F-2
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Rudolph Technelagies. Inc.:

We have audited Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s internal contro! aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, based on
criteria established in Jnternal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSO). Rudelph Technologies, Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal
control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included
in Ttem 9A (b) of the accompanying annual report on Form 10-K. Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audil.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal
control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of
internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances, We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion,

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 1o
permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepled accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Rudolph Technologies, Inc. acquired the probe card test and analysis business (PCTA) of Applied Precmon Holdings, LLC
and Applied Precision, LLC during 2007, and management excluded from its assessment of the effectiveness of Rudolph
Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, PCTA’s internal control over financial
reporting associated with total assets of $78 mitlion, including $43 million of goodwill and $16 million of other intangible
assets, and total revenues of $0.4 million included in the consolidated financial statements of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of and for the year ended December 31, 2007. Our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Rudolph
Technologies, Inc. also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of PCTA.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over financial reporting, such that
there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements will not
be prevented or detected on a timely basis. The following material weakness has been identified and included in management’s
assessment: the Company did not have adeguate oversight and review controls regarding the preparation and review of the
accounting for income taxes as of December 31, 2007. We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated ﬁnanc1al statements of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

~ and subsidiaries listed
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in the accompanying index. This material weakness was considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests
applied in our audit of the 2007 consolidated financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 3,
2008, which expressed an unqualified opinion on those consolidated financial statements,

In our opinion, because of the eftect of the aforementioned material weakness on the achievement of the objectives of the
control critevia, Rudolph Technologies, Inc. has not maintained effective internal control gver financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, based on criteria established in fnternal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission,

/s/ KPMG LLP

Short Hills, New Jersey
March 3, 2008
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{In thousands, except per share data)

December 31,
2001 007
"ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 72,479 § 57,420
Marketable securities 33,714 16,505
Accounts receivable, less allowance of $299 in 2006 and $214 in 2007 65,373 50,015
Inventories 55,433 70,087
Income taxes receivable — 404
Deferred income taxes 7.950 4,665
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . 1,795 3,631
Total current assets 236,744 203,627
Property, plant and equipment, net 16,882 16,062
Goodwill , 145,176 188,832
Identifiable intangible assets, net 37,401 48,125
Capitalized software . : 3,607 3,007
Other assets 676 473
Total assets : : $440,486 $460,216
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 3,054 § 7,975
Accrued liabilities:
Payroll and related expenses 6,408 3,910
Royalties 1,831 780
Warranty . 2,171 2,365
Income taxes payable ) 2,113 —
Deferred revenue 11,928 5,956
Cther current liabilities 3,297 . 6,343
Total current liabilities .. 35,802 27,329
Deferred income taxes 10,647 3,556
Other non-current liabilities 1,161 4,853
Total liabilities 47,610 35,738
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000 shares authorized, no shares issued and outstanding
at December 31, 2006 and 2007 _— —
Common stock, $0.001 par value, 50,000 shares authorized, 28,977 and 30,480 issued and
outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively ' 29 30
Additional paid-in capital 361,128 379,886
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (1,178) (214)
Retained earnings . 32,897 44,776
Total stockholders’ equity - 392,876 424,478
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $440,486 $460,216

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATTIONS
(In thousands, except per share data)

Yenr Ended December 31,

. 20015 2006 2007

Revenues o $82.918  $201,168  $160,129
Cost of revenues 44,390 103,726 78,889

Gross profit 38,528 97.442 81,240
Operating expenses:

Research and development 11,901 29,856 29,993

In-process research and development — 9,900 1,000

Selling, general and administrative 20,373 32,393 33,204

Amortization 876 4,048 4,487

Total operating expenses 33,150 76,197 68,634

Operating income 5,378 21,245 12,556
Interest income and other, net 1,388 3,191 4,149

Income before provision for income taxes 6,766 24,436 16,705
Provision for income taxes 1,789 11,730 4,846
Net income $4977 312,706 3% 11,859
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 029 % 047 § 041

Diluted $§ 029 § 046 § 0.40
Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic 16,899 271,276 29,168

Diluted - 16,942 27,574 29,312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Balance at December 31,2004

Proceeds from sales of shares
through share-based
compensation phns

Net income

Share-based compensation

Unearned compensalion

Tax benzfit for sale of shares
thraugh share-based
compensation phns

Currency translation

Unrealized loss on investments

Comprehaensive income

Balance at December 31, 2003

Proceeds from sales of shares
through share-based
compensation pans

Net income

Share-based compensation

Adoption of SFAS 123R

Excess tax benelit for sale of
shares through share-based
compensation phns

Common stock issued in merger

Assumed August Technology
oplions

Tax benefit on tax deductible

" transaction costs

Currency translation

Unrealized gain on investments

Comprehensive income

Balatice at December 31, 2006

Proceeds from sales of shares
through share based
compensation phns

Net income

Adoption of FIN 48

Share-based compensation

Excess tax benefit for sale of
shares through share-based
compensation phns

Common stock issued in
acquisition

Currency translation

Unrealized gain on investments

Comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2007

RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARTES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS® EQUITY
AND COMPRELHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007

(In thousands}

Accumulated

Common Stnck _ Additional Other
Ppid-in ~ Comprehensive Unearned Retained Comprehensive
Shares  Amount Capilal Loss Compensation  Earnings Total Income
16817 % 17§ 14298 § {(1442) § — $ 15214 $156,775
124 — 1,503 — — — 1,503
— - — — - 4977 4977 § 4977
—_ — 73 — 556 631
— —_ 2,580 - (2,530) - —
— — 134 - — — 134
— _ — 518 — — 518 518
= — — (4} — - (4} (4
Iﬁﬂgl
16941 17 147,273 (928) {2,024) 20,191 164,534
738 i 8,957 — —_ _ 8,958
- — - — — 12,706 12,706 § 12,706
— — 1,936 —_— — —_— 1,936
— — (2,024) — 2,024 — —
- — 1,167 —_ —_ - 1,167
11,298 I8! 197,822 — —_— _— 197,833
— - 6,040 —_ — - 6,040
— (48) — — — (48)
- — — (401} — — (401) (401)
— — 151 — 151 151
) 12,456
28977 29 361,128 (1,178) — 32,897 392,876
196 —_— 1,344 — — — 1,344
— — — — — 11,859 11,859 3§ 11,859
— - — — — 20 20
- — 3,119 - — - 3,119
— — 148 —— — - 148
1,307 i 14,147 — — — 14,148
— — — 812 - - 812 ' 812
— — — 152 — 152 152
) ] 12,823
30480 30 379 886 (214) — 44776 424478
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
F-7
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2005 {13 2007

Cash flows from operating activitiest”
Net income $ 4977 §$ 12,706  §$ 11,859

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash and cash equivalents provided by
operating activities:

Amortization 876 4,372 5,700
Depreciation 1,773 4,300 4,500
In-process research and development — 9,900 1,000
Foreign currency exchange loss ) 885 35 45
Net loss on sale of marketable securities 836 162 —
Tax benefit for sale of shares through share-based compensation plans 134 — -
Share-based compensation 631 1,936 3,119
Provision for doubtful accounts and inventory valuation 394 3,497 496
Deferred income taxes {109} 5,718 (3,314)
Decrease (increase) in assets excluding effects of business combinations:
Accounts receivable {5,669) (23,096) 21,401
Incoine taxes receivable — — (1,089)
Inventories 3,702 (7,079) {5,395)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 626 323 -(2,339)
Increase (decrease) in liabilities excluding effects of business combinatiens: .
Accounts payable (207) (438) (3,326)
Accrued liabilities ) (1,244) 790 (3,958)
Income taxes payable (312) 610 (537)
Deferred revenue 4 7.873 {6,131)
Other current liabilities (70) 1,017 (617)
Non-current liabilities 330 [t} 2,168
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating activities 8,077 20,645 23,582
Cash flows from investing activities: , :
Purchases of marketable securities (49,965) (70,803) (77,748)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities 70,404 93,410 95,147
Purchases of property, plant and equipment (2,677) (4,664) {1,007)
Capitalized software ' (882) (2,230) (712}
Purchase of business, net of cash acquired -(863) (12,109) (56,166)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by (used in) investing activities 16,017 3,604 (40,486)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from sales of shares through-share-based compensation plans 1,503 8,957 1,344
Tax benefit for sale 5f shares through share-based compensation plans — 1,167 148
_ Net cash and cash equivalents provided by financing activities 1,503 10,124 1,492
Effect of exchange tate changes on cash and cash equivalents (238) 120 353
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 25,359 34,493 (15,059
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 12,627 37,986 72,479
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $37986 % 72479 $ 57,420
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Net cash paid during the period for:
Income taxes $ 1959 § 4097 §$ 8,170
Non-cash investing activities:
Acquisition costs for business combinations $ 2138 §$ 6,039 $ 1315
Stock issued for business combinations ' ‘ : $ — $197,833  § 14,022

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{In thousands, except pey shave data)

1. Organization and Nature of Operations:

Rudolph Technologies, Inc. {the “Company™) designs, develops, manufactures and supports high-performance process
control equipment used in semiconductor device manufacturing, The Company has branch sales and service offices in China,
Korea, Taiwan and Singapore and wholly-owned sales and service subsidiaries in Europe, Japan, Washington and Minnesota.
The Company operates in a single segment and supports a wide variety of applications in the areas of diffusion, etch,
lithography, CVD, PVD, CMP and macro-defect detection and classification.

On February 15, 2006, the Company completed its merger with August Technology Corporation. August Technology was
a world-class provider of automated defect detection and product characterization systems for microelectronic device
manufacturers. Their systems provided manufacturers with information that enables process-enhancing decisions, ultimately
lowering manufacturing costs and decreasing time-to-market. They had traditionally provided systems to address the
automated inspection needs of the early stages of the final manufacturing or back-end of the microelectronic device
manufacturing process. In addition, they had introduced new products for edge and backside inspection systems for advanced
macro-defect detection primarily in the front-end of the wafer manufacturing process. When used in conjunction with one
another these systems allow a manufacturer to inspect the top, edge and back of a wafer’s surface.

On December 18, 2007, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, Mariner Acquisition Company LLC, entered into, and
consummated the transactions contemplated by, an agreement with Applied Precision Holdings, LLC and Applied Precision,
LLC (collectively, “Applied”™), pursuant to which it purchased substantially all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of
the semiconductor division of Applied to be known as the Rudolph Technologies Probe Card Test and Analysis division
("PCTA™). The PCTA is engaged in the business of designing, developing, manufacturing, marketing, selling and supparting
advanced probe card metrology and wafer probe process monitoring equipment and is complementary to the Company’s
existing business.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies:
A. Consolidation:

The consolidated financial statements reflect the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. Al
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.

B. Revenue Recognition:

Revenue is recognized upon shipment provided that there is persuasive evidence of an arrangement, delivery has
occurred, the sales price is fixed or determinable, and collection of the related receivable is reasonably assured. Certain sales of
the Company’s products are sold and accounted for as multiple element arrangements, consisting primarily of the sale of the
product, software, installation and training services. The Company generally recognizes product revenue upon shipment.

When customer acceptance is subjective and not obtained prior to shipment, the Company defers product revenue until such
time as positive affirmation of acceptance has been obtained from the customer. Customer acceptance is generally based on the
Company’s products meeting published performance specifications. The amount of revenue allocated 1o the shipment of
products is done on a residual method basis. Under this method, the total arrangement value is allocated first to undelivered
contract elements, based on their fair values, with the remainder being allocated to product revenue. The fair value of
installation, training and other services is based upon billable houtly. rates and the estimated time to complete the service.
Revenue related to undelivered installation services is deferred until such time as installation is
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completed at the customer’s site. Revenue related to training services is recognized ratably over the training period. Revenue
from software license fees is recognized upon shipment if collection of the resulting receivable is probable, the fee is fixed or
determinable, and vendor-specific objective evidence exists to allocate a portion of the total fee to any undelivered elements of
the arrangement. If vendor specific objective evidence does not exist for the undelivered ¢lements of an arrangement that
includes software, all revenue is deferred and recognized ratably over the period required to deliver the remaining elements.

Revenues from parts sales are recognized at the time of shipment. Revenue from service contracts is recognized ratably
over the period of the contract. A provision for the estimated cost of fulfilling warranty obligations is recorded at the ime the
related revenue is recognized.

License support and maintenance revenue is recognized ratably over the contract period.

C. Estimates!

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates made by management include allowance for doubtful accounts,
inventory obsolescence, purchase accounting allocations, recoverability and useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
identifiable intangible assets, recoverability of goodwill, recoverability of deferred tax assets, liabilities for product warranty,
accruals for contingencies and share-based payments, including forfeitures and liabilities for tax uncertainties. Actual results
could differ from those estimates. -

D Casi-a and Cash Egquivalents:

Cash and cash equivalents include cash and highly liquid debt instruments with original maturities of three months or less
when purchased.

E. Marketable Securities:

The Company determined that all of its investment securities are to be classified as available-for-sale. Available-for-sale
securities are carried at fair value, with the unrealized gains and losses reported in stockholders’ equity under the caption
*Accumulated other comprehensive Joss.” Realized gains and losses, interest and dividends on available-for-sale securities are
included in interest income and other, net. Available-for-sale securities are classified as current assets regardless of their

_maturity date if they are available for use in current operations. The Company reviews its investment portfolio to identify and
evaluate investments that have indications of possible impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is other-
than-temporary include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than the cost basis, credit quality and the
Company’s ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in
market value. When a decline in fair value is determined to be other-than-temporary, unrealized losses on available-for-sale
securities are charged against earnings. The specific identification method is used to determine-the gains and losses on

marketable securities. R e
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F. Allowance for Doubtful Acconnts:

The Company evaluates the collectability of accounts receivable based on a combination of factors. In the cases where
the Company is aware of circumstances that may impair a specific customer’s ability (o meet its financial obligation, the
Company records a specific allowance against amounts due, and thereby reduces the net recognized receivable to the amount
management reasonably believes will be collected. For all other customers, the Company recognizes allowances for doubtful
accounts based on the length of time the receivables are outstanding, industry and geographic concentrations, the current
business environment and historical experience.

G. Inventories:

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Cost includes material, labor and overhead costs.
Demonstration units, which are available for sale, are stated at their manufacturing costs and reserves are recorded to adjust the
demonstration units to their net realizable value.

H. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed using the
straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets which are thirty years for buildings, four to seven years for
machinery and equipment, seven years for furniture and fixtures, and three years for computer equipment. Leasehold
improvements are amortized using the straight-line method over the lesser of the lease term or the estimated useful life of the
related asset. Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed as incurred and major renewals and betterments are capitalized.

1. Impairment of Long-Lived Assets:

Long-lived assets, such as property, plant, and equipment, and identifiable acquired intangible assets with definite useful
lives, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an
asset to estimated undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized by the amount by which the carrying amount of
the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset, which is generally based on discounted cash flows.

J. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with definitive useful lives are amortized using the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives.
Goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but are tested for impairment at least annually and
when there are indications of impairment in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS™) No. 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.” Under SFAS No. 142, goodwill impairment is deemed to exist if
the net book value of a reporting unit exceeds its estimated fair value. The Company estimates the fair value of its aggregated
reporting.unit using the market value of its common stock at October 31 multiplied by the number of outstanding common.
shares (market capitalization) and an implied control premium as if it were to be acquired by a single stockholder. The
Company obtains information on completed sales of similar companies in a comparable industry to estimate the implied
control premium for the Company. If the results of the initial market capitalization test produce results which are below the
reporting unit carrying value, the Company may also perform a discounted cash flow test. The Company tested for goodwill
impairment on QOctober 31, 2007, In 2007, the Company changed its annual impairment testing date from December 31 to
October 31. The Company believes October 31 is preferable as it provides additional time prior to the Company’s year-end of
December 31 to complete the impairment testing and report the results of those tests in its annual filing on Form 10-K.

F-11

L '.f'hub://yww.sec.goy/Amhivesfgdgar/datafl094392/000.1 19312508045171/d10k.htm 4/17/2008

.



- —m——— - = — F=) -——- .-

RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
{(In thousands, except per share data)

K. Concentration of Credit Risk:

Financial instruments, which potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk, consist primarily of
accounts receivable, cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations
of its customers and generally does not require collateral for sales on credit. The Company maintains allowances for potential
credit losses. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities with higher credit quality issuers
and monitors the amount of credit exposure to any one issuer.

L. Warranties:

The Company generally provides a warranty on its products for a period of twelve to fifteen months against defects in
material and workmanship. The Company provides for the estimated cost of product warranties at the time revenue is
recognized.

M Income Taxes:

The Company accounts for income taxes using the asset and liability approach for deferred taxes which requires the
recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected future tax consequences of events that have been recognized
in the Company’s consolidated financial statements or tax returns. A valuation allowance is recorded to reduce a deferred tax
asset to that portion which more likely than not will be realized. Additionally, taxes are separated into current and non-current
amounts based on the classification of the related amounts for financial reporting purposes. The Company does not provide for

‘federal income taxes on the undistributed earnings of its foreign operations as it is the Company’s intention to permanently re-
invest undistributed earnings. :

‘On July 13, 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB") issued Interpretation No, 48, “Accounting for
Uncentainty in Income Taxes—An Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109” (“FIN 48"). Under FIN 48, the impact of an -
uncertain income tax position is recognized at the largest amount that is more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon audit by the
relevant taxing authority and includes consideration of interest and penalties. An uncertain income tax position will not be
recognized if it has less than a 50% likelihood of being sustained. Under FIN 48, the liability for unrecognized tax benefits is
classified as non-current unless the liability is expected to be settled in cash within 12 months of the reporting date.

N. Translation of Foreign Currencies:

The Company’s international subsidiaries and branch offices operate primarily using local functional currencies. Assets
and liabilities are translated at exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date, and income and expense accounts and cash
flow items are translated at average monthly exchange rates during the period.

F-12

* http://wwwsec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1094392/0001 19312508045171/d10k htm  ~ 4/17/2008



" RUDOLPI TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO TIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS-—(Continued)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Net exchange gains or losses resulting from the translation of foreign financial statements and the effect of exchange rates on
intercompany transactions of a long-term tnvestment nature are recorded directly as a separate component of stockholders’
equity under the caption, “Accumulated other comprehensive foss”. Any foreign currency gains or losses related to
transactions are included in operating results. Net foreign exchange rate gains and losses included in operating results are not
material for all periods presented. The Company had accumulated exchange losses resulting from the translation of foreign
operation financial statements of $1,010 and $198 as of December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Q. Share-based Compensation:

. Prior to January 1, 2006, the Company’s share-based compensation plans were accounted for in accordance with
Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees” and related interpretations, Under
this method, no compensation expense for stock options was recognized as long as the exercise price equaled or exceeded the
market price of the underlying stock on the date of the grant. Compensation cost for restricted stock units issued to employees
and directors was based upon the market value on the date grant. Such compensation costs were charged to unearned
compensation in stockholders’ equity and amortized to expense aver the requisite scrvice period. The Company clected the
disclosure-only alternative permitted under SFAS No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation” (“SFAS 123™), as
amended by SFAS No, 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure” (“SFAS 148™), far
fixed stock-based awards to employees.

On January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SFAS No. 123 (revised 2004), “Share-Based Payment” (“SFAS 123R”) using
the modified prospective method, which requires measurement of compensation cost for all stock awards at fair value on date
of grant and recognition of compensation cost over the service period for awards expected to vest. The fair value of stock
options is determined using the Black-Scholes valuation model, which is consistent with the Company's valuation model
previously utilized for options in footnote disclosures required under SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148. The Black-Scholes
valuation calculation requires the Company to estimate key assumptions such as future stock price volatility, expected terms,
risk-free interest rates and dividend yield. Expected stock price volatility is based on historical volatility of the Company’s
stock. The Company uses historical data to estimate option exercises and employee terminations within the valuation model.
The expected term of options granted is derived from an analysis of historical exercises and remaining contractual life of stock
options, and represents the period of time that options granted are expected to be outstanding. The risk-free interest rate is
based on the U.S. Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grant. The Company has never paid cash dividends, and does not
currently intend to pay cash dividends, and thus has assumed a 0% dividend yield. Such value is recognized as expense over
the service period, net of estimated forfeitures. The estimation of stock awards that will ultimately vest requires significant
Judgment. The Company considers many factors when estimating expected forfeitures, including types of awards, employee
class, and historical experience. Actual results, and future changes in estimates, may differ substantially from the Compariy's
current estimates. Prior to the adoption of SFAS 123R, the Company recorded forfeitures as incurred. Upon adoption of SFAS
123R, compensation expense for all share-based paymients includes an estimate for forfeitures and is recognized over the
expected term of the share-based awards using the straight-line method. The impact of this change on prior period
compensation cost was immaterial. Additionally, the unearned compensation of $2,024 at the SFAS 123R adoption date
relating to previous restricted stock unit grants was offset against additional paid-in capital.

Results for prior pericds have not been restated to reflect the effects of implementing SFAS 123R. The following table
illustrates the effect on net income and eamnings per share if the Company had applied the fair value recognition provisions of
SFAS 123, as amended by SFAS 148, to stock options granted under the Company’s
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stock-based employee compensation plans for year ended December 31, 2005. For purposes of this pro forma disclosure, the
value of the stock options was estimated using a Black-Scholes option-pricing formula and amortized to expense over the
options’ vesting periods, with option forfeitures accounted for as they oceurred:

-Year Ended
December 31,
2005
Net income, as reported $ 4977
Add: Share-based employee compensation expense included in reported net income, net of related income
tax benefits 396
Deduct: Share-based employee compensation expense determined under fair value based method, net of
related income tax benefits ’ (8,902)

Pro forma net loss $ (3,529

Net income (loss) per share:
Basic-as reported 5
Basic-pro forma b
Diluted-as reported s 0.29
Diluted-pro forma $

Effective April 14, 2005, the Company accelerated the vesting of all unvested stock options awarded to employees,
officers and other eligible participants under the Company’s 1999 Stock Plan. A total of 959 options to purchase shares of
Rudolph stock became immediately exercisable as a result of the vesting acceleration, however only 87 of the stock options, or.
9% of the total accelerated shares, were “in the money”. These options were typically scheduled to incrementally vest :
beginning on the first anniversary of their respective grant date. The Company recognized a de minimus charge in the second
quarter of 2005 as a result of the acceleration. The Company took this action because it produces a more favorable impact on
the Company’s results of operations following the adoption of SFAS No. 123R, effective January 1, 2006. By accelerating the -
vesting of these options, the Company believes it will save approximately $7.0 million in future compensation expense that
would have been required to be expensed, beginning January 1, 2006, over the remaining service period. In addition; effective
May 1, 2005, the Company amended its ESPP. The amendment removed the “look back™ provision, that was previously a part
of the ESPP and reduced the discount for purchasing shares of the Company’s stock to five percent. These modifications to the
ESPP were also made as a result of the Company’s anticipated adoption of SFAS No. 123R.

For additional information on the Company’s share-based compensation plans, see Note 10 of Notes to the Consotidated
Financial Statements.

. P. Research and Development and Software Development Costs: -

Expenditures for research and development are expensed as incurred. The'Company accounts for software development
costs in accordance with SFAS No. 86, “Accounting for Costs of Computer Software to Be Sold, Leased or Marketed.” SFAS
No. 86 requires that certain sofiware product development costs incurred after technological feasibility has been established,
be capitalized and amortized, commencing upon the general release of the software product to the Company’s customers, over
the economic life of the software product. Annual amortization of capitalized costs is computed using the greater of: (i) the
ratio of current gross revenues for the software product over the total of current and anticipated future gross revenues for the
software product or (ii) the straight-line basis, typically over seven years. Software product development costs incurred prior to
the product reaching technological feasibility are expensed as incurred and included in research and development
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costs. At December 31, 2006 and 2007, capitalized sofiware development costs were $3,607 and $3,097, respectively. There
was no amortization of software development cost during the vear ended December 31, 2005, During the vears ended
December 31, 2006 and 2007, $345 and $704 of sofiware development costs were amortized, respectively. During 2007, the
Company recorded a write down of capitalized software of $507 in cost of revenues in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations.

Q. Fair Value of Financial Instruments:

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial instruments, including cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable,
accounts payable and accrued liabilities, approximate fair value due to their short maturities.

R. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities:

The Company reports derivatives and hedging activities in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” This statement requires that all derivative instruments be recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recorded each period in current earnings or accumulated other
comprehensive loss, depending on whether the derivative is designated as part of a hedge transaction, and if it is, depending on
the type of hedge transaction.

The Company, when it considers it to be appropriate, enters into forward contracts to hedge the economic exposures
arising from foreign currency denominated transactions. At December 31, 2006 and 2007, these contracts included the sale of
Japanese Yen to purchase U.S. dollars. The foreign currency forward contracts were entered into by our Japanese subsidiary to
hedge a portion of certain intercompany obligations. The forward contracts are not designated as hedges for accounting
purposes and therefore, the change in fair value is recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations.

The dollar equivalent of the US dollar forward contracts and related fair values as of December 31, 2006 and 2007 were
as follows: ‘

December 31,
2006 ' 2007
Notional amount . $6,439 $5,706
Fair value of asset (liability) $ 144 $(127)

The Company recognized a gain of $172, $106 and $278 with respect to forward contracts which matured during 2003,
2006 and 2007, respectively. The aggregate notional amount of these contracts was $1,736, $6,277 and $8,802, respectively.

S. Reclassifications:
Certain prior year amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2007 financial statement presentation.

TI" Recent Accounting Pronouncements: I

In Deceniber 2007, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No. 141R, “Business
Combinations” (“SFAS 141R”), which establishes principles and requirements for how an acquirer recognizes and measures in
its financial statements the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, any
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noncontrolling interest in an acquiree, and the recognition and measurement of goodwill acquired in a business combination or
2 uain from a bargain purchase. SFAS 141R applics prospectively ta business combinations for which the acquisition date is
on or afier the beginning of the first annuaf reporting period beginning on ar after December |5, 2008.

In November 2007, the Emerging Issues Task Force (“EITF”) issued EITF Issue No. 07-1 (“EITF 07-1"), “Accounting
for Collaborative Arrangements,” which defines collaborative arrangements and establishes reporting and disclosure
requirements for such arrangements. EITF 07-1 is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2008. The Company
is continuing to evaluate the impact of adopting the provisions EITF 07-1; however, it does not anticipate that adoption will
have a material effect on its financial position or results of operations.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 159 (“SFAS 159"), “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities- Including an amendment of FASB Statement No. 115.” SFAS 159 permits entities to choose to measure
many financial instruments and certain other items at fair value. The objective is to improve financial reporting by providing
entities with the opportunity to mitigate volatility in reporting earnings caused by measuring related assets and liabilities
differently without having to apply complex hedge accounting provisions. SFAS 159 is effective for fiscal years that begin
after November 15, 2007. The Company's adoption of SFAS 159 is not expected to impact its financial position or results of
operattons.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157 (“SFAS 157”), “Fair Value Measurements.” SFAS 157 defines fair
value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007. However, on February 12, 2008, the FASB issued FSP FAS 157-
2 which defers the effective date of SFAS 157 for one year for nonfinancial assets and nonfinancial liabilities that are not
recognized or disclosed at fair value in the financial statements on a recurring basis. Based on the Company’s current
operations, it does not expect that the adoption of the non-deferred portion of SFAS 157 will have a material impact on its
financial position or results of operations. We have not yet evaluated the impact of the adoption of the deferred portion of

SFAS 157.

3. Business Combinations:
August Technology

On February 15, 2006, the merger with August Technology was approved by its shareholders, and the issuance of shares
of Rudolph common stock was approved by Rudolph’s stockholders, at their respective special meetings. The combined
company is known as Rudolph Technologies, Inc. The aggregate purchase price was $246,739, consisted of $37,200 in,cash,
11,298 shares of common stock valued at $197,833, the fair value of assumed August Technology options of $6,040 and
transaction costs of $5,666. '
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The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations and, accordingly,
the results of operations of August Techinotogy have been inchudled in the Company’s consolidated financial stalemenis sinee
the date of merger. The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the date of merger:

Cash $ 29,893
Marketable securities 13,418
Accounts receivable 14,283
Inventories 23,582
Property, plant and equipment 6,075
Goodwill 132,809
Identifiable intangible assets ) 42,700
Other assets 1,585
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (11,733}
Deferred taxes {4,279
Other liabitities (1,594)
$246,739

The above purchase price has been allocated based on estimates of the [air values of assets acguired and liabilities
assumed. With the exception of future tax adjustments related to the merger, the effects of purchase accounting were
completed during 2006. The fair value of inventories included a step-up of $3,842, of which $3,699 and $143 were recognized
in cost of revenues for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively. At the merger date, the Company
formulated a plan to exit or restructure certain activities. The Company recorded $173 for these activities, which have occurred
during the year ended December 31, 2006.

Factors that contributed to a purchase price that resulted in recognition of goodwill include:

» the combination of August Technology’s defect inspection technology with Rudolph’s MetaPULSE metrology
products is expected to improve copper metrology process controls and should allow the combined company to offer
a more comprehensive and better integrated set of tools to its customers and enhance its ability to compete more
effectively; ‘

+ the combination of August Technology's defect inspection experience and technology with Rudolph’s
complementary defect inspection experience and technology should allow the combined company to offer its
customers a more comprehensive suite of tools more quickly, thus enhancing the company’s ability to compete more
effectively;

« consolidation of territorial sales activities and common marketing programs;
« redeployment or elimination of duplicative functional and facilities costs;

+ reduction of customer service costs as a result of the consolidation of the companies’ global customer service and
regional support networks;

» creation of a larger sales and service organization worldwide, the expansion of the companies’ dedicated sales teams
and a higher profile with customers, which is expected to present greater opportunities for potential revenue
enhancements by marketing and cross-selling the products of the combined company;

« avoidance of incurring certain costs that the companies would expect to incur on a stand-alone basis in furtherance of
their growth strategies;
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the combined company is expected to have greater prominence within the financial community, providing improved
access 1o capilal;

+ the direct sales and service presence of the combined company in the iimportant Japanese semiconductor
manufacturing market (where Rudolph has three offices with over 20 employees) may increase opportunities for
product orders;

+ the combined experience, financial resources, development expertise, size and breadth of product offerings of the
combined company may allow it to respond more quickly and effectively to technological change, increased
consolidation and industry demands; and

« the ability of the assembled workforce to continue to deliver vatue-added solutions and develop new products and
industry leading production technologies that solve customer problems.

Approximately $9.9 million of the acquired identifiable intangible assels represented the estimated fair value of in-
process research and development (“TPRD™) projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative
future use. Accordingly, this amount was immediately expensed in the Consolidated Statement of Operations at the merger
date. The purchased in-process technology projects was comprised of next generation automated macro-defect inspection
systems with enhanced defect capture capabilities and software projects which improve the tools’ capabilities. The defect
inspection and software projects had a value assigned to them of $6.9 million and $3.0 million, respectively. The defect
inspection projects related 10 the next generation of the Company’s AXi defect detection systems with enhanced defect capture
capabilities and were completed by the third quarter of 2006. The software projects related to new enhancement features to the
Company’s next generation inspection producls and were completed in 2007,

PCTA

On December 18, 2007, Rudolph and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered into, and consummated the
transactions contemplated by, an Asset Purchase Agreement with Applied Precision Holdings, LLC and Applied Precision,
LLC (collectively, “Applied”), pursuant to which the Company purchased substantiaily all of the assets and assumned certain
liabilities of the semiconductor division of Applied to be known as the Rudolph Technologies Probe Card Test and Analysis
division (“PCTA™). The PCTA is engaged in the business of designing, developing, manufacturing, marketing, selling and
supporting advanced probe card metrology and wafer probe process monitoring equipment and is complementary to the
Company’s existing business.

The closing under the Asset Purchase Agreement occurred on December 18, 2007 and the Company paid $57,897 in cash
and acquisition costs and issued 1,307 shares of common stock for a total purchase price of $71,919. The purchase price has
been preliminarily allocated based on estimates of the fair values of assets acquired and liabilitics assumed. With the exception
of future tax adjustments related to the acquisition, the final valuation of net assets is expected to be completed during 2008,
but no later than one year from the acquisition date. The results of operations of the PCTA have been included in our
consolidated financials statements since the date of the acquisition. - .

_—

The Company has agreed to assume the following liabilities of the PCTA: accounts payable, assigned contracts, licenses
and leases, warranty claims and employee liabilities, all as more fully described in the Asset Purchase Agreement. In addition,
the Company has agreed to assume the defense of and all obligations relating to certain litigation currently pending against
Applied.
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The transaction was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting for business combinations and, accordingly,
the results of operations of the PCTA have been included i the Company s consolidated financial statements since the date of
acquisition, The following table summarizes the estimated fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date
of acquisition: :

Accounts receivable 5,660
Inventories 12,001
Prepaid expenses and cther current assets 157
Property, plant and equipment 1,123
Goodwill 43,194
Identifiable intangible assets 16,200
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (3,776)
Deferred revenue (159)
Other liabilities (2,481)
$71,919

The Fair value of inventoties included a step-up of $2,418, of which none was recognized in cost of revenues for the year
ended December 31, 2007. At the acquisition date, the Company formulated a plan to exit or restructure certain activities. The
Company recorded $254 for these activities during the year ended December 31, 2007,

Factors that contributed to a purchase price that resulted in recognition of goodwill include:

» the combination of PCTA and Rudolph preducts should allow the combined company to offer its customers a more
comprehensive suite of tools and a better integrated set of tools, thus enhancing the Company’s ablhty to compete
more effectively;

» the ability of the assembled workforce to continue to deliver value-added solutions and develop new products and
industry leading production technologies that solve customer problems;

= consolidation of territoria) sales activities and common marketing programs;

« redeployment or elimination of duplicative {unctional and facilities costs;

- reduction of customer service costs as a result of the consolidation of the companies’ giobal customer service and
regional support netwaorks; and

= the combined experience, financial resources, development expertise, size and breadth of product offerings of the
combined company may allow it to respond more quickly and effectively to technological change, increased
conschidation and industry demands :

Of the $16,200 of acquired identifiable assets, the following table reflects the allocation of the acquired identifiable

assents and related preliminary estimates of useful lives: . ) ———
Devcloped technology $11,600 8 years estimated useful life
Customer and distributor relatlonshlps 2,900 7.2 years weighted average estimated useful life
Trade names : 700 3 years estimated useful life
In-process research and development 1,000
$ 16,200
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Approximately $1.0 million of the acquired identifiable intangible assets represents the estimated fair value of in-process
sesearch and development (“IPRD”) projects that had not yet reached technological feasibility and had no alternative future
use. Accordingly, this amount was immediately expensed in the Consolidated Statement of Operations at the merger date. The
purchased in-process technology project was a probe card test project, related to the next generation of the Company’s
ProbeWoRx systems with enhanced capabilities, and was approximately 20% complete as of the date of acquisition. The
estimated costs to complete this project of $2,100, consist primarily of internal engineering labor costs which will be
completed in 2008. If we are not successful in completing the inspection project on a timely basis, the future sales of the
Company’s inspection products may be adversely affected resulting in erosion of the Company's market share.

Pro Forma Combined Results of Operations

The following unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information presents the combined results of operations of the
Company, August Technology and PCTA as if the respective merger and acquisition occurred at the beginning of the period
presented, after giving effect 1o certain adjustments, including interest income and amartization expense. Due to the non-
recurring nature of the IPRD and inventory step-up charges, these amounts have not been included in the unaudited pro forma
consolidated financial information. The unaudited pro forma consolidated financial information does not necessarily reflect the
results of operations that would have occurred had the merger and acquisition been completed as of the date indicated or of the

* results that may be obtained in the futuve.

Year Eaded December 31,

2005 2006 2007
(Unaudited)

Revenues $£202,825 $249,731 $194,262
Net income : £ 8,728 $ 25,526 $ 13,213
Earnings per share:

Basic $ 030 § 0385 $ 043

Diluted $ 030 $ 084 $§ 043

RVSI Inspection

On January 22, 2008, the Company announced that it had acquired all intellectual property and selected assets from
privately-hald RVSI Inspection, LLC, headquartered in [auppauge, New York, The Company paid cash for this acquisition
and will aczount for it as a business combination.

4. Marketable Securities:
At December 31, 2006, marketable securities are categorized as {ollows:

Amortized Gross Unrealizel Gross Unrealized Fair
Cost Holding Gains Tlolding Losses Value
Treasury notes and obligations of -

U.S. Government agencies . $ 80587 % 2 3 (154) - % 7,906
Tax-free auction rate securities 19,675 — — 19,675
Asset-backed securities 1,654 — (28) 1,626
(Corporate bonds 3,689 —_ (73) 3,616
Mortgage-backed securities 913 1 (23) 891

Total marketable securities 5 33!989 s s (278) $33,714 -
F-20
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At December 31, 2007, marketable securities are categorized as follows:

Treasury notes and obligations of
U.S. Government agencies
Tax-free auction rate securities
Asset-backed securities
Corporate bonds
Mortgage-backed securities
Total marketable securities

Due within one year

Due after one through five years
Due after five through ten years
Due after ten years

Totzl marketable securities

Amortized
Cost

$ 2,938
9227
1,132
2,605

726
$16,628

Gross Unrealized
Holding Gainy

—
$ 25

2
1
$ 29

Gross Unrealized . Fair
Holding Losses Value

$ (5) $ 2,958
— 9,227
{7) 1,125
(125) 2,482
(15 713

3 (152) 516,505

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of marketable securities classified by the maturity date listed on the security,
regardless of the Consolidated Balance Sheet classification, is as follows at December 31, 2006 and 2007:

December 31, 2006 December 31, 2007

Amartized Fair Amortized Fair

Cost Value Cost Vilue
$22,358 $22,339 5 9,857 3 9,848
9,966 9,749 4,240 4,142
457 447 222 219
1,208 1,179 2,309 2,296
$33989  $33,714  $16628  $16,505

Net realized losses of $856, $162 and $0 were included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations for 2005, 2006 and

2007, respectively.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value and gross unrealized holding losses of marketable securities,
aggregated by investment instrument and period of time in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2006:

In Unrealized Loss Position

for less than 12 Months

to Unrealized Loss Position
for 12 Monihs or Greater

Total in Unvealizel
Loss Position

Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealizel Fair Unrenlized Fair Unreatized
Value T.osses Vilue L nsses Value Losses
. Treasury notes and
obligations of U.S.
Government agencies 5 — $ —_ P - 7,625 b (154) $§ 7,620 § (154)
Tax-free auction rate
securities —_ —_ — — — — —_
Asset-backed securities ) 31 — (1) 1,506 27 1,537 (28)
Corporate bonds — — 3,689 (73) 3,689 (73)
Mortgage-backed securities 22 — 818 (23) 840 (23)
Total marketable
securities $ 53 $ {1) $ 13,638 $ (277) $13,692 $§ (278)
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The following table sunumarizes the estimated fair value and gross unrealized holding lesses of marketable securities,
aggregated by investment instrument and period of time in an unrealized loss position at December 31, 2007:

In Unrenlized Loss Position In Unrealized Loss Positivn Total in Unrealized
for less than 12 Months for 12 Months or Greater Loss Position
Gross Gross Gross
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized
Vilue Lasses Value Losses Vilue Losses
Treasury notes and obligations
of U.S. Government '
agencies $ — 3 — $ 9596 $- .3 § 996 $ (5)
Tax-free auction rate securities — — — L — - —
Asset-backed securities 16 — 1,006 (7) 1,022 )]
Corporate bonds 45 (1) 2,203 (124) 2,248 (123)
Mortgage-backed securities — — 505 - (15) 503 (15)
Total marketable
securities g 61 $ () b 4,710 3 (151) $ 4,771 § (I52)

The gross unrealized fosses related to marketable securities are primarily due ta a decrease in the fair vatue of debt
securities as a result of current market conditions in mortgage-backed securities and an increase in interest rates since the
securities were purchased. The Company has determined that the gross unrealized losses on its marketable securities at
December 31, 2006 and 2007 are temporary in nature, The Company reviews its investment portfolio to identify and evaluate
investments that have indications of possible impairment. Factors considered in determining whether a loss is other-than-
temporary include the length of time and extent to which fair value has been less than the cost basis, credit quality and the
Company’s ability and intent to hold the investment for a period of time sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in
market value.

5. Inventories:

Inventories are comprised of the following:

December 31,
2004 2007
Materials $33,347 334,556
Work-in-process : 12,687 20,820
Finished goods 9,399 15,611
Total inventories $55,433 $70,987

The Company has established reserves of $2,805 and $3,394 at December 31, 2006 and 2007, respectively, for slow
moving and obsolete inventory. During 2006, the Company recorded a charge of $3;585 for excess parts, for older product
lines and for parts that design and engineering advancements rendered obsolete, of which $2,567 was written off. During 2007,
the Company recorded a charge of $661 for the write-down of inventory for excess parts, for older product lines and for parts
that design and engineering advancements rendered obsolete. In 2007, the Company wrote off $72 of the inventory reserve,
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RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continucd)

{In thousands, except per share data)

6. Property, Plant and Equipment:

Property, plant and equipment, net is comprised of the following:

Land and building
Machinery and equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Computer equipment
Leasehold improvements

Accumulated depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, net

December 31,
2006 2007
$ 5,180 $ 5,185
9,471 11,829
2,425 2,668
5,207 6,407
5,945 5791
28,228 31,880
(11,346) (15,818)
516,882 $ 16,062

Depreciation expense amounted to $1,773, $4,300 and $4,500 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006, and 2007,
respectively.

7. ldentifiable Intangible Asséts and Goodwill:

ldentiftable intangibie assets as of December 31, 2006 are as follows:

Gross Carrying

Accumulated

Amount Amortization Net
Developed technology $ 37,991 $ 7,669 $30,322
Customer relationships . 4,400 429 3,971
Trade names 3,400 292 3,108
Total identifiable intangible assets M 45,791 $ 8,390 $37,401

Identifiable intangible assets as of December 31, 2007 are as follows:
Gross Currying Accumuolated

Amount Amortization Net
Developed technology 3 49,591 $ 11,324 $38,267
Customer and distributor relationships 7,300 917 6,383
Trade names ' : 4,100 625 3,475
Total identifiable intangible assets $ 60,991 $ 12,866 $48.125

Intangible asset amortization expense amounted to $876, $4,027 and $4,476 for the years ended December 31, 2005,
2006 and 2007, respectively. Assuming no change in the gross carrying value of identifiable intangible assets and estimated
lives, estimated amortization expense amounts to $6,638 for 2008, $6,297 for 2009, $6,081 for 2010, $5,848 for 2011 and

$5,848 for 2012. ‘
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The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill are as follows:

Balance as of December 31, 2003 $ 13,243
August Technology merger 131,931
Balance as of December 31, 2006 145,176
PCTA acquisition 43,194
Tax adjustments related to prior acquisition 462
Balance as of December 31, 2007 $188!832

8. Commitments and Contingencies:
Intellectual Property Indemnification Qbligations

The Company has entered into agreements with customers that include limited intellectual property indemnification
obligations that are customary in the industry. These guarantees generally require the Company to compensate the other party
for certain damages and costs incurred as a result of third party intellectual property claims arising from these
transactions. The nature of the intellectual property indemnification obligations prevents the Company from making a
reasonable estimate of the maximum potential amount it could be required to pay to its customers. Historicatly, the Company
has not made any indemnification payments under such agreements and no amount has been accrued in the accompanying
consolidated financial statements with respect to these indcmnification guarantees,

Warranty Reserves

The Company generally provides a warranty on its products for a period of twelve to fifteen months against defects in
material and workmanship. The Company estimates the costs that may be incurred during the warranty period and records a
liability in the amount of such costs at the time revenue is recognized. The Company’s estimate is based primarily on historicai
experience. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the amounts as
necessary. Settlements of warranty reserves are generally associated with sales that occurred during the 12 to 15 months prior
to the year-end and warranty accruals are related to sales during the year.

Changes in the Company’s warranty reserves are as follows:

Year Eaded December 31,

2003 2006 2007
Balance, beginning of the year $ 1,209 $ 1,234 $2,171
Accruals 1,945 2,298 2,669
Warranty linbility assumed in merger — 1,244 532
Settlements (1,920} (2,605) (3.007)
Balance, end of the year - $1,234 $2,171 $ 2,365

Legal Matters

From time to time the Company is subject to legal proceedings and claims in the ordinary course of business. The
Company is not aware of any legal proceedings or claims that management believes would have a material adverse effect on
the Company’s consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.
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Lease A greements

The Company rents space for its manufacturing and service operations and sales offices, which expire through 2016,
Total rent expense for these facilities amounted to $1,550, $2,162 and $2,264 for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006
and 2007, respectively.

The Company also leases certain equipment pursuant to operating leases, which expire through 2010. Rent expense
related to these leases amounted to $42, $165 and $171 for the years ended December 31, 20035, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Total future minimum lease payments under noncancelable operating leases as of December 31, 2007 amounted to $2,527
for 2008, $1,842 for 2009, $1,546 for 2010, $1,533 for 2011, $1,100 for 2012 and $2,177 for all periods thereafter.

Royalty Agreements

Under various licensing agreements, the Company is obligated 10 pay royalties based on net sales of products sold. There
are no minimum annual royalty payments. Royalty expense amounted to $2,071, $2,990 and $1,389 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

Open and Committed Purchase Orders
The Company has open and committed purchase orders of $21.5 million as of December 31, 2007.

9. Preferred Share Purchase Rights:

On June 27, 20035, the Board of Directors of the Company adopted a Stockholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plan") and
declared a dividend distribution of one Preferred Share Purchase Right (a “Right”) on each outstanding share of Company
common stock. Each right entitles stockholders to buy one one-thousandth of a share of newly created Series A Junior
Participating Preferred Stock of Rudolpl at an exercise price of $120. The Company’s Board is entitled to redeem the Rights
at $0.001 per Right at any time before a person has acquired 15% or more of the outstanding Rudelph common stock.

Subject to limited exceptions, the Rights will be exercisable if a person or group acquires 15% or more of Rudolph
common stock or announces a tender offer for 15% or more of the common stock. Each Right other than Rights held by the
Acquiring Person which will become void entitles its holder to purchase a number of common shares of Rudolph having a
market value at that time of twice Lthe Right's exercise price.

The Rights Plan will expire in 2015. The adoption of the Rights Plan had no impact on the financial position or results of
operations of the Company.
10. Share-Based Compensation and Employce Benefit Plans:
Share-Based Compensation Plans

__The Company’s share-based compensation plans are intended to attract and retain employees and to provide an incentive
for them to assist the Company to achieve long-range performance goals and to enable them to participate in long-term growth
of the Company. The Company settles stock option exercises and restricted stock awards with newly issued common shares.
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To 1996, the Company adopted the 1996 Stock Option Plan (the “Option Plan™). Under the Optian Plan, the Company
was authorized to grant options to purchase up to 1,070 shares of common stock. All of the outstanding options became 100%
vested upon she initial public offering of the Company on November 12, 1999, As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, there were
no shares of comimon stock reserved for future grants under the Option Plan.

The Company established the 1999 Stock Plan (the #1999 Plan”) effective August 31, 1999, The 1999 Plan provides for
the grant of 2,000 stock options and stock purchase rights, subject to annual increases, to employees, directors and consultants
at an exercise price equal 1o or greater than the fair market value of the common stock on the date of grant. Options granted
under the 1999 Plan typically grade vest over a five-year period and expire ten years from the date of grant. Restricted stock
units granted under the 1999 Plan typically vest over a five-year period for employees and one year for directors. As of
December 31, 2006 and 2007, there were 892 and 1,029 shares of common stock reserved for future grants under the 1999
Plan, respectively.

The Company assumed the August Technology Corporation 1997 Stock Plan (the 1997 Plan™) at the merger date. Stock
options granted under the 1997 Plan vest over periods that range from immediate to tive-years and expire in either seven or terr
years from the date of grant. As of December 31, 2006, there were 666 shares of common stock reserved for future grants
under the 1997 Plan. In the third quarter of 2007, the 1997 Plan expired and as of December 31, 2007, there were no shares of
common stock reserved for future grants under the 1997 Plan. ‘ :

The following table reflects share-based compensation expense by type of award in accordance with SFAS 123R:

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2007

Share-based compensation expense:

Stock options $§ 750 $ 721

Restricted stock units " 1,186 2,398
Totatl share-based compensaticn 1,936 - 3,119
Tax effect on share-based compensation 757 1,279
Net effect on net income £ 1179 $ 1,840
Tax effect on:

Cash flows from financing activities 5 1,167 3 148
Effect on earnings per share—basic S (0.04) 3 (0.06)
Effect on earnings per share—diluted $ (0.04) 5 (0.06)
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Valuation Assumptions for Stock Options

For the year ended December 31, 2005, there were 2 stock options granted. For the year ended December 31, 2006, there
were 5 siock options granted and 309 unvested options and 1,049 vesied options assumied irom the August Technology
merger. The fair value of the vested options assumed from the August Technology merger was $6,040, the fair value at the
merger date, For the year ended, December 31, 2007, there were no stock options granted, The fair value of each option was
estimated on the date of grant for the granted options and the merger date for the unvested options assumed from the August

Technology merger, using the Black-Scholes eption-pricing model with the following assumptions:

Expected life (years)
Expected volatility
Expected dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate

Weighted average fair value per option

Stock Option Activily

The following table summarizes stock option activity:

QOutstanding at December 31, 2004
Granted
Exercised
Expired
Forfeited
Guistanding at December 31, 2003
Granted
Assumed from August Technology
Exercised
Expired
Forfeited :
Outstanding at December 31, 2006
Granted

"Exercised

. Expired
Forfeited
Outstanding at December 31, 2007

Vested or expected to vest at December 31, 2007

Exercisable at December 31, 2007

.. http:/Awww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1094392/000119312508045171/d10k.htm
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Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006
5.0 34
50.9% 55.1%
0.0% 0.0%
3.9% 4.6%
$ 755 $ 399
* Weighted
Weighted Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Price Contractusl Intrinsic
Per Share - Term {years) Value
3 22.55 ’
15.30
13.13
25.85
21.12
22.67
16.72
13.02
12.84
22.27
13.56
5 20.93
11.54
14.39
21.93
$ 2127 39§57
$ 21.31 38 $§ 290
b 21.66 37 $ 546
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The total intrinsic value of the stock options exercised during 2005, 2006 and 2007 was $233, $3,472 and $506,
respectively, In connection with these exercises, the tax benefits realized by the Company for 2003, 2006 andt 2007 were 5134,

$1,167 and 3191, respectively.

The opticns outstanding and exercisable at December 31, 2007 were in the following exercise price ranges:

Options Qutstanding - Options Exercisahle
Weighted
Average
Remaining Weighted Weighted
Range of - Contractual Average Average
Exercise Prices Shares Life {vears) Exercise Price Shares Excrcise Price
$ 056-% 14.81 - 628 5.1 5 12.26 518 5 12.02
$ 1482-% 16.41 871 32 3 16.12 849 5 16.13
$16.49-5 24.20 ’ 333 4.3 b 21.74 544 5 21.82
$ 2425-8% 40.13 671 33 3 34.66 671 $ 34.66
$ 41.75-% 50.30 ~ 32 32 3 48.68 32 b 48.68
$ 036-8 5030 2,755 3.9 $ 21.27 2,614 3 21.66

As of December 31, 2007, there was $1,151 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options granted
under the plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over a weighted average remaining period of 2.0 years.

The Company recognized a tax benefit of $569 for stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2006,
which was assumed in the purchase price of the August Technology merger. This benefit reduced goodwill,

Restricted Stock Unit Activity
The following table summarizes restricted stock unit activity:

'A summary of the Company’s restricted stock unit activity with respect to the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and
2007 follows:

Weighted Average

Number of Grant Dale Fair
Shares Value

Nonvested at December 31, 2004 — $ —
Granted 161 £ 16.60
Vested — 3 —
Forfeited — $ —
Nonvested at December 31, 2005 161 S 16.60
Granted 228 5 16.61
Vested o L " (48) $ 0 1623
Forfeited (&) 3 14.97
Nonvested at December 31, 2006 336 5 16.68
Granted 463 L 15.69
Vested ’ {86) 5 16.24
Forfeited - (33) $ " 16.24
Nonvested at December 31, 2007 A 680 b3 16.08

F-28

‘ http:'//ww{\'}.sec.gov/Archives/edgar‘/datan09,4392'10001'19312508045171/d10k.hun 4/17/2008



RUDOLPI TECHNOLOGIES, TNC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)
{In thousands, except per share data)

As of December 31, 2007, there was §7,852 of total unrecognized compensation cost related to restricted stock units
aranted under the plans. That cost is expected to be recognized over o weighted average period of 3.7 yewrs.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP") effective August 31, 1999 and amended on
May 1, 2005. Under the terms of the ESPP, eligible employees may have up to 15% of eligible compensation deducted from
their pay and applied 1o the purchase of shares of Rudolph common stock. The price the employee must pay for each share of
stock will be 95% of the fair market value of the Rudolph common stock at the end of the applicable six-month purchase
period. The ESPP is intended to qualify under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code and is a non-compensatory plan as
defined by SFAS 123R. No stock-based compensation expense for the ESPP was recorded for the year ended December 31,
2006 and 2007. As of December 31, 2006 and 2007, there were 1,727 and 2,010 shares available for issuance under the ESPP
respectively.

404 (k) Savings Plan

The Company has a 401(k) savings plan to provide retirement and incidental benefits for its employees. As allowed under
Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code, the Plan provides tax-deferred salary deductions for eligible employees.
Employees may contribute up to 100% of their annual compensation to the Plan, limited to a maximum annual amount as set
periodically by the Internal Revenue Service. The Plan provides a 50% match of all employce contributions up to 6 percent of
the employee's salary. Company matching contributions to the Plan totaled $393, $693 and $746 for the years ended
December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007, rcspectwcly

Profit Sharm g Program

The Company has a profit sharing program, wherein a percentage of pre-tax prof'ts at the dlscretlon of the Board of
Directors, is provided to all employees who have completed a stipulated employment period. The Company did not make
contributions to this program for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007.

11. Interest Income and Other, Net:

Year Ended December 31,

. 2003 2006 2007
Interest income §2,234 33,345 $4,143
Realized losses on sale of marketable securities (8356)- (162) —
Rental income 10 8 6
Total interest income and other, net $1,388 $3.191 $4.149
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12. Tneome Taxes:

The components of income tax expense are as fotlows:

Current:
Federal
State
Foreign

Deferred:
Federal
State
Foreign

Total income tax expense

Yenr Ended December 31,

2005 2006 2007
$ (89) $ 2253  §$3,827
387 1,840 939
1,536 1,920 3,395
1,834 6,013 8,161
(349) 5,456 (2,507)
(53) 173 (674)
357 88 (134)
(45) 5,717 (3,315)
$1,789  $11,730 S 4.846

Income before income tax of §1,988 and $4,778 was generated by domestic and foreign operations, respectively, in 2005.
Income before income tax of $13,532 and $10,904 was generated by domestic and foreign operations, respectively, in 2006.
Income before income tax of $2,856 and $13,849 was generated by domestic and foreign operations, respectively, in'2007.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:

Research and developiment credit carryforward
Reserves and accruals not currently deductible
Deferred revenue
Domestic net operating loss carryforwards
Foreign net operating loss and credit carryforwards
Amortization of irtangtbles
Tax deductible transaction costs
Share-based compensation
Inventory obsolescence reserve
Other :

Gross deferred tax assets
Valuation allowance for deferred tax assets

T Deferred tax assets after valuation allowance

Amortization of intangibles

Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

F-30
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December 31,

2006 2007

§ 3,387 $ 3,709

1,489 1,199

1,004 2,190

49 280

— 2,258

2,956 2,203

780 704

573 196

2,455 1,370

667 823
13,360 15,052

(964) (1,295)

. 12,396 13,757

(14,592) (12,436)

(501) (212)

(15,093) (12,648)

$ (2,697) © $ 1,109
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RUDOLTIT TECHINOLOGIES, INC. AND SUBRSIDIARIES
NUOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATENMENTS—(Cuntinued)
{In thousands, except per share data)

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount of income tax determined by applying the applicable U.S. federal
imcome (ax rate of 34% for the vear ended December 31, 2005 and 353% for the vewrs ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 10
income before provision for income taxes as lollows:

N

Year Ended December 31,

2003 20006 2007
Federal income tax proviston at statutory rate $2,310 % 8,553 $ 5,847
State taxes, net of federal effect 331 1,290 3006
In-process research and development write-off — 3,465 350
Research tax credit (566) (765) {1,262)
Extraterritorial income exclusion (174) (296) —
Domestic manufacturing benefit — (185) (279)
Change in valuation allowance for deferred tax assets (106) (524) 331
Other’ {26) 192 (447)
Provision for income taxes 51,789 $11,730 3 4,846
Effective tax rate 26% 48% 29%

Tn assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some
portion or all of the deferred tax assets wilt not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income, and tax planning
strategies in making this assessment. Based upon the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable
income over the periods in which the deferred tax assets are deductible, management believes unless otherwise noted by a
valuation allowance that it is more likely than not that the Company will realize the benefits of its deferred tax assets at
December 31, 2007. Al December 31, 2007, the Company had state and toreign net operating loss careyforwards of
approximately $431 and $133, respectively. The net operating loss carryforwards expire on various dates through December
31, 2014, At December 31, 2007, the Company had federal and state research & development credits and foreign tax credit
carryforwards of $1,711, $3,102 and $2,154, respectively. The federal research & development credits are set {o expire at
various dates through December 31, 2027. The state rescarch & development credits are set to expire at various dates through
December 21, 2022. The {oreign tax credit is set to expire at various dates through December 31, 2017.

The Company adopted the provisions of FIN 48§, as amended by FSP 48-1, effective January 1, 2007. As a result of the
unplementation of FIN 48, as amended, the Company recognized increases in the hability for unrecognized tax benefits of
£2,173, non-current deferred tax assets of $1,948 and goodwill of $245. The adoption of FIN 48, as amended, resulted ina
cumulative effect adjustment to retained earnings of $20 as of Januvary 1, 2007.

The following table is a reconciliation of beginning and ending balances of unrecognized tax benefits:

Unrecognized tax benefits, opening balance $4,552
Gross increases—tax positions in prior period 635
Gross increases—current-period tax positions 1,301
Lapse of statute of limitations (613)
Unrecognized tax benefits, ending balance $ 5,875

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits as of the date of adoption was $4,552. Included in the balance of
unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007, are $2,359 of tax benefits that, if recognized, would affect the effective tax rate.
Also included in the balance of unrecognized tax benefits at January 1, 2007, are $245 of tax
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RUDOLPII TECHNOLOGILES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continucd)
{In thousands, except per share data)

henefits that, if recognized, would result in a decrease to goodwill recorded in business combinations, and $1,948 of tax
benefits that, if recognized, would resull in adjustmiénts o other tax accounts, primazily deferred taxes and non-currens
receivables. As of December 31, 2007, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits is $3,875, ofwhich §3,610 would impoct
the effective tax rate if recognized. Additional adjustments to goodwill arising from the August merger and the PCTA
acquisition may be recorded as accounting for pre-acquisition tax positions is finalized. There are no known tax positions
which are reasonably possible to change over the next twelve months necessitating a significant change in the Company's
unrecognized tax benefits. :

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. Upon
adoption of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007, the Company increased its accrual for interest and penalties to $96. During the year
ended December 31, 2007, the Company recognized approximately $33 in interest and penalties expense associated with
uncertain tax positions. As of December 31, 2007, the Company had accrued interest and penalties expense related to
unrecognized tax benefits of $129. '

The Company is subject to U.S. federal income tax as well as income tax in multiple state and foreign jurisdictions.
Presently, the Company has not been contacted by the Internal Revenue Service for examination of income tax returns for
open periods, December 31, 2003 through December 31, 2006. The Company has also not been contacted by any U.S. state,
local or foreign tax authority for all open tax periods beginning afier December 31, 2002.

13. Segment Reporting and Geograplhic Information:

Operating segments are business units that have separate financial information and are separately reviewed by the
Company’s chief decision maker. The Company’s chief decision maker is the Chief Executive Officer. The Company and its

- subsidiaries currently operate in a single reportable segment: the design, development, manufacture, sale and service of

process control metrology systems used in semiconductor device manufacturing. The chief operating decision maker allocates
resources and assesses performance of the business and other activities at the operating segment tevel.

The following table lists the different sources of revenue:

Year Eaded December 31,

2005 206 ) 2007

Systems:

Metrology ) $52,596 63% § 68,035 34% § 34,738 22%

Inspection 11,644 14 100,666 50 83,012 53
Pars 9,188 11 14,217 7 13,678 9
Services 8,205 10 11,457 6 14,121 8
Software licensing 1,285 2 6,793 _ 3 12,580 _ 8

Total revenue $82,918 % $201,168 ‘l_ig% 51 60!1 29 ﬂ%

For geographical reporting, revenues are attributed to the geographic location in which the customer is located. Revenue
by geographic region is as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2005 2006 2007
Revenues from third parties:
United States $18,675 $ 59,097 $ 36,710
Asia ‘ 46,666 120,472 93,631
Europe 17,577 21,599 29,788
$201,168 . $160,129

Total , | $82.918 .
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RUDOLTH TECIINOLOGITES, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NUOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continuced)
(In thousands, except per share data)

Yeur Binded Pecetmber 31,
2004 2006 2007
Customers comprising 10% or more of the Company’s total revenue
for the period indicated:
A 20.3% 14.0% 11.5%
B 10.1% 2.9% 7.0%
Year Ended December 31,
: _2005_ 2006 2007
Accounts receivable of customers comprising 10% or more of the
Company’s total revenue for the period indicated:
A 32,151 $7,094 $1,680
B 35,600 $4,454 35,621

The majority of the Company’s assets are within the United States of America.

14. Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of commen shares
outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings gives effect to all potential dilutive common shares outstanding during the
period. The computation of diluted earnings per share does not assume conversion, exercise or contingent exercise of securities

that would have an anti-dilutive effect,

The ‘éomputations of basic and diluted earnings per share for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2006 and 2007 are as

foliows:
Per-
Income Shares Share
{(Numerator) {Denominalor) Amount
For the year ended December 31, 2005
Basic earnings per share:
Net income § 4917 16,899 $ 029
Effect of ditutive stock options and restricted stock units — 43 —
Diluted earnings per share:
Net income ' $ 4977 16,942 £ 029
For the year ended December 31, 2006
Basic eamings per share:
Net income 3 12,706 _27276 $047
Effect of ditutive stock options and restricted stock units e, — 298 0.01
Diluted earnings per share:
Net income : $ 12,706 27,574 $ 046
i—
For the year ended December 31, 2007
. Basic earnings per share:
Net income $ 11,859 29,168 £ 041
Effect of dilutive stock options and restricted stock units — 144 (0.01)
Diluted eamings per share; . :
Net income . $ 11859 29,312 $ 040
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For the vear ended December 31, 2005, the weighted average number of stock options and restricted stock units excluded
from the computttion of difuted ¢armings per share were 2,092 and 126, respectively. For tire year ended December 31, 2000,
the weighted avernge number of stock options and restricted stock units excluded from the computation of diluted carnings per
share were 2,008 and 12, respectively. For the year ended December 31, 2007, the weighted average number of stock options
and restricted stock units excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share were 2,185 and 129, respectively.

15. Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data (unaudited):

The following tables present certain unaudited consolidated quarterly financial information for each of the eight quarters
ended December 31, 2007. In the opinion of the Company's management, this quarterly information has been prepared on the
same basis as the consolidated financial statements and includes all adjustments (consisting only of normal recurring
adjustments) necessary to present fairty the information for the periods presented. The results of operations for any quarter are
not necessarily indicative of results for the full year or for any future period.

Year-over-year quarterly comparisons of the Company’s resuits of operations may not be as meaningful as the sequential
quarterly comparisons set forth below tend to reflect the cyclical activity of the semiconductor industry as a whole, for the
2006 quarters reflect the August Technology merger effective February 15, 2006, and for the 2007 fourth quarter reflects the
PCTA acquisition effective December 18, 2007. Quarterly fluctuations in expenses are related directly to sales activity and
volume and may also reflect the timing of operating expenses incurred throughout the year and the purchase accounting effects

of business combinations.

Revenues
Gross profit
Income (loss) before income taxes
Net income (loss)
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average number ol shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

Revenues
Gross protit -~ .. —
Income (loss) before income taxes
Net income (loss)
Eamings (loss) per share:
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average number of shares outstanding:

Basic
Diluted

http://www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1094392/000119312508045171/d10k.htm

Quarters Ended
March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2006 2006 2006 2006 Total
$ 31,848 $56,692 § 58,166 § 54,462 $201,168
9,249 29,691 30,567 . 27,935 67,442
(12,907) 12,996 13,352 10,995 24,436
(11,746} 7,991 8,071 8,390 12,706
$ (052) § 028 3 028 § 0.29 $§ 047
$ (0.52) § 028 $ 0.28 h) 0.29 b 0.46
22,545 28,638 28,849 28,954 27,276
22.545 28,943 29,119 29,342 27,574
Quarters Ended
Murch 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,
2007 2007 2007 2007 Total
— § 48,356 $47,730 § 31,461 § 32,582 £160,129
26,250 24,850 15,540 14,600 81,240
8,705 7,749 1,203 (952) 16,705
5,564 5,451 1,388 (544) 11,859
$ 019 $ 019 § 005 % 002y $ 041
$ 019 $ 019 § 005 % 0.02) $ 040
29,031 29,108 29,152 29,371 29,168
29,224 - 29,312 29,250 29,371 29,312
F-34 '
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SCHEDULE OF VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

_(;'plunm A Column 13 . Colomn C Columo Y Colirmin I:___
Bilance at i
Beginning of Charged to (Recovery Charged to Other Balance at End

Description Period of) Costs and Expenses Accounts (ret) Deductions of Perind
Year 2005:
Allowance for doubtful

accounts 5 323 hY (68) A — LY 25 b 230
Inventory valuation 1,307 480 — —_ 1,787
Warranty 1,209 1,945 —_ 1,920 1,234
Deferred tax valuation

allowance . 629 258 — 363 524
Year 2006:
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 230 $ 69 5 — 5 — 3 299
Tnventory valuation 1,787 3,585 —_ 2,567 2,305
Warranty 1,234 2,298 1,244 2,605 2,171
Deferred tax valuation .

allowance 524 964 - . 524 964
Year 2007:
Allowance for doubtful

accounts $ 299 $ (85) $ — $5 — % 214
Inventory valuation 2,805 661 — 72 3,304
Warranty 2,171 2,669 532 . 3,007 2,365
Deferred tax valuation ' :

allowance 964 331 — —_— 1,295
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SIGNATURES
PURSUANT TO TIHE REQUIREMENTS OF SECTION 13 OR 15{d} OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934, THE REGISTRANT HAS DULY CAUSED THIS REPORT TO BE SIGNED ON ITS BEHALF BY THE
UNDERSIGNED, THEREUNTO DULY AUTHORIZED.

RunoLMT TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

By: /s PAUL F. MCLAUGHLIN
Paul F. McLaughlin
Chatrman and Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 3, 2008

PURSUANT TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, THIS REPORT
HAS BEEN SIGNED BELOW BY THE FOLLOWING PERSONS ON BEHALF OF THE REGISTRANT AND IN
THE CAPACITIES AND ON THE DATES INDICATED.

Title Date

Signature

" /s/  PAUL F. MCLAUGHLIN

Paut F. McLauvghlin

/s/ STEVEN R. ROTH

Steven R. Roth

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Senior Vice President, Chief Financial .
Officer (Principal Financial Officer and
Principal Accounting Officer)

March 3, 2008

March 3, 2008
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/s/ DANIEL H. BERRY Director March 3, 2008
Daniel H. Berry :
/! PAUL CRAIG Director March 3, 2008
Paul Craig '
/st Tromas G. GREIG Director March 3, 2008
Thomas G. Greig .
/s/ JEFFL. O'DELL Director March 3, 2008 -
Jelt L, O'Dell
/s/  CARL E. RING, IR, Director March 3, 2008
Carl E. Ring, Jr.
/s/ RICHARD F. SPANIER Director March 3, 2008
Richgrd F. Spanier
/s/  AUBREY C. TOBEY Director’ March 3, 2008
Aubrey C. Tobey
/s/ JOHN R. WHITTEN Director March 3, 2008
John R. Whiiten
/s/ MICHAEL W. WRIGHT Director March 3, 2008
Michael W, Wright
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EX-18.1 2 dex181.htm PREFERABILITY LETTER OF KPMG LLP
' Exhibit 18.1

Preferability Letter of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

March 3, 2008

Rudolph Technologies, Inc."
One Rudolph Road
Flanders, NJ 07836

Ladies and Gentlemen:

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the refated consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and have reported thereon
under date of March 3, 2008. The aforementioned consolidated financial statements and our audit report thereon are included
in the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. As stated in Note 2 to those financial
statements, the Company changed its annual goodwill impairment test date from December 31 to October 31 and states that
the newly adopted accounting principle is preferable in the circumstances because it provides the Company additional time to
complete the impairment testing and report the results of those tests in the Company’s annual filing on Form 10-K. In
accordance with your request, we have reviewed and discussed with Company officials the circumstances and business
judgment and planning upon which the decision to make this change in the method of accounting was based.

With regard to the aforementioned accounting change, authoritative criteria have not been established for evaluating the
preferability of one acceptable method of accounting over another acceptable method. However, for purposes of the
Company’s compliance with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Commission, we are furnishing this letter.

Based on our review and discussion, with reliance on management’s business judgment and planning, we concur that the
newly adopted method of accounting is preferable in the Company’s circumstances.

Very truly yours,
/s/ KPMG LLP
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SUBSIDIARIES
Name ’ Jurisdiclim.l
Rudolph Technologies Europe, B.V. Netherlands
Rudolph Technologies Japan KK Japan
August Technology Corporation : Minnesota
Mariner Acquisition Company LLC Delaware
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Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
Rudolph Technologies, Inc.:

We consent to the incorporation by reference in the registration statement {No. 333-132283) on Form 5$-8 and
registration staiement (No. 333-54860) on Form S-3 of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. of our reports dated March 3, 2008, with
respect to the consolidated balance shecets of Rudofph Technologies, Inc. and subsidiarics as of December 31, 2007 and 2006
and the related consolidated statements of operations, sinckholders' equity and comprehensive income, and cash lows for
each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated financial statement
schedule, and the effectiveness of internal contro! over financial reporting as of December 31, 2007, which reports appear in
this December 31, 2007 annual report on Form 10-K of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

Our report with respect to the consolidated balance sheets of Rudolph Technologies, Tnc. and subsidiaries as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2007, and the related consolidated
financial statement schedule dated March 3, 2008 refers to Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s adoption of Financial Accounting
Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainties in Income Taxes”, effective January 1, 2007, and
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment”, effective January 1, 2006.

Our report dated March 3, 2008, on the effectiveness of internal contrel over financial reporting as of December 31,
2007, expresses our opinion that Rudolph Technologies, Inc. did not maintain effective internal control over financial
reporting as of December 31, 2007 because of the effect of a material weakness on the achievement of the objectives of the
control criteria and contains explanatory paragraphs that state a} Rudolph Technologies, Inc. did not have adequate oversight
and review controls regarding the preparation and review of the accounting for income taxes as of December 31, 2007, and b)
management of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. excluded the probe card test and analysis business (PCTA) acquired in December
2007 from its assessment of the effectiveness of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2007, and our audit of internal control over financial reporting of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. as of December
31, 2007 also excluded an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of PCTA.,

/s/ KPMGLLP

Short Hills, New Jersey
March 3, 2008 -

http:_//www.seq.gqv/Archives/_edggr/.d’ata/lO94392fOOO11931:2508045171/dex23l.hm1 _ 4/17/2008
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Exhibit 31.1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Paul F. McLaughlin, certify that: ,
1. | have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rudelph Technologies, tnc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, ihis report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit ju state a material
fact necessary 1o make the statements made, tn light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, nal
misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the

periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)} and I ar¢ responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: _

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiari ies, is made known to us by others within those entities, pamcu!arly during the penod in which this report is
being prepared,

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such.internal control over financial reporting
to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external pu:poses in acc01d111ce wnh generally accepted accounting

" principles; . .
¢. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporiing thal occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual repoit} that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting; and :

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, 10 the registrant’s auditors and the audit commitiee of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and . .

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

. Date: March 3, 2008

By: /s/__PAUL F. MCLAUGHLIN
Paul F. McLaughblin
Chairman and Ch_ier Execative Officer

http://'m.sec.gov/Archives/edgé‘:/da{a/1094392/000119312508045'171/dex311.hun - 4/17/2008_
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Certification of Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

I, Steven R. Roth, certify that:
1. I'have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Rudolph Technologies, Inc,;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material
fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such stalements were made, not
mislcading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly
present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the

periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls
and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules [3a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: ..

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be
designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated
subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, pamcularly during the penod in which this report is
being prepared,

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial 1ep0mn°
to be desitgned under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and
the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
“principles;- : :

¢. Evaluated the effecnveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our
conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this
report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting that occurred
during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quaiter {the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report} that
has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 1o materially affect, the registrant’s internal contrel over financial
reporting; and

6. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and | have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal
control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committce of the registrant’s board of directors (or
persons performing the equivalent {unctions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report
financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in
the registrant’s internal contro! over financial reporting.

Date: March 3, 2008—
By: /s/ STEVENR. ROTH

- Steven R. Roth
Senlor Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

7 http ://www.sec.gov/Archives;/ed_gar/data/ 1094392/0001193 12598045 171/dex312.htm 4/17/2008
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EXECUTIVE OFFICER
Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Paul F. McLaughlin, ceitity, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1330, as adopied pursuant to Section 906 of the Swbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2007 fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that
information contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and
results of operations of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

Date: March 3, 2008
By: /s/  PauL F. MCLAUGHLIN

Paul F. McLaughiin
Chairman and Chiefl Executive Officer

" httpi/iwww.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1094392/000119312508045171/dex321 htm . 4/17/2008
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FINANCIAL OFFICER
Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Steven R. Rotly, cernily, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1330, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Surbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that the Annual Report of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007
fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information
contained in such Annual Report on Form 10-K fairly presents in all matenial respects the financial condition and results of

operations of Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

Date: March 3, 2008

By: /s/ STEVEN R. ROTH
Steven R. Roth
Senior Vice President and Chief Finavocial Officer

* http//www.sec.gov/Archives/edgar/data/1094392/000119312508045171/dex322.htm  4/17/2008
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RUDOLPH

TECHNOLOGIES

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
To be held May 20, 2008

TO THE STOCKHOLDERS:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of Rudolph Technologies,
Inc. (the “Company™), a Delaware corporation, will be held on May 20, 2008 at 9:00 a.m., local time, at the
Company’s corporate headquarters, located at One Rudolph Road, Flanders, New Jersey, 07836, for the
following purposes:

1. To elect three Class III directors to serve for three-year terms expiring upon the 2011 Annual
Meeting of Stockholders or until their successors are elected;

2. To ratify the appointment of Emst & Young LLP as our independent registered public accountants
for the year ending December 31, 2008; and

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any adjournment or
postponement thereof.

The foregoing items of business are more fully described in the Proxy Statement accompanying this Notice.
Included in the mailing of this Proxy Statement is a copy of our Annual Report to Stockholders for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2007.

Only stockholders of record at the close of business on March 31, 2008 are entitled to notice of and to vote
at the meeting and any adjournment thereof.

All stockholders are cordially invited to attend the meeting in person. However, to ensure your
representation at the meeting, you are urged to mark, sign, date and return the enclosed proxy card as promptly as
possible in the postage-prepaid envelope enclosed for that purpose. Any stockholder attending the meeting may
vote in person even if such stockholder has returned a proxy.

FOR THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

STEVEN R. ROTH
Secretary

Flanders, New Jersey
April 21, 2008




RUDOLPH TECHNOLOGIES, INC.

PROXY STATEMENT

INFORMATION CONCERNING SOLICITATION AND VOTING

General

The enclosed Proxy is solicited on behalf of the Board of Directors of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. (the
“Company”) for use at the 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held May 20, 2008 at 9:00 a.m., local
time (the “Annual Meeting™), or at any adjournment thereof, for the purposes set forth herein and in the
accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Annual Meeting will be held at the Company’s
corporate headgquarters, located at One Rudolph Road, Flanders, New Jersey, 07836. The Company’s telephone
number is (973) 691-1300.

These proxy solicitation materials and the Company’s Annual Report to Stockholders for the year ended
December 31, 2007, including financial statements, were mailed on or about April 21, 2008 to stockholders
entitled to vote at the meeting.

Record Date and Voting Securities

Stockholders of record at the close of business on March 31, 2008 (the “Record Date™) are entitled to notice
of and to vote at the meeting. At the Record Date, 30,559,982 shares of the Company’s Common Stock, $0.001
par value, were issued and outstanding.

Revocability of Proxies

Any proxy given pursuant to this solicitation may be revoked by the person giving it at any time before its
use by delivering to the Secretary of the Company at the Company’s principal executive offices a writien notice
of revocation or a duly executed proxy bearing a later date or by attending the meeting and voting in person.

Voting and Solicitation

Each stockholder of record is entitled to one vote for each share of Commeon Stock owned by such
stockholder on all matters presented at the Annual Meeting. Stockholders do not have the right to cumulate their
votes in the election of directors.

The Company will bear the cost of soliciting proxies. In addition, the Company may reimburse brokerage
firms and other persons representing beneficial owners of shares for their expenses in forwarding solicitation
material to such beneficial owners. Solicitation of proxies by mail may be supplemented by telephone, facsimile
or personal solicitation by directors, officers or regular employees of the Company. No additional compensation
will be paid to such persons for such services.

Quorum; Abstentions; Broker Non-votes

The required quorum for the transaction of business at the Annual Meeting is a majority of the votes eligible
to be cast by holders of shares of Common Stock issued and outstanding on the Record Date. Shares that are
voted “FOR”, “AGAINST” or “WITHHOLD AUTHORITY"” with respect to a matter are treated as being present
at the meeting for purposes of establishing a quorum and are also treated as shares entitled to vote at the Annual
Meeting (the “Votes Cast™) with respect to such matter.
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While there is no definitive statutory or case law authority in Delaware as to the proper treatment of
abstentions, the Company believes that abstentions should be counted for purposes of determining both (i) the
presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of business and (ii) the total number of Votes Cast with
respect to a propasal (other than the election of directors}. In the absence of controlling precedent to the contrary,
the Company intends to treat abstentions in this manner. Accordingly, abstentions will have the same effect asa
vote against the proposal.

Under current Delaware case law, while broker non-votes (i.e. the votes of shares held of record by brokers |
as to which the underlying beneficial owners have given no voting instructions) should be counted for purposes '
of determining the presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of business, broker non-votes should not
be counted for purposes of determining the number of Votes Cast with respect to the particular proposal on
which the broker has expressly not voted. Accordingly, the Company intends to treat broker non-votes in this
manner.

Deadlines for Submission of Stockholder Proposals for 2009 Annual Meeting

Stockholders of the Company are entitled to present proposals for consideration at forthcoming stockholder
meetings provided that they comply with the proxy rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) and the Bylaws of the Company. Stockholders wishing to present a proposal at the
Company’s 2009 Annual Stockholder Meeting must submit such proposal in writing to the Company no later
than by December 22, 2008 if they wish for it to be eligible for inclusion in the proxy statement and form of
proxy relating to that meeting. In addition, under the Company’s Bylaws, a stockholder wishing to make a
proposal at the 2009 Annual Stockholder Meeting must submit such a proposal in writing to the Company no
later than March 12, 2009.

No Appraisal Rights

Stockholders have no dissenters’ rights of appraisal with respect to any of the matters to be voted upon at
the Annual Meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRINCIPLES AND PRACTICES

Rudolph Technologies is committed to sound and effective corporate governance practices. Having such
principles is essential to running our business efficiently and to maintaining our integrity in the marketplace. The
major components of our corporate governance practices are described below,

Codes of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Ethics and a Financial Code of Ethics that set forth
principles to guide all employees, executive officers and directors and establish procedures for reporting any
violations of these principles. These may be found on our website at http://www.rudolphtech.com/CodesEthics.aspx
or may be requested by writing to Rudolph Technologies, Inc., Attention: Investor Relations, One Rudolph Road,
P.0. Box 1000, Flanders, New Jersey (17836. The Company will disclose any amendment to its codes of ethics or
waiver of a provision of its codes of ethics applicable to its officers, including the name of the officer to whom the
waiver was granted, on our website at www.rudolphtech.com, on the Investor Relations page.

Board Meetings and Committees

The Board of Directors of the Company held a total of four meetings during 2007. No director attended
fewer than 75% of the meetings of the Board of Directors or 70% of the commitiee meetings upon which such
director served. While the Company does not currently have a formal policy regarding the attendance of directors
at the annual meeting of stockholders, directors are encouraged to attend. All then current members of the Board
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of Directors attended the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders. The Board of Directors has an Audit
Committee, a Compensation Committee and a Nominating and Governance Committee, each of which has
adopted a written charter. The charters of these committees are in compliance with rules adopted by the SEC and
the NASDAQ stock market on which our stock is listed (*Nasdag™).

Board Independence

The Board makes an annual determination as to the independence of each of our Board members under the
current standards for “independence” established by Nasdaq and the SEC. The Board has determined that the
following members of the Board, consisting of a majority of the Board, satisfy these independence standards:
Daniel H. Berry, Paul Craig, Carl E. Ring, Ir., Richard F. Spanier, Thomas G. Greig, Aubrey C. Tobey, John R.
Whitten and Michael W. Wright. In addition, on four occasions during 2007, our Board met in executive sessions
in which solely the independent Board members were present.

Audit Committee

We have an Audit Committec that assists the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities for general oversight of
the integrity of our financial statements and with our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
Specifically, the Audit Committee approves and authorizes engagement of the Company’s independent registered
public accountants, and is primarily responsible for approving the services performed by the Company’s
independent registered public accountants and for reviewing and evaluating the Company’s accounting principles
and its system of internal accounting controls. The report of our Audit Committee is found below under the
caption “Audit Committee Report.”

The Audit Committee is governed by its own charter that sets forth its specific responsibilities and the
qualifications for membership to the committee. The charter of the Aundit Committee is available on our website
at www.rudolphtech.com, on the Investor Relations page. The Audit Committee held ten meetings in 2007. In
Janvary 2008, there was a change to the composition to the Audit Committee and Paul Craig was appointed to
the Audit Commiitee to replace Daniel H. Berry, so that the Audit Committee is currently composed of Directors
Paul Craig, Cart E. Ring, Jr., Aubrey C. Tobey and John R. Whitten. The Board has determined that Paul Craig,
Carl E. Ring, Jr., Aubrey C. Tobey and John R. Whitten meet the requirements for membership to the Audit
Committee set forth by Nasdaq and the SEC, including that they be “independent.”

The Board has determined that John R. Whitten meets the definition of an “Audit Committee Financial
Expert” under SEC rules, and also has the level of financial sophistication required of at least one member of the
Audit Comunittee under Nasdaq rules. .

Compensation Committee

The Compensation Committee has its own charter that sets forth its specific responsibilities, including the
establishment of the policies upon which compensation of and incentives for the Company’s executive officers
will be based, the review and approval of the compensation of the Company’s executive officers, and the
administration of the Company’s stock and stock purchase plans. The charter of the Compensation Committee is
available on our website at www.rudolphtech.com, on the Investor Relations page.

The Compensation Commirtee held four meetings during the last year. This Committee is currently
composed of Directors Daniel H, Berry, Paul Craig and Carl E, Ring, Jr. The Board has determined that Daniel
H. Berry, Paul Craig and Carl E. Ring, Jr. meet the requirements for membership on the Compensation
Committee, including the independence requirements of Nasdaq. For a complete discussion of the Compensation
Committee, please refer to the Executive Compensation section of the Compensation, Discussion and Analysis
(“CD&A™).




Nominating and Governance Committee

Like the other committees of the Board, the Nominating and Governance Comrmittee has its own charter that
outlines its responsibilities. These responsibilities include identifying prospective director nominees and
recommending to the Board director nominees for the next annual meeting of stockholders and replacements of a
director in the event a director steps down. The Nominating and Governance Committee also recommends to the
Board director nominees for the Audit and Compensation Committees. The charter of the Nominating and
Governance Committee is available on our website at www.rudolphtech.com, on the Investor Relations page.

The Nominating and Governance Committee is currently composed of Directors Thomas G. Greig,
Richard F. Spanier, Aubrey C. Tobey and Michael W. Wright and held four meetings during the last year. The
Board has determined that all of these directors meet the requirements for membership to the Nominating and
Governance Committee, including the independence requirements of Nasdag.

The Nominating and Governance Committee determines the required selection criteria and qualifications of
director nominees based upon the needs of the Company at the time nominees are considered. A candidate must
possess the ability to apply good business judgment and must be in a position to properly exercise his or her
duties of loyalty and care. Candidates should also exhibit proven leadership capabilities, high integrity and
experience with a high level of responsibilities within their chosen fields, and have the ability to grasp complex
principles of business, finance, intemnational transactions and semiconductor inspection and metrology
technologies. When current Board members are considered for nomination for reelection, the Nominating and
Governance Committee also takes into consideration their prior contributions to and performance on the Board
and their record of attendance.

The Nominating and Governance Committee will consider the above criteria for nominees identified by the
Nominating and Governance Committee itself, by stockholders, or through some other source. The Nominating
and Governance Committee uses the same process for evaluating all nominees, regardless of the original source
of nomination. The Nominating and Governance Committee may use¢ the services of a third party search firm to
assist in the identification or evaluation of Board member candidates.

The Nominating and Governance Committee has a formal policy with regard to consideration of director
candidates recommended by the Company’s stockholders. In accordance with the policy, the Committee will
consider recommendations and nominations for candidates to the Board of Directors from stockholders of the
Company holding no less than 1% of the Company’s securities for at least twelve moaths prior to the date of the
submission of the recommendation or nomination. Stockholders wishing to recommend persons for consideration
by the Nominating and Governance Committee as nominees for election to the Company’s Board of Directors
can do so by writing to the Office of the General Counsel of the Company at its principal executive offices giving
each such person’s name, biographical data and qualifications. Any such recommendation should be
accompanied by a written statement concerning the eligibility and qualifications from the person recommended
and of his or her consent to be named as a nominee and, if nominated and elected, to serve as a director. The
Company’s Bylaws also contain a procedure for stockholder nomination of directors.

Communications with the Board of Directors

We have a formal policy regarding communications with the Board of Directors. Stockholders may
communicate with the Board of Directors by writing to them at ¢/o Rudotph Technologies, Inc., Office of the
General Counsel, One Rudolph Road, P.O. Box 1000, Flanders, New Jersey 07836 and such communications
will be forwarded to the Board of Directors. Stockholders who would like their submission directed to a member
of the Board of Directors may so specify, and the communication will be forwarded to such specific directors, as
appropriate.




PROPOSAL 1
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Nominees

The authorized number of directors is currently established at ten. The Company’s Certificate of
Incorporation provides that the directors shall be divided into three classes, with the classes serving for staggered,
three-year terms. Currently there are three directors in each of Class I and Class 11 and four directors in Class IIL
Three of the four Class III directors are to be elected at this Annual Meeting and will hold office until the 2011
Annual Meeting or until their successors have been duly elected and qualified. One of the Class III directors will
resign from the Board of Directors at the end of his term and will not seek re-election at this Annual Meeting
reducing the number of board members to nine. Each of the three Class 1 directors will hold office until the 2009
Annual Meeting or until their successors have been duly elected and qualified and each of the three Class II
directors will hold office until the 2010 Annual Meeting or until their successors have been duly elected and
qualified. These directors were approved by the Board for inclusion on this Proxy Statement based on the
recommendation of the Nominating and Governance Committee.

Unless otherwise instructed, the proxy holders will vote the proxies received by them for the Company's three
nominees named below, each of whom is currently a director of the Company. In the event that any nominee of the
Company becomes unable or declines to serve as a director at the time of the Annual Megting, the proxy holders
will vote the proxies for any substitute nominee who is designated by the current Board of Directors to fill the
vacancy. It is not expected that any nominee listed below will be unable or will decline to serve as a director.

The names of the three Class Il nominees for director and certain information about each of them are set
forth below. The name of, and certain information about, the non-continuing Class III director, is also set forth
below. The names of, and certain information about, the current Class [ and Class II directors with unexpired
terms are also set forth below. All information is as of the Record Date.

Director
Name E Position Since
Nominees Class III Directors:
JeffL.ODell .......... ... .. i, 47 Chief Executive Officer, Bewiki, Inc. 2006
Aubrey C. Tobey ................ooie. 82 President, ACT International 1998
JohnR. Whitten ....................c.... 61 Former Chief Financial Officer, Vice 2006

President and Treasurer, Applied Industrial
Technologies, Inc.

Non-Continuing Class Il Director:
Michael W. Wright(1) ..... o 61 President and Chief Executive Officer, 2006
’ Advanced Inquiry Systems, Inc.

Continuing Class I Directors:

PaulCraig .........ccoiiiiiiniiinn., 51 President, Riverside Partners, Inc, 1996

Paul F. McLaughlin . ...................... 62 Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, 1996
Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

CarlE.Ring, Jr. ......................... 70 Former Managing Director, Liberty Capital 1996
Partners, Inc.

Continuing Class Il Directors:

Daniel H.Berry .......................... 62 Operating Partner, Riverside Partners, LLC 1998

Thomas G. Greig ................ccc.ouee. 60 Managing Director, Liberty Capital Partners, 2003
Inc.

Richard F.Spanter ........................ 68 Retired, Chairman Emeritus 1966

(1) Mr. Wright’s term will expire and he will not seek re-election.
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Except as indicated below, each nominee or incumbent director has been engaged in the principal
occupation set forth above during the past five years. There are no family relationships between any directors or
executive officers of the Company.

Paul F. McLaughlin has served as the Company’s Chairman since January 2000 and Chief Executive
Officer and as a director of the Company since June 1996, Mr. McLaughlin holds a B.S. in Metallurgical
Engineering from Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, an M.S. in Metallurgy and Materials Science from Lehigh
University and an M.B.A. from Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration.

Daniel H. Berry has served as one of the Company’s directors since October 1998. Since January 2002,
Mr. Berry has been an Operating Partner of Riverside Partners, LLC, a private equity investment firm. From July
2004 to August 2007, Mr. Berry also served as Executive Vice President of Applied Precision, a Riverside
portfolio company. He was employed by Ultratech Stepper, Inc. (presently Uliratech, Inc.), an equipment
supplier to the semiconductor industry, from 1990 to 2001 in various positions including President and Chief
Operating Officer from May 1999 to November 2001. Prior to this, Mr, Berry held positions at General Signal,
Perkin Elmer and Bell Laboratories. Mr. Berry holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from the Polytechnic
Institute of Brooklyn.

Paul Craig has served as one of the Company’s directors since June 1996. Since February 1988, Mr. Craig
has served as President of Riverside Partners, Inc., a private equity investment firm. Mr. Craig holds a B.A. from
Harvard University.

Thomas G. Greig has served as one of the Company’s directors since January 2003. Since July 1998,
Mr. Greig has been a Managing Director of Liberty Capital Partners, Inc., a private equity investment firm. From
December 1985 to July 1998, Mr. Greig was a Managing Director of Donaldson, Lufkin, & Jenrette, Inc., an
investment banking firm. Mr, Greig holds a B.S. in Engineering from Princeton University, an M.S.E. in
Electrical Engineering from New York University and an M.B.A. from Harvard University Graduate School of
Business Administration. Mr. Greig is currently the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Black Box
Corporation.

Jeff L. O’ Dell has served as one of the Company’s directors since February 2006 when the Company
merged with August Technology Corporation. Since March 2007, Mr. O'Dell has been the Chief Executive
Officer and a co-founder of Bewiki, Inc., an internet information discovery software company. From February
2006 to April 2007, Mr. O’Dell served as the Company’s Strategic Business Fellow. Mr. O’Dell co-founded
August Technology in September 1992 and served as its Chief Executive Officer from July 2001 to February
2006 and also served as the Chairman of the Board of August Technology from 1994 to February 2006.

Mr. O’Dell holds a B.S. in Engineering from the University of Minnesota.

Carl E. Ring, Jr. has served as one of the Company’s directors since June 1996. He was a founding partner
of Liberty Partners, L.P., whose general partner is Liberty Capital Partners, Inc., a New York investment
management firm, where he served as a Managing Director from September 1992 to October 2001. From June
1991 1o September 1992, he was President of Eden, Miller & Co., Incorporated, an investment-banking firm. For
more than five years prior thereto, Mr. Ring was a Managing Director of Lehman Brothers Inc., an investment
banking and brokerage firm. Mr. Ring holds a B.A. in Mathematics from George Washington University and an
M.B.A. from Harvard University Graduate School of Business Administration. Mr. Ring served as a director of
Monaco Coach Corporation until May 2005.

Richard F. Spanier has served as Chairman Emeritus of the Company’s Board of Directors since January
2000 and prior to that as the Company’s Chairman of the Board of Directors since September 1966. From
September 1966 to June 1996, Dr. Spanier served as the Company’s President and Chief Executive Officer.
Dr. Spanier holds a B.S. in Physics, an M.S. in Physical Chemistry and a Ph.D. in Chemical Physics from
Stevens Institute of Technology.




Aubrey C. Tobey has served as one of the Company’s directors since October 1998. Since May 1987,
Mr. Tobey has served as President of ACT International, a company which provides marketing and management
services for high technology companies. Mr. Tobey holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from Tufts
University and an M.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Connecticut. Mr. Tobey served as a
director of Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing, Ltd. until May 2003,

John R. Whitten has served as one of the Company’s directors since July 2006 upon his appointment to the
Company’s Board of Directors. From November 1995 to December 2003, Mr. Whitten served as Chief Financial
Officer, Vice President and Treasurer of Applied Industrial Technologies, Inc., an industrial supply distributor.
Mr. Whitten is a C.P.A. and holds a B.B.A. in Accounting from Cleveland State University.

Michuel W. Wright has served as one of the Company’s directors since February 2006 when the Company
merged with August Technology Corporation. Since August 2006, Mr. Wright has served as the President and
Chief Executive Officer of Advanced Inquiry Systems, Inc., a supplier to semiconductor manufacturers. From
August 2005 to August 2006, he had been the Senior Advisor to the CEO of Entegris, Inc., a supplier to
semiconductor manufacturers. From May 2002 to February 2003, he held the position of President and Chief
Operating Officer of Entegris, Inc. Mr. Wright is a graduate of the 1).S. Navy Nuclear Power Program.

Mr. Wright served as a director of August Technology from March 2000 unti] February 2006.

Compensation of Directors

Directors who are employees of the Company receive no compensation for their services as members of the
Board of Directors. In 2007, directors were not paid to serve on the committees of the Board of Directors with
the exception of John R. Whitten who received cash compensation of $2,500 each quarter for his services as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. From time to time directors may be compensated for work performed as
members of special subcommittees of the Board of Directors. Fees paid to directors for special subcommittee
work in 2007 totaled $9,000.

Directors who are not employees of the Company received cash compensation of $5,000 for attendance at
each quarterly meeting of the Board of Directors in 2007. As new non-employee directors commence serving on
the Board of Directors, they are first awarded an initial grant (“Initial Grant™) of 10,000 stock options at an
exercise price equal to the fair market value per share of the Common Stock on the date of the Board meeting at
which the Initial Grant was awarded or the equivalent in restricted stock units subject to the terms of the Rudolph
Technologies, Inc. 1999 Stock Plan (“1999 Plan™). Annually, each non-employee director who continues to serve
as a non-cmployee director through the anniversary date of the Initial Grant will automatically be granted an
option to purchase 5,000 shares of Commeon Stock at an exercise price equal to the fair market value per share of
the Common Stock on the date of the Board meeting following such anniversary or will be awarded the Board
determined equivalent in restricted stock units subject to the terms of the 1999 Plan. Since 2003, the above
mentioned share-based compensation grants have been restricted stock units instead of stock option awards.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, the directors, excluding the director who is a named executive
officer, of the Company (nine individuals) received the following total compensation:

Fees Earned or All Other

Name Paid in Cash  Stock Awards (1) Option Awards (2} Compensation Total

Daniel H. Berry ................ $15,000 $36,135 $— 3 — $51,135
Paul Craig .. ................... $20,000 $36,135 $— 5§ — $56,135
Thomas G. Greig ............... $22,000 $36,135 — 5 — $58,135
Jeff L.ODell(3)................ $10,000 $17,430 $— $47,731 $75,161
CarlE.Ring,Jr. ............... $22,000 $36,135 $— $ — $58.,135
Richard F, Spanier(4) ............ $20,000 $36,135 $— $£10,000 $66,135
Aubrey C. Tobey ............... $25,000 $36,135 $— $ — $61,135
John R. Whitten ................ $30,000 $63,017 $— 5 — $93,017
Michael W. Wright . . ............ $15,000 $58,648 $— 5 — $73,648




(D

(2

(3

4)

The amounts in this column reflect the dollar amounts recognized for financial statement reporting purposes
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 123(R), Share-based Payments (SFAS No. 123R). For more information regarding the
Company's assumptions made in the valuation of restricted stock units, see Note 10 to the financial
statements included in the Company’s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007. For stock awards
granted to non-employee directors in 2007, the total grant date fair value of these awards was as follows:
Mr. Berry ($40,375), Mr. Craig ($40,375), Mr. Greig ($40,375), Mr. O’Dell ($40,375), Mr. Ring ($40,375),
Mr. Spanier ($40,375), Mr. Tobey ($40,375), Mr. Whitten ($40,375) and Mr. Wright ($40,375).

As of December 31, 2007 directors had the following stock options outstanding and exercisable: Mr. Berry
(16,783 shares), Mr. Craig {15,000 shares), Mr. Greig (15,000 shares), Mr. O’'Dell (5,337 shares), Mr. Ring
(15,000 shares), Mr. Spanier (15,000 shares), Mr. Tobey (15,000 shares), Mr. Whitten (0 shares) and

Mr. Wright (21,071 shares). As these directors were fully vested in their options prior to 2007, no expense is
shown in this column,

Mr. O’ Dell was an employee director of the Company until April 6, 2007 and received other compensation
consisting of salary paid to Mr. O’Dell in 2007 of $46,154, amounts contributed by the Company under the
Company’s 401(k) Saving and Retirement Plan for 2007 of $1,385 and life insurance premiums paid by the
Company for 2007 of $192.

Mr. Spanier is paid $10,000 per year under a 10 year deferred compensation plan, related to his sale of the
Company in 1996, that commenced in January 1999.

Vote Required

The three nominees receiving the highest number of votes of the shares entitled to be voted for them shall be

elected as Class I directors, Votes withheld from any director will be counted for purposes of determining the
presence or absence of a quorum for the transaction of business at the meeting, but have no other legal effect
upon election of directors under Delaware law.

The Company’s Board of Directors unanimously recommends voting “FOR” the nominees set forth

herein.




PROPOSAL 2
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Although ratification by stockholders is not required by law, the Board of Directors is submitting the
selection of Emst & Young LLP for ratification as a matter of good corporate governance. The Audit Committeg
of the Board of Directors has authorized, and the Board of Directors has approved, the selection of Ernst &
Young LLP as independent registered public accountants, to audit the financial statements of the Company for
the year ending December 31, 2008 and recommends that the stockholders vote for ratification of such
appointment. In the event of a negative vote on such ratification, the Board of Directors may reconsider its
selection. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee may appoint a new independent registered public
accounting firm at any time during the year if they believe that such a change would be in the best interests of the
Company and its stockholders.

KPMG LLP had served as the Company's independent registered public accounting firm since 2002.
Effective March 18, 2008, the Company, pursuant to the approval of the Company’s Audit Committee, dismissed
KPMG LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm and effective March 19, 2008,
engaged Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accounting firm.

The reports of KPMG LLP on the Company’s financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2006
and 2007 do not contain an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion and are not qualified or modified as to
uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principles, except as follows: KPMG LLP’s report on the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of and for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 contained the
following scparate paragraphs: (i) As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company
adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainties in Income
Taxes”, effective January 1, 2007; and (ii) As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R}, “Share-Based Payment”, effective
January 1, 2006,

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2007 and through March 18, 2008, there were no
disagreements with KPMG LLP on any matters of accounting principles or practices, financial statement
disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not resolved to KPMG LLP's satisfaction,
would have caused KPMG LLP to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection with
its audit report on the Company’s financial statements for such year, and there were no reportable events as
defined in [tem 304(a)(1){v) of Regulation S-K, except as follows:

As previously reported in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K filed on March 3, 2008, the
Company’s Management’s Report on the Internal Control over Financial Reporting stated, and KPMG LLP’s
report on internal controls stated, that the process and procedures surrounding the preparation and review of the
income tax provision did not include adequate management oversight and review controls as of December 31,
2007. Specifically, the Company did not ensure that effective oversight of the work performed by their outside
tax advisor, Deloitte Tax LLP was exercised. Management is re-cvaluating the design of the income tax
accounting process and controls, implementing new and improved processes and controls, and increasing the
level of review and discussion of significant tax matters and supporting documentation with the Company’s
outside advisor and senior finance management to address the material weakness identifted and to enhance its
internal controls.

During the years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007 and through March 18, 2008, the
Company did not consult with Ernst & Young LLP regarding any of the matters or events set forth in
Item 304(2)(2)(i) and (ii) of Regulation S-K.

The Company provided KPMG LLP with a copy of its Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 24, 2008
and requested that KPMG LLP furnish it with a letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange Commission
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stating whether it agrees with the statements made by the Company herein and, if not, stating the respects in
which it does not agree. The letter from KPMG LLP to the Securities and Exchange Commission dated as of
March 24, 2008 was attached as Exhibit 16.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on March 24,
2008.

Representatives of both Emst & Young LLP and KPMG LLP are not expected to be present at the Annual
Meeting and therefore will not have the opportunity to make a statement or be available to respond to any
questions.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Registered Public Accountants

The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit and permissible non-audit services provided by the Company’s
independent registered public accountants. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax
and other services. Pre-approval is generally provided for up to one year, and any pre-approval is detailed as to
the particular service or category of services and is generally subject to a specific budget. The independent
registered public accountants and management are required to periodically report to the Audit Committee
regarding the extent of services provided by the independent registered public accountants in accordance with
this pre-approval and the fees for the services performed to date. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve
particular services on a case-by-case basis. During 2006 and 2007, all services provided by KPMG LLP were
pre-approved by the Audit Committee in accordance with this policy.

Fees billed to the Company by KPMG LLP for the years 2007 and 2006

The followiﬁg table sets forth the approximate aggregate fees billed to the Company for services related to
or provided during the years ending December 31, 2007 and 2006 by KPMG LLP:

2007 2000
AUt Fees(]) . ..ot e et $785,600 $935,000
Audit-Related Fees(2) .. ... iii i i e e e e 18,500 28,450
B - 0 -7 T 12,000 12,500
N 01, T=1 g =TT PO —_ —
L7 2T T S U $816,100 $975,950

(1) This category consists of aggregate fees billed for the audit of our annual financial statements, review of the
financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and services that are normally provided
by the independent registered public accountants in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or
engagements for those calendar years.

(2) This category consists of aggregate fees billed for assurance and related services that are reasonably related
to the performance of the audit or review of the Company’s annual financial statements and are not reported
under “Audit Fees.” These services included fees for accounting consultations, an employee benefit plan
audit and services related to acquisition matters and merger due diligence.

(3) This category consists of aggregate fees billed for professional services for federal, state and international
tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

All of the fees listed in the chart above were pre-approved by the Audit Committee, which concluded that

the provisions of such services by KPMG LLP was compatible with the maintenance of that firm’s independence
in the conduct of its audit functions.

10




Vote Required
The affirmative vote of a majority of the Votes Cast will be required to ratify Ernst & Young LLP as the
Company’s independent registered public accountants.

The Company’s Board of Directors unanimously recommends voting “FOR?” the ratification of the
appointment of Ernst & Young LLP as the Company’s independent registered public accountants for the
year ending December 31, 2008,
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The following is the Audit Committee’s report submitted to the Board of Directors for the year ended
December 31, 2007.

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors has:

reviewed and discussed with management and the independent registered public accounting firm,
together and separately, the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements contained in its
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007,

discussed with KPMG LLP, the Company’s independent registered public accountants, the matters
required to be discussed by Statement on Auditing Standards No. 61;

received the written disclosures and the letter from KPMG LLP required by Independence Standards
Board Standard No. 1 and has discussed with KPMG LLP its independence; and

considered whether the provision of non-audit services as noted under Proposal 2 is compatible with
maintaining the independence of KFMG LLP, and has determined that such provision of non-audit
services is compatible.

Based on the foregoing review and discussion, the Audit Committee recommended to the Board of Directors
that the audited financial statements be included in the Company’s 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K.

THE AUDIT COMMITTEE

JOHN R. WHITTEN (CHAIRMAN)
PauL CRAIG

CARrL E. RING, Jr.

AUBREY C. TOBEY
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Introduction / Corporate Governance
Compensation Committee Members and Charter

The Compensation Committee of the Rudolph Technologies’ Board of Directors was established in 1996
and is comprised solely of outside directors. In general, the Compensation Committee is responsible for
reviewing and recommending for approval by the Board of Directors the Company’s compensation practices,
including executive salary levels and vanable compensation programs, both cash-based and equity-based. With
respect to the compensation of the Company’s Chief Executive Officer, the Compensation Committee reviews
and approves the various elements of the Chief Executive Officer’s compensation. With respect to other
executive officers, the Compensation Committee reviews the recommendations for compensation for such
individuals presented to the Committee by the Chief Executive Officer and the reasons thereof and approves such
recommendations or, in its discretion, modifies the compensation packages for any such individuals. Base salary
levels for executive officers of the Company have been generally established at or near the start of each year, and
final bonuses for executive officers have been determined subsequent to the end of the fiscal year based upon
such individual’s performance and the audited financial performance of the Company.

The Compensation Committee of Rudolph Technologies, Inc. is currently composed of Directors Daniel Berry
who is the Chairman of the Committee, Paul Craig and Carl E. Ring, Jr., each of whom meet the requirements for
membership on the Compensation Committee, including the independence requirements of Nasdaq.

The members of the Company’s Compensation Committee have developed their knowledge and experience
in compensation matters through a variety of avenues which may include, among others, participating as
directors and providing services in related areas on boards of other companies, developing operational experience
while serving as officers of other companies and reviewing and analyzing company compensation plans as
partners with investment firms. None of the Directors of the Company’s Compensation Committee has any
interlocking relationships, as defined by the SEC, with the Company. The Chairman of the Committee
establishes the agenda and meeting schedule, conducts the meetings and reports on their proceedings to the
Board, including any recommendations for approval by the Board.

The Compensation Committee has its own charter that sets forth its specific responsibilities, including the
establishment of the policies upon which compensation of and incentives for the Company’s executive officers
will be based, the review and approval of the performance and compensation of the Company’s executive
officers, and review and approval of compensation for the Company’s Directors. In addition, the charter
designates that the Compensation Committee has the authority to secure the services of both internal and external
advisers and consultants, including budgetary oversight thereof, establish subcommittees and administrate any of
the Company's equity compensation plans adopted by the Board.

The Committee is entitled to delegate its authority as it deems appropriate to subcommittees as well as to
establish a Non-Officer Stock Option Committee with the authority to grant options or stock purchase rights to
purchase up to a certain number of shares as set forth in a resolution of the Compensation Committee to each
new non-officer employee of the Company. In 2006, the Compensation Committee delegated to the Nominating
and Governance Committee, the task of reviewing and making recommendations for possible changes to the
compensation package for Directors. The Nominating and Governance Committee completed this review,
reported its findings to the Compensation Committee which in turn reviewed the results and recommended to the
full Board that no adjustments to Director compensation be made at that time other than the establishment of an
additional stipend of $2,500 payable quarterly to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee for the additional
responsibilities and functions associated with this role. The Board approved this stipend. In 2007, also pursuant
to the delegation received from the Compensation Committee, the Nominating and Governance Committee
recommended to the Board and the Board approved a $1,000 per meeting fee to any director attending in person
a committee meeting, including any special subcommittee, which is not contemporaneously held with a Board of
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Directors meeting with the exception of the Audit Committee Chairman who receives an additional stipend for
his efforts in that role, Fees paid to directors for special subcommittee work in 2007 totaled $9,000. At this time,
the Compensation Committee has not established a Non-Officer Stock Option Committee.

In accordance with the charter, the Compensation Committee annually reviews and reassesses the adequacy of
its charter and recommends any proposed changes to the Board for approval. The Compensation Committee charter
was last reviewed in February 2007 at which time no changes to the charter were proposed. The charter is scheduled
for review at the Compensation Committee’s meeting in May of 2008, The charter of the Compensation Committee
is available on the Company’s website at www.rudolphtech.com, on the Investor Relations page.

Compensation Consultants

From time to time the Compensation Committee has engaged the services of outside compensation
consultants to provide advice on compensation plans and issues related to the Company’s executive and
non-executive employees. In 2003, Deloitte Compensation Services, a part of Deloitte & Touche USA, L.L.P.,
was retained by the Company’s Compensation Committee as a compensation consultant. Further, at the end of
March 2006, the compensation consulting firm of Upstart Solutions, Inc. was engaged by the Compensation
Committee for the purposes explained below. 1t is the determination of the Company that the foregoing
compensation consultants were considered independent due to the facts that: 1) neither firm provided work other
than compensation services to the Company during the course of their engagement; 2) the Compensation
Committee had the full right to retain and/or terminate either consultant in its discretion; 3) all of the work by
Deloitte Compensation Services was commissioned by the Compensation Committee and the project for which
Upstart Solutions was engaged was commissioned by the Compensation Committee; 4) the Compensation
Committee was copied on reports and work product prepared by the consultants related to their engagement; and
5) each consultant’s engagement was budgeted on a project basis approved by the Compensation Committee with
all costs paid by the Company. In each instance, the Company’s Chairman and CEO served as the contact person
with the consulting firm and as the liaison with the Compensation Committee.

For each of the compensation consultants, the Compensation Committee was responsible for determining
the nature and scope of the related commissioned assignments. In general, the role of each of the compensation
consultants was to provide competitive data and business and technical considerations with regard to the
Company’s compensation plans and to make recommendations as to pay programs and/or pay level changes,
recognizing that the Compensation Committee and the executive management of the Company retained the final
right to decide whether to implement the consultants’ recommendations in their discretion. Specificaily with
regard to Deloitte Compensation Services, the firm was retained to provide a review of the total direct
compensation packages for the Company’s top five executive positions and two additional executive positions as
compared to the comparable position in a series of peer group companies both inside and outside of the
semiconductor industry. In addition, the firm was engaged to review the executive perquisite and benefits
provided at the peer group companies and provide an analysis of the target annual incentives, where available,
and calculation of total cash compensation at the target level performance on a position-by-position basis at these
companies. Mr. Scott M, Ross was the Company’s primary contact at Deloitte Compensation Services.

Subsequent to the completion of the merger of August Technology Corporation and the Company, Upstart
Solutions, Inc. was retained to review and compare the executive compensation plans of the two companies in order to
offer guidance for the integration of the two plans, This review project included a comparison of the base salary levels,
incentive compensation, equity grants and perquisites afforded by each company with the intent to equitably merge the
programs over time into a single plan. Mr. Douglas Binning was the Company’s primary contact at Upstart Solutions,

In addition to the foregoing, the Company’s Human Resources department engaged the services of Upstart
Solutions from April until June 2006 to assist in the development of pay grade structures for employees other
than executives of the merged Company. Mr. Dougias Binning was again the Company’s primary contact with
this consultant during the course of this project. Ms. Kim Latham, the Director of Human Resources for the
Company, engaged the consultant and was responsible for determining the scope of the project and the related
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assignments. Meetings were held with the compensation consultant, Ms. Latham and Company managers to
determine job matching of positions throughout the Company to the Radford Salary Survey, a compensation
survey developed by a leading provider of compensation market intelligence to high-tech industries. The
consultant analyzed the salary survey data and made recommendations for a pay grade structure. Further, he also
made recommendations regarding the placement of individuals into the pay grade structure and assisted the
Company in determining the compensation ratios for these positions.

Role of Executives in Establishing Compensation

During 2006 and 2007, the principal executive of the Company who had a role in the assessment, design and
recommendation of compensation programs, plans and awards for Company executives was the Chairman and
CEQ, Paul McLaughlin, Mr, Mcl.aughlin served as the Compensation Committee’s liaison with Upstart
Solutions in order to provide information and insight to the compensation consultant regarding the compensation
plans of the two merged companies. Upon completion of the consultant’s report it was provided to the
Compensation Committee for their review, consideration and implementation.

Mr. McLaughlin also was responsible in 2006 and 2007 for the preparation of the framework for the
Company’s annual Key Executive Bonus Plan at the direction of the Compensation Committee. This directive
included the development of the focus of the program as well as the business and personal objectives for
consideration by the participants. Policies regarding participation in and payout under the plan were also
reviewed to determine if changes in the program were necessary. Personal and corporate objectives were
established for each of the executives included in this plan. These objectives were then reviewed and agreed upon
by Mr. McLaughlin and the executive subject to the approval of the Compensation Committee. In addition, as
part of the annual performance review of the Company’s executives, Mr. McLaughlin assessed the performance
of his direct reports and determined the merit increase, if any, that would be proposed for each individual. These
merit increase proposals, along with each executive’s personal and corporate objectives and their bonus target
levels (based on a percentage of their fiscal year compensation), were then compiled by Mr. McLaughlin and
submitted to the Compensation Committee for their review and consideration for approval. At the Compensation
Committee meeting during which the executive compensation plans (bonuses and merit increases) were to be
reviewed, Mr. McLaughlin attended the initial session to present the proposed plans and to answer questions that
arose, Thereafter, the Compensation Committee met without Mr. McLaughlin being present to review, discuss
and approve all executive compensation plans for 2006 and 2007 subject to any modifications made by the
Compensation Committee.

With respect to director compensation, in 2006 and continuing into 2007, the Compensation Committee
delegated to the Nominating and Governance Committee, the task of reviewing and making recommendations for
possible changes to the compensation package for Directors. Mr. McLaughlin was requested to and did attend the
meetings of the Nominating and Governance Committee during which the issue of director compensation was
discussed. In addition, Robert Koch, the Company’s Vice President and General Counsel, attended these
meetings as secretary of the proceedings. '

Other than set forth above, no other executives attended the Compensation Committee meetings in 2006 or
2007. Further, no executives of the Company attended any of the Board's Executive sessions.

Compensation Committee Activity

During 2007, the Compensation Committee of the Company met four (4) times. As discussed above, the
Company’s Chairman and CEQ, Paul McLaughlin met with the Compensation Committee once in early 2007 in
order to present the proposed compensation plans for each of the Company’s executives as well as the Employee
Cash Bonus Program for the non-executive employees. At each of its meetings held during 2007, the
Compensation Commitiee met in executive sesston, without the presence of Mr, McLaughlin, any other
Company executives or advisors, to review the relevant compensation matters at such times.
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In 2007, the Compensation Committee took a number of actions. These included:

« Reviewing and approving the annual compensation of the Company CEQ;

» Reviewing and approving the annual compensation for each executive of the Company;

¢ Reviewing and approving the Key Executive Bonus Plan;

+ Reviewing and approving the Employee Cash Bonus Program;

» Reviewing and approving the equity incentive awards issued to the Company’s executives;

* Reviewing and providing direction as to the integration of the compensation programs of August
Technology Corporation and the Company into a single program; and

» Identifying the need to assess the compensation of the Company’s Directors and delegating the review
to the Nominating and Governance Committee.

In reviewing and setting the annual compensation for each executive of the Company, the Compensation
Committee reviewed the amounts payable under each of the elements of their respective compensation plans
including their base salary, annual bonus and perquisites, as well as the equity grants for the individuals. In doing
$0, the Committee took into consideration both the Company’s internal pay equity as well as the competitive
environment within which the Company operates. In each instance, the Committee determined that the base
salary for the individual executives was at an acceptable level, the bonus objectives were measurable and their
achievement would result in appropriate value to the Company and that the perquisites were suitable for the
related positions. The Compensation Committee assessed the contribution to the Company of each executive and
made determinations of equity incentive awards for the executives consistent with their conclusions.

At the direction of the Compensation Committee, the Nominating and Governance Committee performed
the delegated review of the compensation of the Company’s Directors and concluded that from time to time
directors may be compensated for work performed as members of special subcommittees of the Board of
Directors in an amount of $1,000 per meeting. In addition, this Committee determined that no additional changes
to the compensation for the Board of Directors should be enacted at that time. Upon completion of this review,
the Compensation Committee evaluated and accepted this proposal and recommended that the Company Board
of Directors approve the proposal, which it did. Subsequently, in 2007, also pursuant to the delegation received
from the Compensation Committee, the Nominating and Governing Committee recommended to the Board and
the Board approved a $1,000 per meeting fee to any director attending in person a committee meeting, including
any special subcommittee, which is not contemporaneously held with a Board of Directors meeting with the
exception of the Audit Committee Chairman who receives an additional stipend for his efforts in that role.

In 2008, prior to the filing hereof, the Compensation Committee met to review the annual compensation of
the Company CEO, the annual conipensation for each executive officer, the Key Executive Bonus Plan, and the
Employee Cash Bonus Program. In addition, the Committee reviewed the equity incentive awards for the
Company’s executives and other personnel. However, as of the filing hereof, no conclusion had been reached by
the Compensation Committee related to annual compensation, bonus plans, or equity incentive awards.

In 2006 and 2007, no new compensation plans or programs were adopted by the Compensation Commiittee.
It did, however, review and amend the Company's Key Executive Bonus Plan in 2006 to include those
individuals from August Technology who were to be included in the plan after the merger of the two companies.
Further in 2006, the Compensation Committee reviewed and implemented several of the recommendations set
forth in the report issued by Upstart Solutions, its compensation consultant, to facilitate the integration of the
compensation plans for the combined Company executives. These actions were taken to align the compensation
of the executives of the Company into a single, coherent program. The Compensation Committee did not institute
any new or amend any existing compensation policies of the Company in 2007.
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Objectives of Compensation Programs
Compensation Philosophy

The Company’s Compensation Committee believes that the most effective executive compensation program
is one that is designed to reward the achievement of specific annual, long-term and strategic goals by the
Company, and which aligns executives’ interests with those of the stockholders by compensating executives
based on specified financial performance, with the objective of improving stockholder value. The Compensation
Committee evaluates both performance and compensation to ensure that the Company maintains its ability to
attract and retain superior employees in key positions and that compensation provided to key employees remains
competitive relative to the compensation paid to similarly situated executives. This is accomplished by obtaining
third party compensation studies from time to time and by reviewing executive compensation programs of
comparable, publicly held, high technology companies at the start of each year.

The Compensation Committee believes executive compensation packages provided by the Company to its
executives, including the named executive officers, should include cash, selected perquisites and stock-based
compensation that reward performance as measured against established goals. In addition, the Company strives to
promote an ownership mentality among its key leadership and the Board of Directors; the Company’s corporate
policy provides that all directors and executives are required to maintain an outright investment in the Company
equal to at least 1,000 shares within one year of the assumption of his or her position with the Company.

Benchmarking

As discussed in foregoing sections, the Company has engaged compensation consultants at various times in the
development of its compensation programs. As part of one of these engagements, Deloitte Compensation Services
performed a benchmarking review of a series of peer group companies both inside and outside of the semiconductor
industry. Such benchmarking was performed to ensure that the Company's compensation packages were competitive
and attractive in order to recruit the best possible talent to the Company and further enhance shareholder vatue.

In 2003, Deloitte Compensation Services provided compensation consulting services to the Company which
included an analysis of the compensation packages of the Company’s top five executive positions compared to
the top five executives of selected peer group companies. These peer group companies were comprised of eleven
public companies in the semiconductor industry and included an expanded group containing two additional
companies for further analysis. The companies included in the analysis represented companies with which the
Company believes it competes for talent and for stockholder investment. Included in the eleven member peer
group were the following companies:

+ FSI International ¢ Semitool Inc. »  Zygo Corp.
* Cohu, Inc. » Helix Technology *  Emcore
* ADE Corporation * Therma-Wave, Inc. * In-Test Corporation

»  August Technology Corporation  + Nanometrics, Inc.

In 2003, the revenue of these small cap companies ranged from $34.7 million to $143.4 million as compared to
the Company’s revenue of $57.4 million. The number of employees in 2003 at these peer group companies ranged
from 163 to 800 with the Company employing approximately 290 at that time. From a business performance
standpoint, the Company’s total retum to shareholders in 2000 and 2002, was above the median for these companies
while in 2001, it was above the 75th percentile. Further, for the three years preceding the review, the Company's
compounded annual revenue growth rate placed it in the 75th percentile of the peer group companies.

The two companies included for purposes of the expanded peer group included KL A Tencor Corp. and Veeco
Instruments, Inc. Both of these companies, while operating in the semiconductor industry, represented significantly
greater 2003 revenues and employee populations than the Company and so were included only in the expanded peer

group,
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As a result of this benchmark review, it was determined that the base salaries of the Company’s top five
executives in 2003 were, overall, above the peer group medians, being slightly over the 75th percentile in
comparison to the 11 company peer group and slightly less than the 75® percentile in comparison to the 13
company expanded peer group. Overall, the total cash compensation for the Company’s top five executives in
2003 was consistent with the market median of both peer groups.

In 2006, the Company performed an internal benchmark review of its executive compensation program. In
this analysis, the Company utilized a peer group of companies that included the following characteristics:
domestic, public semiconductor capital equipment companies with revenue run rates of between $150 million
and $800 million, market capitalization between $250 million and $1.5 billion and employee populations
between 400 and 2,000. This information was derived from the 2005 annual reports filed by each company. For
purposes of comparison, the Company reported revenue for the 2006 fiscal year of $201.2 million, has a market
cap of over $460 million and ended the year with approximately 620 employees. The companies included in this
peer group were:

«  Brooks Automation, Inc. * FE! Company +  Zygo Corp.

»  Mattson Technology Inc. *  Veeco Instruments, Inc.

In addition to the five companies above, Nanometrics, Inc. was included in the comparative peer group,
even though the company did not meet the criteria set forth above. Nanometrics was included because they are a
competitor closest in size to the Company within the semiconductor market space that the Company currently
operates. Data on the compensation of the top five earning executives from each of these peer group companies
was compiled from the most recently filed proxy statements by the respective companies.

In addition to the foregoing, the Company requested from the executive recruiting firm of Christian and
Timbers, which it had retained for an executive search, a listing of the annual compensation of five of the top
executives of companies within its technical client database. Such companies, it is believed, represent entities
with which the Company would compete in the hiring of technical executives and therefore would provide
additional relevant executive compensation benchmarking data for the Company’s comparative review. The
companies for which information was supplied by Christian and Timbers included the following:

»  Wind River Systems Inc. +  Broadwing Corp. ¢ Cray Inc.

+ Foundry Networks, Inc. +  Juniper Networks, Inc. s Cree, Inc.

« LSI Logic Corporation ¢ Mentor Graphics Corp. ¢+ Komag, Inc.

* ON Semiconductor Corp. ¢ RF Micro Devices, Inc. »  Zoran Corporation

+ Silicon Laboratories Inc. » Standard Microsystems Corp.  »  AMIS Holdings, Inc.

The foregoing companies reported 2005 revenues ranging from $201.1 million to $2.1 billion, had market
capitalizations ranging from $257.0 million to $11.3 billion, and employee populations between 651 and 10,539.

The data from the Company’s peer group and that compiled by Christian and Timbers was then presented to
the Company’s Compensation Committee along with the proposed compensation for the Company’s executives
in order to allow the Committee to make relative comparisons in determining the final compensation packages to
be offered during 2007. As a result of this comparison, it was determined that the 2007 compensation package for
the Company's executives was appropriate and was, therefore, approved.

Compensation Policies

The Company has not established formal written policies regarding its compensation programs or the
elements thereof with the exception of a set of guidelines that address stock ownership by executives and
directors. These guidelines, which are discussed in detail below, were adopted to further align the interest of the
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directors and executives with the interests of shareholders, establish a stake in the long-term financial future of
the Company for these individuals and further promote the Company’s commitment to sound corporate
governance. The Nominating and Governance Committee of the Company proposed the establishment of these
guidelines which were approved and adopted by the Board of Directors.

Comypensation Programs Design

Based on the objectives discussed in the foregoing section, the Compensation Committee has structured the
Company’s annual cash and long-term incentive-based non-cash executive compensation to motivate executives
to achieve the business goals set by the Company and reward the executives for achieving such goals.
Compensation of the Company’s executive officers is comprised of four parts: base salary, annual cash incentive
bonuses, fringe benefits (including perquisites), and long-term incentives in the form of stock option and/or
restricted stock unit (“RSU”) grants.

In establishing these components of the executive compensation package, it is the Compensation
Commitiee’s intention to set total executive cash compensation at a sufficient level to attract and retain a strong
motivated leadership team, but while remaining reasonable and in line with stockholder perception of overall
fairness of executive compensation. The cash incentive bonus is included in compensation to align the financial
incentives of the executives with the interests of the sharcholders,

The Company’s annual executive cash incentive bonuses are administered through its Key Executive Cash
Bonus Plan program. The program provides guidelines for the calculation of annual non-equity incentive based
compensation, subject to Compensation Committee oversight and modification. At its first meeting of each year,
the Compensation Committee reviews the plan established for the succeeding year and approves the group of
employees eligible to participate in the plan for that year.

In addition to the foregoing, each of the Company’s executive officers is eligible to receive equity
compensation in the form of stock option and/or RSU grants under the Company’s 1999 Stock Plan. All full-time
and part-time employees are eligible for stock option or RSU grants. It is believed that through the Company’s
broad-based plan, the economic interests of all employees, including the executives, are more closely aligned to
those of the shareholders. It is also believed that this approach will allow the Company to use equity as an
incentive in a balanced manner that supports the recruitinent and retention of top talent. With the implementation
of stock. option expensing under SFAS No. 123R, the Company shified its equity compensation grants away from
stock options and toward RSU’s, in accordance with the provisions set forth later herein. In doing so, the
Company has retained the employee incentive associated with such grants while lessening the dilution to the
Company’s stock in light of the reduced number of shares granted.

Impact of Performance on Compensation

The performance of an executive has a direct impact on the compensation which he/she receives at the
Company. On an annual basis, the Company’s CEQ reviews the performance and compensation for the
Company’s executive employees to determine any potential salary adjustment for the individual. This assessment
takes into consideratton a number of factors, including the Company’s profitability; the business unit’s
performance, as applicable; the executive’s individual performance and measurable contribution to the
Company’s success; and pay levels of similar positions with comparable companies in the industry. The CEQ's
recommendations for salary adjustments are reviewed by the Compensation Committee and presented to and
approved by the Board of Directors prior to their implementation typically in the first quarter of each year.

At this same time, the Company’s and the individual’s performance to the Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan
targets for the preceding year are assessed by the CEO and a proposed bonus payout, if any, is prepared. The Key
Executive Cash Bonus Plan includes various incentive levels based on the participant’s accountability and impact
on Company operations, with target award opportunities that are established as a percentage of base salary. In
2007, as it was in 2006, these targets range from 10% of base salary to 60% of base salary for the executives in
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the plan. Payout is based upon achievement of the corporate and personal objectives with no payout being
awarded unless the Company meets 30% of Board approved eamings per share (“EPS”) target established as part
of the plan. Personal objectives are awarded on an “all or nothing” basis. Failure to meet the personal objectives
thereby has a negative impact on the ultimate bonus payout. In addition to a review of the prior year’s objectives,
the CEO and the executive also confer to propose new individual performance bonus targets for the coming year
which are combined with the projected corporate targets into a discretionary incentive bonus proposal, The
personal targets which are established are designed to ensure the addition of incremental value to the Company if
they are achieved and are of sufficient challenge that the executive must dedicate focused effort to achieve them.
The corporate component to the bonus goals are set based on the Company’s then current strategic and financial
plans. The preparation of these goals is performed annually to meet the changing nature of the Company’s
business. In 2007, the corporate performance targets were established based on the Company’s 2007 EPS target
and the Company’s 2007 revenues.

Upon completion of the prior year’s resulis and the upcoming year’s proposed Key Executive Cash Bonus
Plan for each participating executive employee, they are then submitted to and reviewed by the Compensation
Committee. Thereafter, they are presented to and approved by the Board of Directors in order to issue the
payment of the bonus, if any, and implement the new plans for the coming year. If, during the year, there are
changes to the Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan that may be proposed, such are presented to the Compensation
Committee to render a decision as to their implementation. The Compensation Committee may exercise positive
or negative discretion in relation to an individual’s compensation based upon their review.

For 2006, since the Company met the Board approved EPS target, S0% of a named executive officer’s plan
award was based upon achievement of corporate financial objectives relating to revenue growth and EPS. The
remaining 50% of a named executive’s plan award was based upon individual performance. In 2006, the named
executive officers participating in the Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan achieved from 55% to 100% of their
personal goals and 100% of their corporate goals. Therefore, for 2006, these named executive officers achieved
from 77.5% to 100% of their combined goals. It is believed that the performance metrics that are utilized by the
Company are appropriate in relation to the industry.

For 2007, the Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan was established such that 50% of a named executive officer’s
plan award was based upon achievement of corporate financial objectives relating to Company revenue and EPS.
The remaining 50% of a named executive’s plan award was based upon individual performance. During the third
quarter of 2007, the Compensation Committee modified the performance targets for all participants in the Key
Executive Cash Bonus Plan, including the named executives, due to a severe downturn in the industry. The
Board modified the executive’s plan awards to a maximum of 25% of the original award amount provided that
the Company met certain fourth quarter corporate goals related to revenue and backlog. Individual performance
goals were removed as a component of the 2007 bonus calculation at this time. These changes were implemented
in order to incentivize and focus all employees to achieve the Company’s near term goals for 2007 in light of the
challenging industry conditions that were being faced. The Company achieved 50% of the modified target and
the amounts due for 2007 were paid out in 2008. Therefore, for 2007, the named executive officers realized
12.5% of their original targeted bonus payout amount per the modified plan.

Finally, an executive’s individual performance is a factor in the size of any discretionary equity grant that
may be awarded by the Compensation Committee and Board of Directors as further long term incentive to the
individual.

Based upon the foregoing, the compensation which an executive may realize in the course of a year can be
impacted by the positive or negative performance of such individual. This relationship between performance and
compensation is the objective with regard to the Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan under which the individual’s
compensation is proportionate to their performance to established, measurable goals. However, this relationship
is more subjective when applied to salary adjustments and equity grants. In these cases, the executive’s
performance is evaluated by taking into consideration their contribution to the Company, the significance of the
individual’s achievements in relation to the overall corporate goals and mission, and their effectiveness in their
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roles and then weighed against the performance of other executives, Thus, there is no formula per se which is
applied in determining relative salary adjustments or equity grants, however, industry norms and reference to
comparative company data are considered as appropriate.

Elements of Compensation Section
Elements of In-Service Compensation

Compensation for the Company’s executives, including its named executive officers, includes the following
basic components: base salary, discretionary incentive bonus and discretionary equity awards as well as a benefit
package and certain perquisites. This design was adopted for executives by the Compensation Committee taking
into consideration a number of parameters including the Company’s compensation consultant’s advice,
comparable practices within the industry and the desire to achieve the goals discussed herein underlying the
compensation plan. It is believed that as a result of this program the Company can attract, retain and motivate
emplovecs and reward the achievement of strategic corporate goals, thereby enhancing shareholder value.

Annually, the Compensation Committee reviews the elements of the compensation package as well as the
overall package afforded to the executives. At this time, the Compensation Comunittee, in its discretion, can
recommend adjustments to the elements of the program to the Board of Directors for their review and approval,
This review would typically be performed coincident with the evaluation of the individual executive’s
performance in relation to their Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan goals, salary adjustment and equity grants, if
any, as discussed above.

It is believed that each of the elements as well as the entire compensation package for Company executives
is appropriate for the Company given its performance, industry, current challenges and environment. A
discussion of the individual components of the Company’s executive compensation package follows.

Base Salary

The Compensation Committee believes that the annual cash compensation paid to executives should be
commensurate with both the executive's and the Company’s performance. For this reason, the Company’s
executive cash compensation consists of base compensation {salary) and variable incentive compensation (annual
bonus and equity awards).

The Company provides executives and other employees with base salary to compensate them for services
rendered during the fiscal year. Base salaries for executive officers are established considering a number of
factors, including the Company’s profitability; the executive’s individual performance and measurable
contribution to the Company’s success; and pay levels of similar positions with comparable companies in the
industry. The Compensation Committee supports the Company’s compensation philosophy of moderation for
elements such as base salary and benefits. Base salary decisions are made as part of the Company’s formal
annual review process.

Executives whose functions are related to sales are compensated in accordance with a traditional sales
compensation plan which includes both salary and commission components. Commission targets for such
executives are set annually consistent with the Company’s revenue targets approved by the Board of Directors
and utilixed in establishing the Company’s discretionary bonus plan targets discussed below.

When an executive position is opened at the Company, the salary for this role is established. In determining
the salary, the CEQ, Human Resources representative and hiring manager, if applicable, consult with relevant
resources, including a recruitment firm if one is hired to assist in the job search, in order to receive
recommendations as to the range of salaries and other compensation typically earned by individuals holding such
a position. From time to time, the Company engages independent consultants to perform a review of the
Company’s overall executive compensation structure, including the CEO’s compensation. The results of such
reviews are utilized in establishing executive compensation levels. For the CFO, COO and senior level
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executives, the CEO presents the proposed compensation package to the Compensation Committee of the Board
of Directors for review and approval prior to offering the position to the candidate. For all other executive
positions, the CEO determines the compensation package to be offered, Each executive employee candidate is
presented with the details of the job offer including the prospective starting salary and equity award package,
with the package being subject to Board of Director’s approval at the next scheduled Board meeting.

On an annual basis, the CEQ reviews the performance and compensation for the Company’s executive
employees to determine any salary adjustment for the individual. This assessment takes into consideration a
number of factors, including the Company’s profitability; the executive’s individual performance and measurable
contribution to the Company’s success; and pay levels of similar positions with comparable companies in the
industry and within similar tech industries. The CEO’s recommendations for salary adjustments are reviewed by
the Compensation Committee and presented to and approved by the Board of Directors prior to their
implementation typically in the first quarter of each year.

Discretionary Bonus

An executive’s annual performance award generally depends on the financial performance of the Company
relative to profit, revenue or other financial targets and the executive’s individual performance. These targets are
reviewed at least annually to meet the changing nature of the Company’s business. The incentive portion is
generally set at a higher percentage for more senior officers, with the result that such officers have a higher
percentage of their potential total cash compensation at risk.

Most executive employees participate in the Company’s discretionary Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan
which is designed to generate additional incentive for maximizing the employee’s performance in realizing the
corporate strategic goals and mission, This plan is individualized to each participating executive employee and
generally is based upon the financial performance of the Company relative to profit and revenue targets and the
executive’s individual performance. These targets are reviewed and proposed at least annually to meet the
changing nature of the Company’s business. The Key Executive Bonus Plan of each participating executive
employee is submitted to and reviewed by the Compensation Committee and then presented to and approved by
the Board of Directors prior to their implementation each year.

During the course of the year, the Company accrues for the Key Employee Cash Bonus. If, during the year,
there are changes to the plan that may be proposed, such are presented to the Compensation Committee and then
the Board or the Compensation Committee, as appropriate, renders a decision as to their implementation. Upon
completion of the year, the individual’s and the Company’s results with respect to the performance targets are
then assessed and presented to the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors along with the proposed
Plans for the next year. The Compensation Committee reviews the submitted payouts and suggests changes if
necessary. Key Executive Cash Bonus Plan awards are paid out following completion of the annual audit by the
Company’s independent registered public accountants. This occurs usually in the first quarter of each year and an
executive must still be on the payroll 1o receive payment.

Discretionary Equity Awards

The Compensation Comumittee administers the Company’s 1999 Stock Plan which was adopted by the
Board of Directors on August 31, 1999 and approved by shareholder vote on November 6, 1999. Pursuant to this
plan, employees and members of management, including the Company’s executive officers, may receive annual
grants of incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options and/or RSU’s (collectively, “Grants”) at or about
the time of their performance reviews each year from a pool of shares previously approved by Rudolph
shareholders. The purpose of the Grant program is to provide additional short term and long term incentive to
executives and other key employees of the Company to work to maximize long-term return to the Company’s
stockholders. The allocation of the Grant pool, other than the shares allocated to the CEO and other than option
shares allocated in amounts of more than 10,000 per recipient (or more than 5,000 in the case of RSU grants), is
recommended by the CEQ for approval by the Compensation Committee. The allocation of option shares from
the Grant pool in amounts of 10,000 or less (5,000 or less in the case of RSU grants) per recipient is made by the
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CEO and reviewed by the Board of Directors at the first Board meeting following such allocation. The number of
Grants awarded to each executive officer is made on a discretionary rather than formula basis by the
Compensation Committee. Similarly, the allocation of shares from the Grant pool to the CEO is determined by
the Compensation Committee. Regarding the Grant process, the Compensation Committee does not delegate any
related function, and the named executive officers are not treated differently from other executive members.

In awarding Grants to the executive officers, the CEO and the Compensation Committee consider a number
of subjective factors, including the executive’s position and responsibilities at the Company, such executive’s
individual performance, the number of Grants held (if any) and other factors that they may deem relevant. Grants
generally vest over a five-year period to encourage holders to build shareholder value for the long term and to
continue in the employ of the Company. ' ‘ i

Regarding equity grants to the Company’s executives, the timing of each Grant typically coincides with
each year’s first scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors and its Compensation Committee or upon
completion of the Compensation Committee’s review and approval process. Except in highly unusual
circumstances or in the case of a newly hired executive, the Company does not engage in making Grants at other
dates. The Grant date is established when the Company’s Compensation Committee approves the.Grant and all
key terms have been determined which is typically the first Board meeting date of the calendar year. The exercise
price of stock option grants is the closing market price of the Company’s stock on the date of the option grant,
ensuring that the Grant will acquire value only to the extent that the price of the Company’s common stock
increases relative to the market price at the date of grant. The value of an RSU grant is based on the closing
market price of the Company’s stock on the date of such grant. All Grants are subject to the terms of the
Company's 1999 Stock Plan. : ' -

Personal Benefits and Perquisites

All employees of the Company, including its executives, receive a benefit package (“Benefit Package™)
which includes the following components: health and dental insurance, elective vision care program, life
insurance and accidental death and dismemberment coverage, 401(k) savings plan, short and long term disability .
insurance with supplemental income continuation, health care and dependant care flexible spending account
programs, employee assistance program (EAP}, tuition reimbursement plan, employee stock purchase plan,
employee referral bonus program, and length of service awards. These benefits are consistent with industry
practice and are necessary in recruiting and retaining qualified employees. In addition to the Benefit Package,
executive employees receive the following perquisites: a car allowance of $500 per month, Company paid tax
preparation services and Company paid membership in one airline executive club. The foregoing.perquisites
were determined based on a review of comparable company offerings performed by the Company and its
compensation consultant and are evaluated annually as part of the Company's compensation review. It is
believed that these perquisites are reasonable and consistent with the Company’s overall compensation program
to better enable the Company to attract and retain superior employees for key positions, -

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

The Company established an Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP") which was adopted by the Board ~
of Directors on August 31, 1999 and approved by shareholder vote on November 6, 1999 effective as of
August 31, 1999 and was amended on May 1, 2005. Under the terms of the ESPP, eligible employees may elect
to have up to 15% of eligible compensation deducted from their pay and applied to the purchase of shares of
Company common stock. The price the employee must pay for each share of stock is 95% of the fair market
value of the Company common stock at the end of the applicable six month purchase period. The ESPP qualifies
as a non-compensatory plan under section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code. The amendments to the ESPP of
May 1, 2005 removed the “look back™ provision that was previously a part of the ESPP and reduced the discount
for purchasing shares of the Company’s stock to five percent. These modifications to the ESPP were made at the
time as a result of the Company’s anticipated adoption of SFAS No. 123R. The Company does not offer an
Employee Stock Ownership Plan.
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Other Material Elements

The Company does not have any deferred compensation plans and there are no other material elements
related to the Company’s compensation of its executives that are not otherwise specified herein.

Employment Agreements

The Company utilizes employment agreements on a limited basis. In 2000, the Company entered into
management agreements with Paul F. McLaughlin and Steven R. Roth each effective as of July 24, 2000. These
individuals previously had employment agreements with the Company at the time when it was a private entity.
Then, at the time the Company went public, each executive’s respective agreement was redrafted to reflect terms
consistent with a public company (e.g. rights in equity holdings) and were executed. The management agreement
with Roth provide for a term of one year with antomatic renewals for additional one-year terms unless the Company
or the executive delivers a notice of non-renewal to the other party. Mr. McLaughlin’s management agreement
provides for an initial term of two years with antomatic renewals for additional two-year terms. The management
agreement with Mr. Roth prohibits the executive from competing with the Company in any way or soliciting its
employees during their terms of employment and for one year after termination of their employment.

Mr. McLaughlin’s management agreement prohibits him from competing with the Company in any way or
soliciting its employees during the term of his employment and for two years after termination of his employment.

The management agreements provide that if the Company terminates an executive’s employment without
cause or if the executive terminates with good cause, the Company will be required to pay Mr. Roth his base
salary for one year and two years in the case of Mr. McLaughiin as well as any bonus, should it become payable
after the date of termination. Good cause is defined in the agreements as: a) a material reduction in the duties and
responsibilities of the executive; b) the relocation of the executive outside of the Flanders, New Jersey area; c)
requiring the executive to make a material misstatement or omission in any financial report or governmental
filing; or d) a material breach of the agreement that is not corrected within fifteen (15) days of notice to the
Board. The agreements also provide that in the event of the termination of an executive’s employment upon a
change in control, which results in the executive not being offered a management agreement on comparable
terms, the executive will be entitled to receive his base salary for one year, or two years in the case of
Mr. McLaughlin. In this context, a change of control would occur if, among other events, the Company was sold
to an independent third party and that independent third party acquired enough of the Company’s stock to elect a
majority of the Company’s Board of Directors, or that independent third party acquired all, or substantially all, of
the Company’s assets. The management agreements with these executives provide that in the event the individual
is terminated without cause or for good cause by the executive, the executive is entitled to continue group health
or other group benefits as allowed by the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act (COBRA) after the
individual’s termination.

Upon the merger with August Technotogy Corporation, the Company assumed certain executive
employment agreements into which August Technology had entered. These included the agreementis with
following executives currently empioyed by the Company: D. Mayson Brooks effective March 1, 2002, Ardelle
Johnson effective August 18, 2003, Jeffrey Nelson effective January 17, 2005 and Michael Plisinski effective
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April 22, 2005. Pursuant to these agreements, each executive has a set annual base salary that may be adjusted
upward or downward by the Chief Executive Officer or Board of Directors. Further, the agreements set forth that
the employment of each of these executives may be terminated by mutual written agreement, by either party with
thirty days written notice, or by the Company for cause as defined therein. In the event the Company terminates
the executive’s employment without cause, or by mutual agreement, the individual is entitled to severance equal
to a standard severance period, except where change in control provisions are met whereby the severance is equal
to a change in control severance period. All of the agreements are identical in nature except for the specific terms
set forth in the exhibit to the respective employment agreements defining employee title, manager, base salary,
severance period, change in control severance and other special provisions. The severance period for Messrs.
Brooks and Johnson is twelve months of base salary and the change in control severance is eighteen months of
base salary. For Mr. Plisinski, the severance pertod is six months of base salary and the change in contre]
severance is six months of base satary, while for Mr. Nelson they are three months and three months,
respectively. The employment agreements with each of these executives provide that in the event the individual
is terminated with or without cause upon thirty (30) days notice or upon a change in control, the executive may
elect to continue group health or other group benefits as allowed by COBRA, and the Company shall make the
COBRA payments for the duration of the individual’s severance period.

In addition to the foregoing, upon the hiring of Nathan Little and of Alex Oscilowski, the Company agreed to
include a severance stipulation as part of their respective employment packages. Neither Mr. Little nor
Mr, Oscilowski has entered into an employment agreement with the Company. However, upon hiring Mr. Little it
was agreed that in the event of his termination without cause or a change in control of the Company after which he
did not receive an offer of equivalent job, title, responsibility, salary, benefits including no change in residency, he
would receive severance in the amount of six months of his base salary. Additionally, upon hiring Mr. Oscilowski, it
was agreed that in the event of a change in control of the Company and a material reduction in his reporting
responstbility, duties or job responsibilities, he would receive severance in the amount of twelve months of his base
salary. This stipulation was agreed to as an additional incentive negotiated by Mr. Little and Mr. Oscilowski and the
Company prior to comumencing their respective employment,

Elements of Post-Termination Compensation

The Company does not have a practice of providing retirement benefits, including any supplemental
executive retirement plans (SERPs), to its executives. Further, the Company does not have any policy which
obligates it 1o provide severance benefits to its executives or directors. As discussed above, however, for the
executives who have entered into employment agreements with the Company, these agreements each contain a
severance and change-in-control provision. In addition, the Company retains the discretion to utilize the offer of
severance and/or change-in-control protection as an incentive in its hiring of executives.

The Company maintains a policy of entering into an agreement with each of its new employees, including
executives which contain both non-solicitation and non-competition provisions. The non-solicilation provisions
apply for one (1) year after termination of the individual's employment while the non-competition provisions are
in effect during the individual’s employment and for one (1) year thereafter. Each of the Company’s executives
has entered into these covenants on the stated terms with the Company except Mr. McLaughlin whose
non-solicitation and non-competition provisions are in place during and extend for two (2) years after the end of
his employment with the Company. In each case, these covenants have been implemented to protect the
confidential information, goodwill and other assets of the Company that are transferred to the individual during
his/her employment and to preclude possible unfair competition against the Company through the use of such
information. For those individuals with employment agreements, should a breach of the non-solicitation or
non-competition terms of their agreements occur, this could give rise to the Company declaring a breach under
the agreement and terminating all severance payments thereunder.

Upon termination of an executive’s employment with the Company, the individual is entitled to receive his
or her base salary earned through the termination date, prorated on a daily basis, along with a payout for all
accrued but unused vacation time earned though such date. Thereafter, further cash compensation to the
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executives is discontinued, except to the extent that severance or change-in-control payments must be made per
the discussions above. This includes the removal of any obligation by the Company to pay any unpaid bonuses,
except in the cases of Messrs. McLaughlin and Roth per their management agreements. In addition to the
foregoing, upon termination, all perquisites and benefits cease. As discussed above, certain executives with the
Company who have entered into employment agreements are entitled to elect to continue group health or other
group benefits as allowed by COBRA. The Company retains the right to offer severance and/or payment of
COBRA benefits to any individual who is terminated from the Company at its discretion.

In the event an individual who has received RSU grants from the Company ceases in their employment or
engagement to provide services to the Company, under the Company’s Restricted Stock Purchase Agreement and
in accordance with the Company’s 1999 Stock Plan, any RSU grants which are not vested as of the individual’s
termination date are forfeited immediately, without any further action by the Company. As Administrator of the
Company’s 1999 Stock Plan, the Compensation Committee retains the right to waive or amend such forfeiture of
any unvested RSU grants at its discretion,

Stock Ownership/Retention Guidelines

The Company has established guidelines related to stock ownership and retention for ils executives and its
outside directors. The guidelines require that each executive, including the named executive officers, own at least
1,000 shares of Company common stock within one year of their date of hire and thereafter maintain such
ownership status during the course of their employment with the Company. Similarly, each outside director of
the Company is required to own at least 1,000 shares of Company common stock within one year of their date of
their election to the Board of Directors and thereafter maintain such ownership status during their service as a
Director of the Company. For those executives employed by the Company and outside directors serving on the
Board at the time of the enactment of these policies, the one year timeframe extended from the date of the Board
approval of the subject resolution. The Company has no other stock retention policies applicable to its
employees, including the named executive officers and other executives, or directors. The Company adopted
these policies in order to further align the interest of the executives and outside directors with the interests of
shareholders, have a stake in the long-term financial future of the Company and to further promote the
Company's commitment to sound corporate governance while allowing them to prudently manage their personal
financial affairs.

In assessing compliance with the foregoing guidelines, the Company takes into consideration only the
ownership of common stock in the Company. To that end, restricted stock units and vested stock options do not
qualify as shares in meeting the Company’s stock ownership and retention guidelines.

The Company’s stock ownership and retention guidelines are reviewed annually by the Nominating and
Governance Committee of the Company. At their last review on January 31, 2007, the guidelines were found to
continue to be appropriate and acceptable, both in the required number of shares to be owned and retention
period, and no changes to the policies were recommended by this Commitiee. At this same time, the Nominating
and Governance Committee also reviewed the compliance of the Company’s executives and directors with the
terms of the policies. It was determined that all executives and directors who were with the Company and acting
in their executive/ director capacities for over one year were in compliance with the ownership requirement of
1,000 shares of Company common stock. In the event that an individual were to not meet or drop below the
requisite number of shares, the Company would inform the individual of the discrepancy and thereafter he/she
would be required to acquire sufficient shares to reach the threshold amount. Should such individual continue to
not own the required number of shares, additional action, including possibie removal from the executive/director
role would be considered by the Board. The Nominating and Governance Committee has scheduled review of the
Company’s stock ownership and retention guidelines for its May 2008 meeting.

The Company has no other policies regarding stock ownership or retention and does not have a policy which
addresses hedging of company stock ownership by executives except for the Company’s policy relating to insider
trading.
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Impact of Regulatory Requirements

The Company’s stock option grant policies have been impacted by the implementation of SFAS No. 123R,
which was adopted on January 1, 2006. Under this accounting pronouncement, the Company is generally
required to value stock options granted and stock options granted after adoption of SFAS No. 123R under the fair
value method and expense those amounts in the income statement over the stock option’s vesting period. Because
of the financial impact of SFAS No. 123R, the current intent of the Company is to limit the number of shares
granted. It is believed that this strategy is best aligned with the Company’s stakeholder philosophy because it is
intended to limit future earnings dilution from options while at the same time retains the broad-based stock
option plan, which the Company believes is important to employee commitment.

The Company’s compensation program is structured to comply with Internal Revenue Code Sections 162(m).
Under Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code, a limitation was placed on tax deductions of any publicly-held
corporation for individual compensation to certain executives of such corporation exceeding $1,000,000 in any taxable
year, unless the compensation is performance-based. The Company has no individuals with non-performance based
compensation paid in excess of the Internal Revenue Code Section 162(m) tax deduction limit,

Inasmuch as the Company does not employ nonqualified deferred compensation plans, Internal Revenue
Code Section 409A does not play any role in the decisions related to its compensation decisions and design.

Finally, the Company’s compensation program was developed in advance of the implementation of the new
proxy disclosure rules and has remained unchanged even with the advent of these rules. The decisions made in
administering to the Company’s compensation programs are based on sound business practices and are not
predicated on the issuance of the disclosure rules. Further, the determination of the named executive officers
under the new proxy disclosure rules have not had any impact on the Company’s decisions regarding and designs
of the individual's related compensation. Other than as outlined above, no other regulatory requirements have a
significant impact on the Company’s compensation programs, decisions or designs.

Conclusion

In reviewing its compensation programs, the Company has concluded that each element of compensation as well
as the total compensation delivered to its named executive officers as well as its other executives are reasonable,
appropriate and in the best interests of the Company and its shareholders. This is due to the fact that the programs meet
the Company’s goals of establishing a compensation package that attracts and retains a strong motivated leadership
teamn, aligns the financial incentives of the executives with the interests of the sharcholders, and rewards the
achievement of specific annual, long-term and strategic goals by the Company. At the same time, the compensation
package remains consistent with those offered by competitive companies within the industry. It is believed that the
compensation programs established by the Company have enabled it to recruit and secure a talented and motivated
leadership team by which the Company drives toward the ultimate objective of improving stockholder value,

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORT ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

We, the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors, have reviewed and discussed the Compensation
Discussion and Analysis (“CD&A”) within the Executive Compensation section of this Proxy Statement with the
management of the Company. Based on such review and discussion, we are of the opinion that the executive
compensation policies and plans provide appropriate compensation to properly align Rudolph Technologies, Inc.’s
performance and the interests of its stockholders through the use of competitive and equitable executive
compensation in a balanced and reasonable manner, for both the short and long-term. Accordingly, we have
recommended to the Board of Directors that the CD&A be included as part of this proxy filing.

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

DANIEL H. BERRY (CHAIRMAN)
PauL CRAIG
CarL E. RING, Jr.
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Summary Compensation Table

The table below sets forth information for the most recently completed year concerning the compensation of
the Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the three other most highly compensated executive
officers and the most highly compensated non-executive officer of the Company who were serving as such at the
end of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2007 (together, the “Named Executive Officers”):

Non-Equi
Stock Option lncg]:ltgg Pltzn All Other
Name and Principal Position Year Salary Awards (1) Awards (1) Compensation (2) Compensation (3) Total
Paul F. McLaughlin ........ 2007 $532,980 $540,803 — $ 40,541 $18,889 $1,133,213
Chairman and Chief 2006 $480,496 $274,510 — $196,560 $19,289 $ 970,855
Executive Officer
StevenR.Roth............ 2007 $257,465 $132,672 — $ 13,013 $17,714 $ 420,864
Senior Vice President, 2006 $236,389 § 73,078 —_ $ 65,367 $17,264 $ 392,008
Finance and
Administration and Chief
Financial Officer
Nathan H. Little . .......... 2007 $245,023 $169,272 — $ 14,068 $18,708 $ 447,071
Executive Vice President 2006 $210,400 $ 99,337 —_ $ 68,387 $21,053 $ 399,177
and General Manager of
Inspection Business Unit
Michael P. Plisinski ........ 2007 $233,192 $ 84,171 $ 79675 § 13,303 $ 6,710 $ 417,051
Vice President and General 2006 $177,789 $ 20,072 $141,768  $ 56,438 $19,596 $ 415663
Manager of Data,
Analysis & Review
Business Unit
Alexander A. Oscilowski ... 2007 $300,000 $ 42,296 — $ 18,750 $13,439 § 374,485
Chief Operating Officer 2006 $ 17,308 — — $ 8750 § 72 % 126130
D. Mayson Brooks . ........ 2007 $307,149 $ 45,610 $ 34,125 — $ 5,595 $ 392,479
Vice President, Global 2006 $298,087 $ 10,036 $ 55,6606 — $ 9,014 $ 372,803

Sales

(1) For more information regarding the Company’s assumptions made in the valuation of restricted stock units
and stock options, see Note 10 to the financial statements included in the Company’s Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2007.

2

Represents performance bonus awards under the key executive cash bonus plan. With respect to the 2006

amounts, the performance bonus awards were earned in 2006, but paid in 2007. With respect to the 2007

amounts, the performance bonus awards were earned in 2007, but paid in 2008.
The table below details the 2007 components of this column.

3

Name

Paul F. McLaughlin
Steven R. Roth

Nathan H. Little
Michael P, Plisinski

Alexander A. Oscilowski

D. Mayson Brooks

....................

Matching
Contribution to Total “All Other
401(k) Insurance {(a) Perquisites Compensation”
$6,750 $864 $11,275(b) 518,889
$6,750 $864 $10,100(c) $17,714
$6,750 $864 $11,094(d) $18,708
$5,846 3864 $ — = $ 6,710
$ — 3864 $12,575(e) $13,439
$4.731 $864 F — $ 5,595

*  Less than $10,000 of perquisites in the aggregate, and therefore, zero perquisites disclosed.
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Insurance is defined as the premium associated with coverage under the group term life insurance and
accidental death and dismemberment insurance plans provided by the Company to its employees.
Coverage is equal to the lesser of two times salary or $450,000.

Perquisites include automobile allowance ($6,000), tax return preparation ($5,000), the premium
associated with an extra $450,000 of coverage under the group term life insurance and accidental death
and dismemberment insurance plans provided by the Company to its employees and reimbursement of
executive airline club membership.

Perquisites include automobile allowance ($6,000), tax return preparation ($3,800) and reimbursement
of executive airline club membership. .

Perquisites include automobile allowance ($6,000), tax return preparation ($4,000), amount paid by the
Company for opting out of heaith insurance coverage and reimbursement of executive airline club
membership.

Perquisites include automobile allowance ($6,500), reimbursement for relocation expenses ($5,650)
and reimbursement of executive airline club membership.
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Grants of Plan-Based Awards

The following table sets forth information with respect to plan-based restricted stock awards granted in 2007
to the Named Executive Officers. The dollar amounts indicated under the “Grant Date Fair Value™ s the full fair
value of each grant, in accordance with the applicable accounting literature, which is greater than the
amortization costs the Company recognized on its fiscal year 2007 financial statements with respect to such
grant.

. All Other
Estimated Future Payouts Under Non- .
ot utore oyt Dndr Non- - spoc Awardss

Name Grant Date Threshold Target Maximum Units (1) Fair Value
Paul F. McLaughlin '

Performance-based .... February 1, 2007 —_ $324,324 $432,432 —_ —

Time-based .......... February 1, 2007 — — —_ 80,000 $1,275,200
Steven R. Roth

Performance-based .... February 1, 2007 — $104,103 $104,103 — —

Time-based .......... February 1, 2007 —_ — — 17,500 $ 278,950
Nathan H. Little

Performance-based .... February 1, 2007 — $112,545 $112,545 — —

Time-based .......... February 1, 2007 — — — 20,000 $ 318,800
Michael P. Plisinski

Performance-based .... February 1, 2007 — $106,425 $106,425 _— —

Time-based .......... February 1, 2007 — —_ — 17,500 $ 278,950
Alexander A. Oscilowski

Performance-based .... February 1, 2007 — $150,000 $150,000 — —_

Time-based .......... February 1, 2007 — — —_ 15,000 $ 239,100
D. Mayson Brooks

Performance-based .... February 1, 2007 — — — — P,

Time-based .......... February 1, 2007 — — _— 10,000 $ 159,400

(1) These restricted stock units will vest 20% on each of the subsequent five anniversaries of the grant date. For
additional information, see *Compensation Discussion and Analysis.”

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-End

The following table sets forth information with respect to outstanding equity awards held by the Named
Executive Officers as of December 31, 2007, The aggregate dollar values indicated in the table below for equity
incentive plan awards are the market or payout values and not the SFAS No. 123R values or the compensation
expense recognized by the Company on its financial statements for fiscal year 2007 with respect to its long-term
equity incentive plan awards. Such compensation expenses amounts, or the amortization pursuant to the
applicable accounting literature is provided in the “Summary Compensation Table” and the table under “Grants
of Plan Based Awards” above.
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Name

Paul F. McLaughlin .

Steven R. Roth

Nathan H. Little

Michael P. Plisinski(5)

Alexander A. Oscilowski

D. Mayson Brooks(6)

Option Awards (2) Stock Awards
Number of  Number of Market
Securities Securities Number of Value of

Underlying

Underlying

Units of Units of

Unexercised Unexercised Option Option  Stock That Stock That
Options Options Exercise Expiration HaveNot Have Not
Grant Date (1) Excercisable Unexercisable Price Date Vested (3) Vested (4)
11/11/1999 125,000 — $16.00 11/10/2009
1/26/2001 125,000 —_ $40.13 172572011
10/19/2001 30,000 —_ $23.40 10/18/2011
1071872002 35,000 — $14.62 10/17/2012
172912003 150,000 —_ $1641 1/28/2013
112972004 75,000 _ $26.20 1/28/2014
12742005 30,000 $339,600
2/16/2006 28,000 $316,960
2172007 80,000 $905,600
11/11/1999 75,000 — $16.00 11/10/2009
1/26/2001 50,000 — $40.13  1/25/2011
10/19/2001 15,000 — $23.40 10/18/2011
1(/18/2002 10,0600 _— $14.62 10/17/2012
1/29/2003 45,000 — $16.41 172872013
129/2004 25,000 — $26.20 1/28/2014
112772005 8,700 $ 98,484
2/16/2006 6,400 $ 72,448
2/1/2007 17,500 $198,100
5/22/2001 25,000 — $50.30 572172011
10/19/2001 15,000 — $23.40 10/18/2011
1/29/2003 75,000 — $16.41  1/28/2013
1/29/2004 35,000 — $26.20 1/28/2014
1/27/2005 12,300 $139,236
2/16/2006 8,000 $ 90,560
27112007 20,000 $226,400
71312003 30,500 — $ 932 8/1,2010
21642004 1,324 —_ $24.20  2/6/2014
10/222004 921 — $10.00 10/22/2014
12/30/2004 7,624 — $13.62 12/30/2014
37712005 2,329 —_ $15.87 3/772015
4/29/2005 26,687 —_ $15.48 4/29/2015
7/21/2005 735 — $16.71 7/21/2015
1/25/2006 4,767 7,147 $14.81 112512016 .
5/23/2006 8,000 $ 90,560
21112007 17,500 $198,100
2/1/2007 — — — — 15,000 $169,800
17572001 1,525 — $17.55  1/5/2008
71212001 9,530 — $17.37 712/2008
4/5/2002 5,718 — $18.68  4/5/2009
2/6/2004 4,766 — $2420  2/6/2014
4/30/2004 1,467 — $17.19 4/30/2014
377/2005 1,926 — $15.87 31772015
112172005 377 — $16.71 712172015
172572006 — 8,108 $14.81 1/25/2016
5/23/2006 4,000 § 45280
2/1/2007 10,000 $113,200
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(1) For better understanding of this table, we have included an additional column showing the grant date of
stock options and restricted stock units.
(2) Stock options became exercisable in accordance with the vesting schedule below:

Grant Date Vesting

11/11/1999 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date
1/5/2001  Full vesting at grant date
1/26/2001 Y5 per year on the anniversary of the grant date
5/22/2001 ¥ per year on the anniversary of the grant date
7A2/2001  Full vesting at grant date
10/19/2001 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date
4/5/2002  Full vesting at grant date
10/18/2002 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date
1/29/2003 V5 per year on the anniversary of the grant date
7/3/2003 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date and vesting accelerated on 2/15/06
1/29/2004 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date
2/6/2004  Full vesting at grant date
4/30/2004  Full vesting at grant date
10/22/2004  Full vesting at 120 days
12/30/2004 V3 at grant date and in years 2 and 3
37772005 Full vesting at grant date
4/29/2005 Y3 at grant date and in years 2 and 3
7/21/2005  Full vesting at grant date
1/25/2006  ¥s at grant date and in years 2, 3, 4 and 5

(3) Restricted stock units vest in accordance with the schedule below:

Grant Date Vesting

1/27/2005 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date
2/16/2006 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date
2/172007 Vs per year on the anniversary of the grant date

(4) Based on the Company’s common stock closing price of $11.32 on December 31, 2007.

(5) Mr. Plisinski’s outstanding stock options were assumed through the merger of the Company with August
Technology on February 15, 2006.

(6) Mr. Brooks’ outstanding stock options were assumed through the merger of the Company with August
Technology on February 15, 2006.
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested

The Company has not granted stock option awards to the Named Executive Officers with respect to a fiscal
year after 2004, excluding the stock options assumed in the August Technology merger on February 15, 2006.
No other options were granted in 2005 or any subsequent year. The following table sets forth information with
respect to the exercise of stock options and vesting of restricted stock by the Named Executive Officers during
2007:

Number of Number of
Shares Value Shares Value

Acquired on Realizedon Acquired on Realized on
Name Exercise Exercise Vesting Vesting
Paul F. McLaughlin .................................. — f — 17,000 $267,780
StevenR.Roth . ... ... . — 5 — 4,500 $ 70,673
NathanH. Little . .. ... .. —_— $ — 6,100 $ 95,661
Michael P.Plisinski .......... ... oo — 3 — 2,000 $ 31,620
Alexander A. Oscilowski ... ..ot e i e cia e, —_ $ — — $ —
D.Mayson Brooks . ... 42714  $231,313 1,000 $ 15,810

The Company does not have a pension program nor does it offer non-qualified deferred compensation.

Executive Officers

Set forth below is certain information regarding the executive officers of the Company and their ages as of
March 31, 2007. Information relating to Paul F. McLaughlin is set forth above under the caption
“PROPOSAL 1—ELECTION OF DIRECTORS—Nominees.”

Nathan H, Little, age 56, has served as the Company’s Executive Vice President and General Manager,
Inspection Business Unit since February 2006. From July 2004 to February 2006, Mr. Little served as Executive
Vice President responsible for global sales, marketing and new business development. From January 2003 to July
2004, Mr. Little served as the Company’s Senior Vice President of Operations responsible for engineering and
manufacturing. Mr. Little has been a Vice President since he joined the Company in May 2001. From 1986
through 2001, Mr. Little held various positions with Philips Electronics where he last served as Vice President,
NPR Purchasing for Philips Electronics North America. Mr. Little received a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering
from Northwestern University, an M.S. in Mechanical Engineering from the University of Minnesota and an
M.B.A. from Harvard University Graduate School of Business.

Alexander A. Oscilowski, age 48, has served as the Company’s Chief Operating Officer since November
2006. From February 2005 to November 2006, Mr. Oscilowski served as Vice President of Strategy for
SEMATECH, Inc., a semiconductor research and development consortium. Prior to that, he served as President
and Chief Executive Officer for DFT Microsystems, Inc., a supplier of test instruments for the semiconductor
industry. From June 1999 10 September 2002, Mr. Oscilowski served as President for Kulicke & Soffa Industries,
an assembly equipment and materials supplier for the semiconductor industry. Mr. Oscilowski holds a B.S. in
Materials Engineering from Drexel University and an M.B.A. from Boston University.

Steven R. Roth, age 47, has served as the Company’s Senior Vice President, Finance and Administration and
Chief Financial Officer since February 2002. From September 1996 to February 2002, Mr. Roth served as the
Company's Vice President, Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer. From August 1991 to
August 1996, Mr. Roth served as a Director of Corporate Finance for Bell Communications Research, now called
Telcordia, a research and development company serving the telecommunications industry. Mr. Roth is a C.P.A.
and holds a B.S. in Accounting from Villanova University.

D. Mayson Brooks, age 49, has served as the Company’s Vice President of Global Sales since December
2006 and prior to that as the Company’s Vice President of Global Sales, Inspection from February 2006 when the
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Company merged with August Technology Corporation to Decemnber 2006. From January 2002 to February
2006, Mr. Brooks served as Vice President of Sales and Field Operations for August Technology and also served
as Vice President of Sales and Marketing from July 1999 to January 2002. Mr. Brooks holds a B.S. in
Engineering from the United States Naval Academy and an M.B.A. from the University of North Carolina.

Scott Danciak, age 38, has served as the Company’s Vice President of Engineering for the Inspection
Business Unit since June 2006. From March 2005 to June 2006, Mr. Danciak served as the Company’s Director
of Thin Film Development and from September 2004 to March 2005 he served as the Senior Manager for Thin
Film Development. From September 2003 to September 2004, Mr. Danciak served as the Company’s Manager of
Hardware Engineering. Prior to that, he served the Company in various engineering management and staff
positions since 1997. Mr. Danciak holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Johns Hopkins University.

Robert DiCrosta, age 60, has served as the Company’s Vice President of Global Customer Support since
February 2002. From July 2000 to February 2002, Mr. DiCrosta served as the Director of Global Customer
Support. Prior to that, he served in various positions in Customer Support and Finance with other high tech
equipment manufacturers. Mr. DiCrosta received a B.S. in Marketing from the University of Bridgeport and an
M.B.A. in Finance and International Finance from New York University.

Ajay Khanna, age 48, has served as the Company’s Vice President of International Accounts since
December 2006 and prior to that as the Company’s Vice President of International Sales, Metrology from
February 2006 to December 2006. Mr. Khanna also served as Vice President of Intemnational Sales from
February 2002 to February 2006. Prior to that, he served in various international sales positions and has been
with the Company since 1986. Mr. Khanna received a B.S. in Electrical Engineering from Clarkson University
and an M.B.A. from the University of Michigan Business School.

Robert A. Koch, age 46, has served as the Company’s Vice President and General Counsel since May 2003.
From April 1986 to May 2003, Mr. Koch was employed by Howmedica Osteonics Corp., the orthopaedic implant
subsidiary of Stryker Corporation, where he was their in-house counsel for 12 years and last served as their
Director of Legal Affairs. Mr. Koch holds a B.S. in Chemical Engineering and an M.S. in Biomedical
Engineering, both from Rutgers University. Mr. Koch earned his J.D. from Rutgers School of Law-—Newark in
1991 and is admitted to practice in New Jersey and New York.

John R. Kurdock, age 63, has served as the Company’s Vice President and General Manager, Metrology
Business Unit since July 2007. From November 2006 to July 2007, Mr. Kurdock served as the Company’s
Assistant General Manager and Vice President, Metrology Business Unit and prior to that as the Company’s Vice
President of Manufacturing, Metrology from February 2006 to November 2006. Mr. Kurdock joined the
Company as Vice President of Manufacturing in January 2005. From June 2003 to January 2005, Mr. Kurdock
was an independent consultant specializing in the semiconductor capital equipment industry. From January 1997
to June 2003, Mr. Kurdock was the Vice President of Operations for Electro Scientific Industries, a
semiconductor capital equipment manufacturer. Mr. Kurdock holds a B.S. in Mechanical Engineering from
Carmegie Mellon University.

Ardelle R. Johnson, age 53, has served as the Company’s Vice President of Corporate Marketing since
February 2006 when the Company merged with August Technology Corporation. From August 2003 to February
2006, Mr. Johnson served as Vice President of Marketing for August Technology. From June 1980 to April 2003,
Mr. Johnson was employed by FSI International Inc., a semiconductor capital equipment company, serving most
recently as Vice President of Sales and Marketing. He holds a B.S. in Chemistry from the University of
Minnesota and an M.S. from the University of Wisconsin.

Christopher J. Morath, age 39, has served as the Company’s Vice President of Operations, Metrology
Business Unit, since August 2007. From November 2006 to August 2007, Mr. Morath served as the Company’s
Director of Manufacturing Operations, Metrology Business Unit. From January 2004 to November 2006,
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Mr. Morath served as the Company’s Director of Marketing and prior to that served for three years as Director
of Product Development in Engineering. Mr. Morath received a B.A. in Physics from Boston University, an M.S.
and Ph.D. in Condensed Matter Physics from Brown Umversny, and an M.B.A_ from the Wharton School of the
University of Pennsylvania.

Jeffrey T. Nelson, age 52, has served as the Company’s Vice President of Manufacturing, Inspection since
February 2006 when the Company merged with August Technology Corporation. From August 2004 to February
2006, Mr. Nelson served as August Technology's Vice President of Manufacturing. From September 1998 o
March 2004, he served as Director of Manufacturing at Elkay Corp, a supplier of sinks, plumbing and cabinetry
to retailers. Mr. Nelson received a B.S. in Business Administration from the University of Minnesota.

Michael P. Plisinski, age 38, has served as the Company’s Vice President and General Manager, Data
Analysis and Review Business Unit since February 2006 when the Company merged with August Technology
Corporation. From February 2004 to February 2006, he was August Technology’s Vice President of Engineering
and its Director of Strategic Marketing for review and analysis products from July 2003 to February 2004.

MEr. Plisinski joined August Technology as part of the acquisition of Counterpoint Solutions, a semiconductor
review and analysis company, where he was both President and sole founder from June 1999 (o July 2003.
M, Plisinski has a B.S. in Computer Science from the University of Massachusetts.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

The Compensation Committee consists of Directors Daniel H. Berry, Paul Craig and Carl E. Ring, Jr., none
of whom has interlocking relationships as defined by the SEC.
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to beneficial ownership of the Company’s
Common Stock as of March 31, 2008 (except as otherwise indicated), by: (i} each person who is known by the
Company to own beneficially more than five percent of the Common Stock, (ii} each of the Named Executive
Officers, (iii) each of the Company’s directors, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a group. Except as

indicated in the footnotes to this table, the persons named in the table have sole voting and investment power
with respect to all shares of Common Stock shown as beneficially owned by them, subject to community

property laws where applicable.

Percentage (2)

Number of

Beneficial Ovwmer Shares (1)
FMR Corp.(3) .ottt et e e e 3,724,293

82 Devonshire Street

Boston, MA 02109
Artisan Investment Corporation(4) .. .......oviiii ittt 3,041,800

875 East Wisconsin Avenue, Suite 800

Milwaukee, W1 53202
Wellington Management Company, LLP(5) ........... ... oo, 2,441,564

75 State Street

Boston, MA 02109
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP(6) ........ ... ... .. . i i 2,308,871

1299 Ocean Avenue

Santa Monica, CA 90401
The Bank of New York Mellon Corperation(7) .............. ... ... iiinn, 1,645,990

One Wall Street, 31% Floor

New York, New York 10286
Paul F.McLaughlin . ........ oo i 751,581
Steven R, ROth . . ..o e e e 239,987
Nathan H. Little . . ... oo i i et e it ittt enneetannenns 172,414
Michael P, PUHSINSKE . ..o vtit ittt i et et e s e e et naanrar o 165,555
Alexander A. OscilowsKl . . .. .o .o e e e e 3,000
D.Mayson Brooks . ...t e e e 33,521
Daniel H. BeITY ... .ottt et ee e i iaa et aaars 27,283
Paul Craig ..o ittt i e e e 205,785
Thomas G. Greig(B) . .. ... v i ittt e 1,239,540

c/o Liberty Capital Partners, Inc.

1370 Avenue of the Americas

New York, NY 10019
Jeff L. O Dell(9) ..ottt e et e 73,732
Carl B RINg, Jr. oo e e e 20,500
Richard F. Spanier(10) .. ... i et iaa e i 84,434
Aubrey C.Tobey . ... e 19,500
John R Wt . . oottt ettt et e e e e e 71,500
Michael W. Wright ........ ... . . .o 40,084
All directors and executive officers as a group (twenty-three persons)(11) .......... 3,429,737

* Less than 1%.

12.19%

9.95%

7.99%

7.56%

5.39%

2.42%

* ¥ K ¥ H

4.05%

x ¥ ¥ ¥ ¥

*

10.72%

(1) Includes the number of shares subject to options which are exercisable and restricted stock units vesting
within 60 days of March 31, 2007 by the following persons: Mr. McLaughlin, (540,000 shares), Mr. Roth
(213,269 shares), Mr. Little (150,000 shares), Mr. Plisinski (79,270 shares), Mr., Oscilowski (0 shares),
Mr. Brooks {27,488), Mr. Berry (16,783 shares), Mr. Craig (15,000 shares), Mr. Greig (15,000 shares),
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Mr. O’Deli (5,337 shares), Mr. Ring (15,000 shares), Mr. Spanier (15,000 shares), Mr. Tobey (15,000
shares), Mr. Wright (17,853 shares) and all directors and executive officers as a group (1,439,240 shares).

(2) Applicable percentage ownership is based on 30,559,982 shares of Common Stock outstanding as of
March 31, 2008. Beneficial ownership of shares is determined in accordance with the rules of the SEC and
generally includes shares as to which a person holds sole or shared voting or investment power. Shares of
Common Stock subject to options that are presently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 31,
2008 are deemed to be beneficially owned by the person holding such options for the purpose of computing
the percentage ownership of such person, but are not treated as outstanding for the purpose of computing the
percentage ownership of any other person. Unless otherwise noted the address for the stockholders named in
this table is c/o Rudolph Technologies, Inc., One Rudolph Road, P.O. Box 1000, Flanders, NJ 07836.

(3) Information provided herein is based on the Schedule 13G that was filed on February 14, 2008 by FMR
Corp.

(4} Information provided herein is based on the Schedule 13G/A that was filed on February 8, 2008 by Artisan
Partners Limited Partnership, Artisan Investment Corporation, ZFIC, Inc., Andrew A. Ziegler and Artisan
Funds, Inc.

(5) Information provided herein is based on the Schedule 13G that was filed on February 14, 2008 by
Wellington Management Company, LLP.

(6) Information provided herein is based on the Schedule 13G that was filed on February 6, 2008 by
Dimensional Fund Advisors LP.

(7) Information provided herein is based on the Schedule 13G that was filed on February 14, 2008 by The Bank
of New York Mellon Corporation.

(8) The number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by Mr. Greig includes 1,219,040 shares of
Rudolph Technologies Common Stock held by Liberty Partners Holdings 11, L.L.C. Liberty Partners, L.P.
is the managing member of Liberty Partners Holdings 11, L.L.C. and PEB Associates, Inc. d/b/a Liberty
Capilal Partrers, Inc. is the general partner of Liberty Partners, L.P. Mr, Greig is an officer, director and
shareholder of Liberty Capital Partners, Inc. Mr. Greig disclaims beneficial ownership of all shares to the
extent it exceeds his pecuniary interest in the securities.

(%) Includes 21,574 shares held by the O’Dell Family Limited Partnership.

(10) Includes 7,671 shares held by Dr. Spanier’s wife.

(11) The number of shares of Common Stock beneficially owned by our directors and executive officers as a
group includes 1,219,040 shares of our Common Stock held by Liberty Partners Holdings 11, L.L.C.

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

The fellowing table sets forth information with respect to the Company’s equity compensation plans as of
December 31, 2007.

(a) {b) (c)

Number of securities

remaining available
for future issuance
Number of securities Weighted-average under equity
to be issued upon exercise exercise price of compensation plans
of outstanding options, outstanding options, (excluding securities
Mﬂl’! warrants and rights (1) warrants and rights  reflected in column (a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
securityholders . ....... ... ... ... ... 1,742,882 $21.75 1,028,539
Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holders . ...................... N/A N/A N/A
Total ...... .. ... ... ... ... ..... 1,742,882 $21.75 1,028,539

(1) Includes only options outstanding under the 1996 Stock Plan, 1997 Stock Plan and the 1999 Stock Plan.
Excludes 680,110 shares issuable upon vesting of outstanding Restricted Stock Units.

37




SECTION 16(a}) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires the Company’s executive officers and
directors and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of the Company’s equity securities to
file an initial report of ownership on Form 3 and changes in ownership on Form 4 or Form 5 with the SEC. Such
persons are also required by SEC rules to furnish the Company with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.
Based solely on its review of the copies of such forms received by it, or written representations from certain
reporting persons, the Company believes that, during the year ended December 31, 2007, all officers, directors
and greater than ten percent beneficial owners complied with all Section 16(a) filing requirements, except Paul F.
McLaughlin filed a late Form 4 with respect to one transaction on October 15, 2007.

OTHER MATTERS
The Company knows of no other matters to be submitted to the Annual Meeting. If any other matters
properly come before the Annual Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the enclosed Proxy to vote

the shares they represent as the Board of Directors may recommend.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

STEVEN R. ROTH
Secretary

Dated: April 21, 2008
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| BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Paul F. McLaughlin
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Execurive Officer

John R. Whitten
Former Chief Financial Officer,
Vice President and Treasurer

Applied Industrial Technologies, Inc.

Daniel H. Berry
Operating Partner
Riverside Partners, LLC

Paul Craig

President
Riverside Partners, LLC

Thomas G. Greig
Managing Director
Liberty Capital Partners, Inc.

Jeff L. O'Deli
Co-Founder and Chief Executive Ofhicer
Bewiki, Inc.

Casrl E, Ring, Jr.
Former Managing Director
Liberty Capital Pareners, Inc.

Richard F. Spanier
Retired, Chairman Emeritus

Aubrey C. Tobey
President
ACT [nternational

Michael W. Wright
President and Chief Execurive Officer
Advanced Inquiry Systems, Inc.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Paul F. McLaughlin
Chairman of the Board and
Chief Exccutive Officer

Alexander A. Oscilowski
Chief Operating Officer

Nathan H. Little
Exccutive Vice President and General
Manager, [nspection Business Unit

Steven R. Roth
Senior Vice President, Finance and
Administration and Chief Financial Officer

CORPORATE HEADQUARTERS

Rudolph Technologies, Inc.
One Rudolph Road

P.O. Box 1000

Flanders, New Jersey 07836
Phone: 973 691 1300

www.rudolphtech.com

CORPORATE

| WORLDWIDE QFFICES

Rudolph Technologies
Metrology Business Unin
Budd Lake, New Jersey

Rudolph Technologies
Inspection Business Unit
Bloomington, Minnesota
Richardson, Texas

Issaquah, Washington
Bohemia, New York

Rudolph Technologies Data Analysis
& Review Business Unit
Lowell, Massachusetts

Rudolph Technologies Europe B.V.
Scotland, United Kingdom

Rudolph Technologies Japan KK
Takastu, Japan

Rudolph Technologies China
Shanghai, China

Rudolph Techaologies Korea

Seoul, Korea

Rudolph Technologies Singapore

Singapore

Rudolph Technologies Taiwan
Hsin-Chu Ci[y, Taiwan

KEY EMPLOYEES

D. Mayson Brooks
¥ice President, Global Sales

Scott R. Danciak
Vice President of Engincering,
Inspection Business Unit

Robert DiCrosta
Vice President, Global Customer Support

Ajay Khanna
Vice President, International Accounts

Robert A. Koch
Vice President and General Counsel

John R. Kurdack
Vice President and General Manager,
Metrology Business Unit

Ardelle R. Johnson
Vice President, Corporate Marketing

Christopher J. Morath
Vice Peestdent ofOpcmtions,
Metrology Business Unit

Jeffrey T. Nelson
Vice President of Manufacturing,
Inspection Business Unit

Michael P. Plisinski
Vice President and General Manager, Data
Analysis & Review Business Unit

INFORMATION

] SHAREHOQLDER INFORMATION

General Shareholder and Investor
Questions may be Directed to:
Steven R. Roth

Chief Financial Officer

Rudolph Technologies, Inc.

One Rudelph Road

P.O. Box 1000

Flanders, New Jersey 07836

Phone: 973 691 1300

Independent Registered Public
Accounnting Firm

Ernst & Young, LLP

1selin, New Jersey

Registrar and Transfer Agent
American Stock Transfer &
Trust Company

59 Maiden Lane

New York, New York 10038
Phone: 212 936 5100-

www.amstock.com

Stock Symbol
Common Stock is traded on the NASDAQ
National Market® under the symbol, RTEC.

Annual Meeting

Stockholders are invited to attend

the Annual Meeting ar 9:00 AM on
Tuesday, May 20, 2008 at our corporate
headquarters, located at One Rudolph Road,
Flanders, New Jersey 07836.

Form 10-K

‘The Annual Repore on Form t0-K filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission

is available wichout ¢harge upon wrirten
request to Investor Relations at our
corporate headquarters address.




Rudolph Technologies, Inc.
One Rudolph Road

P.O. Box 1000

Flanders, NJ 07836

973 691 1300

www.rudolphtech.com
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